
 

   

 

 

DATE: November 20, 2018 

TIME: 7:00 p.m. 

PLACE:  Hidden Valley Lake CSD     
 Administration Office, Boardroom 

19400 Hartmann Road 

Hidden Valley Lake, CA  

         
1)  CALL TO ORDER  

  

2)        PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3)        ROLL CALL 

 

4)  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

5) EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 

 

6)        PRESENTATIONS 

 
7)        CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

A.   MINUTES: Approval of the October 8, 2018 Special Meeting minutes  

B.   MINUTES: Approval of the October 9, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting   

minutes 

 

C.  MINUTES: Approval of the October 16, 2018 Board of Directors Board     

Meeting minutes 

 

D.  MINUTES: Approval of the October 18, 2018 Valley Oaks Sub-Committee      

 Meeting minutes  

 

E.  MINUTES: Approval of the October 19, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting 

minutes  

 

F. DISBURSEMENTS:  Check # 35830 - # 35905 including drafts and payroll for a 

total of $441,831.31 

 
8) BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS  

(for information only, no action anticipated) 
 
Finance Committee 
Personnel Committee 
Emergency Preparedness Committee  
Lake Water Use Agreement-Ad Hoc Committee 
Valley Oaks Project Committee 
 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 
Regular Board Meeting  

 



 

9)   BOARD MEMBER ATTENDANCE AT OTHER MEETINGS  
(for information only, no action anticipated) 

10)  STAFF REPORTS 
(for information only, no action anticipated) 

 
Financial Report 
Administration/Customer Service Report 
Field Operations Report 
ACWA State Legislative Committee 
General Manager’s Report 

 

11) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Discuss bid proposals for the 

development of the LHMP and provisionally award; pending grant approval 

 

12) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Discuss and enter into a Memorandum of 

Agreement (MOA) Between Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District and 

the County of Lake Pertaining to Assistance Provided Under the Emergency 

Management Mutual Aid (EMMA) Plan 

 

13) DISCUSS AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Discuss and approve revision of the current 

and future employee handbook to add Christmas Eve day as a full paid holiday 

(office to be closed) when it falls on a Monday 

 

14) DISCUSS AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Discuss AMI options and provide the Board 

with additional information; requesting direction to proceed 

 

15) DISCUSS AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Discuss and approve payment for emergency 

power generator (October 14-16, 2018) to United Rental in the amount of 

$16,447.69 and Coastal Mountain Electrical in the amount of $2,562.50 from 

Operational Reserves (Fund 325 $20K available as of 11/14/18)  
 

16) DISCUSS AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Discuss and approve the transfer of funds 

from Capital Improvement Reserves (Fund 320) to Operational Reserves (Fund 

325) to pay for power generation during the purposed November power shut down. 

Recommendation to transfer $25K 

 

17) PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
18)     BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 

 
19)  ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

20) CLOSED SESSION (A) Government Code 54957 (b) Personnel Performance 

Evaluation – General Manager Evaluation 

21) ADJOURNMENT 

Public records are available upon request.  Board Packets are posted on our website at www.hvlcsd.org/meetings  In compliance to 

the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special accommodations to participate in or attend the meeting please contact the 

District Office at 987-9201 at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting.  

 

Public shall be given the opportunity to comment on each agenda item before the Governing Board acts on that item, G.C. 54953.3.  

All other comments will be taken under Public Comment. 

http://www.hvlcsd.org/meetings


              
                                             

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1 
 

 
 

HIDDEN VALLEY LAKE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: October 8, 2018 
 
The Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District Board of Directors met this 
evening at the District office located at 19400 Hartmann Road, in Hidden Valley Lake, 
California.  
Present: 
 Director Linda Herndon, Vice President 
  Director Jim Freeman 
 Director Jim Lieberman 
 Director Judy Mirbegian 
 Kirk Cloyd, General Manager 
 
Absent: 
 Director Carolyn Graham, President 
  

CALL TO ORDER 
 

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by Vice President Herndon. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

On a motion made by Director Lieberman and second by Director Freeman the Board 
unanimously approved the agenda. 
 

DISCUSSION: 
Daniel Eisenberg of Utility Service Co., Inc. (a subsidiary of Suez) to present a 

potential AMI meter solution to the Board for review and discussion. 
 
Members of the Board request item be brought to the October 16th Regular Board 
Meeting for discussion and possible action for moving forward with an AMI solution. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

There was none. 
 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 

There was none. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
On a motion by Director Freeman and second by Director Mirbegian the board voted 
unanimously to adjourn the meeting. The meeting was adjourned at 6:38 p.m. 
 
 
             
Linda Herndon      Date   Kirk Cloyd     Date 
Vice President of the Board    General Manager/Secretary to  
       the Board 



 

1 
October 9, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting 

 
 

HIDDEN VALLEY LAKE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
MEETING DATE: October 9, 2018 

 
 
The Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District Finance Committee met at the 
District office located at 19400 Hartmann Road, in Hidden Valley Lake, California.  
Present were: 
 
Director Mirbegian 
Director Freeman 
General Manager Kirk Cloyd 
Full Charge Bookkeeper Trish Wilkinson 
Administrative Assistant Penny Cuadras 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

The meeting was called to order at 12:31 pm by Director Mirbegian. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

On a motion made by Director Freeman and second by Director Mirbegian the 
Committee unanimously approved the agenda. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

DISCUSS: 
Repayment of advance to other funds (Fund 130 to 712) 

Repayment process was approved by Resolution 2014-17. Full Charge Bookkeeper to 

make Journal Entry of transaction. Committee recommends a policy be developed  

DISCUSS: 

Setting a Pooled Cash ceiling w/ excess transferred to Water and Sewer 

Operational Reserves & CIP accounts 

Following review and discussion the Committee recommends staff develop a Policy to 

bring before the Board for approval. 

DISCUSS: 

General Managers current purchasing limitations 

Following discussion, the Committee recommends a Policy and Resolution be brought 

before the Board to approve an increase of the General Managers purchasing limit to 

$15,000.00. 

Members of the Committee reminded staff no approval is required for items that are 

Budget approved and / or within the purchasing limitations of the General Manager. To 

remain transparent, the Committee asked staff to continue to bring awareness to the 

Board of expenditures, recommending an addition of a “financial section” to the GM 

Report.  

 



 

2 
October 9, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting 

 

DISCUSS: 

Water and Sewer Connection Fees for new construction and T.I.’s (Informational 

only) 

Following discussion, the Committee recommends staff develop a Policy and Resolution 

to bring before the Board for approval. 

DISCUSS and REVIEW: 

 Water and Sewer Sustainability Plans for SRF Loan and possible 

recommendation to Board 

Committee recommends item be brought before the Board for review and approval. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 

 COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENT 
 

Director Freeman commented on the Civic Spark Fellows Flood Detention Basin Event 
Director Mirbegian commented on the SUEZ presentation and the process for moving 
forward with the AMI project. 
Director Mirbegian asked for an update on the District Financial SOP’s  
 

ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 
 
Committee requests staff provide a list of projects paid that were not a budgeted item. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
On a motion made by Director Freeman and second by Director Mirbegian the 
Committee voted unanimously to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting was adjourned at 
1:42 p.m. 



              
                                             

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

October 16, 2018 Regular Board Meeting  Page 1                  
 

 

 
 

HIDDEN VALLEY LAKE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: October 16, 2018 
 
 
The Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District Board of Directors met this 
evening at the District office located at 19400 Hartmann Road, in Hidden Valley Lake, 
California.   
 
Present were: 
 Director Linda Herndon, Vice-President 
 Director Judy Mirbegian 
 Director Jim Freeman 
 Director Jim Lieberman, 
 Kirk Cloyd, General Manager 
Absent:  
 Director Carolyn Graham, President (Excused) 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Vice-President Herndon. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

On a motion made by Director Mirbegian and second by Director Lieberman the Board 
unanimously approved the agenda with the removal of Item 19 (Closed Session). 

 
EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 

 
The District recognized Karen Jensen for 14 years of service and dedication. Karen has 
been instrumental in cross training and providing support to fellow staff. Members of the 
Board expressed appreciation of the balance and calm Karen brings to the office. 

 
PRESENTATIONS 

 
CivicSpark fellows, Ernesto Ruvalcaba and Michael Burley provided a progress report 
and discussed future steps throughout the service year. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

On a motion made by Director Freeman and second by Director Lieberman the Board 
unanimously approved the following Consent Calendar items:  
 
A. MINUTES: Approval of the September 18, 2018 Board of Directors Regular 
 Board  Meeting Minutes (Director Mirbegian reminded staff her absence was 
 Excused) 
 
B. MINUTES: Approval of the September 18, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting 
 Minutes 
 
C. MINUTES: Approval of the September 21, 2018 Lake Water Use Ad-HOC 
 Committee Meeting Minutes 
 
D. MINUTES: Approval of the September 24, 2018 Personnel Committee Meeting 
 Minutes  
 



              
                                             

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

October 16, 2018 Regular Board Meeting  Page 2                  
 

 

G. DISBURSEMENTS:  Check # 35759- # 35829 including drafts and payroll for a 
 total of $213,480.21. 
 

BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

Finance Committee:  Met October 4th  
Personnel Committee:   
Emergency Preparedness Program Committee:  Has not met, however, there is a desire to 

schedule a meeting to discuss; Security concerns, Cyber Security updates and repair items. 
Lake Water Use Agreement-Ad Hoc Committee:  Met September 21st, HVLA asked the 

District to draft an updated agreement for review and approval by the HVLA Board. 
Valley Oaks Project Sub-Committee:  Scheduled to meet October 18th to discuss Commercial 
Connection fees calculated by NBS. Lake County will be contacted to determine ownership and 
maintenance responsibilities of Coyote Valley Road. 

 
BOARD MEMBER ATTENDANCE AT OTHER MEETINGS 

 
Director Herndon attended the HVLA Communal Table held at the Greenview. Topic of 
concern were the Meter Moratorium; Director Herndon referred all questions to Kirk 
Cloyd, General Manager. 
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

Financial Report:  Board appreciates the addition of the Finance section in GM Report 
ACWA State Legislative Committee:  Recap of the ACWA report appreciated by the Board 

Administration/Customer Services Report: 
Field Operation Report: 
General Manager’s Report:  The General Manager discussed items in his report and 
responded to all inquiries. 

 
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:  

Discuss AMI options and plans;  
Schneider Electric – GPR Loan forgiveness and SRF Loan   

 SUEZ dba Utility Services – Sole Source or Master Service Agreement 
 

Discussed and reviewed Schneider Electric and Suez options. 
 

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:   
Discuss and approve the Water and Sewer Fiscal Sustainability Plans as required 

for the Clean Water State Revolving Fund AMI application 
 

Tabled 
Moved by Director Freeman seconded by Director Mirbegian to table the approval of the 
Water and Sewer Fiscal Sustainability Plans as required for the Clean Water State 
Revolving Fund AMI application. 
 
Motion Carried Unanimous. 

 
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: 

 Discuss and approve the General Manager to enter into an agreement with SUEZ 
 

Director Freeman moved and seconded by Director Lieberman to approve the General 
Manger to move forward with negotiations of a Sole Source Agreement or Master 
Service Agreement with Suez, Options to be presented to Board for direction.  

 
Motion Carried Unanimous. 

 
 



              
                                             

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

October 16, 2018 Regular Board Meeting  Page 3                  
 

 

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: 
Discuss and approve an increase to the General Managers current purchasing 

limitations from $5,000 to $15,000 
 
Director Mirbegian moved and seconded by Director Freeman to approve an increase to 
the General Managers current purchasing limitations from $5,000 to $15,000. 
 
Motion Passed Unanimous.  
 

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: 
Discuss and approve the General Manager to enter into an agreement with 

Wagner & Bonsignor to proceed with Meter Moratorium Mitigation 
 

Tabled 
Director Mirbegian moved and seconded by Director Freeman to table for further 
clarification. Board request a Board Workshop conference call with Paula Whelan, 
Wagner & Bonsignor. 
 
Motion Carried Unanimous. 

 
DISCUSS:  

Discuss and direct staff on how to proceed with the Employee Handbook 
 

The Board directed staff to send revised Employee Handbook to legal for review. 
Following legal review, the draft will come back to the Personnel Committee for review 
and final approval by the Board. 
 
Pay for Performance Policy will be added at a later date. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

A member of the public thanked staff for keeping the water running during the PG&E 
power outage. 
A member of the public acknowledged members of the Board for renewing the 
CivicSpark Agreement.  
A member of the public informed the District of a new CalFire grant funding for fuel 
reduction and vegetation management, deadline to submit application is December 
2018. 
 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 

Director Freeman expressed his appreciation for the amount of work the Board and the 
Committees have accomplished. 
Director Lieberman asked if Consultant resumes have been received for the update of 
the Strategic Plan. 
Director Herndon appreciates staff keeping the members of the Board apprised during 
the PG&E power outage. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
On a motion made by Director Freeman and second by Director Lieberman the Board 
voted unanimously to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting was adjourned at 9:23 p.m. 
 
 
             
Linda Herndon           Date   Kirk Cloyd                 Date 
Vice-President of the Board    General Manager/Secretary to the Board 



              
                                             

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1 
 

 
 

HIDDEN VALLEY LAKE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
VALLEY OAKS PROJECT SUB- COMMITTEE REPORT 

MEETING DATE: October 18, 2018 
 
 
The Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District Valley Oaks Project 
Sub -Committee met at the District office located at 19400 Hartmann Road, in Hidden 
Valley Lake, California.  
  
Present were: 
 Director Linda Herndon 
 Kirk Cloyd, GM 
 Ken Porter, Developer   
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

The meeting was called to order at 10:10 AM by Director Herndon. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Agenda was unanimously approved by Committee Members. 
 

DISCUSS: 
     Connection Fees 
 
The Committee discussed in great detail the connection fees. Based on 2” meter size 
and the strength of the sewage.  Estimate for Water = $83,445.00.  Estimate for Sewer = 
$171,024.08.  Total Estimated = $254,469.08.   
 
Grocery store only No Garbage Grinder No Deli No Produce No Butcher Shop. Valley 
Oaks to provide copies of the Plumbing and Mechanical Plans and were referred to  
SWRCB G-21 when they questioned how the sewer strength was calculated. 
 
Additional buildings will have separate meters. 
Coastland fees are for the estimate to develop a scope of service. Coastland report 
expected to be complete by next week, Staff will follow up with John Wanger. 
 

DISCUSS:  
Status of LAFCO Work and District Annexation 

 
Staff encourage Mr. Porter to keep the District updated on the LAFCO work. Keeping the 
District informed will streamline Valley Oaks Annexation into the District. 
 

DISCUSS: 
Form and Content of Easement Documents 

 
Mr. Porter requests the District accept easement content only. To date, connection fees 
have not been paid.  Subsidence in the sewer trench line has not been addressed.  
Acceptance of the easement and work would equate to accepting the liability of the road 
in the current sub-par condition.  Staff will conifer with legal counsel regarding the 
Districts ability to accept the easement. 

 
 
 
 



              
                                             

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2 
 

 
DISCUSS: 

Status of Last Year's Improvements (Poppy Bank Update) 
 

Lack of proper documentation for the Connection and Tenant Improvement Fees has 
prevented payment of balance due. Staff continues to work with Kevin Downey, Poppy 
Bank to find a solution. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
No Public present. 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:30 am. 



              
                                             

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1 
 

 
 

HIDDEN VALLEY LAKE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

MEETING DATE: October 19, 2018 
 
 
The Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District Finance Committee met at the 
District office located at 19400 Hartmann Road, in Hidden Valley Lake, California.  
Present were: 
 
Director Mirbegian 
Director Freeman 
General Manager Kirk Cloyd 
Water Resources Specialist  
Full Charge Bookkeeper Trish Wilkinson (excused absence) 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

The meeting was called to order at 12:36 pm by Director Mirbegian. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

On a motion made by Director Freeman and second by Director Mirbegian the 
Committee unanimously approved the agenda. 
 

DISCUSS: 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Grant & it’s potential for this District 

 
Committee discussed the LHMP Grant process and the potential for the District 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

None 
 

 COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENT 
 

Constituents requested herbicide and pesticide testing for the Lake Director Mirbegian 
directed them to General Manager, Kirk Cloyd 
Director Mirbegian confirmed the GM Limit of $15,000.00 is per project/incident 
I&I CCTV to be scheduled with Miksis Services, Inc. 
 

ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 
 

Credit Card Fees 
Budget Plan  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
On a motion made by Director Freeman and second by Director Mirbegian the 
Committee voted unanimously to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting was adjourned at 
1:06 p.m. 



11-13-2018 04:23 PM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                   PAGE:   1

VENDOR SET: 01  Hidden Valley Lake             D I S B U R S E M E N T   R E P O R T                                BANK: ALL

VENDOR CLASS(ES): ALL CLASSES

REPORTING FUND NO#: 120 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUN               SORTED BY FUND

                                        NO#                 TOTAL          G/L                G/L                            G/L

VENDOR     NAME                      INVOICES              AMOUNT    1099  ACCT NO#           NAME                          AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-1023    HACH COMPANY                                                N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         216.36

01-1086    CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRI                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       3,370.00

01-11      STATE OF CALIFORNIA  EDD                                    N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,334.56

01-1392    MEDIACOM                                                    N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         256.30

01-1479    CLEARLAKE LAVA, INC.                                        N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         682.52

01-1579    SOUTH LAKE REFUSE COMPANY                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         214.46

01-1705    SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MAN                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR      14,578.74

01-1722    US DEPARTMENT OF THE TREA                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       3,979.99

01-1723    ADVANCED ELECTRONIC SECUR                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         132.00

01-1751    USA BLUE BOOK                                               N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       2,583.19

01-19      NBS GOVERNMENT FINANCE GR                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,603.75

01-1961    ACWA/JPIA                                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         505.23

01-21      CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYE                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       5,291.23

01-2111    DATAPROSE                                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         787.00

01-2283    ARMED FORCE PEST CONTROL,                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,825.50

01-2538    HARDESTER'S MARKETS & HAR                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR           6.98

01-2541    MENDO MILL CLEARLAKE                                        N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,066.63

01-2585    TYLER TECHNOLOGY                                            N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR      17,990.75

01-2598    VERIZON  WIRELESS                                           N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         394.25

01-2638    RICOH USA, INC.                                             N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         216.63

01-2648    B & G TIRES OF MIDDLETOWN                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         356.95

01-2674    EUREKA OXYGEN CO.                                           N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         389.75

01-2680    BARRY SILVA                                                 N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         108.08

01-2684    OFFICE DEPOT                                                N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         270.17

01-2699    MICHELLE HAMILTON                                           N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         312.50

01-2700    REDFORD SERVICES                                            N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         950.00

01-2719    TIRE PROS                                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         348.91



11-13-2018 04:23 PM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                   PAGE:   2

VENDOR SET: 01  Hidden Valley Lake             D I S B U R S E M E N T   R E P O R T                                BANK: ALL

VENDOR CLASS(ES): ALL CLASSES

REPORTING FUND NO#: 120 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUN               SORTED BY FUND

                                        NO#                 TOTAL          G/L                G/L                            G/L

VENDOR     NAME                      INVOICES              AMOUNT    1099  ACCT NO#           NAME                          AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-2751    GRAPHIC FX, INC.                                            N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR           7.50

01-2755    BEELER TRACTOR CO                                           N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       5,259.84

01-2788    GHD                                                         N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         510.00

01-2816    CARDMEMBER SERVICE                                          N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         175.45

01-2820    ALPHA ANALYTICAL LABORATO                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       3,497.00

01-2823    GARDENS BY JILLIAN                                          N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         100.00

01-2825    NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOL                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         900.00

01-2830    CUMMINS PACIFIC LLC                                         N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         576.41

01-2842    COASTLAND CIVIL ENGINEERI                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       4,201.46

01-2847    ALYSSA GORDON                                               N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR          82.21

01-2860    WESTGATE PETROLEUM CO., I                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,451.63

01-2876    BOLD POLISNER MADDOW NELS                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         461.25

01-2880    MIDDLETOWN COPY & PRINT                                     N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         166.23

01-2909    STREAMLINE                                                  N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         100.00

01-2917    AT&T MOBILITY                                               N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR          33.55

01-2919    REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVI                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR          59.95

01-2921    LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSI                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         402.06

01-2926    THATCHER COMPANY, INC.                                      N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,251.16

01-2945    APPLIED TECHNOLOGY SOLUTI                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       3,446.65

01-2947    ECLIPSE MAPPING AND GIS                                     N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,616.07

01-2949    FARR CONSTRUCTION                                           N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR     184,015.00

01-2950    AFLAC                                                       N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         105.02

01-2951    JENFITCH, LLC                                               N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,132.60

01-8       AT&T                                                        N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         118.19

01-82      E & M ELECTRIC & MACHINER                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,009.00

01-9       PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC CO                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,899.70

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

           ***  FUND TOTALS  ***                                                                                        272,350.36



11-13-2018 04:23 PM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                   PAGE:   3

VENDOR SET: 01  Hidden Valley Lake             D I S B U R S E M E N T   R E P O R T                                BANK: ALL

VENDOR CLASS(ES): ALL CLASSES

REPORTING FUND NO#: 130 WATER ENTERPRISE FUN               SORTED BY FUND

                                        NO#                 TOTAL          G/L                G/L                            G/L

VENDOR     NAME                      INVOICES              AMOUNT    1099  ACCT NO#           NAME                          AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-1       MISCELLANEOUS VENDOR                                        N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         309.08

01-1086    CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRI                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       3,370.00

01-11      STATE OF CALIFORNIA  EDD                                    N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,580.01

01-1392    MEDIACOM                                                    N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         256.30

01-1579    SOUTH LAKE REFUSE COMPANY                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         214.46

01-1659    WAGNER & BONSIGNORE                                         N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       2,056.85

01-1705    SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MAN                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR      14,578.74

01-1722    US DEPARTMENT OF THE TREA                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       4,643.32

01-1723    ADVANCED ELECTRONIC SECUR                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         132.00

01-1751    USA BLUE BOOK                                               N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       3,227.73

01-19      NBS GOVERNMENT FINANCE GR                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,603.75

01-1961    ACWA/JPIA                                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         505.23

01-21      CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYE                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       5,961.67

01-2111    DATAPROSE                                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         786.99

01-2283    ARMED FORCE PEST CONTROL,                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         127.50

01-2541    MENDO MILL CLEARLAKE                                        N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR          14.65

01-2567    ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR      12,525.00

01-2585    TYLER TECHNOLOGY                                            N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR      17,990.74

01-2598    VERIZON  WIRELESS                                           N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         394.25

01-2638    RICOH USA, INC.                                             N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         216.62

01-2648    B & G TIRES OF MIDDLETOWN                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         356.95

01-2674    EUREKA OXYGEN CO.                                           N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         389.73

01-2680    BARRY SILVA                                                 N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         136.19

01-2684    OFFICE DEPOT                                                N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         270.19

01-2699    MICHELLE HAMILTON                                           N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         312.50

01-2719    TIRE PROS                                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         348.90

01-2751    GRAPHIC FX, INC.                                            N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR           7.50



11-13-2018 04:23 PM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                   PAGE:   4

VENDOR SET: 01  Hidden Valley Lake             D I S B U R S E M E N T   R E P O R T                                BANK: ALL

VENDOR CLASS(ES): ALL CLASSES

REPORTING FUND NO#: 130 WATER ENTERPRISE FUN               SORTED BY FUND

                                        NO#                 TOTAL          G/L                G/L                            G/L

VENDOR     NAME                      INVOICES              AMOUNT    1099  ACCT NO#           NAME                          AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-2816    CARDMEMBER SERVICE                                          N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       3,080.45

01-2820    ALPHA ANALYTICAL LABORATO                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       3,450.00

01-2823    GARDENS BY JILLIAN                                          N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         100.00

01-2825    NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOL                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         900.00

01-2847    ALYSSA GORDON                                               N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR          82.22

01-2860    WESTGATE PETROLEUM CO., I                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,451.61

01-2876    BOLD POLISNER MADDOW NELS                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         461.25

01-2878    BADGER METER                                                N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         234.00

01-2880    MIDDLETOWN COPY & PRINT                                     N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         166.23

01-2909    STREAMLINE                                                  N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         100.00

01-2917    AT&T MOBILITY                                               N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR          33.55

01-2919    REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVI                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR          59.95

01-2921    LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSI                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         402.05

01-2943    DICKENSON PEATMAN & FOGAR                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         960.00

01-2945    APPLIED TECHNOLOGY SOLUTI                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       3,446.66

01-2947    ECLIPSE MAPPING AND GIS                                     N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,616.07

01-2950    AFLAC                                                       N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         119.29

01-8       AT&T                                                        N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR         118.18

01-82      E & M ELECTRIC & MACHINER                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,009.00

01-9       PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC CO                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR      12,045.40

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

           ***  FUND TOTALS  ***                                                                                        102,152.76



11-13-2018 04:23 PM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                   PAGE:   5

VENDOR SET: 01  Hidden Valley Lake             D I S B U R S E M E N T   R E P O R T                                BANK: ALL

VENDOR CLASS(ES): ALL CLASSES

REPORTING FUND NO#: 140 FLOOD ENTERPRISE FUN               SORTED BY FUND

                                        NO#                 TOTAL          G/L                G/L                            G/L

VENDOR     NAME                      INVOICES              AMOUNT    1099  ACCT NO#           NAME                          AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-9       PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC CO                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR          86.46

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

           ***  FUND TOTALS  ***                                                                                             86.46



11-13-2018 04:23 PM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                   PAGE:   6

VENDOR SET: 01  Hidden Valley Lake             D I S B U R S E M E N T   R E P O R T                                BANK: ALL

VENDOR CLASS(ES): ALL CLASSES

REPORTING FUND NO#: 711 BOND ADMINISTRATION                SORTED BY FUND

                                        NO#                 TOTAL          G/L                G/L                            G/L

VENDOR     NAME                      INVOICES              AMOUNT    1099  ACCT NO#           NAME                          AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-19      NBS GOVERNMENT FINANCE GR                                   N                      FUND TOTAL FOR VENDOR       1,787.24

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

           ***  FUND TOTALS  ***                                                                                          1,787.24

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

           ***  REPORT TOTALS  ***                       376,376.82                                                     376,376.82

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                  *G / L EXPENSE DISTRIBUTION*

                          ACCOUNT NUMBER      ACCOUNT NAME                          AMOUNT

                          120 2075            AFLAC                                 105.02

                          120 2088            SURVIVOR BENEFITS - PERS               10.60

                          120 2090            PERS PAYABLE                        2,338.25

                          120 2091            FIT PAYABLE                         2,995.75

                          120 2092            CIT PAYABLE                         1,051.17

                          120 2093            SOCIAL SECURITY PAYABLE                 8.99

                          120 2094            MEDICARE PAYABLE                      483.09

                          120 2095            S D I PAYABLE                         274.40

                          120 2099            DEFERRED COMP - 457 PLAN              900.00

                          120 5-00-5025       RETIREE HEALTH BENEFITS             1,745.73

                          120 5-00-5060       GASOLINE, OIL & FUEL                1,556.83

                          120 5-00-5061       VEHICLE MAINT                       6,542.11

                          120 5-00-5080       MEMBERSHIP & SUBSCRIPTIONS          4,479.00

                          120 5-00-5092       POSTAGE & SHIPPING                    529.75

                          120 5-00-5121       LEGAL SERVICES                        461.25

                          120 5-00-5122       ENGINEERING SERVICES                  676.23

                          120 5-00-5123       OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         2,065.76

                          120 5-00-5130       PRINTING & PUBLICATION                264.75

                          120 5-00-5145       EQUIPMENT RENTAL                      216.63

                          120 5-00-5148       OPERATING SUPPLIES                  3,987.17

                          120 5-00-5150       REPAIR & REPLACE                    3,267.00

                          120 5-00-5155       MAINT BLDG & GROUNDS                1,925.50

                          120 5-00-5156       CUSTODIAL SERVICES                  1,262.50

                          120 5-00-5157       SECURITY                              132.00

                          120 5-00-5191       TELEPHONE                             802.29

                          120 5-00-5192       ELECTRICITY                         1,899.70

                          120 5-00-5193       OTHER UTILITIES                       214.46

                          120 5-00-5194       IT SERVICES                        21,471.90

                          120 5-00-5195       ENV/MONITORING                      3,497.00



11-13-2018 04:23 PM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                   PAGE:   7

VENDOR SET: 01  Hidden Valley Lake             D I S B U R S E M E N T   R E P O R T                                BANK: ALL

VENDOR CLASS(ES): ALL CLASSES

REPORTING FUND NO#: 711 BOND ADMINISTRATION                SORTED BY FUND

                                                     *G/L EXPENSE DISTRIBUTION*

                          ACCOUNT NUMBER      ACCOUNT NAME                          AMOUNT

                          120 5-10-5010       SALARIES & WAGES                      283.64

                          120 5-10-5020       EMPLOYEE BENEFITS                   5,600.95

                          120 5-10-5021       RETIREMENT BENEFITS                 1,747.71

                          120 5-10-5090       OFFICE SUPPLIES                       175.89

                          120 5-10-5170       TRAVEL MILEAGE                         88.75

                          120 5-10-5175       EDUCATION / SEMINARS                   94.08CR

                          120 5-30-5010       SALARIES & WAGES                      197.42

                          120 5-30-5020       EMPLOYEE BENEFITS                   4,475.84

                          120 5-30-5021       RETIREMENT BENEFITS                 1,194.67

                          120 5-30-5022       CLOTHING ALLOWANCE                    108.08

                          120 5-30-5090       OFFICE SUPPLIES                        94.28

                          120 5-30-5175       EDUCATION / SEMINARS                  198.31

                          120 5-40-5010       DIRECTORS COMPENSATION                 11.10

                          120 5-40-5020       DIRECTOR BENEFITS                       8.99

                          120 5-40-5030       DIRECTOR HEALTH BENEFITS            3,261.45

                          120 5-60-6006       PW LKHVF83                        188,216.46

                          120 5-70-7201       I & I                               1,616.07

                                              ** FUND TOTAL **                  272,350.36

 

                          130 1052            ACCTS REC WATER USE                   309.08

                          130 2075            AFLAC                                 119.29

                          130 2088            SURVIVOR BENEFITS - PERS               11.72

                          130 2090            PERS PAYABLE                        2,626.07

                          130 2091            FIT PAYABLE                         3,553.22

                          130 2092            CIT PAYABLE                         1,259.87

                          130 2093            SOCIAL SECURITY PAYABLE                 9.61

                          130 2094            MEDICARE PAYABLE                      535.48

                          130 2095            S D I PAYABLE                         310.53

                          130 2099            DEFERRED COMP - PLAN 457 PAYAB        900.00

                          130 5-00-5025       RETIREE HEALTH BENEFITS             1,745.73

                          130 5-00-5060       GASOLINE, OIL & FUEL                1,556.81

                          130 5-00-5061       VEHICLE MAINT                         705.85

                          130 5-00-5080       MEMBERSHIP & SUBSCRIPTIONS         17,004.00

                          130 5-00-5092       POSTAGE & SHIPPING                    529.75

                          130 5-00-5121       LEGAL SERVICES                        461.25

                          130 5-00-5122       ENGINEERING SERVICES                  166.23

                          130 5-00-5123       OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         2,065.75

                          130 5-00-5124       WATER RIGHTS                        3,016.85

                          130 5-00-5130       PRINTING & PUBLICATION                264.74

                          130 5-00-5145       EQUIPMENT RENTAL                      216.62

                          130 5-00-5148       OPERATING SUPPLIES                  3,490.20

                          130 5-00-5150       REPAIR & REPLACE                    2,971.89

                          130 5-00-5155       MAINT BLDG & GROUNDS                  227.50

                          130 5-00-5156       CUSTODIAL SERVICES                    312.50

                          130 5-00-5157       SECURITY                              132.00

                          130 5-00-5191       TELEPHONE                             802.28

                          130 5-00-5192       ELECTRICITY                        12,045.40



11-13-2018 04:23 PM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                   PAGE:   8

VENDOR SET: 01  Hidden Valley Lake             D I S B U R S E M E N T   R E P O R T                                BANK: ALL

VENDOR CLASS(ES): ALL CLASSES

REPORTING FUND NO#: 711 BOND ADMINISTRATION                SORTED BY FUND

                                                     *G/L EXPENSE DISTRIBUTION*

                          ACCOUNT NUMBER      ACCOUNT NAME                          AMOUNT

                          130 5-00-5193       OTHER UTILITIES                       214.46

                          130 5-00-5194       IT SERVICES                        21,705.90

                          130 5-00-5195       ENV/MONITORING                      3,450.00

                          130 5-00-5310       EQUIPMENT - FIELD                     808.04

                          130 5-00-5311       EQUIPMENT - OFFICE                    808.03

                          130 5-10-5010       SALARIES & WAGES                      283.63

                          130 5-10-5020       EMPLOYEE BENEFITS                   5,600.95

                          130 5-10-5021       RETIREMENT BENEFITS                 1,747.69

                          130 5-10-5090       OFFICE SUPPLIES                       175.89

                          130 5-10-5170       TRAVEL MILEAGE                         88.76

                          130 5-10-5175       EDUCATION / SEMINARS                   94.08CR

                          130 5-30-5010       SALARIES & WAGES                      249.53

                          130 5-30-5020       EMPLOYEE BENEFITS                   4,475.84

                          130 5-30-5021       RETIREMENT BENEFITS                 1,576.19

                          130 5-30-5022       CLOTHING ALLOWANCE                    108.07

                          130 5-30-5090       OFFICE SUPPLIES                        94.30

                          130 5-30-5170       TRAVEL MILEAGE                         28.12

                          130 5-30-5175       EDUCATION / SEMINARS                  198.31

                          130 5-40-5010       DIRECTORS COMPENSATION                 11.85

                          130 5-40-5020       DIRECTOR BENEFTIS                       9.61

                          130 5-40-5030       DIRECTOR HEALTH BENEFITS            3,261.45

                                              ** FUND TOTAL **                  102,152.76

 

                          140 5-00-5192       ELECTRICITY                            86.46

                                              ** FUND TOTAL **                       86.46

 

                          711 5-00-5123       0THER PROF SERVICES                 1,787.24

                                              ** FUND TOTAL **                    1,787.24

 

                                   ----------------------------------------------------------

                                             ** TOTAL **                        376,376.82

                                                                     NO ERRORS



11-13-2018 04:23 PM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                   PAGE:   9

                                                         SELECTION CRITERIA

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

VENDOR SET: 01  Hidden Valley Lake

VENDOR: ALL

BANK:   ALL

VENDOR CLASS(ES): ALL CLASSES

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

TRANSACTION SELECTION

REPORTING: PAID ITEMS ,G/L DIST

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/01/2018 THRU 10/31/2018      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

 

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PRINT OPTIONS

REPORT SEQUENCE: FUND

G/L EXPENSE DISTRIBUTION: YES

CHECK RANGE: 000000 THRU 999999

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    1

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

120-SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUE SUMMARY

 

  ALL REVENUE                            1,613,149.00     545,292.64   1,183,026.88     430,122.12    73.34

TOTAL REVENUES                           1,613,149.00     545,292.64   1,183,026.88     430,122.12    73.34

                                        =============  =============  =============  =============  =======

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

 

  NON-DEPARTMENTAL                         540,872.00      57,683.66     453,388.09      87,483.91    83.83

  ADMINISTRATION                           383,766.00      29,768.41     131,012.54     252,753.46    34.14

  OFFICE                                         0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

  FIELD                                    308,888.00      22,286.52      97,476.86     211,411.14    31.56

  DIRECTORS                                 44,916.00       3,426.54      13,697.17      31,218.83    30.50

  SPECIAL PROJECTS                               0.00     188,216.46     230,381.12 (   230,381.12)    0.00

  CAPITAL PROJECTS & EQUIP                       0.00       1,616.07       1,616.07 (     1,616.07)    0.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                       1,278,442.00     302,997.66     927,571.85     350,870.15    72.55

                                        =============  =============  =============  =============  =======

REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES         334,707.00     242,294.98     255,455.03      79,251.97    76.32



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    2

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

120-SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

REVENUES

 

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

120-4020 INSPECTION FEES                       700.00           0.00         100.00         600.00    14.29

120-4036 DEVELOPER SEWER FEES                    0.00           0.00      21,423.93 (    21,423.93)    0.00

120-4040 Lien Recording Fee                      0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-4045 AVAILABILITY FEES                   5,000.00           0.00         848.84       4,151.16    16.98

120-4050 SALES OF RECLAIMED WATER          125,000.00       8,600.06      64,867.83      60,132.17    51.89

120-4111 COMM SEWER USE                     22,000.00       2,572.62      10,290.48      11,709.52    46.77

120-4112 GOV'T SEWER USE                       700.00          60.93         243.72         456.28    34.82

120-4116 SEWER USE CHARGES               1,137,649.00      94,808.74     378,838.47     758,810.53    33.30

120-4210 LATE FEE                           25,000.00       1,716.28       5,624.57      19,375.43    22.50

120-4300 MISC INCOME                         1,500.00           3.50      13,607.97 (    12,107.97)  907.20

120-4310 OTHER INCOME                            0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-4320 FEMA/CalOES Grants                295,000.00     152,138.00     401,454.00 (   106,454.00)  136.09

120-4505 LEASE INCOME                            0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-4550 INTEREST INCOME                       600.00         377.51         712.07 (       112.07)  118.68

120-4580 TRANSFERS IN                            0.00     285,015.00     285,015.00 (   285,015.00)    0.00

120-4591 INCOME APPLICABLE TO PRIOR YRS          0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-4955 Gain/Loss                               0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                           1,613,149.00     545,292.64   1,183,026.88     430,122.12    73.34

                                        =============  =============  =============  =============  =======



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    3

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

120-SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

NON-DEPARTMENTAL

EXPENDITURES

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

120-5-00-5010 SALARY & WAGES                     0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-00-5020 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS                  0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-00-5021 RETIREMENT BENEFITS                0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-00-5024 WORKERS' COMP INSURANCE            0.00           0.00         350.70 (       350.70)    0.00

120-5-00-5025 RETIREE HEALTH BENEFITS       21,472.00         872.85       3,695.16      17,776.84    17.21

120-5-00-5026 COBRA Health & Dental              0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-00-5040 ELECTION EXPENSE               4,500.00           0.00           0.00       4,500.00     0.00

120-5-00-5050 DEPRECIATION                       0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-00-5060 GASOLINE, OIL & FUEL           8,000.00       1,556.83       3,281.83       4,718.17    41.02

120-5-00-5061 VEHICLE MAINT                 12,500.00       6,542.11      14,322.31 (     1,822.31)  114.58

120-5-00-5062 TAXES & LIC                      800.00           0.00           0.00         800.00     0.00

120-5-00-5074 INSURANCE                          0.00           0.00      25,270.89 (    25,270.89)    0.00

120-5-00-5075 BANK FEES                     13,400.00       1,558.98       5,806.28       7,593.72    43.33

120-5-00-5080 MEMBERSHIP & SUBSCRIPTIONS     6,400.00       4,479.00       4,854.00       1,546.00    75.84

120-5-00-5092 POSTAGE & SHIPPING             5,000.00         529.75       1,264.50       3,735.50    25.29

120-5-00-5110 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES               0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-00-5121 LEGAL SERVICES                 5,000.00         461.25       1,012.50       3,987.50    20.25

120-5-00-5122 ENGINEERING SERVICES          27,000.00         676.23       7,320.36      19,679.64    27.11

120-5-00-5123 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE    50,000.00       2,065.76       9,048.79      40,951.21    18.10

120-5-00-5126 AUDIT SERVICES                 7,500.00           0.00           0.00       7,500.00     0.00

120-5-00-5130 PRINTING & PUBLICATION         5,000.00         264.75         572.86       4,427.14    11.46

120-5-00-5135 NEWSLETTER                       500.00           0.00           0.00         500.00     0.00

120-5-00-5140 RENTS & LEASES                     0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-00-5145 EQUIPMENT RENTAL              14,000.00         216.63      13,323.71         676.29    95.17

120-5-00-5148 OPERATING SUPPLIES            22,000.00       3,987.17      14,252.89       7,747.11    64.79

120-5-00-5150 REPAIR & REPLACE             145,000.00       3,267.00      24,815.28     120,184.72    17.11

120-5-00-5155 MAINT BLDG & GROUNDS           5,500.00       1,925.50       2,535.20       2,964.80    46.09

120-5-00-5156 CUSTODIAL SERVICES            15,150.00       1,262.50       3,787.50      11,362.50    25.00

120-5-00-5157 SECURITY                       5,000.00         132.00         132.00       4,868.00     2.64

120-5-00-5160 SLUDGE DISPOSAL               28,500.00           0.00      16,087.50      12,412.50    56.45

120-5-00-5180 UNCOLLECTABLE ACCOUNTS             0.00           0.00 (       430.08)        430.08     0.00

120-5-00-5191 TELEPHONE                      9,500.00         802.29       3,355.05       6,144.95    35.32

120-5-00-5192 ELECTRICITY                   45,000.00       1,899.70      11,229.42      33,770.58    24.95

120-5-00-5193 OTHER UTILITIES                2,600.00         214.46         643.38       1,956.62    24.75

120-5-00-5194 IT SERVICES                   35,000.00      21,471.90      23,148.90      11,851.10    66.14

120-5-00-5195 ENV/MONITORING                32,000.00       3,497.00      11,169.00      20,831.00    34.90

120-5-00-5196 RISK MANAGEMENT                    0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-00-5198 ANNUAL OPERATING FEES          2,000.00           0.00           0.00       2,000.00     0.00

120-5-00-5310 EQUIPMENT - FIELD              1,500.00           0.00           0.00       1,500.00     0.00

120-5-00-5311 EQUIPMENT - OFFICE             1,300.00           0.00           0.00       1,300.00     0.00

120-5-00-5312 TOOLS - FIELD                  1,000.00           0.00       1,337.62 (       337.62)  133.76

120-5-00-5315 SAFETY EQUIPMENT               3,500.00           0.00       1,884.54       1,615.46    53.84

120-5-00-5510 SEWER OUTREACH                     0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-00-5545 RECORDING FEES                   250.00           0.00           0.00         250.00     0.00

120-5-00-5580 TRANSFERS OUT                      0.00           0.00     249,316.00 (   249,316.00)    0.00

120-5-00-5590 NON-OPERATING OTHER                0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-00-5591 EXPENSES APPLICABLE TO PRI         0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-00-5600 CONTINGENCY                    5,000.00           0.00           0.00       5,000.00     0.00

120-5-00-5650 OPERATING RESERVES                 0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    4

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

120-SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

NON-DEPARTMENTAL

EXPENDITURES

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

120-5-00-5700 OVER / SHORT                       0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL NON-DEPARTMENTAL                    540,872.00      57,683.66     453,388.09      87,483.91    83.83



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    5

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

120-SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

ADMINISTRATION

EXPENDITURES

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

120-5-10-5010 SALARIES & WAGES             244,904.00      19,683.26      88,588.33     156,315.67    36.17

120-5-10-5020 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS             82,142.00       5,762.49      23,512.41      58,629.59    28.62

120-5-10-5021 RETIREMENT BENEFITS           47,170.00       4,152.10      17,151.18      30,018.82    36.36

120-5-10-5063 CERTIFICATIONS                     0.00           0.00          32.50 (        32.50)    0.00

120-5-10-5090 OFFICE SUPPLIES                4,000.00         175.89       1,142.38       2,857.62    28.56

120-5-10-5170 TRAVEL MILEAGE                 1,200.00          88.75         391.25         808.75    32.60

120-5-10-5175 EDUCATION / SEMINARS           4,000.00 (        94.08)         22.76       3,977.24     0.57

120-5-10-5179 ADM MISC EXPENSES                350.00           0.00         171.73         178.27    49.07

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION                      383,766.00      29,768.41     131,012.54     252,753.46    34.14



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    6

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

120-SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

OFFICE

EXPENDITURES

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

120-5-20-5010 SALARIES & WAGES                   0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-20-5020 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS                  0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL OFFICE                                    0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    7

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

120-SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

FIELD

EXPENDITURES

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

120-5-30-5010 SALARIES & WAGES             212,658.00      13,810.96      61,965.45     150,692.55    29.14

120-5-30-5020 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS             44,600.00       4,475.84      19,432.66      25,167.34    43.57

120-5-30-5021 RETIREMENT BENEFITS           41,830.00       3,599.05      14,953.76      26,876.24    35.75

120-5-30-5022 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE             1,800.00         108.08         662.40       1,137.60    36.80

120-5-30-5063 CERTIFICATIONS                 1,500.00           0.00         170.00       1,330.00    11.33

120-5-30-5090 OFFICE SUPPLIES                2,000.00          94.28          94.28       1,905.72     4.71

120-5-30-5170 TRAVEL MILEAGE                   500.00           0.00           0.00         500.00     0.00

120-5-30-5175 EDUCATION / SEMINARS           4,000.00         198.31         198.31       3,801.69     4.96

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FIELD                               308,888.00      22,286.52      97,476.86     211,411.14    31.56



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    8

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

120-SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

DIRECTORS

EXPENDITURES

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

120-5-40-5010 DIRECTORS COMPENSATION         3,000.00         156.10         624.40       2,375.60    20.81

120-5-40-5020 DIRECTOR BENEFITS                100.00           8.99          26.97          73.03    26.97

120-5-40-5030 DIRECTOR HEALTH BENEFITS      40,116.00       3,261.45      13,045.80      27,070.20    32.52

120-5-40-5170 TRAVEL MILEAGE                   200.00           0.00           0.00         200.00     0.00

120-5-40-5175 EDUCATION / SEMINARS               0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-40-5176 DIRECTOR TRAINING              1,500.00           0.00           0.00       1,500.00     0.00

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DIRECTORS                            44,916.00       3,426.54      13,697.17      31,218.83    30.50



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    9

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

120-SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

SPECIAL PROJECTS

EXPENDITURES

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

120-5-60-6001 PW LKHVA01                         0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-60-6002 PW LKHVB02                         0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-60-6003 PW LKHVA81                         0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-60-6004 PW LKHVB82                         0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-60-6005 PW LKHVF84                         0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

120-5-60-6006 PW LKHVF83                         0.00     188,216.46     230,381.12 (   230,381.12)    0.00

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SPECIAL PROJECTS                          0.00     188,216.46     230,381.12 (   230,381.12)    0.00



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:   10

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

120-SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

CAPITAL PROJECTS & EQUIP

EXPENDITURES

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

120-5-70-7201 I & I                              0.00       1,616.07       1,616.07 (     1,616.07)    0.00

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS & EQUIP                  0.00       1,616.07       1,616.07 (     1,616.07)    0.00

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                       1,278,442.00     302,997.66     927,571.85     350,870.15    72.55

                                        =============  =============  =============  =============  =======

REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES         334,707.00     242,294.98     255,455.03      79,251.97    76.32

                                        =============  =============  =============  =============  =======

*** END OF REPORT ***



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    1

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

130-WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUE SUMMARY

 

  ALL REVENUE                            1,909,200.00     122,009.42     554,536.28   1,354,663.72    29.05

TOTAL REVENUES                           1,909,200.00     122,009.42     554,536.28   1,354,663.72    29.05

                                        =============  =============  =============  =============  =======

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

 

  NON-DEPARTMENTAL                         778,372.00      75,387.89     208,023.75     570,348.25    26.73

  ADMINISTRATION                           389,713.00      29,768.52     130,891.50     258,821.50    33.59

  OFFICE                                         0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

  FIELD                                    309,288.00      26,345.12     115,341.57     193,946.43    37.29

  DIRECTORS                                 44,916.00       3,437.91      13,742.03      31,173.97    30.59

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                       1,522,289.00     134,939.44     467,998.85   1,054,290.15    30.74

                                        =============  =============  =============  =============  =======

REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES         386,911.00 (    12,930.02)     86,537.43     300,373.57    22.37



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    2

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

130-WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

REVENUES

 

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

130-4035 RECONNECT FEE                      13,000.00         315.00       3,155.00       9,845.00    24.27

130-4038 COMM WATER METER INSTALL                0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-4039 WATER METER INST                    1,000.00           0.00         340.00         660.00    34.00

130-4040 RECORDING FEE                         500.00           0.00         180.46         319.54    36.09

130-4045 AVAILABILITY FEES                  25,000.00           0.00       3,567.16      21,432.84    14.27

130-4110 COMM WATER USE                     85,000.00       7,608.71      36,667.47      48,332.53    43.14

130-4112 GOV'T WATER USE                     6,000.00         417.89       1,741.99       4,258.01    29.03

130-4115 WATER USE                       1,750,000.00     109,873.66     489,396.93   1,260,603.07    27.97

130-4117 WATER OVERAGE FEE                       0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-4118 WATER OVERAGE COMM                      0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-4119 WATER OVERAGE GOV                       0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-4210 LATE FEE                           25,000.00       2,662.30      12,101.55      12,898.45    48.41

130-4215 RETURNED CHECK FEE                  1,000.00         200.00         500.00         500.00    50.00

130-4300 MISC INCOME                         2,000.00         364.73       5,812.71 (     3,812.71)  290.64

130-4310 OTHER INCOME                            0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-4505 LEASE INCOME                            0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-4550 INTEREST INCOME                       700.00         567.13       1,073.01 (       373.01)  153.29

130-4580 TRANSFER IN                             0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-4591 INCOME APPLICABLE TO PRIOR YRS          0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-4955 Gain/Loss                               0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                           1,909,200.00     122,009.42     554,536.28   1,354,663.72    29.05

                                        =============  =============  =============  =============  =======



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    3

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

130-WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

NON-DEPARTMENTAL

EXPENDITURES

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

130-5-00-5010 SALARY & WAGES                     0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-5-00-5020 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS                  0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-5-00-5021 RETIREMENT BENEFITS                0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-5-00-5024 WORKERS' COMP INSURANCE            0.00           0.00         350.70 (       350.70)    0.00

130-5-00-5025 RETIREE HEALTH BENEFITS       21,472.00         872.88       3,287.76      18,184.24    15.31

130-5-00-5026 COBRA Health & Dental              0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-5-00-5040 ELECTION EXPENSE               4,500.00           0.00           0.00       4,500.00     0.00

130-5-00-5050 DEPRECIATION                       0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-5-00-5060 GASOLINE, OIL & FUEL           6,500.00       1,556.81       3,281.80       3,218.20    50.49

130-5-00-5061 VEHICLE MAINT                 12,500.00         705.85       3,334.69       9,165.31    26.68

130-5-00-5062 TAXES & LIC                    1,200.00           0.00           0.00       1,200.00     0.00

130-5-00-5074 INSURANCE                     25,000.00           0.00      25,270.88 (       270.88)  101.08

130-5-00-5075 BANK FEES                     13,500.00       1,558.96       6,006.25       7,493.75    44.49

130-5-00-5080 MEMBERSHIP & SUBSCRIPTIONS    24,000.00      17,004.00      18,449.00       5,551.00    76.87

130-5-00-5092 POSTAGE & SHIPPING             6,000.00         529.75       1,264.51       4,735.49    21.08

130-5-00-5110 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES               0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-5-00-5121 LEGAL SERVICES                 1,000.00         461.25       1,012.50 (        12.50)  101.25

130-5-00-5122 ENGINEERING SERVICES          60,000.00         166.23         943.10      59,056.90     1.57

130-5-00-5123 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE    35,000.00       2,065.75       9,048.77      25,951.23    25.85

130-5-00-5124 WATER RIGHTS                  70,000.00       3,016.85      13,279.10      56,720.90    18.97

130-5-00-5126 AUDIT SERVICES                 7,500.00           0.00           0.00       7,500.00     0.00

130-5-00-5130 PRINTING & PUBLICATION         7,500.00         264.74         572.85       6,927.15     7.64

130-5-00-5135 NEWSLETTER                       500.00           0.00           0.00         500.00     0.00

130-5-00-5140 RENT & LEASES                      0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-5-00-5145 EQUIPMENT RENTAL              20,000.00         216.62       4,355.94      15,644.06    21.78

130-5-00-5148 OPERATING SUPPLIES             1,500.00       3,490.20       4,798.88 (     3,298.88)  319.93

130-5-00-5150 REPAIR & REPLACE             185,000.00       2,971.89      10,344.60     174,655.40     5.59

130-5-00-5155 MAINT BLDG & GROUNDS          12,000.00         227.50         837.20      11,162.80     6.98

130-5-00-5156 CUSTODIAL SERVICES             3,750.00         312.50         937.50       2,812.50    25.00

130-5-00-5157 SECURITY                       5,000.00         132.00         132.00       4,868.00     2.64

130-5-00-5180 UNCOLLECTABLE ACCOUNTS             0.00           0.00       2,128.17 (     2,128.17)    0.00

130-5-00-5191 TELEPHONE                      1,000.00         802.28       3,355.00 (     2,355.00)  335.50

130-5-00-5192 ELECTRICITY                  115,000.00      12,045.40      58,455.29      56,544.71    50.83

130-5-00-5193 OTHER UTILITIES                2,200.00         214.46         643.38       1,556.62    29.24

130-5-00-5194 IT SERVICES                   35,000.00      21,705.90      23,820.91      11,179.09    68.06

130-5-00-5195 ENV/MONITORING                15,000.00       3,450.00       8,181.00       6,819.00    54.54

130-5-00-5196 RISK MANAGEMENT                    0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-5-00-5198 ANNUAL OPERATING FEES         30,000.00           0.00           0.00      30,000.00     0.00

130-5-00-5310 EQUIPMENT - FIELD              2,000.00         808.04         808.04       1,191.96    40.40

130-5-00-5311 EQUIPMENT - OFFICE             1,000.00         808.03         808.03         191.97    80.80

130-5-00-5312 TOOLS -  FIELD                 2,000.00           0.00           0.00       2,000.00     0.00

130-5-00-5315 SAFETY EQUIPMENT               2,500.00           0.00         215.90       2,284.10     8.64

130-5-00-5505 WATER CONSERVATION             9,000.00           0.00       2,100.00       6,900.00    23.33

130-5-00-5545 RECORDING FEES                   250.00           0.00           0.00         250.00     0.00

130-5-00-5580 TRANSFERS OUT                      0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-5-00-5590 NON-OPERATING OTHER                0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-5-00-5591 EXPENSES APPLICABLE TO PRI         0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-5-00-5600 CONTINGENCY                   40,000.00           0.00           0.00      40,000.00     0.00

130-5-00-5650 OPERATING RESERVES                 0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    4

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

130-WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

NON-DEPARTMENTAL

EXPENDITURES

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL NON-DEPARTMENTAL                    778,372.00      75,387.89     208,023.75     570,348.25    26.73



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    5

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

130-WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

ADMINISTRATION

EXPENDITURES

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

130-5-10-5010 SALARIES & WAGES             244,904.00      19,683.41      88,450.75     156,453.25    36.12

130-5-10-5020 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS             88,289.00       5,762.47      23,509.07      64,779.93    26.63

130-5-10-5021 RETIREMENT BENEFITS           47,170.00       4,152.07      17,141.55      30,028.45    36.34

130-5-10-5063 CERTIFICATIONS                     0.00           0.00          32.50 (        32.50)    0.00

130-5-10-5090 OFFICE SUPPLIES                3,000.00         175.89       1,142.40       1,857.60    38.08

130-5-10-5170 TRAVEL MILEAGE                 2,000.00          88.76         420.75       1,579.25    21.04

130-5-10-5175 EDUCATION / SEMINARS           4,000.00 (        94.08)         22.75       3,977.25     0.57

130-5-10-5179 ADM MISC EXPENSES                350.00           0.00         171.73         178.27    49.07

130-5-10-5505 WATER CONSERVATION                 0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION                      389,713.00      29,768.52     130,891.50     258,821.50    33.59



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    6

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

130-WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

OFFICE

EXPENDITURES

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

130-5-20-5010 SALARIES & WAGES                   0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-5-20-5020 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS                  0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL OFFICE                                    0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    7

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

130-WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

FIELD

EXPENDITURES

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

130-5-30-5010 SALARIES & WAGES             212,658.00      17,459.91      78,290.33     134,367.67    36.82

130-5-30-5020 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS             44,600.00       4,475.84      19,432.67      25,167.33    43.57

130-5-30-5021 RETIREMENT BENEFITS           41,830.00       3,980.57      16,635.44      25,194.56    39.77

130-5-30-5022 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE             1,800.00         108.07         662.40       1,137.60    36.80

130-5-30-5063 CERTIFICATIONS                   600.00           0.00           0.00         600.00     0.00

130-5-30-5090 OFFICE SUPPLIES                2,000.00          94.30          94.30       1,905.70     4.72

130-5-30-5170 TRAVEL MILEAGE                 1,800.00          28.12          28.12       1,771.88     1.56

130-5-30-5175 EDUCATION / SEMINARS           4,000.00         198.31         198.31       3,801.69     4.96

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FIELD                               309,288.00      26,345.12     115,341.57     193,946.43    37.29



 

11-13-2018 04:40 PM                                 HIDDEN  VALLEY  LAKE  CSD                    PAGE:    8

                                              REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                      AS OF: OCTOBER 31ST, 2018

130-WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

DIRECTORS

EXPENDITURES

                                            CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE      BUDGET      % OF

                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL       BALANCE     BUDGET

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

130-5-40-5010 DIRECTORS COMPENSATION         3,000.00         166.85         667.40       2,332.60    22.25

130-5-40-5020 DIRECTOR BENEFTIS                100.00           9.61          28.83          71.17    28.83

130-5-40-5030 DIRECTOR HEALTH BENEFITS      40,116.00       3,261.45      13,045.80      27,070.20    32.52

130-5-40-5080 MEMBERSHIP & SUBSCRIPTION          0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-5-40-5170 TRAVEL MILEAGE                   200.00           0.00           0.00         200.00     0.00

130-5-40-5175 EDUCATION / SEMINARS               0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     0.00

130-5-40-5176 DIRECTOR TRAINING              1,500.00           0.00           0.00       1,500.00     0.00

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DIRECTORS                            44,916.00       3,437.91      13,742.03      31,173.97    30.59

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                       1,522,289.00     134,939.44     467,998.85   1,054,290.15    30.74

                                        =============  =============  =============  =============  =======

REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES         386,911.00 (    12,930.02)     86,537.43     300,373.57    22.37

                                        =============  =============  =============  =============  =======

*** END OF REPORT ***



Beginning Balance 698,146.16

Cash Receipts

Deposit 728,890.20

Transfer Out 209,726.13

Total Receipts 519,164.07

Cash Disbursements

385,994.35

52,719.02

3,117.94

441,831.31
Ending Balance 775,478.92

LAIF Money Mkt Total G/L Bal

120 Sewer Operating Fund 69,175.01                  54,964.32 124,139.33       124,139.33       

130 Water Operating Fund 103,090.40              149,363.03 252,453.43       252,453.43       

215 1995-2 Redemption 62,554.66                123,212.76 185,767.42       185,767.42       

218 CIEDB Redemption 11,835.34                                 -   11,835.34         11,835.34         

219 USDARUS Solar Loan (Sewer) 842.28                       54,965.74 55,808.01         55,808.01         

313 Wastewater Cap Fac Reserved 265,946.84                52,888.72 318,835.57       318,835.57       

314 Wastewater Cap Fac Unrestricted 268,682.03                   7,479.92 276,161.95       276,161.95       

319 Solar Reserve -                              31,267.39 31,267.39         31,267.39         

320 Water Capital Fund -                                 6,039.67 6,039.67           6,039.67           

350 CIEDB Loan Reserve 175,995.10                               -   175,995.10       175,995.10       

711 Bond Administration 27,914.24                     1,085.42 28,999.66         28,999.66         

712 Bond Revolving -                            209,737.60 209,737.60       209,737.60       
TOTAL 986,035.89      691,004.57      1,677,040.47   1,677,040.47   

Fund 

Accounts Payable + Bank Draft

Payroll

Bank Fees

Total Disbursements

POOLED CASH                              
AS OF October 31, 2018

HIDDEN VALLEY LAKE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
October 2018

FINANCIAL REPORT

TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS                            
AS OF October 31, 2018



11/13/2018  4:45 PM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   1

COMPANY:  999 - POOLED CASH FUND                                                          CHECK DATE:     10/01/2018 THRU 10/31/2018

ACCOUNT:  1010            CASH - POOLED                                                   CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     All                                                                             STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All                                                                             AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       000000 THRU     999999

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

BANK DRAFT:         ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1010            10/12/2018 BANK-DRAFT000238  CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RE       5,755.64CR   CLEARED   A   10/17/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 BANK-DRAFT000239  NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION         900.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/12/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 BANK-DRAFT000240  STATE OF CALIFORNIA  EDD             1,393.64CR   CLEARED   A   10/12/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 BANK-DRAFT000241  US DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY        4,193.06CR   CLEARED   A   11/02/2018

     1010            10/17/2018 BANK-DRAFT101718  INVOICE # 15444591                   9,598.08CR   CLEARED   G   10/17/2018

     1010            10/17/2018 BANK-DRAFT101719  INVOICE # 15444603                      19.45CR   CLEARED   G   10/17/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 BANK-DRAFT000242  CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RE       5,497.26CR   CLEARED   A   10/29/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 BANK-DRAFT000243  NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION         900.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/26/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 BANK-DRAFT000244  STATE OF CALIFORNIA  EDD             1,520.93CR   CLEARED   A   10/26/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 BANK-DRAFT000245  US DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY        4,430.25CR   CLEARED   A   10/26/2018

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035830  ALPHA ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES          921.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/11/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035831  ARMED FORCE PEST CONTROL, INC.       1,953.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/12/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035832  AT&T MOBILITY                           67.10CR   CLEARED   A   10/11/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035833  CLEARLAKE LAVA, INC.                   682.52CR   CLEARED   A   10/12/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035834  CUMMINS PACIFIC LLC                    576.41CR   CLEARED   A   10/10/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035835  GRAPHIC FX, INC.                        15.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/12/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035836  HACH COMPANY                           216.36CR   CLEARED   A   10/11/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035837  MEDIACOM                               512.60CR   CLEARED   A   10/11/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035838  MENDO MILL CLEARLAKE                     7.60CR   CLEARED   A   10/11/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035839  MICHELLE HAMILTON                      625.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/15/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035840  NBS GOVERNMENT FINANCE GROUP         1,787.24CR   CLEARED   A   10/11/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035841  OFFICE DEPOT                           319.93CR   CLEARED   A   10/16/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035842  REDFORD SERVICES                       950.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/22/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035843  STREAMLINE                             200.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/11/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035844  CAMPANA, WILLIAM                         5.89CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     1010            10/05/2018 CHECK     035845  SCHISLER, JULIANNE                     205.28CR   CLEARED   A   10/16/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035846  ACWA/JPIA                            1,010.46CR   CLEARED   A   10/16/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035847  ADVANCED ELECTRONIC SECURITY S         264.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/23/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035848  ALPHA ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES        3,470.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/17/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035849  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A   10/11/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035850  B & G TIRES OF MIDDLETOWN               85.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035851  BADGER METER                           234.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/19/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035852  BEELER TRACTOR CO                    5,259.84CR   CLEARED   A   10/17/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035853  BOLD POLISNER MADDOW NELSON &          922.50CR   CLEARED   A   10/17/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035854  COASTLAND CIVIL ENGINEERING, I       4,201.46CR   CLEARED   A   10/16/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035855  DATAPROSE                            1,573.99CR   CLEARED   A   10/17/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035856  EUREKA OXYGEN CO.                      629.44CR   CLEARED   A   10/17/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035857  FARR CONSTRUCTION                  184,015.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/16/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035858  GHD                                    510.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/18/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035859  HARDESTER'S MARKETS & HARDWARE           6.98CR   CLEARED   A   10/18/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035860  GARDENS BY JILLIAN                     200.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/19/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035861  LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION IN         804.11CR   CLEARED   A   10/17/2018



11/13/2018  4:45 PM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   2

COMPANY:  999 - POOLED CASH FUND                                                          CHECK DATE:     10/01/2018 THRU 10/31/2018

ACCOUNT:  1010            CASH - POOLED                                                   CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     All                                                                             STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All                                                                             AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       000000 THRU     999999

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035862  MENDO MILL CLEARLAKE                   575.24CR   CLEARED   A   10/18/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035863  NBS GOVERNMENT FINANCE GROUP         3,207.50CR   CLEARED   A   10/18/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035864  OFFICE DEPOT                           103.59CR   CLEARED   A   10/23/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035865  SOUTH LAKE REFUSE COMPANY              428.92CR   CLEARED   A   10/16/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035866  SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEME      28,754.82CR   CLEARED   A   10/17/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035867  TIRE PROS                              697.81CR   CLEARED   A   10/16/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035868  TYLER TECHNOLOGY                     2,103.55CR   CLEARED   A   10/17/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035869  USA BLUE BOOK                        3,423.31CR   CLEARED   A   10/24/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035870  WESTGATE PETROLEUM CO., INC.         1,884.75CR   CLEARED   A   10/16/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 CHECK     035871  ECLIPSE MAPPING AND GIS              3,232.14CR   CLEARED   A   10/22/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 CHECK     035872  ALPHA ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES        1,120.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/24/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 CHECK     035873  ALYSSA GORDON                          164.43CR   CLEARED   A   10/23/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 CHECK     035874  APPLIED TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS         6,893.31CR   CLEARED   A   10/26/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 CHECK     035875  ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATE      12,525.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/23/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 CHECK     035876  AT&T                                   236.37CR   CLEARED   A   10/24/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 CHECK     035877  B & G TIRES OF MIDDLETOWN               65.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/25/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 CHECK     035878  CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS A       6,740.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/26/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 CHECK     035879  CARDMEMBER SERVICE                   3,255.90CR   CLEARED   A   10/29/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 CHECK     035880  DICKENSON PEATMAN & FOGARTY            960.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/23/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 CHECK     035881  E & M ELECTRIC & MACHINERY, IN       2,018.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/23/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 CHECK     035882  OFFICE DEPOT                           116.84CR   CLEARED   A   10/29/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 CHECK     035883  TYLER TECHNOLOGY                    33,756.94CR   CLEARED   A   10/23/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 CHECK     035884  VERIZON  WIRELESS                      678.94CR   CLEARED   A   10/24/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 CHECK     035885  WAGNER & BONSIGNORE                  2,056.85CR   CLEARED   A   10/25/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035886  ALPHA ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES        1,436.00CR   CLEARED   A   10/31/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035887  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A   10/31/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035888  B & G TIRES OF MIDDLETOWN              563.90CR   CLEARED   A   10/31/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035889  BARRY SILVA                            244.27CR   CLEARED   A   11/08/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035890  EUREKA OXYGEN CO.                      150.04CR   CLEARED   A   11/01/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035891  JENFITCH, LLC                        1,132.60CR   CLEARED   A   10/30/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035892  MENDO MILL CLEARLAKE                   498.44CR   CLEARED   A   10/31/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035893  MIDDLETOWN COPY & PRINT                332.46CR   CLEARED   A   11/08/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035894  PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY      14,031.56CR   CLEARED   A   10/31/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035895  REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES           119.90CR   CLEARED   A   10/30/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035896  RICOH USA, INC.                        433.25CR   CLEARED   A   11/01/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035897  SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEME         402.66CR   CLEARED   A   11/01/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035898  THATCHER COMPANY, INC.               1,251.16CR   CLEARED   A   10/30/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035899  TYLER TECHNOLOGY                       121.00CR   CLEARED   A   11/02/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035900  USA BLUE BOOK                        2,387.61CR   CLEARED   A   11/01/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035901  VERIZON  WIRELESS                      109.56CR   CLEARED   A   10/31/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035902  WESTGATE PETROLEUM CO., INC.         1,018.49CR   CLEARED   A   10/30/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035903  DEADRICH, RICHARD                       31.50CR   CLEARED   A   11/01/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035904  STAHL, MARK                             66.41CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     1010            10/26/2018 CHECK     035905  AFLAC                                  224.31CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

DEPOSIT:            ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



11/13/2018  4:45 PM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   3

COMPANY:  999 - POOLED CASH FUND                                                          CHECK DATE:     10/01/2018 THRU 10/31/2018

ACCOUNT:  1010            CASH - POOLED                                                   CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     All                                                                             STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All                                                                             AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       000000 THRU     999999

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

DEPOSIT:            ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1010            10/01/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/01/2018               2,857.62     CLEARED   C   10/02/2018

     1010            10/01/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/01/2018               1,296.96     CLEARED   C   10/02/2018

     1010            10/01/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  CREDIT CARD 10/01/2018               2,507.36     CLEARED   C   10/03/2018

     1010            10/01/2018 DEPOSIT   000003  CREDIT CARD 10/01/2018               1,851.17     CLEARED   C   10/04/2018

     1010            10/01/2018 DEPOSIT   000004  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/01/2018       2,692.14     CLEARED   C   10/02/2018

     1010            10/02/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/02/2018               4,762.58     CLEARED   C   10/04/2018

     1010            10/02/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/02/2018                 350.38     CLEARED   C   10/05/2018

     1010            10/02/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/02/2018       1,980.40     CLEARED   C   10/03/2018

     1010            10/03/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/03/2018               1,686.19     CLEARED   C   10/05/2018

     1010            10/03/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/03/2018               1,112.06     CLEARED   C   10/09/2018

     1010            10/03/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/03/2018         981.93     CLEARED   C   10/04/2018

     1010            10/04/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/04/2018               1,039.06     CLEARED   C   10/09/2018

     1010            10/04/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/04/2018                 994.61     CLEARED   C   10/09/2018

     1010            10/04/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/04/2018       2,988.60     CLEARED   C   10/05/2018

     1010            10/04/2018 DEPOSIT   090418  Civic Spark Annual Contract         46,000.00     CLEARED   G   10/05/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/05/2018               2,335.14     CLEARED   C   10/09/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/05/2018               1,815.36     CLEARED   C   10/09/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/05/2018       3,452.53     CLEARED   C   10/09/2018

     1010            10/05/2018 DEPOSIT   000003  DAILY PAYMENT POSTING - ADJ            132.15CR   CLEARED   U   10/19/2018

     1010            10/08/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/08/2018               1,547.96     CLEARED   C   10/09/2018

     1010            10/08/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/08/2018               1,342.89     CLEARED   C   10/09/2018

     1010            10/08/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  CREDIT CARD 10/08/2018                 786.48     CLEARED   C   10/11/2018

     1010            10/08/2018 DEPOSIT   000003  CREDIT CARD 10/08/2018               4,373.74     CLEARED   C   10/11/2018

     1010            10/08/2018 DEPOSIT   000004  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/08/2018       5,891.33     CLEARED   C   10/09/2018

     1010            10/09/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/09/2018               1,529.90     CLEARED   C   10/11/2018

     1010            10/09/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/09/2018                 155.59     CLEARED   C   10/12/2018

     1010            10/09/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  CREDIT CARD 10/09/2018               3,188.35     CLEARED   C   10/12/2018

     1010            10/09/2018 DEPOSIT   000003  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/09/2018      10,928.33     CLEARED   C   10/10/2018

     1010            10/10/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/10/2018               3,931.81     CLEARED   C   10/17/2018

     1010            10/10/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/10/2018               2,814.63     CLEARED   C   10/17/2018

     1010            10/10/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  CREDIT CARD 10/10/2018               8,942.97     CLEARED   C   10/17/2018

     1010            10/10/2018 DEPOSIT   000003  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/10/2018       7,756.87     CLEARED   C   10/11/2018

     1010            10/11/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/11/2018                 587.14     CLEARED   C   10/17/2018

     1010            10/11/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/11/2018               2,343.81     CLEARED   C   10/17/2018

     1010            10/11/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/11/2018      10,896.10     CLEARED   C   10/12/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/12/2018               1,690.90     CLEARED   C   10/17/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/12/2018                 801.67     CLEARED   C   10/17/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/12/2018       9,098.61     CLEARED   C   10/16/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 DEPOSIT   101218  I&I Project                         55,000.00     CLEARED   G   10/12/2018

     1010            10/12/2018 DEPOSIT   101219  Chlorine Basin Repair Project      184,015.00     CLEARED   G   10/12/2018

     1010            10/15/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/15/2018                 147.89     CLEARED   C   10/17/2018

     1010            10/15/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/15/2018       2,919.67     CLEARED   C   10/16/2018

     1010            10/16/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/16/2018               1,190.54     CLEARED   C   10/18/2018

     1010            10/16/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/16/2018                 824.63     CLEARED   C   10/18/2018



11/13/2018  4:45 PM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   4

COMPANY:  999 - POOLED CASH FUND                                                          CHECK DATE:     10/01/2018 THRU 10/31/2018

ACCOUNT:  1010            CASH - POOLED                                                   CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     All                                                                             STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All                                                                             AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       000000 THRU     999999

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

DEPOSIT:            ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1010            10/16/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  CREDIT CARD 10/16/2018               4,530.54     CLEARED   C   10/18/2018

     1010            10/16/2018 DEPOSIT   000003  CREDIT CARD 10/16/2018               1,306.75     CLEARED   C   10/18/2018

     1010            10/16/2018 DEPOSIT   000004  CREDIT CARD 10/16/2018               2,845.15     CLEARED   C   10/19/2018

     1010            10/16/2018 DEPOSIT   000005  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/16/2018      14,816.23     CLEARED   C   10/17/2018

     1010            10/16/2018 DEPOSIT   000006  DRAFT POSTING                       12,098.04     CLEARED   U   10/17/2018

     1010            10/16/2018 DEPOSIT   000007  CC DRAFT POSTING                    18,170.47     CLEARED   U   10/19/2018

     1010            10/17/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/17/2018               1,911.44     CLEARED   C   10/19/2018

     1010            10/17/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/17/2018               1,710.31     CLEARED   C   10/22/2018

     1010            10/17/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/17/2018       7,522.86     CLEARED   C   10/18/2018

     1010            10/18/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/18/2018               3,159.87     CLEARED   C   10/22/2018

     1010            10/18/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/18/2018               1,739.22     CLEARED   C   10/22/2018

     1010            10/18/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/18/2018       7,562.39     CLEARED   C   10/19/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/19/2018               4,096.38     CLEARED   C   10/22/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/19/2018       7,395.40     CLEARED   C   10/22/2018

     1010            10/19/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  CREDIT CARD 10/19/2018               4,075.37     CLEARED   C   10/22/2018

     1010            10/22/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/22/2018               4,855.05     CLEARED   C   10/22/2018

     1010            10/22/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/22/2018               2,055.42     CLEARED   C   10/23/2018

     1010            10/22/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  CREDIT CARD 10/22/2018               1,884.34     CLEARED   C   10/24/2018

     1010            10/22/2018 DEPOSIT   000003  DAILY PAYMENT POSTING - ADJ            567.45CR   CLEARED   U   10/19/2018

     1010            10/22/2018 DEPOSIT   000004  CREDIT CARD 10/22/2018               2,413.11     CLEARED   C   10/25/2018

     1010            10/22/2018 DEPOSIT   000005  CREDIT CARD 10/22/2018               5,225.74     CLEARED   C   10/25/2018

     1010            10/22/2018 DEPOSIT   000006  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/22/2018      17,715.90     CLEARED   C   10/23/2018

     1010            10/23/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/23/2018               1,585.45     CLEARED   C   10/25/2018

     1010            10/23/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/23/2018               1,448.00     CLEARED   C   10/26/2018

     1010            10/23/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/23/2018       1,455.86     CLEARED   C   10/24/2018

     1010            10/24/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/24/2018               1,426.65     CLEARED   C   10/26/2018

     1010            10/24/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/24/2018                 160.00     CLEARED   C   10/29/2018

     1010            10/24/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/24/2018       1,295.61     CLEARED   C   10/25/2018

     1010            10/25/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/25/2018                 698.38     CLEARED   C   10/29/2018

     1010            10/25/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/25/2018                   1.00     CLEARED   C   10/29/2018

     1010            10/25/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  CREDIT CARD 10/25/2018                 898.81     CLEARED   C   10/29/2018

     1010            10/25/2018 DEPOSIT   000003  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/25/2018       2,394.95     CLEARED   C   10/26/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/26/2018                 550.94     CLEARED   C   10/29/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/26/2018               1,624.13     CLEARED   C   10/29/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/26/2018         679.28     CLEARED   C   10/29/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 DEPOSIT   000003  DAILY PAYMENT POSTING - ADJ            145.47CR   CLEARED   U   10/31/2018

     1010            10/29/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/29/2018                 815.35     CLEARED   C   10/29/2018

     1010            10/29/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/29/2018                 403.67     CLEARED   C   10/30/2018

     1010            10/29/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  CREDIT CARD 10/29/2018                 467.51     CLEARED   C   10/31/2018

     1010            10/29/2018 DEPOSIT   000003  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/29/2018     152,138.00     CLEARED   C   10/30/2018

     1010            10/29/2018 DEPOSIT   000004  CREDIT CARD 10/29/2018               1,006.50     CLEARED   C   11/01/2018

     1010            10/29/2018 DEPOSIT   000005  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/29/2018       1,851.49     CLEARED   C   10/30/2018

     1010            10/30/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/30/2018                 458.98     CLEARED   C   11/01/2018

     1010            10/30/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/30/2018               1,085.91     CLEARED   C   11/02/2018



11/13/2018  4:45 PM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   5

COMPANY:  999 - POOLED CASH FUND                                                          CHECK DATE:     10/01/2018 THRU 10/31/2018

ACCOUNT:  1010            CASH - POOLED                                                   CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     All                                                                             STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All                                                                             AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       000000 THRU     999999

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

DEPOSIT:            ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1010            10/30/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/30/2018         374.60     CLEARED   C   10/31/2018

     1010            10/30/2018 DEPOSIT   000003  CC DRAFT POSTING                       154.82     CLEARED   U   11/02/2018

     1010            10/31/2018 DEPOSIT           CREDIT CARD 10/31/2018               1,737.47     CLEARED   C   11/02/2018

     1010            10/31/2018 DEPOSIT   000001  CREDIT CARD 10/31/2018               1,011.92     CLEARED   C   11/05/2018

     1010            10/31/2018 DEPOSIT   000002  REGULAR DAILY POST  10/31/2018      23,509.11     CLEARED   C   11/01/2018

MISCELLANEOUS:      ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1010            10/12/2018 MISC.             PAYROLL DIRECT DEPOSIT              26,866.80CR   CLEARED   P   10/12/2018

     1010            10/26/2018 MISC.             PAYROLL DIRECT DEPOSIT              25,852.22CR   CLEARED   P   10/26/2018

SERVICE CHARGE:     ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1010            10/01/2018 SERV-CHG          ETS FEES SEPTEMBER 2018              1,338.77CR   CLEARED   G   10/01/2018

     1010            10/01/2018 SERV-CHG  000001  ETS FEES SEPTEMBER 2018                979.12CR   CLEARED   G   10/01/2018

     1010            10/01/2018 SERV-CHG  000002  ETS FEES SEPTEMBER 2018                488.79CR   CLEARED   G   10/01/2018

     1010            10/15/2018 SERV-CHG          SETEMBER 2018 ANALYSIS FEE             311.26CR   CLEARED   G   10/15/2018

 

  TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 1010                         CHECK           TOTAL:            351,786.04CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:            728,890.20

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:             52,719.02CR

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:              3,117.94CR

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:             34,208.31CR

  TOTALS FOR POOLED CASH FUND                     CHECK           TOTAL:            351,786.04CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:            728,890.20

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:             52,719.02CR

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:              3,117.94CR

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:             34,208.31CR



SEWER CIP EXPENSES FUND Budget
Yr to Date 

Actual

Construction Truck (60%) 314 78,000.00      

Headworks Rake 314 62,000.00      

I & I Repair 314 55,000.00      1,616.07

I & I Study (Intern/Fellowship) 313 46,000.00      

Total 241,000.00    1,616.07       

SEWER CIP REVENUE FUND Revenue
Yr to Date 

Actual

Sewer Op Reserve (1.5%) 313 20,000           

FEMA/CalOES 313 102,000         18,000          

SEWER CIP (1.5%) 314 20,000           

FEMA/CalOES 314 193,000         383,454        

Total 335,000         401,454        

WATER CIP EXPENSES FUND Budget
Yr to Date 

Actual

Unit 9 Tank Replacement *1 1,279,000.00

Repair Water Main Line *2 150,000.00

Construction Truck 320 52,000.00

Total 1,481,000.00 -                    

WATER CIP/OP RESERVE FUND Revenue
Yr to Date 

Actual

Water Capital Fund (6%) 320 115,000         38,792          

Water OP Reserve Fund -NEW- (3.75%) 325 72,000           24,241          

Total 187,000         63,033          

*1 Financial Options Undetermined

*2 Financial Options Undetermined

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES  
2018 - 2019 BUDGET                                                       

HIDDEN VALLEY LAKE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  



  

 

   MEMO   
 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Trish Wilkinson, Full Charge Bookkeeper 

Date: 11/14/2018 

RE: Office & Administrative Staff Overtime Monthly Report 

 

October 2018  
 
Overtime: 
 
Administrative Assistant:   2.75 hours 
 
Water Resources Specialist:     4.00  hours 
 
Full Charge Bookkeeper:   2.00 hours   
 
Senior Accounts Representative:   1.00  hour 
 
Senior Accounts Representative:   1.00  hour__ 
 
Total Overtime:    10.75 hours 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
. 
  

 



  
 

MEMO			
 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Marty Rodriguez  

Date: 11/15/2018 

RE: Senior Account Representative’s Monthly Report 

 

Monthly Billing 10/31/2018 
Mailed statements: 2,141 
Electronic statements: 455 
The statement “SPECIAL MESSAGE” 
New rates are in effect July 1, 2018. For more details please refer to the back of this bill 
under FY 2018/2019. The District office will be closed from 12pm – 1pm on the 3rd 
Wednesday of each month.  
 
Delinquent Billing 10/22/2018 
Delinquent statements for October bills: 
Mailed statements: 434 
Electronic statements: 60 
 
Courtesy Notification 11/06/2018  
Courtesy notices delivered to the customer’s property for delinquent September’s bill: 
182 
Electronic notices: 19 
 
Phone Notification 11/07/2018 
Phone notifications: 117 
The phone notification was sent out around 10:30 am resulting in 91 payments received 
by the office staff during business hours. 
 
Lock Offs 11/08/2018   
26 Customers were in the Lock Off Process at 5:00 pm on 11/07/2018.   
19 payments were made before service orders went out in the field at 9:00 am  
on 11/08/2018.   
 A total of 7 customers were Locked Off for nonpayment.   
Throughout Lock off day 5 payments were collected and meters unlocked. 
At the time of this report only 2 meters remain locked.  
 
 
 
 
 
. 
  
 



Water Connec ons:    Sewer Connec ons:   

New (October)  0  New (October)  0 

     Residen al(September)  2440  Residen al(September)  1474 

     Commercial & Govt(September)  39  Commercial & Govt(September)   15 

     Total (September) :    2480    1490 

         

Rainfall  

This month  Last year Historical 

1.32  .25  2.61 

Hours 
Over me Hours 43.5  $1,756.85 

F 

I 

E 

L 

D  

 

O 

P 

E 

R 

A 

T 

I 

O 

N 

S  

 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

October 2018 Report 



October 2018 Field Report 



October 2018 Field Report 



FEMA projects 

 Working with CalOES/FEMA closeout team for all projects 
LKHVA01, LKHVB02, LKHVA81, LKHVB82, LKHVF84, LKHVF83 

 HMGP LHMP DR‐4344 Project‐0512 

 Received confirma on that this applica on is “under review”, 
and that Lake County is a priority 

 Received minor edit requests from review team 

 A end workshop hosted by CalOES/FEMA 

 10/22 Submi ed RFP to bid houses and local newspaper 

 11/5 Received two proposals to develop LHMP that commit to 
comple on by 5/22/19 and6/14/19, resp. 

 Placed provisional contract award pon BOD agenda for 
11/20/18 

 

Non‐FEMA projects 

 NBS Rate Study 

 Reviewed Dra  Rate Study, developed ques ons for a group 
discussion 

 Embedded energy 

 Con nuing to provide data for Trane Feasibility study 

 CivicSpark  

 Delivered first quarterly report to Regional Waterboards 11/1 
(see a ached) 

 Completed sewer line GIS database, plans to geo‐locate man‐
holes 

 Flow monitors arrived on‐site 11/14 

 Rain scheduled 11/20 

 Volunteer project re‐scheduled for 12/1 

Projects Update 



Non‐FEMA projects (con nued) 

 Applied Technology Solu ons 

 11/7 Next phase of upgrades completed including point‐to‐
point network with the WWTP, folder‐redirec on, and OS up‐
grade to PC at plant 

 Issues regarding SCADA func onality, email, prin ng and scan‐
ning arose, and most were addressed. 

 SCADA rebuild con nues 

 AMS (Aqua Metrology Systems) 

  Hosted Hexavalent Chromium presenta on with Field Opera‐
tors, and SWRCB 

 Received training on pilot program and daily monitoring re‐
sponsibili es 

 Troubleshot installa on issues 

 EAR sub‐commi ee 

 Par cipated in 10/11, invited to follow‐up mee ng 11/15 

 Several requests for format/content change to be discussed 
(see a ached) 

 IRWM 

 A ended teleconference of Special Mee ng regarding Prop 1 
funding proposal 

 11/14 Two HVLCSD Projects have been voted into the IRWM 
List of Projects for poten al Prop 1 funding (see a ached) 

 ACWA SLC 

 Next mee ng scheduled 2/1/19 

 Received permission for ongoing visitor a endance of Civ‐
icSpark Fellows, and Lake County Water Resources Depart‐
ment 

Projects Update 



 10/9, 10/11 Courtesy no ces, lockoffs 

 Repaired leaks on Siesta, Bear Valley Road 

 Service Line replacement on Coyote Springs Road 

 10/14: Worked Sunday to get the mobile generators set up, and moved portable generators to well‐field 

due to red flag warning and PG&E power shut off 

 Regular maintenance and opera ons 

 10/24‐10/31 Meter reads 

Water Opera ons and Maintenance Highlights 

October 2018 Field Report 

 10/9, 10/11 Courtesy no ces, lockoffs 

 Filled #1 Filter with sand  

 pH & NTU analyzer calibra on 

 Developing ideal flow of new treatment solu on (9450 and alum) 

 Troubleshooted the solar inverter and completed repair  

 10/30 Installed smoke alarms in the lab  

 Regular maintenance and opera ons 

 10/24‐10/31 Meter reads 

Wastewater Opera ons and Maintenance Highlights 



Vehicle Mileage  

Vehicle  Mileage 

Truck 1  120 

Truck 3  Non‐op 

Truck 4  442 

Truck 6  2600 

Truck 7  1613 

Truck 8  511 

Dump Truck  232 

Backhoe   

Tractor   

Rental  327 

Fuel Tank Use 

  Gasoline Diesel 

Tank Meter  652.7  21447.0 
Fuel Log  332.0  86.4 

     

October 
Tank Level  298.91  440.22 

September 
Tank Level  358.7  445.65 

October 2018 Field Report 



 

 

November 1, 2018 

Mr. Guy Childs 

California Regional Water Quality Control Board 

Central Valley Region  

11020 Sun Center Drive, #200  

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670-6114  

 

Re: Quarterly Progress Report 

 

Dear Mr. Childs,  

 

In response to your request from August for quarterly progress reports, we have compiled a list 

of completed and ongoing activities with respect to our Infiltration and Inflow (I&I) Work Plan 

Assessment.  

 

COMPLETED:  

1. Budget was approved July 1
st
 for fiscal year 2018/2019. Specific I&I funding has been 

allocated for both operational repair/replace and capital improvement.  

2. Purchased a high-accuracy GNSS receiver in early October and have used it to 

improve our GIS database with respect to the lift station six sewer basin area.   

3. Purchased two new permanent flow monitors which are expected to arrive on 

November 15
th

. 

4. Contracted Miksis services on October 25
th

 to capture CCTV footage of the identified 

problem areas within the lift station six sewer basin.   

 

FOR NEXT QUARTER: 

5. Coordinate with utilities supervisor to verify field data. This will contribute to the 

continuous improvement of the wastewater collection system GIS database. 

6. Schedule Miksis to repair in accordance with CCTV results.  

7. Install the new flow monitors in the lift station two and six sewer basin areas to gather 

upstream and downstream flow data.    

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this report and data to you. We remain available to 

respond to any inquiries.  

 

Hidden Valley Lake 
Community Services District 

 
19400 Hartmann Road 

Hidden Valley Lake, CA 95467 
707.987.9201 

707.987.3237 fax 
www.hvlcsd.org 

 



 

                            

 

 

 

 

 

Dennis White                                           

   

Field Operations Lead, Cert#40478         

   

Cell 707-533-3498 

Alyssa Gordon 

 

Water Resources Specialist 

 

707-987-9201 

 

Michael Burley  

 

CivicSpark Water Fellow 

 

707-987-9201 

 

Ernesto Ruvalcaba  

 

CivicSpark Water Fellow 

 

707-987-9201 

 

 



November 5, 2018 via email: [Reese.Crenshaw@waterboards.ca.gov] 
 
 
 

 
Reese B. Crenshaw, PE 
Tehama, Butte, Glenn, Colusa, Sutter, Yuba 
Division of Drinking Water – SWRCB 
364 Knollcrest Drive, Suite 101 
Redding, CA 96002 

 
Subject:    Comment on the 2018 Electronic Annual Reporting 

 
Dear Reese, 

 
We appreciate your efforts in convening the Division of Drinking Water Electronic Annual Report 
Input Forum and thank you for the opportunity to provide feedback on the 2018 Electronic 
Annual Report (eAR), which is to be completed in 2019.  We are a coalition of urban water 
suppliers that have coordinated and coalesced our comments on the eAR report. We understand 
that there is limited ability to make changes to the 2018 eAR and have addressed our comments 
accordingly.  Attached is a redlined copy of the eAR with specific comments.  We also have the 
following general comments to provide. 

 
Information Added to the eAR 

 
Section 116530 of the Health and Safety Code primarily relates to issuing water system permits, 
the ability and capacity for systems to provide safe drinking water. The sections in the draft 2018 
eAR regarding water rates, affordable drinking water, water loss from distribution systems, and 
climate change adaptation strategies and resiliency for water utilities go beyond the core purpose 
of the eAR.  Many utilities do not collect the requested information or the information may not 
be available in the format requested. We request the regulatory requirements be identified and 
added to these sections to inform suppliers of the context in which the information is being 
collected.  Without a clear regulatory requirement to provide the specified information, these 
sections should be labeled voluntary and suppliers should be provided the option to answer “not 
applicable” or “not available” to questions when the information is not available. 

 
Clarifying Comments 

 
Throughout the eAR we request the addition of comment boxes.  In many cases it is vital for 
context to be provided to improve the quality of the data collected and to inform any analysis 
performed using the data. To that end, we also request that comments remain firmly linked with 
any data that is distributed. 

 

mailto:Reese.Crenshaw@waterboards.ca.gov


Streamline Redundant Reporting 
 

Section 10609.15 of the Water Code requires the Department of Water Resources and the State 
Water Resources Control Board (State Board) to streamline reporting requirements.   In that 
context we ask that the Water Conservation and Drought Preparedness section be removed or 
crossed out for urban water suppliers in anticipation of the Water Supply and Demand 
Assessment reporting that will be required in June of 2019.  We also request that the question 
related to reporting information regarding lead service lines be removed since the data was 
previously reported to the State Board by July 1, 2018, as required by Section 116885 of the 
Health and Safety Code.  Additionally, we request that the section on Lead Service Line 
Replacement be removed since Section 116885 allows community water systems until July 1, 
2020, to develop a timeline for removing known lead user service lines. 

 
Lastly, we request that all questions regarding recycled water be coordinated with the State 
Board’s Division of Water Quality.   With the planned update to the Recycled Water Policy in 
December 2018, State Board staff will be developing a recycled water reporting database.  All 
recycled questions should be consolidated in a single location to streamline reporting and avoid 
reporting of duplicate and inconsistent data. 

 
Improve Efficiency in Reporting 

 
Finally, to facilitate efficient and effective reporting of data, we request that finalized portions of 
the eAR be released early to accommodate early collection of data.  We also request that an 
option be added to allow reporting on a fiscal or calendar year basis consistent with other 
reporting such as the Urban Water Management Plan. 

 
Thank you again for considering our comments.  We look forward to collaborating with you to 
improve the eAR process. We specifically anticipate more significant changes to the 2019 eAR in 
the coming year including the division of core eAR requirements and other data collection, and 
look forward to collaborating with you in that effort.  If you have any questions or comments 
please contact Ian Prichard or Elizabeth Lovsted for additional information. 

 
 

Sincerely, 
 
Dave Bolland 
Director of State Regulatory Relations  
Association of California Water Agencies 

 Paul Cook, P.E. 
General Manager 
Irvine Ranch Water District  

   

Susan Mulligan 
General Manager 
Calleguas Municipal Water District 

 David W. Pedersen 
General Manager 
Las Virgenes Municipal Water District 

   

Jeffrey Meyer 
Interim General Manager 
Calaveras County Water District 

 Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E. 
General Manager 
Mesa Water District 

   

Ian Prichard 
Water Resource Manager 
Camrosa Water District 

 Allen Carlisle 
CEO/General Manager 
Padre Dam Municipal Water District 



   

Jonathan Young 
Regulatory Advocate 
California Municipal Utilities Association 

 Jeff Armstrong  
General Manager 
Rancho California Water District  

   

Josh Watkins, P.E. 
Water Utility Manager 
City of Redding 

 John Woodling 

Executive Director 
Regional Water Authority 

   

Cathleen Pieroni 
City of San Diego 
Government Affairs Water Policy Manager 

 Greg Thomas  
General Manger 
Rincon Del Diablo Municipal Water District 

   

Jim Barrett 
General Manager  
Coachella Valley Water District 

 Paul Helliker 
General Manager 
San Juan Water District 

   

Paul D. Jones II, P.E.  
General Manager 
Eastern Municipal Water District  

 David Andres 
Interim General Manager  
Tuolumne Utilities District 

   

Robert R. Hill 
General Manager 
El Toro Water District 

 Craig D. Miller 
General Manager 
Western Municipal Water District 

   

Carlos Lugo 
General Manager  
Helix Water District 

 Marc Marcantonio 
General Manager 
Yorba Linda Water District 

 



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  1	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  

Project	  Information	  Form	  
	  

The	  Westside	  Region	  is	  continuously accepting	  projects	  for inclusion in the	  Westside	  Sac Integrated 	  
Regional	  Water	  Management	  (IRWM)	  Plan.	   Projects	  submitted	  for	  consideration	  should	  contribute	  to	  
the	  attainment	  of	  the	  IRWM	  Plan	  Goals	  and	  Objectives.	   To	  have	  your	  project	  considered	  for	  inclusion,	  
please	  complete	  this	  project	  information	  form	  in	  its	  entirety	  and	  submit	  the	  completed	  form	  to	  	  
info@westsideirwm.com	  .	  

	  
Please	  provide	  information	  in	  the	  tables	  below:	  

	  
I. Project	  Proponent	  Information	  
	  
Lead	  Agency/	  Organization	   	  
Name	  of	  Primary	  Contact	   	  
Mailing	  Address	   	  
E-‐mail	   	  
Phone	  (###)###-‐####	   	  
Other	  Cooperating	  
Agencies/Organizations	  

	  

Is	  your	  agency	  committed	  
to	  the	  project	  through	  
completion?	  If	  not,	  please	  
explain	  

	  

	  
	  
II. General	  Project	  Information	  

	  
Project	  Title	   	  
Project	  Description	  
(Briefly	  describe	  the	  project,	  in	  
300	  words	  or	  less,)	  

	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  2	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  
Project	  Location:	   	  

Latitude:	   	  
Longitude:	   	  

Can	  you	  provide	  a	  map	  of	  the	  
project	  location	  including	  
boundaries	  upon	  request?	  

Yes	   N/A	  

No	  

Project	  Location	  Description:	   	  

County:	   	  
City/Community:	   	  
Watershed:	   	  
Groundwater	  Basin:	   	  
Planning	  Area:	   	  
Additional	  Comments:	   	  

Project	  Status	  (Check	  only	  one)	   Conceptual	   Planning	   CEQA/NEPA	   Permitting	  

Design	   Construction/Implementation	   Study/Other	  

Maintenance/Monitoring	  

Earliest	  expected	  start	  date	  
(mm/dd/yr)	  

	  

	  
	  
III. Plan	  Goals/Objectives	  Addressed	  

For	  each	  of	  the	  goals/objectives	  addressed	  by	  the	  project,	  provide	  a	  one	  to	  two	  sentence	  description	  of	  
how	  the	  project	  contributes	  to	  attaining	  the	  objective.	  Information	  related	  to	  the	  proposed	  goals	  and	  
objectives	  can	  be	  found	  at	  www.westsideirw.com/irwmplan	  .	   If	  the	  project	  does	  not	  address	  any	  of	  the	  
draft	  IRWM	  plan	  objectives,	  provide	  a	  one	  to	  two	  sentence	  description	  of	  how	  the	  project	  relates	  to	  a	  
challenge	  or	  opportunity	  of	  the	  region.	  

	  
Goal(s)	  that	  the	  Project	  will	  
contribute	  to:	  

	  

Objective(s)	  that	  the	  Project	  will	  
help	  accomplish:	  

	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  3	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  
Explanation	  of	  Project	  linkage	  to	  
goals	  and	  objectives	  

	  

How	  will	  the	  project	  be	  
measured	  to	  ensure	  the	  goals	  
and	  objectives	  are	  being	  
fulfilled?	  

	  

	  
	  
IV. Resource	  Management	  Strategies	  
	  

For	  each	  resource	  management	  strategy	  employed	  by	  the	  project,	  provide	  a	  one	  to	  two	  sentence	  
description	  in	  the	  table	  below	  of	  how	  the	  project	  incorporates	  the	  strategy.	   A	  description	  of	  the	  
Resource	  Management	  Strategies	  can	  be	  found	  in	  Volume	  2	  of	  the	  2009	  California	  Water	  Plan	  here:	  	  
http://www.waterplan.water.ca.gov/cwpu2009/index.cfm	  

	  
Reduce	  Water	  Demand	  
Agricultural	  Water	  Use	  Efficiency	   	  
Urban	  Water	  Use	  Efficiency	   	  
Improve	  Operational	  Efficiency	  and	  Transfers	  
Conveyance	  -‐	  Delta	   	  
Conveyance	  -‐	  Regional	  /	  local	   	  
System	  Reoperation	   	  
Water	  Transfers	   	  
Increase	  Water	  Supply	  
Conjunctive	  Management	  &	  Groundwater	   	  
Desalination	   	  
Precipitation	  Enhancement	   	  
Recycled	  Municipal	  Water	   	  
Surface	  Storage	  -‐-‐	  CALFED	   	  
Surface	  Storage	  -‐-‐	  Regional	  /	  Local	   	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  4	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  
Improve	  Water	  Quality	  
Drinking	  Water	  Treatment	  and	  Distribution	   	  
Groundwater	  and	  Aquifer	  Remediation	   	  
Matching	  Water	  Quality	  to	  Use	   	  
Pollution	  Prevention	   	  
Salt	  and	  Salinity	  Management	   	  
Urban	  Runoff	  Management	   	  
Practice	  Resources	  Stewardship	  
Agricultural	  Lands	  Stewardship	   	  
Economic	  Incentives	  (Loans,	  Grants,	  and	  Water	  
Pricing)	  

	  

Ecosystem	  Restoration	   	  
Forest	  Management	   	  
Land	  Use	  Planning	  and	  Management	   	  
Recharge	  Areas	  Protection	   	  
Water-‐dependent	  Recreation	   	  
Watershed	  Management	   	  
Improve	  Flood	  Management	  
Flood	  Risk	  Management	   	  

	  
	  
V. Project	  Impacts	  and	  Benefits	  
	  

Please	  select	  all	  the	  project	  benefit	  categories	  that	  apply	  and	  provide	  a	  brief	  explanation.	  If	  the	  project	  
benefits	  do	  not	  fit	  any	  of	  the	  listed	  categories,	  please	  explain	  in	  the	  box	  below.	  Suggested	  benefit	  
descriptions	  are	  included	  in	  the	  Project	  Information	  Form	  instructions	  sheet.	  

	  
Benefit	  Categories:	   	   Brief	  Explanation	  of	  Selected	  Benefits	   Quantification	  (e.g.	  acre-‐feet	  

of	  water	  supplied,	  acres	  of	  
habitat	  restored)	  

Increase	  Water	  Supply	   	   	   	  

Improve	  Water	  Quality	   	   	   	  

Groundwater	  
Improvements	  

	   	   	  

Water	  Conservation	  
and	  Reuse	  

	   	   	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  5	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  
Watershed	  
Rehabilitation	  

	   	   	   	  	  
	  

Habitat	  Improvements	   	   	   	  

Flood	  Management	   	   	   	  

	  
	  

Other	  Benefits:	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

Please	  provide	  a	  summary	  of	  the	  expected	  project	  benefits	  and	  impacts	  in	  the	  table	  below.	  
	  

a.	  	  	   Describe	  any	  expected	  
impacts	  of	  the	  project	  

	  

b.	  	  	   If	  applicable,	  describe	  
benefits	  or	  impacts	  of	  
the	  project	  with	  respect	  
to	  Native	  American	  
Tribal	  Community	  
considerations.	  

	  

c.	   If	  applicable,	  describe	  
benefits	  or	  impacts	  of	  
the	  project	  with	  respect	  
to	  Disadvantaged	  
Communities*.	  

	  

d.	  	  	   If	  applicable,	  describe	  
benefits	  or	  impacts	  of	  
the	  project	  with	  respect	  
to	  Environmental	  
Justice	  **	  
considerations.	  

	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  6	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  
e.	  	  	   If	  applicable,	  describe	  

how	  the	  project	  assists	  
the	  region	  in	  adapting	  
to	  effects	  of	  climate	  
change.	  

	  

f.	   If	  applicable,	  describe	  
the	  generation	  or	  
reduction	  of	  
greenhouse	  gas	  
emissions	  associated	  
with	  the	  project.	  

	  

*A	  Disadvantaged	  Community	  is	  defined	  as	  a	  community	  with	  an	  annual	  median	  household	  (MHI)	  income	  that	  is	  less	  than	  80	  
percent	  of	  the	  Statewide	  annual	  MHI.	   A	  map	  identifying	  DACs	  in	  the	  Westside	  Region	  is	  available	  at	  www.westsideirwm.com.	  

	  
**	  Environmental	  Justice	  is	  defined	  as	  the	  fair	  treatment	  of	  people	  of	  all	  races,	  cultures,	  and	  incomes	  with	  respect	  to	  the	  
development,	  adoption,	  implementation	  and	  enforcement	  of	  environmental	  laws,	  regulations	  and	  policies.	  

	  
	  
VI. Statewide	  Program	  Preferences	  and	  Priorities	  

	  
Please	  select	  the	  Program	  Preferences	  and	  Statewide	  Priorities	  that	  apply	  to	  the	  proposed	  
project	  (choose	  all	  that	  apply).	  

	  
Program	  Preferences	  

Include	  regional	  projects	  or	  programs	  (CWC	  §10544)	  

Effectively	  integrate	  water	  management	  programs	  and	  projects	  within	  a	  hydrologic	  region	  
identified	  in	  the	  California	  Water	  Plan;	  the	  Regional	  Water	  Quality	  Control	  Board	  (RWQCB)	  
region	  or	  subdivision;	  or	  other	  region	  or	  sub-‐region	  specifically	  identified	  by	  DWR	  

Effectively	  resolve	  significant	  water-‐related	  conflicts	  within	  or	  between	  regions	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Contribute	  to	  attainment	  of	  one	  or	  more	  of	  the	  objectives	  of	  the	  CALFED	  Bay-‐Delta	  Program	  

Address	  critical	  water	  supply	  or	  water	  quality	  needs	  of	  disadvantaged	  communities	  within	  
the	  region	  

Effectively	  integrate	  water	  management	  with	  land	  use	  planning	  

For	  eligible	  SWFM	  funding,	  projects	  which:	  a)	  are	  not	  receiving	  State	  funding	  for	  flood	  
control	  or	  flood	  prevention	  projects	  pursuant	  to	  PRC	  §5096.824	  or	  §75034	  or	  b)	  provide	  
multiple	  benefits,	  including,	  but	  not	  limited	  to,	  water	  quality	  improvements,	  ecosystem	  
benefits,	  reduction	  of	  instream	  erosion	  and	  sedimentation,	  and	  groundwater	  recharge.	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  7	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  

Statewide	  Priorities	  
	  

Drought	  Preparedness	  
	  

Promote	  water	  conservation,	  conjunctive	  use,	  reuse	  and	  recycling	  

Improve	  landscape	  and	  agricultural	  irrigation	  efficiencies	  	  	  	  
Achieve	  long	  term	  reduction	  of	  water	  use	  

Efficient	  groundwater	  basin	  management	  
System	  interties	  

Use	  and	  Reuse	  Water	  More	  Efficiently	  
	  

Increase	  urban	  and	  agricultural	  water	  use	  efficiency	  measures	  such	  as	  conservation	  and	  
recycling	  

Capture,	  store,	  treat,	  and	  use	  urban	  stormwater	  runoff	  (such	  as	  percolation	  to	  usable	  
aquifers,	  underground	  storage	  beneath	  parks,	  small	  surface	  basins,	  domestic	  stormwater	  
capture	  systems,	  or	  the	  creation	  of	  catch	  basins	  or	  sumps	  downhill	  of	  development	  

Incorporate	  and	  implement	  low	  impact	  development	  (LID)	  design	  features,	  techniques,	  and	  
practices	  to	  reduce	  or	  eliminate	  stormwater	  runoff	  

	  
Climate	  Change	  Response	  Actions	  

	  

Adaptation	  to	  Climate	  Change:	  Advance	  and	  expand	  conjunctive	  management	  of	  multiple	  
water	  supply	  sources	  

Adaptation	  to	  Climate	  Change:	  Use	  and	  reuse	  water	  more	  efficiently	  
Adaptation	  to	  Climate	  Change:	  Water	  management	  system	  modifications	  that	  address	  
anticipated	  climate	  

Adaptation	  to	  Climate	  Change:	  Establish	  migration	  corridors,	  re-‐establish	  river-‐	  
floodplain	  hydrologic	  continuity,	  re-‐introduce	  anadromous	  fish	  populations	  to	  upper	  
watersheds,	  enhance	  and	  protect	  upper	  watershed	  forests	  and	  meadow	  systems	  

Reduction	  of	  Greenhouse	  Gas	  (GHG)	  Emissions:	  Reduce	  energy	  consumption	  of	  water	  
systems	  and	  uses	  

Reduction	  of	  Greenhouse	  Gas	  (GHG)	  Emissions:	  Use	  cleaner	  energy	  sources	  to	  move	  and	  
treat	  water	  
Reduce	  Energy	  Consumption:	  Water	  use	  efficiency	  

Reduce	  Energy	  Consumption:	  Water	  recycling	  

Reduce	  Energy	  Consumption:	  Water	  system	  energy	  efficiency	  
	  

Expand	  Environmental	  Stewardship	  
	  

Expand	  Environmental	  Stewardship	  to	  protect	  and	  enhance	  the	  environment	  by	  improving	  
watershed,	  floodplain,	  and	  instream	  functions	  and	  to	  sustain	  water	  and	  flood	  management	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  8	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  
ecosystems.	  

	  
Practice	  Integrated	  Flood	  Management	  

	  

Better	  emergency	  preparedness	  and	  response	  
Improved	  flood	  protection	  

More	  sustainable	  flood	  and	  water	  management	  systems	  

Enhanced	  floodplain	  ecosystems	  
LID	  techniques	  that	  store	  and	  infiltrate	  runoff	  while	  protecting	  groundwater	  

	  
Protect	  Surface	  Water	  and	  Groundwater	  Quality	  

	  

Protecting	  and	  restoring	  surface	  water	  and	  groundwater	  quality	  to	  safeguard	  public	  and	  
environmental	  health	  and	  secure	  water	  supplies	  for	  beneficial	  uses	  

Salt/nutrient	  management	  planning	  as	  a	  components	  of	  an	  IRWM	  Plan	  
	  

Improve	  Tribal	  Water	  and	  Natural	  Resources	  
	  

Improve	  Tribal	  Water	  and	  Natural	  Resources	  and	  include	  the	  development	  of	  Tribal	  
consultation,	  collaboration,	  and	  access	  to	  funding	  for	  water	  programs. 

	  
Ensure	  Equitable	  Distribution	  of	  Benefits	  

	  

Increase	  the	  participation	  of	  small	  and	  disadvantaged	  communities	  in	  the	  IRWM	  process.	  

Develop	  multi-‐benefit	  projects	  with	  consideration	  of	  affected	  disadvantaged	  communities	  
and	  vulnerable	  populations.	  

Contain	  projects	  that	  address	  safe	  drinking	  water	  and	  wastewater	  treatment	  needs	  of	  DACs.	  

Address	  critical	  water	  supply	  or	  water	  quality	  needs	  of	  California	  Native	  American	  Tribes	  
within	  the	  region.	  

	  
	  
VII. Project	  Cost	  and	  Financing	  
	  

Please	  provide	  any	  estimates	  of	  project	  cost,	  sources	  of	  funding,	  and	  operation	  and	  maintenance	  costs	  
as	  well	  as	  the	  source	  of	  the	  project	  cost	  in	  the	  table	  below.	  

	  
a.	  	  	   Project	  Costs	   	  

1.	  	  	   Capital	  (2012	  Dollars)	   	  
2.	  	  	  Annual	  Operations	  and	  Maintenance	  

(O&M)	  
	  

	  
b.	  	  	   List	  secured	  source(s)	  of	  funding	  

Source(s)	   Amount	  
	   	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  9	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  
	   	   	  

c.	   List	  proposed	  source(s)	  of	  funding	  and	  
certainty	  of	  the	  sources.	  

	   	  

d.	  	  	  For	  capital	  projects,	  explain	  how	  
operation	  and	  maintenance	  costs	  will	  be	  
financed.	  

	  

e.	  	  	   Basis	  for	  project	  cost	   	  

f.	   Can	  a	  detailed	  cost	  estimate	  be	  provided	  
upon	  request?	  

	   Yes	   	   No	  
	  

	  
	  
VIII. Project	  Status	  and	  Schedule	  
	  

Please	  provide	  a	  status	  of	  the	  project,	  level	  of	  completion	  as	  well	  as	  a	  description	  of	  the	  activities	  
planned	  for	  each	  project	  stage.	  

	  
Project	  Stage	   Description	  of	  Activities	  in	  

Each	  Project	  Stage	  
Planned/Actual	  
Start	  Date	  

Planned/Actual	  
Completion	  
Date	  

a.	  	  	   Conceptual	   	   	   	  

b.	  	  	  Planning	   	   	   	  

c.	   Environmental	  
Documentation	  (CEQA/NEPA)	  

	   	   	  

d.	  	  	  Permitting	   	   	   	  

e.	  	  	   Tribal	  Consultation	   	   	   	  

f.	   Design	   	   	   	  

g.	  	  	  Construction/Implementation	   	   	   	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  10	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  10/19/12	  

	  

	  

	  

IX. Project	  Technical	  Feasibility	  
Please	  provide	  any	  related	  documents	  (date,	  title,	  author,	  and	  page	  numbers)	  that	  describe	  and	  confirm	  
the	  technical	  feasibility	  of	  the	  project.	  

	  

a.	  	  	   List	  water	  planning	  documents	  that	  specifically	  
identify	  this	  project.	  

	  

b.	  	  	  List	  the	  adopted	  planning	  documents	  the	  proposed	  
project	  is	  consistent	  with	  (e.g.	  General	  Plans,	  
UWMPs,	  GWMPs,	  Water	  Master	  Plans,	  Habitat	  
Conservation	  Plans,	  etc.)	  

	  

c.	   List	  technical	  reports	  and	  studies	  supporting	  the	  
feasibility	  of	  this	  project.	  

	  

d.	  	  	   If	  you	  are	  an	  Urban	  Water	  Supplier:	   	  
1.	  	  	  Have	  you	  completed	  an	  Urban	  Water	  

Management	  Plan	  and	  submitted	  to	  DWR?	  
Yes	   No	   N/A	  

2.	  	  	  Are	  you	  in	  compliance	  with	  AB1420?	   Yes	   No	   N/A	  

3.	  	  	  Do	  you	  comply	  with	  the	  water	  meter	  
requirements	  (CWC	  §525)	  

Yes	   No	   N/A	  

4.	  	  	   If	  the	  answer	  to	  any	  of	  the	  questions	  above	  is	  
“no”,	  do	  you	  intend	  to	  comply	  prior	  to	  receiving	  
Project	  funding	  

Yes	   No	   N/A	  

e.	  	  	   If	  you	  are	  an	  Agricultural	  Water	  Supplier:	   	  
1.	  	  	  Have	  you	  completed	  and	  submitted	  an	  AWMP	  

(due	  12/31/12)?	  
	   Yes	   No	   	   N/A	  
	  

2.	  	  	   If	  not,	  will	  you	  complete	  and	  submit	  an	  AWMP	  
prior	  to	  receiving	  project	  funding?	  

Yes	   No	   N/A	  

f.	   If	  the	  project	  is	  related	  to	  groundwater:	   	  
1.	  	  	  Has	  a	  GWMP	  been	  completed	  and	  submitted	  

for	  the	  subject	  basin?	  
Yes	   No	   N/A	  

2.	  	  	   If	  not	  will	  a	  GWMP	  be	  completed	  within	  1	  year	  
of	  the	  grant	  submittal	  date?	  

Yes	   No	   N/A	  

	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  1	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  

Project	  Information	  Form	  
	  

The	  Westside	  Region	  is	  continuously accepting	  projects	  for inclusion in the	  Westside	  Sac Integrated 	  
Regional	  Water	  Management	  (IRWM)	  Plan.	   Projects	  submitted	  for	  consideration	  should	  contribute	  to	  
the	  attainment	  of	  the	  IRWM	  Plan	  Goals	  and	  Objectives.	   To	  have	  your	  project	  considered	  for	  inclusion,	  
please	  complete	  this	  project	  information	  form	  in	  its	  entirety	  and	  submit	  the	  completed	  form	  to	  	  
info@westsideirwm.com	  .	  

	  
Please	  provide	  information	  in	  the	  tables	  below:	  

	  
I. Project	  Proponent	  Information	  
	  
Lead	  Agency/	  Organization	   	  
Name	  of	  Primary	  Contact	   	  
Mailing	  Address	   	  
E-‐mail	   	  
Phone	  (###)###-‐####	   	  
Other	  Cooperating	  
Agencies/Organizations	  

	  

Is	  your	  agency	  committed	  
to	  the	  project	  through	  
completion?	  If	  not,	  please	  
explain	  

	  

	  
	  
II. General	  Project	  Information	  

	  
Project	  Title	   	  
Project	  Description	  
(Briefly	  describe	  the	  project,	  in	  
300	  words	  or	  less,)	  

	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  2	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  
Project	  Location:	   	  

Latitude:	   	  
Longitude:	   	  

Can	  you	  provide	  a	  map	  of	  the	  
project	  location	  including	  
boundaries	  upon	  request?	  

Yes	   N/A	  

No	  

Project	  Location	  Description:	   	  

County:	   	  
City/Community:	   	  
Watershed:	   	  
Groundwater	  Basin:	   	  
Planning	  Area:	   	  
Additional	  Comments:	   	  

Project	  Status	  (Check	  only	  one)	   Conceptual	   Planning	   CEQA/NEPA	   Permitting	  

Design	   Construction/Implementation	   Study/Other	  

Maintenance/Monitoring	  

Earliest	  expected	  start	  date	  
(mm/dd/yr)	  

	  

	  
	  
III. Plan	  Goals/Objectives	  Addressed	  

For	  each	  of	  the	  goals/objectives	  addressed	  by	  the	  project,	  provide	  a	  one	  to	  two	  sentence	  description	  of	  
how	  the	  project	  contributes	  to	  attaining	  the	  objective.	  Information	  related	  to	  the	  proposed	  goals	  and	  
objectives	  can	  be	  found	  at	  www.westsideirw.com/irwmplan	  .	   If	  the	  project	  does	  not	  address	  any	  of	  the	  
draft	  IRWM	  plan	  objectives,	  provide	  a	  one	  to	  two	  sentence	  description	  of	  how	  the	  project	  relates	  to	  a	  
challenge	  or	  opportunity	  of	  the	  region.	  

	  
Goal(s)	  that	  the	  Project	  will	  
contribute	  to:	  

	  

Objective(s)	  that	  the	  Project	  will	  
help	  accomplish:	  

	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  3	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  
Explanation	  of	  Project	  linkage	  to	  
goals	  and	  objectives	  

	  

How	  will	  the	  project	  be	  
measured	  to	  ensure	  the	  goals	  
and	  objectives	  are	  being	  
fulfilled?	  

	  

	  
	  
IV. Resource	  Management	  Strategies	  
	  

For	  each	  resource	  management	  strategy	  employed	  by	  the	  project,	  provide	  a	  one	  to	  two	  sentence	  
description	  in	  the	  table	  below	  of	  how	  the	  project	  incorporates	  the	  strategy.	   A	  description	  of	  the	  
Resource	  Management	  Strategies	  can	  be	  found	  in	  Volume	  2	  of	  the	  2009	  California	  Water	  Plan	  here:	  	  
http://www.waterplan.water.ca.gov/cwpu2009/index.cfm	  

	  
Reduce	  Water	  Demand	  
Agricultural	  Water	  Use	  Efficiency	   	  
Urban	  Water	  Use	  Efficiency	   	  
Improve	  Operational	  Efficiency	  and	  Transfers	  
Conveyance	  -‐	  Delta	   	  
Conveyance	  -‐	  Regional	  /	  local	   	  
System	  Reoperation	   	  
Water	  Transfers	   	  
Increase	  Water	  Supply	  
Conjunctive	  Management	  &	  Groundwater	   	  
Desalination	   	  
Precipitation	  Enhancement	   	  
Recycled	  Municipal	  Water	   	  
Surface	  Storage	  -‐-‐	  CALFED	   	  
Surface	  Storage	  -‐-‐	  Regional	  /	  Local	   	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  4	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  
Improve	  Water	  Quality	  
Drinking	  Water	  Treatment	  and	  Distribution	   	  
Groundwater	  and	  Aquifer	  Remediation	   	  
Matching	  Water	  Quality	  to	  Use	   	  
Pollution	  Prevention	   	  
Salt	  and	  Salinity	  Management	   	  
Urban	  Runoff	  Management	   	  
Practice	  Resources	  Stewardship	  
Agricultural	  Lands	  Stewardship	   	  
Economic	  Incentives	  (Loans,	  Grants,	  and	  Water	  
Pricing)	  

	  

Ecosystem	  Restoration	   	  
Forest	  Management	   	  
Land	  Use	  Planning	  and	  Management	   	  
Recharge	  Areas	  Protection	   	  
Water-‐dependent	  Recreation	   	  
Watershed	  Management	   	  
Improve	  Flood	  Management	  
Flood	  Risk	  Management	   	  

	  
	  
V. Project	  Impacts	  and	  Benefits	  
	  

Please	  select	  all	  the	  project	  benefit	  categories	  that	  apply	  and	  provide	  a	  brief	  explanation.	  If	  the	  project	  
benefits	  do	  not	  fit	  any	  of	  the	  listed	  categories,	  please	  explain	  in	  the	  box	  below.	  Suggested	  benefit	  
descriptions	  are	  included	  in	  the	  Project	  Information	  Form	  instructions	  sheet.	  

	  
Benefit	  Categories:	   	   Brief	  Explanation	  of	  Selected	  Benefits	   Quantification	  (e.g.	  acre-‐feet	  

of	  water	  supplied,	  acres	  of	  
habitat	  restored)	  

Increase	  Water	  Supply	   	   	   	  

Improve	  Water	  Quality	   	   	   	  

Groundwater	  
Improvements	  

	   	   	  

Water	  Conservation	  
and	  Reuse	  

	   	   	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  5	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  
Watershed	  
Rehabilitation	  

	   	   	   	  	  
	  

Habitat	  Improvements	   	   	   	  

Flood	  Management	   	   	   	  

	  
	  

Other	  Benefits:	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

Please	  provide	  a	  summary	  of	  the	  expected	  project	  benefits	  and	  impacts	  in	  the	  table	  below.	  
	  

a.	  	  	   Describe	  any	  expected	  
impacts	  of	  the	  project	  

	  

b.	  	  	   If	  applicable,	  describe	  
benefits	  or	  impacts	  of	  
the	  project	  with	  respect	  
to	  Native	  American	  
Tribal	  Community	  
considerations.	  

	  

c.	   If	  applicable,	  describe	  
benefits	  or	  impacts	  of	  
the	  project	  with	  respect	  
to	  Disadvantaged	  
Communities*.	  

	  

d.	  	  	   If	  applicable,	  describe	  
benefits	  or	  impacts	  of	  
the	  project	  with	  respect	  
to	  Environmental	  
Justice	  **	  
considerations.	  

	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  6	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  
e.	  	  	   If	  applicable,	  describe	  

how	  the	  project	  assists	  
the	  region	  in	  adapting	  
to	  effects	  of	  climate	  
change.	  

	  

f.	   If	  applicable,	  describe	  
the	  generation	  or	  
reduction	  of	  
greenhouse	  gas	  
emissions	  associated	  
with	  the	  project.	  

	  

*A	  Disadvantaged	  Community	  is	  defined	  as	  a	  community	  with	  an	  annual	  median	  household	  (MHI)	  income	  that	  is	  less	  than	  80	  
percent	  of	  the	  Statewide	  annual	  MHI.	   A	  map	  identifying	  DACs	  in	  the	  Westside	  Region	  is	  available	  at	  www.westsideirwm.com.	  

	  
**	  Environmental	  Justice	  is	  defined	  as	  the	  fair	  treatment	  of	  people	  of	  all	  races,	  cultures,	  and	  incomes	  with	  respect	  to	  the	  
development,	  adoption,	  implementation	  and	  enforcement	  of	  environmental	  laws,	  regulations	  and	  policies.	  

	  
	  
VI. Statewide	  Program	  Preferences	  and	  Priorities	  

	  
Please	  select	  the	  Program	  Preferences	  and	  Statewide	  Priorities	  that	  apply	  to	  the	  proposed	  
project	  (choose	  all	  that	  apply).	  

	  
Program	  Preferences	  

Include	  regional	  projects	  or	  programs	  (CWC	  §10544)	  

Effectively	  integrate	  water	  management	  programs	  and	  projects	  within	  a	  hydrologic	  region	  
identified	  in	  the	  California	  Water	  Plan;	  the	  Regional	  Water	  Quality	  Control	  Board	  (RWQCB)	  
region	  or	  subdivision;	  or	  other	  region	  or	  sub-‐region	  specifically	  identified	  by	  DWR	  

Effectively	  resolve	  significant	  water-‐related	  conflicts	  within	  or	  between	  regions	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Contribute	  to	  attainment	  of	  one	  or	  more	  of	  the	  objectives	  of	  the	  CALFED	  Bay-‐Delta	  Program	  

Address	  critical	  water	  supply	  or	  water	  quality	  needs	  of	  disadvantaged	  communities	  within	  
the	  region	  

Effectively	  integrate	  water	  management	  with	  land	  use	  planning	  

For	  eligible	  SWFM	  funding,	  projects	  which:	  a)	  are	  not	  receiving	  State	  funding	  for	  flood	  
control	  or	  flood	  prevention	  projects	  pursuant	  to	  PRC	  §5096.824	  or	  §75034	  or	  b)	  provide	  
multiple	  benefits,	  including,	  but	  not	  limited	  to,	  water	  quality	  improvements,	  ecosystem	  
benefits,	  reduction	  of	  instream	  erosion	  and	  sedimentation,	  and	  groundwater	  recharge.	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  7	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  

Statewide	  Priorities	  
	  

Drought	  Preparedness	  
	  

Promote	  water	  conservation,	  conjunctive	  use,	  reuse	  and	  recycling	  

Improve	  landscape	  and	  agricultural	  irrigation	  efficiencies	  	  	  	  
Achieve	  long	  term	  reduction	  of	  water	  use	  

Efficient	  groundwater	  basin	  management	  
System	  interties	  

Use	  and	  Reuse	  Water	  More	  Efficiently	  
	  

Increase	  urban	  and	  agricultural	  water	  use	  efficiency	  measures	  such	  as	  conservation	  and	  
recycling	  

Capture,	  store,	  treat,	  and	  use	  urban	  stormwater	  runoff	  (such	  as	  percolation	  to	  usable	  
aquifers,	  underground	  storage	  beneath	  parks,	  small	  surface	  basins,	  domestic	  stormwater	  
capture	  systems,	  or	  the	  creation	  of	  catch	  basins	  or	  sumps	  downhill	  of	  development	  

Incorporate	  and	  implement	  low	  impact	  development	  (LID)	  design	  features,	  techniques,	  and	  
practices	  to	  reduce	  or	  eliminate	  stormwater	  runoff	  

	  
Climate	  Change	  Response	  Actions	  

	  

Adaptation	  to	  Climate	  Change:	  Advance	  and	  expand	  conjunctive	  management	  of	  multiple	  
water	  supply	  sources	  

Adaptation	  to	  Climate	  Change:	  Use	  and	  reuse	  water	  more	  efficiently	  
Adaptation	  to	  Climate	  Change:	  Water	  management	  system	  modifications	  that	  address	  
anticipated	  climate	  

Adaptation	  to	  Climate	  Change:	  Establish	  migration	  corridors,	  re-‐establish	  river-‐	  
floodplain	  hydrologic	  continuity,	  re-‐introduce	  anadromous	  fish	  populations	  to	  upper	  
watersheds,	  enhance	  and	  protect	  upper	  watershed	  forests	  and	  meadow	  systems	  

Reduction	  of	  Greenhouse	  Gas	  (GHG)	  Emissions:	  Reduce	  energy	  consumption	  of	  water	  
systems	  and	  uses	  

Reduction	  of	  Greenhouse	  Gas	  (GHG)	  Emissions:	  Use	  cleaner	  energy	  sources	  to	  move	  and	  
treat	  water	  
Reduce	  Energy	  Consumption:	  Water	  use	  efficiency	  

Reduce	  Energy	  Consumption:	  Water	  recycling	  

Reduce	  Energy	  Consumption:	  Water	  system	  energy	  efficiency	  
	  

Expand	  Environmental	  Stewardship	  
	  

Expand	  Environmental	  Stewardship	  to	  protect	  and	  enhance	  the	  environment	  by	  improving	  
watershed,	  floodplain,	  and	  instream	  functions	  and	  to	  sustain	  water	  and	  flood	  management	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  8	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  
ecosystems.	  

	  
Practice	  Integrated	  Flood	  Management	  

	  

Better	  emergency	  preparedness	  and	  response	  
Improved	  flood	  protection	  

More	  sustainable	  flood	  and	  water	  management	  systems	  

Enhanced	  floodplain	  ecosystems	  
LID	  techniques	  that	  store	  and	  infiltrate	  runoff	  while	  protecting	  groundwater	  

	  
Protect	  Surface	  Water	  and	  Groundwater	  Quality	  

	  

Protecting	  and	  restoring	  surface	  water	  and	  groundwater	  quality	  to	  safeguard	  public	  and	  
environmental	  health	  and	  secure	  water	  supplies	  for	  beneficial	  uses	  

Salt/nutrient	  management	  planning	  as	  a	  components	  of	  an	  IRWM	  Plan	  
	  

Improve	  Tribal	  Water	  and	  Natural	  Resources	  
	  

Improve	  Tribal	  Water	  and	  Natural	  Resources	  and	  include	  the	  development	  of	  Tribal	  
consultation,	  collaboration,	  and	  access	  to	  funding	  for	  water	  programs. 

	  
Ensure	  Equitable	  Distribution	  of	  Benefits	  

	  

Increase	  the	  participation	  of	  small	  and	  disadvantaged	  communities	  in	  the	  IRWM	  process.	  

Develop	  multi-‐benefit	  projects	  with	  consideration	  of	  affected	  disadvantaged	  communities	  
and	  vulnerable	  populations.	  

Contain	  projects	  that	  address	  safe	  drinking	  water	  and	  wastewater	  treatment	  needs	  of	  DACs.	  

Address	  critical	  water	  supply	  or	  water	  quality	  needs	  of	  California	  Native	  American	  Tribes	  
within	  the	  region.	  

	  
	  
VII. Project	  Cost	  and	  Financing	  
	  

Please	  provide	  any	  estimates	  of	  project	  cost,	  sources	  of	  funding,	  and	  operation	  and	  maintenance	  costs	  
as	  well	  as	  the	  source	  of	  the	  project	  cost	  in	  the	  table	  below.	  

	  
a.	  	  	   Project	  Costs	   	  

1.	  	  	   Capital	  (2012	  Dollars)	   	  
2.	  	  	  Annual	  Operations	  and	  Maintenance	  

(O&M)	  
	  

	  
b.	  	  	   List	  secured	  source(s)	  of	  funding	  

Source(s)	   Amount	  
	   	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  9	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  03/26/14	  

	  

	  

	  
	   	   	  

c.	   List	  proposed	  source(s)	  of	  funding	  and	  
certainty	  of	  the	  sources.	  

	   	  

d.	  	  	  For	  capital	  projects,	  explain	  how	  
operation	  and	  maintenance	  costs	  will	  be	  
financed.	  

	  

e.	  	  	   Basis	  for	  project	  cost	   	  

f.	   Can	  a	  detailed	  cost	  estimate	  be	  provided	  
upon	  request?	  

	   Yes	   	   No	  
	  

	  
	  
VIII. Project	  Status	  and	  Schedule	  
	  

Please	  provide	  a	  status	  of	  the	  project,	  level	  of	  completion	  as	  well	  as	  a	  description	  of	  the	  activities	  
planned	  for	  each	  project	  stage.	  

	  
Project	  Stage	   Description	  of	  Activities	  in	  

Each	  Project	  Stage	  
Planned/Actual	  
Start	  Date	  

Planned/Actual	  
Completion	  
Date	  

a.	  	  	   Conceptual	   	   	   	  

b.	  	  	  Planning	   	   	   	  

c.	   Environmental	  
Documentation	  (CEQA/NEPA)	  

	   	   	  

d.	  	  	  Permitting	   	   	   	  

e.	  	  	   Tribal	  Consultation	   	   	   	  

f.	   Design	   	   	   	  

g.	  	  	  Construction/Implementation	   	   	   	  



Project	  Information	  Form	   Page	  10	  of	  10	   Revised	  –	  10/19/12	  

	  

	  

	  

IX. Project	  Technical	  Feasibility	  
Please	  provide	  any	  related	  documents	  (date,	  title,	  author,	  and	  page	  numbers)	  that	  describe	  and	  confirm	  
the	  technical	  feasibility	  of	  the	  project.	  

	  

a.	  	  	   List	  water	  planning	  documents	  that	  specifically	  
identify	  this	  project.	  

	  

b.	  	  	  List	  the	  adopted	  planning	  documents	  the	  proposed	  
project	  is	  consistent	  with	  (e.g.	  General	  Plans,	  
UWMPs,	  GWMPs,	  Water	  Master	  Plans,	  Habitat	  
Conservation	  Plans,	  etc.)	  

	  

c.	   List	  technical	  reports	  and	  studies	  supporting	  the	  
feasibility	  of	  this	  project.	  

	  

d.	  	  	   If	  you	  are	  an	  Urban	  Water	  Supplier:	   	  
1.	  	  	  Have	  you	  completed	  an	  Urban	  Water	  

Management	  Plan	  and	  submitted	  to	  DWR?	  
Yes	   No	   N/A	  

2.	  	  	  Are	  you	  in	  compliance	  with	  AB1420?	   Yes	   No	   N/A	  

3.	  	  	  Do	  you	  comply	  with	  the	  water	  meter	  
requirements	  (CWC	  §525)	  

Yes	   No	   N/A	  

4.	  	  	   If	  the	  answer	  to	  any	  of	  the	  questions	  above	  is	  
“no”,	  do	  you	  intend	  to	  comply	  prior	  to	  receiving	  
Project	  funding	  

Yes	   No	   N/A	  

e.	  	  	   If	  you	  are	  an	  Agricultural	  Water	  Supplier:	   	  
1.	  	  	  Have	  you	  completed	  and	  submitted	  an	  AWMP	  

(due	  12/31/12)?	  
	   Yes	   No	   	   N/A	  
	  

2.	  	  	   If	  not,	  will	  you	  complete	  and	  submit	  an	  AWMP	  
prior	  to	  receiving	  project	  funding?	  

Yes	   No	   N/A	  

f.	   If	  the	  project	  is	  related	  to	  groundwater:	   	  
1.	  	  	  Has	  a	  GWMP	  been	  completed	  and	  submitted	  

for	  the	  subject	  basin?	  
Yes	   No	   N/A	  

2.	  	  	   If	  not	  will	  a	  GWMP	  be	  completed	  within	  1	  year	  
of	  the	  grant	  submittal	  date?	  

Yes	   No	   N/A	  

	  



 
              

                                             

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1 
 

 

 

Hidden Valley Lake  
Community Services District 
 

19400 Hartmann Road 
Hidden Valley Lake, CA 95467 
707.987.9201 
707.987.3237 fax 
www.hiddenvalleylakecsd.com 

 

MEMO 
To:                Board of Directors 

From:            Kirk Cloyd 

Date:             November 20, 2018 

RE:            General Manager’s Monthly Report 

 
Good evening.  The following report discusses items Hidden Valley Lake CSD 
completed over the past month and is intended to provide the Board and public with an 
update on the progression of projects. 
 
Water 
 

1. Staff is working with Aqua Metrology Systems to conduct a pilot study of their 
SafeGuard H2O system and hosted the Regional Water Quality Control Board to 
visit the site and attend an over view of the process. 

 
Sanitary Sewer 
 

1. Staff worked with Hardester’s Market inspecting the proposed temporary 
discharge point and issued a temporary discharge permit for the 21-gallon batch 
discharge containing gray water from the deli trailer stationed in front of the 
facility.  This intermittent discharge will be discontinued upon the rebuild of the 
Middletown Market; but not to exceed two years. 
 

Stormwater 
 

1. The CivicSpark Fellows AmeriCorps outreach project update:  Originally, Cal Fire 
Konocti Conservation Crew #27 would not conduct weed abatement and brush 
removal until after the first seasonal rains, however, they have scheduled to 
address weeds and brush along the north side of Putah Creek and within the 
stormwater detention basin November 28th and 29th.  Once this is completed, the 
coordinated efforts of staff and volunteers to consolidate the fallen debris into 
piles for chipping or burning can commence. 
 

Recycled Water 
 
Nothing to report. 
 
 
 
 



 
              

                                             

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
 

 

 

Hidden Valley Lake  
Community Services District 
 

19400 Hartmann Road 
Hidden Valley Lake, CA 95467 
707.987.9201 
707.987.3237 fax 
www.hiddenvalleylakecsd.com 

 
Finance  
 

1. The annual audit was conducted October 31st through November 2nd.  Initial 
review by the independent auditor appears to be favorable with improvements 
over previous year’s audits.  Once the final report is available, staff will schedule 
a representative from the auditing firm to attend a Board meeting to submit the 
final report and answer any questions the Board may have. 
 

2. The G.M. attended the RCAC Webinar:  “Budgeting” which indicated that the 
recent updates the District has made is well within the expectations and norms 
for special districts within the water and wastewater field. 
 

Information Technology 
 

The SCADA server at the RWRF experienced a catastrophic failure rendering it 
nonoperational.  Applied Technologies (AT) retrieved the server and took it to 
their facility in Redding where they were able to replace the hard drive and 
several other components.  Once operational, AT returned the server, reloaded 
the SCADA software and returned the system to operation. 
 

Human Resources 
 

1. An Annual evaluation was completed and the probationary evaluation for 
Brandon Bell was completed bringing him to full-time employee status.  Welcome 
aboard Brandon! 
 

2. District staff attended the CPR & First Aid review class.  Several staff members 
will attend the secondary class in Dec. as they will be out of the office at the 
IRWMG meeting representing the District or called to duty for the Camp Fire in 
Paradise, CA. 

 
Facilities 
 
Nothing to report. 
 
Vehicles & Equipment 
 

1. Staff worked with SDRMA, the local adjuster and auto body shop to coordinate 
repairs to Unit 3 (2016 Nissan Frontier) which is currently in the shop.  Staff is 
standing by to find out the expected completion date. 
 

General Information 
 

1. The General Manager attended CSDA’s 2018 Board Secretary/Clerk 
Conference.  A great deal of information was covered in the modules attended: 

 Developing and Implementing a Records Retention Schedule; 



 
              

                                             

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

3 
 

 

 

Hidden Valley Lake  
Community Services District 
 

19400 Hartmann Road 
Hidden Valley Lake, CA 95467 
707.987.9201 
707.987.3237 fax 
www.hiddenvalleylakecsd.com 

 
 Automating Your Records Program; 
 Preventing Violence; 
 How to Write for the Web etc.; 
 District Documentation – What to Look For; 
 FPPC Update:  Form 700 and Conflicts of Interest (it was nice to see that 

the District was in line with all rules and regulation to include gifting and 
vendor donations to a District Raffle at the District’s Holiday Luncheon; 

 Applying Internal Controls to Protect Your District from Fraud. 
It was determined that the District would greatly benefit from Penny Cuadras 
attending future such events hosted by the CSDA. 
 

2. The Oath of Office was administered to all staff as required of Civil 
Servants/Emergency Service Workers placing the District in compliance with the 
rules and regulations established by the California Constitution. 
 

3. Due to the catastrophic failure of the SCADA Dennis & the field staff worked 
through the holiday weekend to manually monitor the water and sewer systems 
on site.  This minor increase in O.T. is within the parameters of the budget at this 
time. 
 

4. Staff responded to PG&E’s insistence that they were going to shut power off due 
to high winds and fire danger in Lake County by staging rented generators at key 
points of use.  The District did not have the generators wired in as a cost 
reduction effort; and knowing the relatively short amount of time that the 
generators could be wired in should the need arise.  Power was to be shut off on 
the District’s lock-off day for the delinquent water users.  “IF” this would have 
occurred, staff would have removed the locks from the seven delinquent 
constituents so they would have had water and sewer service until the power 
was returned.  The District has 48 hours of normal use water stored in the tanks.  
 
Should PG&E make similar claims in the future (prior to the District having 
permanent stationary generators at the vulnerable sites) generators will only be 
ordered upon actual power loss.  It takes the rental company approx. 6 hours to 
mobilize the three generators needed and deliver them to our sites and an 
additional 3.5 hours to wire them in and have them operational.  This gives the 
District approx. 38.5 hours leeway should it be needed.  Additionally noted is that 
when power is down, the Admin. facility cannot take payments or conduct 
business. 

 
5. The District hosted the 2018 November General Elections.  This precinct showed 

the highest voter turnout to date. 
 
Emergency Preparedness 
 

1. Staff attended the monthly South Lake County Fire Safe Council Meeting.  Fire 
break maintenance and the success of the chipping program was discussed. 



 
              

                                             

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4 
 

 

 

Hidden Valley Lake  
Community Services District 
 

19400 Hartmann Road 
Hidden Valley Lake, CA 95467 
707.987.9201 
707.987.3237 fax 
www.hiddenvalleylakecsd.com 

 
2. In an effort to provide Internet redundancy during emergencies and outages, 

Applied Technology completed the radio link between the Admin. Building and 
the RWRF.  If Mediacom Internet goes down, the new system will automatically 
switch to the radio backup acquiring Internet from Verizon at the RWRF.  
Likewise, it the Verizon Internet is not available, the RWRF can obtain Internet 
service via the radio system and Mediacom at the Admin. Building. 
 

3. The G.M. attended the CSDA Webinar:  Disaster Planning. 
 

4. HVLCSD & the South Lake Fire Safe Council would like to jointly sponsor HVLA 
with the KCC #27 for the weed abatement of common properties not privately 
owned.  A letter of support will be drafted requesting Cal Fire consider this joint 
effort to provide a safer environment for all in the Hidden Valley Lake area while 
adding defensible space areas around District water tanks. 



Agenda Item # 11 

ACTION OF  

HIDDEN VALLEY LAKE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

DATE:  November 20, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM:  Discussion and Possible Approval:  Discuss bid proposals for the development of the LHMP 

and provisionally award; pending grant approval. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Find consensus with findings of the Finance Committee and staff research that Foster 

Morrison is the most qualified candidate for contract award. 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Since the award of contract will be provisional on award of grant funding, the following 

table depicts an accurate cost allocation. 

 

Cost to the District  CalOES/FEMA grant funding  Foster Morrison total project costs 

$22,400.00  $67,200.00  $89,600.00 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

BACKGROUND: A request for grant funding was submitted on September 4, 2018 to CalOES/FEMA to develop 

a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP). The LHMP is a pre‐requisite for any additional Hazard Mitigation Grant 

Program (HMGP) funding. In other words, our high priority projects such as tanks or tideflex, or generators 

cannot receive federal funding without an approved LHMP. The importance of the LHMP has prompted a 

search for consultants to assist in its development. As illustrated in the attached memo from staff to the 

Finance Committee, of the two proposals received from both Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, 

Inc. and Foster Morrison, Foster Morrison appears to be the most qualified applicant. 

 

Recently, a CalOES representative was able to provide feedback on the two applicants. Having had extensive 

experience in Hazard Mitigation and Emergency Services, she confirmed that Jeanine Foster and Chris 

Morrison were former employees/co‐owners of AMEC, currently known as Wood Environment & 

Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. Prior to the creation of Foster Morrison 8‐10 years ago, CalOES can confirm that 

LHMPs written by AMEC were spearheaded by Jeanine Foster. Upon discussing potential concerns over 

pricing, she did offer the insight that “you get what you pay for”. We are very thankful to have the support and 

guidance of CalOES to help streamline the LHMP development process, and have the utmost confidence in 

their experience and insight. 

 

 

 



    APPROVED          OTHER 

    AS RECOMMENDED        (SEE BELOW) 

 

Modification to recommendation and/or other actions: 

 

I, Kirk Cloyd, Secretary to the Board, do hereby certify that the foregoing action was regularly introduced, 

passed, and adopted by said Board of Directors at a regular board meeting thereof held on November 20, 

2018 by the following vote: 

 

Ayes: 

Noes: 

Abstain: 

Absent 

 

__________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

   



 
              

                                             

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 
   

  
November 8, 2018 
 
Re: Thoughts on two LHMP Proposals  
 
 
Finance Committee Members: 
 
Staff has completed its review of the two Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) proposals. 
While the “Foster Morrison Proposal” has a slightly higher price tag, there is an added value 
to this consulting firm.  
 
The financial difference between the two proposals for the District is $8,830. The “Wood 
Proposal” will cost the District $13,569., and the “Foster Morrison Proposal” will cost the 
District $22,400. 
 
While Wood has extensive experience in a broad range of states, counties, and jurisdictions, 
Foster Morrison has a more focused area of expertise in this state, this county, as well as 
single jurisdictions within this county. Foster Morrison facilitated Lake County’s LHMP, 
which was approved by CalOES/FEMA within two months of submittal. The expected 
review time after submittal is normally six months. Foster Morrison is uniquely qualified to 
help the District leverage the content of the county’s plan when building HVLCSD’s local 
plan. 
 
The plan approach of Foster Morrison as a boutique firm, is to see the document 
development through, from beginning to end. Wood takes a more modular, and hands-off 
approach. Each phase of Wood’s plan development is handled by a different team, but 
overseen by a project manager. Additionally, Wood provides most plan support remotely via 
teleconference, and SOPs.  In short, Foster Morrison provides on-site representation during 
the public outreach and planning of the plan while Wood’s approach burdens the District 
with this task.  Finally, Wood’s teaches the District how to write the LHMP and reviews it 
to better assure acceptance by CalOES.  This approach pulls staff from current assignments 
making it difficult for our small agency to complete necessary reports and required tasks 
while Foster Morrison would not add this additional burden to the current workload. 
 
In the project understanding section of each proposal, both firms summarize what they know 
about Hidden Valley Lake, and the hazards that present themselves in this area. While fires 
are clearly identified in both summaries, only Foster Morrison makes mention of the Valley 
Fire as well as the ensuing floods.  
 
We look forward to the Finance Committee’s recommendation for an award of contract on 
this work. 
 

Hidden Valley Lake  
Community Services District 
 

19400 Hartmann Road 
Hidden Valley Lake, CA 95467 
707.987.9201 
707.987.3237 fax 
www.hvlcsd.org 



 

 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 
November 5, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for: Prepared by: In Coordination With: 
Hidden Valley Lake Community 
Services District 
19400 Hartmann Road 
Hidden Valley Lake, CA 95467 

Foster Morrison Consulting 
5628 W Long Pl 
Littleton, CO 80123 

Howell Consulting 
12820 Rimfire Dr. 
Wilton, CA 95693 



   

Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  i 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

November 5, 2018 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

Alyssa Gordan, Water Resources Specialist 

19400 Hartmann Road 

Hidden Valley Lake, California 95467 

Re:  Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District: RFP for Development of a Local Hazard 

Mitigation Plan 

Ms. Gordan: 

Foster Morrison Consulting, Ltd. (Foster Morrison), in conjunction with Howell Consulting, Inc., is pleased to 

submit this scope of work, proposed budget, project team, and summary of qualifications for a Hidden Valley 

Lake Community Services District (HVLCSD) Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP).  The Foster Morrison 

team brings a unique understanding of the mitigation planning needs of the District.  Foster Morrison’s proposed 

project manager and lead planner proposed for this HVLCSD LHMP project were the project manager and 

primary planner for the development of the recent Lake County’s 2018 LHMP Update and are in process with 

LHMPs for both the Cities of Clearlake and Lakeport.  As well, Howell Consulting, part of this proposed Foster 

Morrison team, was also instrumental in the development of the Lake County LHMP Update and is on our team 

for the City plans.  Note:  the recent Lake County LHMP Update developed by this same Foster Morrison team 

was reviewed and approved by both Cal OES and FEMA in just over two months with no requests for revisions. 

The Foster Morrison team proposed for this LHMP project have been developing hazard mitigation plans and 

plan updates for nearby California communities over the last twelve years including Lake County, Colusa County, 

Sacramento County, Nevada County, Placer County, Butte County, Amador County, Sutter County, Calaveras 

County, Madera County, Modoc County, numerous California cities and districts, and the recently approved Los 

Angeles Unified School District.  Our proposed Project Manager and Lead Planner for this LHMP have worked 

together as a team doing mitigation plans for all of the aforementioned cities and counties.  In fact, Foster 

Morrison staff have completed two planning cycles for numerous California communities and three planning 

cycles for two large California counties (Placer and Sacramento) – all Federal Emergency Management Agency 

(FEMA)-approved.  In addition, Foster Morrison has been teaming with Howell Consulting on several of these 

California hazard mitigation planning projects.  As a result of these planning efforts, many of these communities 

have been successful in obtaining pre- and post-disaster grant funds for various projects identified in their LHMP 

mitigation strategies. 

Foster Morrison team’s extensive mitigation planning experience in California combined with their in-depth 

knowledge of the California regulatory environment, area-specific hazards, and customized plan development 

process translates to added value to the District.  By utilizing the Foster Morrison team, the HVLCSD will receive 

an LHMP that is customized to meet the specific needs of the District, is clear and action oriented, and will enable 

HVLCSD to become eligible for FEMA and state mitigation and disaster recovery funds.  Our team’s expertise 

and working relationships with the California Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) and FEMA Region IX 

also assist our clients with navigating all aspects of FEMA programs from disaster preparedness to mitigation and 

grant applications to post disaster response and recovery. 

We are committed to providing the HVLCSD with an LHMP that is approved by Cal OES and FEMA and 

contains a comprehensive mitigation strategy that is designed to reduce hazard losses and make the District more 

disaster resistant.  



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  ii 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at your convenience.  We look forward to working with 

the District on this project. 

Sincerely,  

 
Jeanine Foster, JD 

Principal/Senior Project Manager 

Foster Morrison Consulting, Ltd. 

Jeanine.foster@fostermorrison.com 

(303) 717-7171 

mailto:Jeanine.foster@fostermorrison.com


Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  iii 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Table of Contents 

1.  Introduction:  The Foster Morrison Team ........................................................................................................ 1 

Foster Morrison Consulting, Ltd. ....................................................................................................................... 1 

Hazard Mitigation ................................................................................................................................................ 1 

Hazard Mitigation Planning ................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Floodplain Management/NFIP’s Community Rating System (CRS) ........................................................................... 3 

Risk Assessment and DFIRM Experience .......................................................................................................................... 3 

Other FEMA Programs ........................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Foster Morrison Team Contact and Locations .................................................................................................................. 4 

Sub-consultant: Howell Consulting, Inc. ............................................................................................................ 4 

Howell Consulting:  The Company ...................................................................................................................................... 4 

2.  Project Team and Management ......................................................................................................................... 5 

Team Capacity, Availability, and Ability to Perform ...................................................................................................... 9 

Project Management ................................................................................................................................................................ 9 

3.  Foster Morrison Team’s Experience ................................................................................................................. 9 

Client References ................................................................................................................................................ 12 

4.  Project Understanding, Approach, and Scope of Work ................................................................................ 13 

Project Understanding ....................................................................................................................................... 13 

Project Approach ................................................................................................................................................ 14 

Senate Bill 379 ........................................................................................................................................................................15 

Project Goals and Benefits ...................................................................................................................................................15 

Scope of Work ..................................................................................................................................................... 16 

Phase I: LHMP Planning/Development Process .............................................................................................................16 

Phase II: Risk Assessment....................................................................................................................................................18 

Phase III: Develop Mitigation Strategy (Plan) ................................................................................................................20 

Phase IV: Plan Maintenance Process .................................................................................................................................21 

Project Schedule ................................................................................................................................................. 22 

5.  Project Cost ........................................................................................................................................................ 24 

Cost and Schedule Controls ............................................................................................................................... 26 

Appendix A. Resumes .................................................................................................................................... A-1 

 



   

Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  1 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

1.  Introduction:  The Foster Morrison Team 

This section provides an overview of the proposed Foster Morrison team comprised of Foster Morrison 

Consulting (Prime Consultant) and Howell Consulting (Subconsultant).  Foster Morrison and Howell Consulting 

have teamed to provide the HVLCSD with the expertise, experience, locale, and customer service necessary to 

successfully execute the proposed scope of services for a FEMA-approved LHMP.   

Foster Morrison Consulting, Ltd. 

Foster Morrison Consulting, Ltd. (Foster Morrison) is an emergency management consulting firm with staff 

expertise and experience encompassing all aspects of FEMA programs - from disaster preparedness to mitigation 

and grant applications to post-disaster response and recovery.  Specializing in 

Hazard Mitigation Planning, Foster Morrison develops Hazard Mitigation Plans 

and Plan Updates that meet the requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act 

(DMA) of 2000 as well as the planning requirements of the Flood Mitigation 

Assistance (FMA) program and the National Flood Insurance Program’s (NFIP) 

Community Rating System (CRS).  Our focus is developing FEMA-approved, 

customized mitigation plans for communities that enable participating 

jurisdictions to be eligible for FEMA mitigation funds and includes 

comprehensive mitigation strategies designed to reduce hazard-related losses, 

enhance community capabilities, and make a community better able to respond 

and recover when disasters occur.  Foster Morrison staff have been working 

together as a planning team for the last ten years developing hazard mitigation plans for clients around the 

country.  Key geographic areas of expertise include California, Colorado, and Mississippi.  Formed in 2014, 

Foster Morrison, a limited liability corporation, is registered and licensed to do business in the State of California 

and is also registered and in good standing with the Federal Procurement System for Award Management (SAM).  

Foster Morrison is a small boutique firm that employs two full time planners and contracts with our GIS/mapping 

consultant to support the risk assessment portion of our planning projects.  Other contract employees include 

Brenna Howell and her contract staff with Howell Consulting.  

Hazard Mitigation  

Hazard mitigation and mitigation planning is a primary focus area of Foster Morrison.  Foster Morrison staff 

experience and expertise in hazard mitigation planning dates back to 2003 shortly after DMA 2000 (Public Law 

106-390) amended the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act by repealing the 

previous mitigation planning provisions and replacing them with a new set of requirements that emphasize the 

need for state, local, and tribal entities to closely coordinate mitigation planning and implementation efforts.  

DMA 2000 established a requirement for local governments to have a FEMA-approved, DMA-compliant plan in 

place by November 2004 in order to maintain eligibility for certain pre- and post- disaster grant funding.   

In addition to developing mitigation plans for numerous local jurisdictions throughout California, Foster Morrison 

staff have significant experience working with clients in all aspects of mitigation.  This includes identifying and 

developing mitigation projects based on community risks and vulnerability; developing grant applications and 

securing funding for identified projects; conducting Benefit-Cost Analyses (BCAs) and workshops to support 

competitive grant applications; supporting Environmental and Historic Preservation (EHP) project clearances; and 

providing project management and grant administration services for project implementation. 

Hazard Mitigation Planning 

Foster Morrison’s experience and qualifications for providing the HVLCSD with a FEMA-approved, 

DMA-compliant LHMP is unequalled.  Foster Morrison staff have developed hazard mitigation plans for clients 



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  2 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

in 15 states and 7 FEMA Regions, including Region IX, providing coverage for hundreds of jurisdictions.  Foster 

Morrison proposed staff for this LHMP project have been working with nearby California communities 

developing their hazard mitigation plans and plan updates since 2003.  These DMA planning efforts have 

included two DMA planning cycles for multiple California communities, and three DMA planning cycles for two 

large California counties (Sacramento and Placer Counties) providing FEMA-approved plans and coverage for 

numerous participating jurisdictions.  Whether a single or multijurisdictional effort or a rural or urban 

environment, each of these plans were customized to meet the individual needs of each participating community 

while ensuring Cal OES and FEMA approval.   

See Table 1 for an overall summary of Foster Morrison staff mitigation planning experience.   

Table 1 Foster Morrison Staff Mitigation LHMP Planning Experience 

FEMA Region IX FEMA Region IV, V, VI, and VII FEMA Region VIII 

Amador County, CA City of Bay St. Louis, MS Big Horn County, MT 

Butte County, CA  City of Long Beach, MS Boulder County, CO 

Calaveras County Water District, CA City of Moss Point, MS Carbon County, MT 

Calaveras County, CA City of Pascagoula, MS City of Boulder, CO  

City of Azusa, CA City of Waveland, MS Jefferson County, CO 

City of Clearlake Pearl River County, MS Liberty County, MT 

City of Fullerton, CA Dane County, WI Northeast Colorado Regional Hazard 
Mitigation Plan (10 counties) 

City of Lakeport State of Arkansas 
Southeast Colorado Regional Hazard 
Mitigation Plan (6 counties) 

City of Piedmont Bossier City, LA State of Colorado 

City of San Rafael Chavez County/Roswell, NM State of South Dakota  

City of Vacaville Los Alamos County, NM Teton County, MT 

Colusa County, CA State of Missouri Toole County, MT 

Fresno County, CA State of Mississippi University of Colorado at Boulder, CO 

Kern County, CA  Ute Mountain Ute Tribe, CO 

Lake County, CA   

Los Angeles Unified School District   

Madera County   

Modoc County, CA   

Nevada County, CA   

Placer County, CA    

Sacramento County, CA   

Sutter County, CA   

Washoe County, NV   

 

All of these planning projects required extensive research, analyses, and distillation of large amounts of hazard 

and community related data as well as the development, facilitation, and presentation of public outreach programs 

to a wide variety of stakeholders.  The Foster Morrison team’s extensive hazard mitigation planning experience 

developing FEMA-approved LHMPs throughout California and other FEMA regions brings this expertise to all of 

our planning projects. 



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  3 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Floodplain Management/NFIP’s Community Rating System (CRS)  

Historically, people have been attracted to developing in and around waterways for a variety of reasons.  Sound 

floodplain management practices implemented at the local level are a key factor in reducing flood-related losses 

in a community in these flood-prone areas.  The NFIP is a federal program created to mitigate future flood losses 

through community-enforced building and zoning ordinances and to provide protection for property owners 

against potential losses through flood insurance.  The NFIP’s CRS is a voluntary program that recognizes 

community floodplain management activities that exceed the minimum NFIP requirements.  The incentive behind 

the CRS program is to provide discounted insurance premiums to community residents as a result of 

implementing a floodplain management program that encourages a comprehensive approach to reduce flood 

losses.  Foster Morrison staff provide floodplain management and CRS expertise to clients to assist in enhancing 

their floodplain management programs, including developing hazard mitigation plans that maximize CRS credit 

points.  The end result is helping clients achieve a lower CRS class which ultimately reduces the cost of flood 

insurance to community residents, both within and outside of designated Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHAs).  

Most recently this has included helping flood-prone communities in California, Colorado, and Mississippi 

maximize their CRS credits under CRS Activity 510 in accordance with the new 2013 (now 2017) CRS 

Coordinator’s Manual.  In fact, several recent plans developed by Foster Morrison staff have developed 

DMA/CRS compliant plans to the most current CRS schedule, scoring among the highest CRS credits in the 

nation for this activity.   

Risk Assessment and DFIRM Experience 

Foster Morrison staff have conducted risk assessments as part of state, local, and tribal hazard mitigation 

planning.  The risk assessment is the fundamental basis of mitigation and mitigation planning.  It is the process 

that documents the problems that are unique to each participating jurisdiction.  

There are three interrelated portions to the approach Foster Morrison takes when 

developing a risk assessment: (1) hazard identification, (2) vulnerability 

assessment, and (3) capability assessment.  

Together, the hazard identification and vulnerability assessment paint the 

picture of the hazards that could occur in a jurisdiction, and then assesses each 

hazard’s historic impacts and potential future impacts on populations, property, 

and critical facilities and infrastructure.  The capability assessment then 

measures this vulnerability against programs, policies, procedures, and plans 

that are already in place in the jurisdiction that can reduce the effects of these hazards.  The end result of this 

analysis is the identification of additional mitigation strategies that build upon the community’s existing 

capabilities. 

Foster Morrison staff experience with state, local, and tribal risk assessments includes: 

➢ Creating and analyzing GIS-based risk assessments for dam failure, flood, earthquake, landslide, wildfire, and 

other natural and man-made hazards 

➢ Developing vulnerability analysis methods using GIS: centroid method, proportionate division, Access 

queries, raster analysis, and annualized loss calculations to support detailed damage/loss estimates by 

jurisdiction 

➢ Experience with Level 1 and 2 Hazus (FEMA’s loss estimation software) analysis, FEMA’s GIS-based loss-

estimation tool, for earthquake and flood hazards, including DFIRM integration for Hazus flood analysis 

➢ Creating accurate flood loss estimations by applying FEMA’s NFIP depth-damage relationship curves, as 

used in FEMA’s benefit cost software modules 

➢ Conducting detailed inventories of community assets, including an inventory of natural, historic, and cultural 

resources and key critical and public facilities and infrastructure 



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  4 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

➢ Developing high quality maps and tables for displaying hazards, vulnerabilities, and loss estimates by 

jurisdiction 

➢ Conducting exhaustive research in each jurisdiction to inventory and document all existing capabilities to 

mitigate and reduce the impacts of identified hazards 

Other FEMA Programs 

Hazard mitigation planning is the foundation for identifying and developing sound hazard mitigation projects for 

implementation by communities.  Hazard mitigation projects are essential for ensuring that at-risk community 

assets are stronger and more resilient for the next severe storm event or natural disaster.  FEMA provides 

mitigation funding support primarily through four pre- and post-disaster programs:  the Pre-Disaster Mitigation 

(PDM) program, Public Assistance (PA) Section 406 Mitigation, the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), 

and the Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) program.  Foster Morrison can provide the full-range of mitigation 

services, in addition to planning, from grant applications and Benefit-Cost Analysis (BCAs), to project 

implementation and grants management for communities following a disaster as part of Section 406 Mitigation 

and as part of FEMA’s PDM, HMGP, and FMA Programs.   

Foster Morrison Team Contact and Locations 

The Foster Morrison team’s proposed Project Manager, company name and primary office location and contact 

information for the project is: 

Jeanine Foster, JD 

Principal/Sr. Project Manager 

Foster Morrison Consulting, Ltd. 

5628 West Long Place 

Littleton, CO 80123 

Jeanine.foster@fostermorrison.com 

Phone: (303) 717-7171 

Other office locations that will be supporting the project include: 

Foster Morrison Consulting, Ltd 

6095 Zang Way 

Arvada, Colorado 80004 

(303) 717-7171 

Howell Consulting Inc. 

12820 Rimfire Drive  

Wilton, CA  95693  

(916) 202-2635  
 

Jeanine Foster, as Principal of the firm and signatory to this submittal, has authority to bind the firm in an 

agreement with the HVLCSD should we be awarded this contract.  We have reviewed the project requirements, 

contract terms and other terms and conditions specified in this RFP and agree to comply with all terms in full.  

This proposal remains valid for 90 days after receipt. 

Sub-consultant: Howell Consulting, Inc. 

Foster Morrison is teaming with Howell Consulting as a sub-consultant to this effort.  Howell Consulting will be 

taking the lead on the QA/QC efforts associated with LHMP development.  Howell Consulting will also support 

other tasks, as needed, to meet client requirements and project deadlines.  A brief overview of Howell Consulting 

is provided below.  

Howell Consulting:  The Company 

Howell Consulting, Inc. (Howell Consulting) is an S-Corporation, founded in 2007 and based in Wilton, 

California.  Brenna Howell, with comprehensive emergency management expertise, is the owner and primary 

employee of this small, specialized firm and is supported by several contract staff, that includes planners, 



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  5 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

engineers, and GIS expertise.  Full and contracted part-time staff have more than 50 years of experience in the 

emergency management field that comprises over 20 years at the State level, 15 years at the County level, and 

many years working at the city level combined.  Howell Consulting offers a full range of planning, mitigation, 

preparedness; response and recovery consulting services to better prepare organizations before and after disaster 

strikes.  Howell offers both pre- and post-disaster services including the review and updating of emergency 

response plans, business continuity and hazard mitigation plans, risk analysis, hazards and vulnerabilities 

identification, and emergency communications plans.  Howell Consulting also provides on-site staffing and 

assistance during actual disasters or emergency situations.  Finally, through strategic partnerships, Howell 

Consulting is able to assess needs and prescribe appropriate emergency management trends such as the latest 

planning grant requirements and planning guidance.  

Howell Consulting has over 20 years of experience providing emergency management services to numerous 

northern California counties and cities.  Specifically, for the recent Lake County LHMP, Howell Consulting 

provided QA/QC, and project support on other LHMP Update tasks in a variety of areas.  In addition to Lake 

County, Howell Consulting has also been working with Foster Morrison in the development of several California 

LHMPs and LHMP Updates: Cities of Clearlake and Lakeport, Colusa County, Nevada County, City of 

Piedmont, and the Los Angeles Unified School District.  Other LHMPs and LHMP Updates developed by Howell 

Consulting include Merced County, Kings County, Yolo County, Yuba County, and the City of West Sacramento.   

2.  Project Team and Management 

Foster Morrison’s hazard mitigation planning staff is uniquely experienced, knowledgeable, and qualified 

to develop an LHMP for the HVLCSD – our proposed project team staff just recently completed the now 

FEMA-approved LHMP Update for Lake County and is in process with LHMPs for the Cities of Clearlake 

and Lakeport.  Foster Morrison team staff have been involved over the last twelve years in the 

development of numerous local hazard mitigation plans for California communities, including our multiple 

planning efforts in nearby northern California communities.  All of our staff have been involved in the 

development of numerous local hazard mitigation plans and plan updates that meet DMA, FMA, and CRS 

planning requirements and are uniquely knowledgeable of the hazards in northern California and associated 

mitigation strategies designed to reduce hazard-related losses.  As well, the Foster Morrison team staff have a 

strong working relationship with Cal OES and FEMA Region IX.   

The proposed project organizational chart is provided below in Figure 1 followed by our proposed staffing plan.  

Specifically, for each person identified as key staff for this project, a discussion of their project role is provided 

followed by a brief summary of qualifications.  Resumes for key personnel are included in Appendix A.   



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  6 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Figure 1 Foster Morrison Team for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 
LHMP 

 

Jeanine Foster, JD - Principal/Project Manager/Senior Mitigation Planner  

Project Role 

Jeanine Foster, JD will be the project manager and senior mitigation planner for this effort and take the lead role 

in project management, community engagement, planning process and meeting facilitation, coordination of risk 

assessment and mitigation strategy tasks, and drafting the plan document.  She will be the primary point of 

contact with the HVLCSD throughout the project and will facilitate all HMPC and public meetings identified in 

the scope of work.  As a Principal and key technical lead for Foster Morrison’s Hazard Mitigation Planning 

program, Jeanine is committed to providing her clients with hands-on communications and project support 

necessary to ensure a high-quality end product to meet client and community objectives.   

Summary of Qualifications 

Jeanine Foster is a co-owner of Foster Morrison Consulting and plays a key role as principal, project manager, 

and senior mitigation specialist.  She has diverse experience providing project management, mitigation planning, 

and disaster recovery services in response to damages caused by a variety of natural hazard events, including 

flood and wildfire, to affected communities, with a focus on cities and counties located in California, Colorado, 

and Mississippi.  Jeanine’s responsibilities include project management; hazard mitigation planning; disaster 

recovery; grant application development, including benefit-cost analysis (BCAs); environmental and historic 



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  7 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

preservation compliance, grant administration, agency coordination; National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) 

Community Rating System (CRS) compliance; Floodplain Management Services; regulatory compliance; and 

marketing. She works closely with clients to define project direction and scope; to identify and pursue grant 

opportunities; to implement and administer projects funded through a variety of grant resources: and to ensure 

compliance with applicable regulatory programs such as FEMA’s Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) and NFIP’s 

CRS program.  These responsibilities have entailed working with the Federal Emergency Management Agency 

(FEMA), the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), Army Corp of Engineers (USACE), 

State Emergency Management Agencies and Water Resources Agencies, and local city and county officials to 

obtain grant funding and to execute and manage projects from startup to final project closeout. Her expertise 

includes:  Project Management; Hazard Mitigation and Emergency Management Planning and Disaster Recovery; 

Floodplain Management Services/NFIP’s CRS Program Compliance; and Regulatory/ Environmental 

Compliance.  Jeanine has a JD from the University of Denver and a BA from the University of Colorado, 

Boulder. 

Chris Morrison, MPA, CFM – Lead Planner and Technical Editor 

Project Role 

Chris, as the lead mitigation planner on this project, will take the lead in the data collection, the risk assessment 

research, and plan development and will work closely with the project team to integrate data collected throughout 

the process into the plan document.  He will also be responsible for providing technical editing support and 

overall document production.  

Summary of Qualifications 

Chris is a co-owner of Foster Morrison Consulting and is the Lead Mitigation Planner/Technical Editor for Foster 

Morrison.  During the past 8 years, he has provided planning, research, writing, technical editing, and document 

production expertise to over 40 different DMA plans for jurisdictions in Arkansas, California, Colorado, 

Louisiana, Mississippi, Missouri, Montana, Nevada, New Mexico, South Dakota, Virginia, Wisconsin, and 

Wyoming.  Recently he has been a key mitigation planner on California Hazard Mitigation Plans for the cities of 

Clearlake, Azusa, Fullerton, Piedmont, San Rafael, and Vacaville, the Los Angeles Unified School District, as 

well as Lake County, Colusa County, Madera County, Nevada County, Amador County, Butte County, Calaveras 

County, the Calaveras County Water District, Kern County, Modoc County, Placer County, Sacramento County, 

and Sutter County.  Chris is a certified floodplain manager and has completed a Masters in Public Administration 

from Minnesota State University – Moorhead.   

Alejandro Gutierrez – GIS Analyst 

Project Role 

Alejandro will assist in the risk and vulnerability assessment and take the lead in the GIS analysis.  He will 

identify and collect all GIS and risk assessment data, will assist in the development of the risk assessment, and 

will create the plan maps, analysis tables, and associated methodologies using GIS, Hazus, and other tools.   

Summary of Qualifications 

Alejandro has 16 years of GIS data development, analysis, conversion, and manipulation within various GIS 

industries (floodplain mapping, E-911 data development, remote sensing, hydrogeology, and mining).  For 6 

years, Alejandro worked in a key capacity with FEMA on their Map Modernization (DFIRM) Program.  As a GIS 

Project Manager, Production Manager, and GIS Analyst for the development of 27 county-wide vector- and 

ortho-based DFIRMs in FEMA Regions III, V, VII, and VIII, he developed a strong team/work environment, 

trained staff in production techniques, tracked budgets and schedules, and has traveled to study areas to 

coordinate public outreach meetings.  Alejandro has also provided mitigation planning and GIS support for 

multiple California DMA plan updates: Calaveras, Fresno, Lake, Colusa, Modoc, Madera, Nevada, Placer, 



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  8 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Sacramento, and Sutter counties, as well as for the cities of San Rafael and Azusa, and the Los Angeles Unified 

School District.   For the DMA plans, he generated thematic and illustrative facilities and hazards maps, both at 

the countywide and city scales, to represent FIRM data and to quantify risks to the county using parcel and 

assessor’s value data.  He also generated the standardized map template to present the wildfire risk analysis, also 

at the parcel level, using GIS data from the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection.  He has used 

the ESRI tools and Microsoft Access to perform flood analysis using FIRM data on parcels (land use type and 

valuation data) by city and performed the wildfire analysis using the same methodology. Alejandro has a 

bachelor’s in Environmental Resource Management.   

Brenna Howell – Planning Process, Risk Assessment, and Mitigation Strategy Support, 
QA/QC 

Project Role 

Brenna will provide support to the planning process, risk assessment, and mitigation strategy tasks.  This will 

include assisting with the development of the hazard profiles and vulnerability assessment for identified hazards 

and meeting facilitation support for Planning Team and Public Meetings.  She will also assist with the 

development of a capability assessment and will provide support to the development of the District’s mitigation 

strategy.  In addition, Brenna will provide quality assurance and quality control (QA/AC) during all phases of the 

project and will ensure that the plan meets all Cal OES and FEMA mitigation plan review tool requirements 

before it is submitted for agency review. 

Summary of Qualifications 

Brenna Howell, of Howell Consulting, has almost 20 years of consulting experience with the last 10 years focused 

on development of local Emergency Operations Plans, local Hazard Mitigation Plans, and hazard-specific 

functional annexes (including Floods) specifically for California local government jurisdictions.  She has 

performed such work for Colusa, Kings, Merced, Nevada, Sacramento, Sutter, Yolo, and Yuba counties.  Brenna 

has also completed work for multiple cities such as Winters, Woodland, West Sacramento, Davis, Sacramento, 

Chico, Piedmont, Los Banos, Avenal, and Hanford.  Brenna has served as the Emergency Services Coordinator 

for the cities of Stockton and West Sacramento, as well as the County of Yolo providing full emergency 

management program management responsibilities.  Brenna is currently serving as the Sutter County Emergency 

Manager on an interim basis.  In addition, Howell Consulting worked on the LHMP Update with Foster Morrison 

on the recent Lake County LHMP Update Project and is in process with the Cities of Clearlake and Lakeport.  

Foster Morrison Team Strengths 

➢ Development of the recent FEMA-approved Lake County LHMP Update; in-process with development of 

LHMPs for the Cities of Clearlake and Lakeport 

➢ Experience and familiarity with local agencies and personalities in Lake County 

➢ Demonstrated experience developing FEMA-approved single and multi-jurisdictional LHMPs for numerous 

California communities 

➢ Detailed knowledge of FEMA (DMA, FMA, CRS) and state planning requirements and guidance and strong 

working relationship with Cal OES and FEMA Region IX. 

➢ Knowledge of northern California hazards and risks, past disaster history, local governments, and data 

sources.  

➢ Extensive experience developing and portraying hazard risk assessment studies supported by Hazus and GIS.  

➢ Emphasis on a strong planning process that includes high levels of public, community, and stakeholder 

involvement and strong meeting facilitation. 

➢ Experience leveraging hazard mitigation funding for our clients. 

➢ Experience with grant application development, grant management, and EHP clearances for FEMA funded 

projects. 



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  9 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Team Capacity, Availability, and Ability to Perform 

The Foster Morrison team fully meets all the requirements necessary for providing high quality hazard mitigation 

planning services for the HVLCSD.  Our team has a proven track record in providing clients with responsive and 

timely service to meet project objectives, schedules and changing work needs.  We are committed to working on 

the District’s LHMP project and will make staff available to complete work associated with this project in a 

timely fashion.  As small businesses, the Foster Morrison team has great flexibility in scheduling of work and will 

make staff available to complete any work associated with this proposal in a timely fashion while ensuring all 

project objectives are met and delivery of a high-quality work product.  At particular stages of the project, 

individual team members will be required to devote a substantial part of their effort to the work, perhaps even 

100% of their capacity, at other times, project demands on individuals will be less.  Additional planning staff from 

both Foster Morrison and Howell Consulting can also be called upon as needed to expand resources, as we have 

done together as a team on numerous recent LHMP projects.  Managing the variable and competing demands of 

many projects is a natural and necessary part of the Foster Morrison team’s practice and is something that we 

have done successfully since our inception.  The anticipated volume of work from this contract is well within our 

team’s capacity to execute efficiently and effectively.  The Foster Morrison team commits our team and resources 

to the District for this LHMP project, and will deliver the LHMP both on schedule and within the budget. 

Project Management 

The Foster Morrison team fully meets the requirements for providing the HVLCSD with a FEMA-approved 

LHMP.  We are committed to managing this LHMP to meet the project scope, schedule, and budget.  Jeanine 

Foster, the proposed project manager for this project, will provide the project management and project 

administration for this LHMP.  This will include coordination meetings, communications, and monthly progress 

reports pertaining to the work, budget, and schedule.  Regular communication and close coordination with the 

HVLCSD will be paramount to the successful and timely completion of this LHMP.  

3.  Foster Morrison Team’s Experience 

This section provides a summary of Foster Morrison staff LHMP and LHMP Update projects in California, both 

completed and ongoing, within the last five years. The following projects were all managed by Jeanine Foster 

and performed by the key staff identified in primary roles for the development of this HVLCSD LHMP.  

This list includes seven recent LHMP projects working with Howell Consulting:  City of Clearlake, City of 

Lakeport, Lake County, Colusa County, Nevada County, City of Piedmont, and the Los Angeles Unified School 

District. 

Project Description for Table 2 Projects 

All of the California projects detailed in Table 2 were completed in accordance with DMA, FMA and CRS 

planning process requirements and guidance which incorporates a 10-step process into four phases:  1) LHMP 

Planning/Development Process, 2) Risk Assessment, 3) Mitigation Strategy, and 4) Plan Implementation and 

Maintenance.  Execution of the 10-step process for each of these mitigation planning projects resulted in FEMA-

approved plans customized to meet the needs of each community.  The plan development process and resulting 

plans include:  data-driven risk assessments; previous mitigation projects and successes; comprehensive 

mitigation strategies; development and coordination of public outreach and stakeholder engagement programs; 

facilitation of planning team and public meetings; and a thorough, systematic, and fully documented planning 

process.  All of the completed plans were reviewed and approved by the state and FEMA with no or minimal 

requests for revisions.  Other identified plans are either in-development or in Cal OES or FEMA review.  Table 2 

details Foster Morrison staff completed and in-process California LHMP and LHMP Updates within the last five 

years.   



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  10 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Table 2 Foster Morrison Staff Hazard Mitigation California Planning Experience since 2013 

Project Name City of Lakeport, CA Local Hazard Mitigation Plan – In Process 

Organization City of Lakeport Public Works, 591 Martin St, Lakeport, CA 95453 

Contact Information Michell Humphrey, (707) 263-3578; mailto:mhumphrey@cityoflakeport.com 

Project Description Single-jurisdictional DMA plan 

Plan Duration* 

--Development Time 

--Agency Review 

TBD – In planning stages 
11 months 
TBD – In process 

Contract Value/Cost $92,000/Just starting 

Project Name City of Clearlake, CA Local Hazard Mitigation Plan – In Process 

Organization City of Clearlake Planning Department, 14050 Olympic Dr, Clearlake, CA 95422 

Contact Information Adeline Brown, (707) 994-8201 x341; mailto:abrown@clearlake.ca.us 

Project Description Single-jurisdictional DMA plan 

Plan Duration* 

--Development Time 

--Agency Review 

TBD – In planning stages 
10 months 
TBD – In process 

Contract Value/Cost 92,000/In process 

Project Name City of Piedmont, CA Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update – In Process 

Organization City of Piedmont Planning Department, 120 Vista Ave, Piedmont, CA 94611 

Contact Information Chris Yeager, Assistant Planner; (510) 420-3039; cyeager@piedmont.ca.gov 

Project Description Single-jurisdictional DMA plan 

Plan Duration* 

--Development Time 

--Agency Review 

TBD – In planning stages 
8 months 
TBD – In process 

Contract Value/Cost $62,500/In process 

Project Name Colusa County, CA Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update – In Final Stages 

Organization Colusa County Sheriff’s Office, Office of Emergency Services, 929 Bridge St, Colusa, CA 95932 

Contact Information Janice Bell – OES Technician, (530) 458-0218; jbell@colusasheriff.com 

Project Description Multi-jurisdictional DMA Plan; County and 2 incorporated communities 

Plan Duration* 

--Development Time 

--Agency Review 

TBD – In final stages 
10 months 
TBD – In process 

Contract Value/Cost $99,876/In-final stages 

Project Name 
Los Angeles Unified School District, CA Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update – FEMA-Approved 
(2018) 

Organization 
Los Angeles Unified School District, Office of Environmental Health and Safety, 333 South Beaudry Avenue, 
Los Angeles, CA 90017 

Contact Information Bill Piazza - Environmental Assessment Coordinator, (213) 241-2576; bill.piazza@lausd.net 

Project Description Single-jurisdictional DMA Plan 

Plan Duration* 

--Development Time 

--Agency Review 

12 months  
10 months  
2 months  

Contract Value/Cost $148,982/$148,982 



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  11 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Project Name Lake County, CA Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update– FEMA-Approved (2018) 

Organization Lake County Office of Emergency Services, 1220 Martin Street, Lakeport, CA 95453 

Contact Information Dale Carnathan – Emergency Services Manager, 707-263-3450; dale.carnathan@lakecountyca.gov  

Project Description Single-jurisdictional DMA Plan 

Plan Duration* 

--Development Time 

--Agency Review 

11 months 
9 months 
2 months 

Contract Value/Cost $97,251/$97,251 

Project Name City of Azusa, CA Local Hazard Mitigation Plan – In final stages 

Organization City of Azusa Planning Division, 213 E. Foothill Blvd., Azusa, CA 91702 

Contact Information Kurt Christiansen – Assistant Planner, (626) 812-5236; kchristiansen@ci.azusa.ca.us 

Project Description Single-jurisdictional DMA Plan 

Plan Duration* 

--Development Time 

--Agency Review 

TBD – In final stages 
11 months – In final stages 
TBD – In final stages (Project on client hold for 12+ months) 

Contract Value/Cost $74,031/In-final process - $74,031 will reflect final cost 

Project Name Madera County, CA Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update– FEMA-Approved (2018) 

Organization Madera County Sheriff’s Office, 2725 Falcon Dr, Madera, CA 93637 

Contact Joseph Wilder - Sergeant 

Contact Information (559)-675-7770; jwilder@co.madera.ca.gov 

Project Description Multi-jurisdictional DMA Plan; County, 2 incorporated communities and 1 Tribe 

Plan Duration* 

--Development Time 

--Agency Review 

13 months 
7 months 
6 months 

Contract Value/Cost $109,237/$112,500 (to include contract mod for additional work) 

Project Name Nevada County, CA Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update– FEMA-Approved (2018) 

Organization Nevada County Office of Emergency Services, 10014 N Bloomfield Rd, Nevada City, CA 95959 

Contact Information John Gulserian – Program Manager, (530) 265-1515; John.Gulserian@co.nevada.ca.us 

Project Description Multi-jurisdictional DMA Plan; County, 3 incorporated communities and 3 special districts 

Plan Duration* 

--Development Time 

--Agency Review 

13 months 
7 months 
6 months 

Contract Value/Cost $97,920/$97,920 

Project Name City of San Rafael, CA Local Hazard Mitigation Plan – FEMA Approved (2017) 

Organization City of San Rafael Fire Department, 1039 C St, San Rafael, CA 94901 

Contact Information Robert Sinnott – Deputy Chief, (415) 485-3304, Robert.Sinnott@cityofsanrafael.org 

Project Description Single- jurisdictional DMA Plan 

Plan Duration 

--Development Time 

--Agency Review 

13 months  
 8 months 
 5 months 

Contract Value/Cost $69,660/69,656.67 



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  12 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Project Name Modoc County, CA Local Hazard Mitigation Plan – FEMA Approved (2016) 

Organization Modoc County Office of Emergency Services, 102 South Court Alturas, CA 96101 

Contact Information A.J. McQuarrie - Deputy Director, (530)233-4416; ajm@modocsheriff.us 

Project Description Multi-jurisdictional DMA Plan; County and 1 incorporated community 

Plan Duration* 

--Development Time 

--Agency Review 

19 months (Total Duration Kickoff to Final FEMA Approval Pending Adoption) 
11 months 
8 months 

Contract Value/Cost $69,832/$69,832 

Project Name 
Sacramento County, CA Local Hazard Mitigation Plan – Original Plan and 2 Plan Updates - FEMA 
Approved (2005, 2011, 2016) 

Organization 
Sacramento County Department of Water Resources, 827 7th St #301, Sacramento, CA 95814 
City of Sacramento Public Works, 1395 35th Ave, Sacramento, CA 95822 

Contact Information 

George Booth –Manager of Sacramento County Drainage Development, Hydrology and Floodplain 
Management Department (916) 874-6484; boothg@SacCounty.net 
Kelly Sherfey – City of Sacramento Department of Utilities (916) 808-2539, ksherfey@cityosacramento.org 

Project Description Multi-jurisdictional DMA/CRS Plan; County, 7 incorporated communities, and 20 special districts 

Plan Duration* 

--Development Time 

--Agency Review 

14 months (Total Duration Kickoff to Final FEMA Approval Pending Adoption) 
9 months 
5 months 

Contract Value/Cost $169,265/169,265 

Project Name 
Placer County, CA Local Hazard Mitigation Plan – Original Plan and 2 Plan Updates - FEMA 
Approved (2005, 2010, 2016)  

Organization Placer County Office of Emergency Services, 175 Fulweiler Ave # 205, Auburn, CA 95603 

Contact Information Rod Rodriquez, Senior Emergency Services Specialist, (530) 886-5300, yrodrigu@placer.ca.gov 

Project Description Multi-jurisdictional DMA/CRS Plan; County, 5 incorporated communities, and 15 special districts 

Plan Duration* 

--Development Time 

--Agency Review 

14 months (Total Duration Kickoff to Final FEMA Approval Pending Adoption) 
11 months 
3 months 

Contract Value/Cost $148,593/$148,593 

Project Name 
Calaveras County, CA, Local Hazard Mitigation Plan – Original Plan and Plan Update - FEMA 
Approved (2010, 2015) 

Organization Calaveras County Sheriff’s Office, 891 Mountain Ranch Rd, San Andreas, CA 95249 

Contact Information 
Sherri Munson, Sheriff Services Technician III, Financial Services/OES (209) 754-2888, 
SMunson@co.calaveras.ca.us 

Project Description Multi-jurisdictional DMA Plan; County and one incorporated community 

Plan Duration* 

--Development Time 

--Agency Review 

9 months (Total Duration Kickoff to Final FEMA Approval Pending Adoption) 
7 months 
2 months 

Contract Value/Cost $48,000/$48,000 

* Plan duration is dependent on Agency Review time. Development time reflects planned schedule from project kickoff to Cal OES submittal.   

Client References 

Client references for similar LHMP projects conducted in California over the last five years are detailed above in 

Table 2 of this proposal.  This includes recent projects performed by both Foster Morrison and Howell 

Consulting.  We encourage the District to contact these references as they can attest to the experience, expertise, 

and professionalism of Foster Morrison and Howell Consulting and the quality of our Local Hazard Mitigation 

Plans and planning process. 



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  13 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

4.  Project Understanding, Approach, and Scope of Work 

HVLCSD is requesting the services of a consultant to assist the District in assessing hazards and risks that pose a 

threat to the District, to identify local resources and capabilities that can assist the District in the mitigation of 

hazards; and to produce the HVLCSD single-jurisdiction, FEMA-approved LHMP.    

Foster Morrison and Howell Consulting have combined staff to provide the HVLCSD with an LHMP that is 

tailored to the unique needs of the District.  This section includes our project understanding, approach, and scope 

of work and schedule designed to meet and exceed all of the HVLCSD’s expectations to provide the District with 

a FEMA-approved LHMP. 

Project Understanding 

Hidden Valley Lake is a census-designated place and gated subdivision located in rural, southern Lake County, in 

northern California. The population was 5,579 at the 2010 census, up from 3,777 at the 2000 census. Today, it is a 

Common Interest Development known as Hidden Valley Lake Association HVLA.  The HVLCSD services this 

area with water, wastewater, and reclaimed water services.  Bordered on the west by State Route 29, the 

HVLCSD service territory is located approximately 80 miles northeast of San Francisco and 14 miles to the south 

of the City of Clearlake.  Hidden Valley Lake is located in the mountains at about 3,500 feet of elevation.  The 

south side of the lake is almost completely forested, and the north side is a mixture of woods and open lands. 

The climate of the HVLCSD area is classified as temperate and semiarid.  Summers are dry and warm, and 

winters are wet and mild.  Average monthly temperatures vary from the 80°F range in July to the 40°F range in 

January.  Annual precipitation averages 25 inches; more than 50 percent of the annual precipitation normally 

occurs from December through February.  The area s economy is based primarily on agriculture and water-

oriented recreation.  The seasonal population is often more than twice the permanent resident population and the 

demand for services increases accordingly. 

Given the geography, topography, and climate of the area, the District is vulnerable to numerous hazards as 

identified in the 2018 Lake County LHMP.  That plan stated that the unincorporated County is subject to drought, 

earthquake, flooding (dam failure, localized, and 100/500-year flooding), landslides, severe weather, wildland 

fires, and volcano.  There have been 23 federal disaster declarations (most of them related to the hazards above) 

for Lake County since 1953, making it one of the more disaster-prone counties in California. 

Recently, Lake County and the District were in the midst of a severe to extreme drought as defined by the U.S. 

Drought Monitor. Preliminary data shows that 2013 was the driest year in California since 1878, and 2012 also 

was a dry year.  In January of 2014, Governor Brown declared a State of Emergency due to the drought.  The 

drought persisted through 2016; however, due to El Nino storms in late 2016 

and 2017 the drought had abated. In 2018, drought conditions have begun to 

return. 

Due to the increased stress on forested and grassland areas due to the drought 

and increased tree mortality, wildfire risk in the County had increased.  This is 

exemplified by the 2015 and 2016 fires that struck the County.  In the months 

of July, August, and September of 2015, Lake County suffered three separate 

devastating wildfires; the cumulative damage of these fires includes 171,000 

acres of wild land, forest, and residential properties being burned out, the loss 

of 1,329 homes and damage to over 70 commercial properties.  In response, a 

federal disaster declaration was declared.  The fire ultimately spread to 76,067 

acres, killed four people, and destroyed nearly 2,000 buildings.  Portions of the 

south end of Hidden Valley Lake were burned during the Valley Fire. The fire 

was the third-worst fire in California history based on total structures burned.  



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  14 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

The 2016 Clayton Fire struck the County the following year.  The blaze, which authorities say was intentionally 

set Aug. 13 near Clayton Creek Road and Highway 29, burned nearly 4,000 acres and destroyed 300 structures, 

including 188 homes and 10 commercial buildings.  This resulted in a federal disaster declaration.  In 2018, the 

Mendocino Complex fire struck Lake County.  The Mendocino Complex Fire was the largest recorded fire 

complex in California history. It was a large complex of two wildfires, the River Fire and Ranch Fire.  It 

ultimately burned 459,123 acres and resulted in a federal disaster declaration.  While this fire did not affect the 

District directly, it continues to show the potential for catastrophic wildfires in Lake County.  Wildfire is a hazard 

of great significance to HVLCSD and Lake County as a whole. 

While the current drought had led to a lack of flooding in recent years, the threat of flooding in the County 

remains.  In fact, due to drought conditions, the likelihood of flooding due to heavy rains may have actually 

increased.  Extreme droughts reduce the soil’s ability to absorb water quickly.  Should a heavy rain occur, the 

parched ground is likely to absorb a small amount of precipitation, with the remainder becoming runoff.  This can 

cause localized flooding, as well as quickly increase stream flows, causing flash flooding.  This has happened in 

California in January of 2017.  While the heavy rains filled reservoirs and effectively stopped a three-year 

drought, damages from flooding occurred and continue to occur in multiple counties, including Lake County.  A 

federal disaster declaration (DR-4301) was issued on February 14, 2017.  Continuing economic development 

within the HVLCSD service territory is expected, and pressures leading to intensified floodplain use will 

undoubtedly accompany such development. 

In addition, the State of California has put an increased emphasis on climate change and its effects on natural 

hazards.  Climate change can exacerbate other hazards like drought, extreme weather, flood, and wildfire. 

Project Approach 

The primary purpose of this LHMP planning project is to reduce long-term risk and loss to people and 

property from identified hazards and to make the HVLCSD more disaster resistant and better able to 

recover when a disaster does occur.  This LHMP will address all hazards of significance to the District and will 

be developed pursuant to the requirements of Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) of 2000, published at 44 CFR 201.6 

and most current guidance, the Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) program, and the National Flood Insurance 

Program (NFIP)’s Community Rating System (CRS) program.  The Foster Morrison team will conduct all work 

necessary to provide the HVLCSD with a Cal OES/FEMA-approved LHMP.  

A FEMA-approved LHMP will make the District eligible for FEMA pre- and post-disaster funding.  In addition, 

this LHMP will be compliant with the requirements of SB 379 (Climate Adaptation) and will be consistent with 

the goals and objectives outlined in the 2018 State of California Hazard Mitigation Plan.  The HVLCSD LHMP 

will be prepared utilizing the process shown in Table 3.   



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  15 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Table 3 Hazard Mitigation Planning Process 

Disaster Mitigation Act Planning Regulations (44 CFR 201.6) CRS/FMA Planning Steps 

Phase I: Planning Process  

201.6(c)(1) 1. Organize Resources 

201.6(b)(1) 2. Involve the Public 

201.6(b)(2) & (3) 3. Coordinate with Others 

Phase II: Risk Assessment  

201.6(c)(2)(i) 4. Assess the Hazard 

201.6(c)(2)(ii) & (iii) 5. Assess the Problem 

Cal OES/FEMA requirement Assess the Capabilities 

Phase III: Mitigation Strategy  

201.6(c)(3)(i) 6. Set Goals 

201.6(c)(3)(ii) 7. Review Possible Activities 

201.6(c)(3)(iii) 8. Draft an Action Plan 

Phase IV: Plan Maintenance  

201.6(c)(5) 9. Adopt the Plan 

201.6(c)(4) 10. Implement, evaluate, revise 

 

Senate Bill 379 

The HVLCSD LHMP will be written to accommodate Senate Bill 379.  California SB 379 requires 

communities to include climate adaptation and resiliency strategies in the safety elements of their general plans. 

The bill requires that the climate adaptation component should include a set of goals, policies, and objectives for 

their communities based on the vulnerability assessment, as well as implementation measures, including the 

conservation and implementation of natural infrastructure that may be used in adaptation projects.  While not a 

City or County with a specific General Plan requirement, this HVLCSD LHMP will consider and incorporate 

climate change data, issues, and resulting mitigation strategies. 

Project Goals and Benefits 

The Foster Morrison team will provide the HVLCSD with a FEMA-approved LHMP designed to meet and 

exceed all their planning goals.  This LHMP will be developed to achieve the following project goals and 

benefits: 

➢ Develop a FEMA-approved, DMA-compliant, LHMP for the HVLCSD 

➢ Align the LHMP with local community and regional plans and the 2018 State of California Hazard Mitigation 

Plans and incorporate regional and corresponding strategies as appropriate 

➢ Build partnerships with diverse stakeholders and increase opportunities to leverage data and resources 

➢ Ensure that the HVLCSD achieves SB 379 (climate change) compliance 

➢ Improve public safety and local resiliency to damage from identified hazards, thus reducing the impact and 

cost of disasters to the District and taxpayers 

➢ Position the District to compete more effectively for pre- and post-disaster mitigation and recovery funding 

➢ Increase public awareness and understanding of hazards, vulnerabilities, and support for Mitigation Actions to 

reduce future hazard-related losses 

➢ Speed community recovery when disasters occur 



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  16 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Scope of Work 

Foster Morrison has reviewed the District’s scope of work for an LHMP and represent that we are capable 

of providing and performing quality work to execute the scope of work as described and to achieve all 

District goals.  The scope will involve completion of background and technical work to support a comprehensive 

hazard risk assessment; coordinating with District staff, conducting public outreach, and facilitating the planning 

process; formulating and facilitating the mitigation strategy; and providing all deliverables necessary to comply 

with state and federal mitigation planning regulations and guidance resulting in a Cal OES compliant and FEMA-

approved LHMP.  The resulting LHMP will be a clear, action-oriented document which will serve the 

District and will identify actions which can be taken to reduce local risk and disaster-related losses from 

future hazard events. The details of the planning process and how the HVLCSD will meet the goals of this 

LHMP project are outlined further below in this scope of work.   

Phase I: LHMP Planning/Development Process 

The HVLCSD is the lead agency overseeing the planning process and development of the LHMP.  The Foster 

Morrison team will work closely with the District to further define project goals and to clarify the mission and 

vision of the plan and its resulting mitigation activities. 

Task 1: Organize Resources 

Following a Notice to Proceed (NTP) and as part of organizing resources and pre-planning for this project, the 

HVLCSD and Foster Morrison will hold a conference call to review the project scope and schedule; discuss 

planning team participation and coordination; identify initial data sources and contacts; and plan the project 

kickoff meeting. Foster Morrison will work with the District to identify key community planning participants; 

will develop all meeting materials; and will facilitate all planning team and public meetings for this project. 

Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee 

A coordinated, engaged Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee (HMPC) comprised of key District and 

community stakeholders is critical to a successful mitigation planning process and resulting LHMP.  

Representatives from the District, other agencies, neighboring communities, and public and private stakeholders 

with an interest in hazard mitigation activities in the HVLCSD will be invited to participate in the LHMP 

development process through membership on the HMPC.  In addition to jurisdictional participants, committee 

members may include city and county residents, community leaders, government officials, local utilities, and 

business owners to provide for a representative cross-section of the community.  Foster Morrison will facilitate 

the work of the HMPC with leadership and support provided by the District. 

Jurisdictional (HVLCSD) Participation and Work Assistance Requirements 

The HVLCSD, requesting development of a FEMA-approved LHMP, is required to participate in the LHMP 

planning process as set forth by DMA regulations and guidance.  For this LHMP, it is assumed that the HVLCSD 

will be the single participating jurisdiction required to comply with the following participation elements to receive 

FEMA plan approval:  

➢ Provide representation on the HMPC, attend meetings, and participate in the planning process 

➢ Assist in providing data, identifying hazards, risks and how the risk differs across the District planning area 

➢ Identify, prioritize, and develop mitigation actions/projects for the District 

➢ Distribute, review, and provide timely comments on the draft plan(s) 

➢ Coordinate the public outreach process, attend public meetings to solicit input from community stakeholders 

➢ Formally adopt the LHMP  

➢ Manage the implementation of the resulting mitigation plan 



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  17 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

All other jurisdictions and public and private stakeholders will be asked to support the planning process through 

representation on the HMPC, providing data and input for the risk assessment and mitigation strategy; and 

reviewing and providing input on plan drafts prior to finalization and submittal to Cal OES and FEMA.  

Kickoff Meeting 

At the beginning of the process, a kickoff meeting of the HMPC (HMPC Meeting #1) will be held to present 

information on the hazard mitigation planning regulations and guidance, participation requirements, and project 

scope and schedule.  Agency and stakeholder coordination and an initial strategy for public information and 

outreach will also be considered during this kickoff meeting. 

Task 2: Public Involvement 

Foster Morrison will work together with the District and HMPC to define a public information outreach strategy 

to ensure an effective public involvement process.  Public outreach and community engagement efforts will be 

designed to educate the public on risks and vulnerability to identified hazards and the hazard mitigation planning 

process.  This process will focus on soliciting input from the public to better inform the LHMP throughout the 

planning process and prior to submittal to Cal OES/FEMA. 

Community engagement activities will leverage existing District outreach mechanisms where available and may 

include: inviting public stakeholders to serve on the HMPC; publicizing the activities of the LHMP development 

process through the District’s website and social media; issuing press releases to local media outlets; hosting 

public meetings; and other outreach efforts to maximize engagement by all stakeholders.  All outreach and 

coordination efforts and resulting input will be documented in a separate planning process appendix to establish a 

record for future efforts and to facilitate review and approval of the LHMP by Cal OES and FEMA. Foster 

Morrison will be responsible for preparing public notices and other materials and content for the public outreach 

effort.   

Two public meetings will be held as part of the public involvement process.  Each meeting will focus on 

educating the public on the LHMP and identifying community concerns.  These public meetings will be held 

separate from the HMPC meetings and will be properly advertised.  An early public meeting will be designed to 

provide an introduction to hazard mitigation planning and the LHMP development process.  The second public 

meeting will be held to solicit public comments on the draft plan prior to finalization and submittal to Cal 

OES/FEMA.  Public comments will be incorporated by Foster Morrison as appropriate. 

Task 3: Coordinate with Other Agencies 

DMA regulations require that the mitigation planning process include other organizations, agencies, neighboring 

communities, and key stakeholders.  Representatives from local, state, and federal agencies and organizations 

with significant interests in the community, local land use development, natural hazards, and/or mitigation may be 

invited to join the HMPC or to provide other input into this LHMP planning process.  This will include soliciting 

input regarding hazards, the prioritization of hazards, and the development of best practice mitigation approaches 

for each identified hazard of concern. 

Data Collection and Review 

Foster Morrison staff will work closely with the District and HMPC to identify key resources and data to support 

the LHMP.  In accordance with DMA standards, the LHMP will utilize best available data pertaining to identified 

hazards of concerns, risks, vulnerabilities, community assets and critical facilities, and existing community 

mitigation capabilities.  The most current GIS datasets and local assessor data will also be collected to support the 

risk assessment analysis.  



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  18 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Coordination with Other Planning Efforts 

Also integral to the DMA planning process is the coordination and integration with other community planning 

mechanisms as well as with other data and information from stakeholders and agencies.  Foster Morrison will 

work with the District and HMPC to identify and review District and other agency existing plans, programs, and 

policies from general and master plans, emergency operations plans, fire plans, drought plans, floodplain 

management plans, watershed plans, stormwater master plans, capital improvement program planning and 

budgeting, and other relevant documents.  These plans will be evaluated and integrated into this LHMP as 

appropriate.  Foster Morrison will also work to ensure that the LHMP is aligned with the goals, objectives, and 

priorities of the 2018 State of California Hazard Mitigation Plan.   

Phase II: Risk Assessment 

Foster Morrison will work with the District and HMPC to develop the hazard risk assessment.  This multi-hazard 

risk assessment will include hazards of concern to the District and will use best available data to evaluate the risk 

and vulnerability from identified hazards.  Where hazards and risks vary across the planning area, the differences 

will be noted. The risk assessment will assist the District in understanding and quantifying its risks and 

vulnerability to identified hazards and will form the basis of the mitigation strategy designed to reduce or 

eliminate risks and to reduce losses from future hazard events.  As prescribed by DMA requirements, the risk 

assessment includes three primary components:  1) hazard identification and profiles; 2) vulnerability assessment; 

and 3) capability assessment.  

Task 4: Assess the Hazard – Hazard Identification and Profiles 

The first step in assessing the hazard is to identify and profile hazards as they affect the HVLCSD.  This will 

include an evaluation of the hazard history and potential for both the District and region to be affected by various 

hazards.  Hazards identified in existing plans, studies, and data available from local, state, and federal sources will 

be consulted.  The 2018 State of California Hazard Mitigation Plan, the 2108 Lake County LHMP, and local plans 

and efforts from the HVLCSD will also be reviewed for their current list of hazards.  Hazards to be evaluated for 

inclusion in this LHMP include: flood-related hazards, earthquake hazards, wildfire hazards, severe weather-

related hazards, drought, climate change hazards, and other hazards identified by the District and HMPC.  The 

end result will be a finalized list of hazards of concern to the District. 

For each identified hazard, hazard profiles will be developed to include a description of hazards that have or may 

occur within the District.  This profile will include:  a description of the hazard and its location and extent; 

severity and magnitude of the hazard; potential impacts; previous occurrences; hazard frequency, duration, speed 

of onset, and recurrence interval (probability of future events).  The hazards will be mapped and analyzed using 

GIS (as described further below) and/or other data and methodologies to identify and analyze areas within the 

District that are at risk and vulnerable to identified hazards.   

In addition, as mandated by the State, climate change issues will be considered and addressed to the extent they 

affect or exacerbate identified hazards.  Utilizing the hazard identification and profiles, an initial prioritization of 

hazards will be conducted for the District to rank the relative importance of each hazard for further consideration 

in the plan development process.  Based on input from the District and HMPC, each hazard will be ranked into 

categories based on high, moderate, and low risk factors. 

Task 5: Assess the Problem: Vulnerability Assessment 

The next step of the risk assessment phase is to conduct a vulnerability assessment to determine the vulnerability 

of the District to identified priority hazards.  The Foster Morrison team will evaluate available data and resources 

to determine the best approach and methodologies for analyzing community vulnerability to identified hazards of 

concern.  Selected methodologies may include utilizing various loss estimation tools such as GIS mapping and 



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  19 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

analysis and Hazus (FEMA’s loss estimation software) runs to assist in quantifying and portraying the risk from 

identified hazards to support mitigation strategy development and future community planning decisions. 

Identify and Inventory Assets 

The vulnerability assessment is designed to evaluate and quantify, where possible, potential hazard-related losses 

to the District.  Critical to this analysis is conducting an inventory of key District assets.  Federal, state, local, and 

community GIS resources, Lake County Assessor’s and GIS data, and other best available data will be used to 

develop a comprehensive inventory of assets specific to the District and located in identified hazard areas which 

will be displayed in area maps and tables as data permits.  It is important to note the goal of using best available 

existing data where feasible and to supplement as appropriate and necessary.  Foster Morrison will work with the 

District and HMPC to identify existing District and regional data and analyses.  To the extent supported by 

available data, the following elements will be addressed: 

➢ Number, types (property use), and values of existing parcels and buildings in the District and in mapped 

hazard areas, based on GIS and County Assessor data 

➢ Identification of at risk populations and special populations, including access and functional needs 

populations 

➢ Critical facilities, infrastructure, utilities, and services  

➢ Estimates of potential dollar losses per hazard utilizing Hazus or GIS 

➢ Economic impact of potential losses 

➢ Natural, cultural, and historic resources at risk, including natural and beneficial functions 

➢ Land use, development trends, and future development areas in the District and in identified hazard areas 

Estimate Potential Losses 

Once the hazards and assets have been identified, profiled, and located, Foster Morrison will utilize established 

loss modeling techniques to estimate potential losses for priority hazards. For common hazards, such as 

earthquake, wildfire, and flood, Foster Morrison can make use of methods from past work, from GIS overlays of 

hazard and parcel/assessor data, and from FEMA publications and models, specifically Hazus and other 

recognized methodologies.  For hazards with insufficient data or tools for identifying vulnerable assets and 

estimating losses, other methods will be used to identify those geographical areas and assets most at risk.   

Analyze Development Trends 

DMA planning requires an analysis of the existing built environment and future development relative to potential 

hazard impacts.  Understanding the current land use, zoning, development trends, and future development plans 

within a community is a key component of the risk assessment.  This will include identification and mapping of 

existing and proposed District areas identified for future development.  The results of this assessment will provide 

the District with critical information for developing a sound, forward-thinking mitigation strategy as well as 

determining where and how to grow in the future.   

Capability Assessment 

The capability assessment is the final step of the risk assessment.  Foster Morrison will conduct a capability 

assessment to identify existing technical, financial, and other mitigation capabilities of the HVLCSD.  By 

collecting information about existing capabilities, the District and HMPC can assess those activities and measures 

already in place that mitigate risk and vulnerability to identified hazards and to support the development of 

effective mitigation strategies. 

Hazard Prioritization 

Following completion of the risk assessment, Foster Morrison will work with the District and HMPC to prioritize 

hazards of significance based on high, medium, and low risk factors.  This final prioritization process is an 



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  20 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

important element in plan development as it allows the District to focus resources on significant hazards to the 

community, resulting in a more focused, achievable mitigation strategy for the plan.  The results of the risk 

assessment will be presented at HMPC Meeting #2. 

Phase III: Develop Mitigation Strategy (Plan) 

The mitigation strategy is ultimately the most important part of the plan.  While the risk assessment defines the 

risks and vulnerability of a planning area, the mitigation strategy contains the mitigation action items and projects 

that will be implemented over the five-year life of this LHMP to reduce hazard-related losses, make the 

community more disaster resistant, and to better recover when disasters do occur. 

During the mitigation strategy development phase of this LHMP, Foster Morrison will develop a complete plan 

draft that will: document the mitigation planning process; document the results of the risk assessment; detail plan 

goals and objectives; and identify and prioritize mitigation actions designed to minimize the effects of hazards on 

the HVLCSD planning area. 

Task 6: Set Goals 

Using the results of the risk assessment, Foster Morrison will work with the District and HMPC to develop hazard 

mitigation and adaptation goals and objectives for the LHMP.  The goals and objectives will reflect the 

community’s long-term vision to reduce the risk to people and property within the District and will focus on 

enhancing overall mitigation capabilities.   

Goals and objectives from other District plans and policies, as well as other agency and state plans and policies, 

will be compiled and analyzed to ensure consistency with existing programs and other plan goals and objectives.  

Plan goals and objectives will be developed during Planning Meeting #3. 

Task 7:  Review Possible Activities 

Once plan goals and objectives have been developed for the HVLCSD, Foster Morrison will work with the 

District and HMPC to identify, analyze, and prioritize a comprehensive range of mitigation actions and projects. 

Utilizing the risk assessment and considering other ongoing community mitigation programs policies and plans, 

mitigation actions will be developed with input from the District and HMPC.  The review and assessment of 

mitigation actions and projects will occur at HMPC #4, where a comprehensive range of potential mitigation 

actions will be identified for each priority hazard designed to reduce hazard impacts and disaster losses and to 

meet the LHMP goals and objectives.  Identified mitigation projects will address the effects of hazards on future 

development and new structures as well as on existing buildings and infrastructure.  In developing mitigation 

alternatives, this plan will adhere to the model of mitigation activities promoted by DMA and CRS, which 

classifies mitigation measures into the following six categories: Prevention, Property Protection, Emergency 

Services, Structural Projects, Natural Resource Protection, and Public Information Programs. 

The mitigation actions will be reviewed to ensure best practices and to identify mitigation partnerships where 

feasible.  The end result of this mitigation planning process will be a list of prioritized hazard mitigation action 

items that best meet the HVLCSD’s needs for hazard damage reduction. 

Task 8: Draft an Action Plan: Mitigation Implementation Strategy 

Upon finalization of goals and objectives and mitigation actions and projects, the District and HMPC will develop 

priority actions for inclusion in the mitigation strategy portion of the plan.  A comprehensive, prioritized 

mitigation strategy is paramount in focusing community resources to reduce District vulnerability to the 

destructive consequences of hazards and to promote efficient recovery and reconstruction when disasters do 

occur.  



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  21 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

This process will involve using a set of criteria, a “scoring” system, for prioritizing potential mitigation actions 

and projects to ensure that they: are reasonable and achievable; reflect the priorities of the District and are based 

on the risk assessment.  Fundamental to the prioritization process for mitigation measures are key factors such as 

life, property, health, and safety protection, as well as qualitative cost benefit considerations and the availability 

of FEMA or other funding sources for any given project.  The STAPLEE approach promoted by FEMA will be 

used as a framework for developing additional prioritization criteria.  The STAPLEE approach analyzes the 

Social, Technical, Administrative, Political, Legal, Economic, and Environmental feasibility of proposed 

mitigation actions.   

Foster Morrison will work with the District and HMPC to develop an implementation strategy plan for each 

identified mitigation project that will provide information on project implementation, including a description of 

the project details, risk reduction goals, alternative actions considered, benefit-cost considerations, possible 

funding sources, project schedule, and responsible agency.  The end result will be a mitigation action strategy of 

prioritized projects for the HVLCSD planning area. 

Task 8a: Draft Plan 

Using state and federal guidance to ensure that all DMA requirements are being met, a complete first draft of the 

LHMP will be prepared for review by the District and HMPC.  This will result in a comprehensive LHMP that 

presents all relevant data and incudes a community profile/demographics, planning process, risk assessment, 

mitigation strategy implementation plan, and procedures for plan maintenance.   

Document the Mitigation Planning Process 

The plan development process will be thoroughly documented, including the evaluation of risks and vulnerability 

of hazards to the HVLCSD planning area and the process used to identify, analyze, and prioritize the mitigation 

strategy.  A separate planning process chapter will be developed to document the plan development process, 

which will include establishing a record of meetings and participation.  This chapter will also detail coordination 

with other agencies and integration with other planning mechanisms as well as the process that will be used to 

implement and maintain the LHMP.  A detailed description of the public outreach and education strategies 

implemented for this LHMP will be included and thoroughly documented.   

Plan Review and Finalization Process 

A complete first draft of the LHMP will be provided to the District and HMPC for review and comment.  The 

District and HMPC’s comments and revisions will be incorporated into a second public review draft and 

distributed to the stakeholders and the public for review and comment via the District website.  All public and 

private stakeholders will have an opportunity to provide input to the plan, both during the drafting stage and prior 

to submittal to Cal OES/FEMA.  A public meeting will be held to solicit comments on the draft plan and proposed 

mitigation strategies prior to submittal to Cal OES/FEMA as described in Task 2 of this Scope.  A final HMPC 

meeting, HMPC Meeting #5, will be held to discuss any public comments and final input into the plan document.   

Phase IV: Plan Maintenance Process 

Task 9: Final Plan Submittal and Adoption 

Based on feedback from the public meeting and final input during HMPC Meeting #5, a final draft in both digital 

and hard copy will be developed for submittal to Cal OES and FEMA for preliminary review and approval.  

Based on this review, requested changes to the draft LHMP will be made and a master electronic and hard copy of 

the LHMP will be developed to assist with District adoption.  Foster Morrison will be responsible for preparing 

materials necessary for HVLCSD Board of Directors consideration and to support Board adoption of the LHMP.  

Foster Morrison is prepared to attend up to three Board of Directors’ meetings throughout the planning process to 

support this effort.   



Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  22 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Foster Morrison will make all revisions and will work with Cal OES and FEMA to ensure that the LHMP receives 

approval from Cal OES and FEMA for formal adoption by the HVLCSD.   

Task 10: Develop Procedures to Implement, Monitor, and Update the Plan 

Foster Morrison will work with the District to determine procedures and a schedule for implementing, monitoring, 

evaluating, and updating the HVLCSD LHMP.  The plan maintenance requirements will be developed to ensure 

the plan is a living document updated annually to reflect new and changing hazards, conditions, and new state and 

federal requirements.  This will include: 

➢ A method and schedule of implementing, monitoring, evaluating, and updating the plan, which includes 

criteria used, responsible office, and process for annual reviews and a formal five-year update.   

➢ A process by which the plan will be incorporated into other existing planning mechanisms and requirements 

such as the District EOP, master plan, capital improvement program, and other related planning mechanisms. 

➢ A discussion of how the District will continue to involve the public in the plan maintenance and update 

process and documentation of all public involvement activities. 

Project Schedule  

Generally, the LHMP development process takes 12 to 16 months, or longer, from project kickoff to plan 

submittal and approval by Cal OES and FEMA.  Foster Morrison can initiate this project immediately with an 

executed agreement with the HVLCSD.  With an agreement signed and a project start by November 20, 2018, 

Foster Morrison is prepared to conduct all plan development activities and submit the completed LHMP to Cal 

OES/FEMA by June 14, 2019.  This schedule is dependent on timely participation by the District.  An anticipated 

schedule is shown in Table 4.  Key milestones, including review timeframes, are also noted below: 

➢ Kickoff meeting (HMPC Meeting #1) and Public Meeting #1 – November 2018  

➢ HMPC Meeting #2 (Risk Assessment) –January 2019 

➢ HMPC Meetings #3 and #4 (Mitigation Strategy)–February 2019 

➢ District/HMPC (First) Draft LHMP – March 2019 

➢ District/HMPC comments – March 2019 

➢ Comments incorporated into Public Review (Second) Draft – April 2019   

➢ Public review period/ Public Meeting #2 and HMPC Meeting #5 – May 2019 

➢ Public comments incorporated and LHMP submittal to Cal OES – June 14, 2019  

Foster Morrison will make any requested changes from Cal OES before FEMA submittal.  Once submitted, plan 

adoption and final plan submittal to the District is subject to timely reviews by Cal OES and FEMA.  Upon 

contract award, identified timeframes and overall schedule can be modified to better reflect the needs of the 

HVLCSD.   



   

Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  23 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Table 4 Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District – LHMP Schedule  

Phase/Task Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov 

Phase 1: LHMP Planning/Development Process                           

Task 1: Organize Resources                            

    HMPC #1 - Kickoff/Public Mtg #1                            

Task 2: Public Involvement                           

Task 3: Coordinate with Other Agencies                           

Phase II: Risk Assessment                           

Task 4: Assess the Hazard                           

Task 5: Assess the Problem                            

Capability Assessment                             

     HMPC #2                           

Phase III: Mitigation Strategy                           

Task 6: Set Goals                            

Task 7: Review Possible Activities                            

     HMPC #3 and #4                           

Task 8: Draft an Action Plan                           

Task 8a: Draft Plan                            

     Mitigation Action Worksheets due from District/HMPC                           

     Draft Plan to District/HMPC                           

     City/HMPC Review and Comments to FM                           

     Public Review Draft to District                           

     HMPC #5/Public Mtg. #2                           

     Public Review and Comments                           

Phase IV: Plan Maintenance Process                           

Task 9: Final Plan Submittal and Adoption*                           

     Plan Submittal to Cal OES/FEMA                           

Task 10:  Procedures to Implement, Monitor, Update the Plan                           

 



   

Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  24 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

5.  Project Cost 

Foster Morrison will execute the proposed scope of work for a not-to-exceed, fixed price fee as detailed in this 

cost proposal. Execution of the scope of work within the proposed fee will meet the HVLCSD’s expectations to 

provide the District with a DMA-compliant, FEMA-approved LHMP.   

Table 5, LHMP Cost Proposal Summary, provides a summary of our fees broken out by project phase and task 

and includes all labor and direct and indirect costs.  Direct costs include all reimbursable expenses such as travel 

and materials.  Assumptions used in development of project costs are also identified.  A detailed cost table is 

shown in Figure 2.   

Table 5 Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District LHMP Cost Proposal Summary 

Description (by Project Phase and Task) Labor Costs Direct Costs Total Costs 

Phase I LHMP Planning/Development Process 

Task 1: Organize Resources $5,770.00 $1,650.00 $7,420.00 

Task 2: Public Involvement $3,020.00 $0.00 $3,020.00 

Task 3:  Coordinate with Other Agencies $5,290.00 $0.00 $5,290.00 

Total Phase I $14,080.00 $1,650.00 $15,730.00 

Phase II Risk Assessment 

Task 4: Assess the Hazard $13,800.00 $0.00 $13,800.00 

Task 5:  Assess the Problem $20,440.00 $1,775.00 $22,215.00 

Capability Assessment $4,280.00 $0.00 $4,280.00 

Total Phase II $38,520.00 $1,775.00 $40,295.00 

Phase III Mitigation Strategy 

Task 6: Set Goals $5,040.00 $1,350.00 $6,390.00 

Task 7:  Review Possible Activities $7,440.00 $500.00 $7,940.00 

Task 8: Draft an Action Plan $9,700.00 $0.00 $9,700.00 

Total Phase III $22,180.00 $1,850.00 $24,030.00 

Phase IV Plan Maintenance Process 

Task 9: Adopt the Plan $5,220.00 $0.00 $5,220.00 

Tasks 10: Implement, Evaluate & Revise $2,300.00 $2,025.00 $4,325.00 

Total Phase IV $7,520.00 $2,025.00 $9,545.00 

LHMP: Total Estimated Costs $82,300 $7,300.00 $89,600.00 

 



   

Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  25 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Figure 2 Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District LHMP Cost Proposal Detail 

 

LHMP Fee Proposal Assumptions 

The following is a summary of cost assumptions to the development of the LHMP: 

➢ Monies associated with labor and direct expense costs will be interchangeable as needed, between labor and direct costs and between project phases 

and tasks, to complete project requirements. 

➢ The HVLCSD will be the single participating jurisdiction seeking FEMA approval of the plan. 

➢ Four trips total are planned by the Foster Morrison planning team to accommodate the five HMPC planning and coordination meetings, two public 

meetings, and up to three board meetings. 

➢ District staff will assist with coordinating and advertising public meetings. 

➢ This cost assumes one color copy of the plan to be provided to Cal OES and FEMA for the formal submittal and one hard and electronic color copies 

of the final plan document to be provided to the client to support plan adoption and for final plan submittal.  All other interim plan submittals to the 

client and HMPC will be done electronically.   

➢ District staff will coordinate and facilitate the plan’s adoption.  

➢ District will support the DMA planning process requirements as previously described in a timely manner in order to meet the schedule within the 

proposed fee. 

➢ In accordance with DMA guidelines, only existing best available data will be used during this planning process, no new source data will be created. 

This Cost Proposal remains valid for a period of not less than 90 calendar days from the date of submittal. 



   

Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  26 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Cost and Schedule Controls 

As previously stated in this proposal submittal, the Foster Morrison team has a proven track record in providing 

clients with responsive and timely service to meet project objectives, schedules and changing work needs.  As 

noted in our similar and recent project experience table, our LHMP projects are completed within budget without 

cost overruns, and often under very aggressive schedules. The anticipated volume of work from this contract is 

well within our team’s capacity to execute efficiently and effectively.  As owners of Foster Morrison, we make a 

commitment to our clients to deliver a quality LHMP on schedule and within budget. 



   

Proposal for Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District  A-1 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  

November 2018 

Appendix A. Resumes 



   

Foster Morrison  1 
Jeanine Foster Resume 
November 2018 

Jeanine Foster, JD 

Principal/Project Manager/Senior Mitigation Planner 

Professional Biography 

Ms. Jeanine Foster is a co-owner of Foster Morrison Consulting and plays a key role as principal, project 

manager, and senior mitigation specialist.  She has diverse experience providing project management, 

mitigation planning, and disaster recovery services in response to damages caused by a variety of natural 

hazard events, including flood and wildfire, to affected communities, with a focus on cities and counties 

located in California, Colorado, and Mississippi. 

Jeanine’s responsibilities include project management; hazard mitigation planning; disaster recovery; grant 

application development, including benefit-cost analysis (BCAs); environmental and historic preservation 

compliance, grant administration, agency coordination; National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) 

Community Rating System (CRS) compliance; Floodplain Management Services; regulatory compliance; 

and marketing. She works closely with clients to define project direction and scope; to identify and pursue 

grant opportunities; to implement and administer projects funded through a variety of grant resources: and 

to ensure compliance with applicable regulatory programs such as FEMA’s Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) 

and NFIP’s CRS program.  These responsibilities have entailed working with the Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (FEMA), the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), Army 

Corp of Engineers (USACE), State Emergency Management Agencies and Water Resources Agencies, and 

local city and county officials to obtain grant funding and to execute and manage projects from startup to 

final project closeout.  Her expertise includes: 

➢ Project Management 

➢ Hazard Mitigation and Emergency Management Planning and Disaster Recovery 

➢ Floodplain Management Services/NFIP’s CRS Program Compliance 

➢ Regulatory/Environmental Compliance 

Education 

➢ JD, University of Denver, 1988 

➢ BA, University of Colorado, 1984 

Professional Qualifications/Registrations 

➢ Admitted to Bar:  Colorado, 1988 

Representative Projects 

Hazard Mitigation Plans 

City of Lakeport Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Lakeport, CA (2018/2019 Original Plan) 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of the single-jurisdictional LHMP that 

meets the requirements of DMA 2000.  This unique community set on the shores of Clear Lake focused on 

their priority hazards that include dam failure, flooding, wildfire, aquatic biological hazards, and drought.  

Responsibilities include project management, public and planning team meeting facilitation, identification 



   

Foster Morrison  2 
Jeanine Foster Resume 
November 2018 

and development of hazard data and methodologies for the risk assessment, and facilitation of a mitigation 

strategy to reduce the risk and vulnerability of the City to priority hazards of concern.  The plan is in process. 

City of Clearlake Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Clearlake, CA (2018/2019 Original Plan) 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of the single-jurisdictional LHMP that 

meets the requirements of DMA 2000.  This unique community set on the shores of Clear Lake focused on 

their priority hazards that include dam failure, flooding, wildfire, aquatic biological hazards, and drought.  

Responsibilities include project management, public and planning team meeting facilitation, identification 

and development of hazard data and methodologies for the risk assessment, and facilitation of a mitigation 

strategy to reduce the risk and vulnerability of the City to priority hazards of concern.  The plan is in process. 

City of Piedmont Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Piedmont, CA (2018 Original Plan) 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of the single-jurisdictional LHMP that 

meets the requirements of DMA 2000.  This unique community set in the Oakland Hills of Alameda County 

focused on their priority hazards that include earthquake, wildfire, and drought.  The earthquake analysis 

included three HAZUS modeling runs to address the three primary faults of concern to the City.  

Responsibilities include project management, public and planning team meeting facilitation, identification 

and development of hazard data and methodologies for the risk assessment, and facilitation of a mitigation 

strategy to reduce the risk and vulnerability of the City to priority hazards of concern.  The plan is in process. 

City of Azusa Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, City of Azusa, CA (2018 Original Plan) 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of an original LHMP for the City of 

Azusa.  Tasks include client coordination, organizing resources, facilitating planning team meetings, 

developing risk and capability assessments, identifying mitigation strategies and overall plan development.  

Located in the Los Angeles area, wildfire, earthquake, dam failure, landslide, and floods were primary 

hazards of concern in the City. The plan is in its final stages as of early 2018. 

Colusa County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Colusa County, CA (2018 Plan Update) 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of a multi-hazard and multi-jurisdictional 

plan that meets the requirements of DMA 2000 and FMA.  Responsibilities include research and 

development of hazard and risk assessment data, identification and development of plan goals and 

mitigation strategies, development and facilitation of both team and public meetings, and overall plan 

development.  This plan addressed both natural and priority man-made hazards, with an emphasis on 

assessing risk and vulnerability of critical facilities to identified hazards.  The plan is in its final stages as 

of early 2018. 

Los Angeles Unified School District Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (2018 Plan Update) 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of an original LHMP for the Los Angeles 

Unified School District.  Tasks include client coordination, organizing resources, facilitating planning team 

meetings, developing risk and capability assessments, identifying mitigation strategies and overall plan 

development.  Located in the Los Angeles area, wildfire, earthquake, dam failure, levee failure, and floods 

were primary hazards of concern in the District. The plan has been submitted to Cal OES/FEMA. 



   

Foster Morrison  3 
Jeanine Foster Resume 
November 2018 

Lake County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Lake County, CA (2018 Plan Update) 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of an LHMP Update for Lake County. 

Tasks include client coordination, organizing resources, facilitating planning team meetings, developing 

risk and capability assessments, identifying mitigation strategies and overall plan development.  Due to 

recent events, wildfire, drought, dam failures, and floods are primary hazards of concern in this rural county.   

Madera County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Madera County CA (2017 Plan Update) 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of an LHMP Update for Madera County. 

Tasks include client coordination, organizing resources, facilitating planning team meetings, developing 

risk and capability assessments, identifying mitigation strategies and overall plan development.  Located in 

the Sierra Nevada’s of California, wildfire, drought, dam failures, and floods are primary hazards of concern 

in this rural county.   

City of San Rafael Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, City of San Rafael, CA (2017 Original Plan) 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of an original LHMP for the City of San 

Rafael.  Tasks include client coordination, organizing resources, facilitating planning team meetings, 

developing risk and capability assessments, identifying mitigation strategies and overall plan development.  

The Plan involved working closely with both the City and Marin County.  Located on San Francisco Bay, 

wildfire, earthquake, liquefaction, tsunami, and floods were primary hazards of concern in the City.  The 

plan is FEMA-approved.   

Nevada County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Nevada County, CA (2017 Plan 

Update 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of an LHMP Update for Nevada County. 

Project was completed using a compressed schedule.  Tasks include client coordination, organizing 

resources, facilitating planning team meetings, developing risk and capability assessments, identifying 

mitigation strategies and overall plan development.  Located in the Sierra Nevada’s of California, wildfire, 

drought, and floods are primary hazards of concern in this rural county.     

Sacramento County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (2005 Original Plan; 2011 and 2016 Plan 

Updates), Sacramento County, CA 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of the original plan and two LHMP 

Updates that meets the requirements of DMA, CRS and FMA.  Responsibilities included updating the 

hazard and risk assessment data, identification and development of new plan goals and mitigation strategies, 

development and implementation of an enhanced public outreach effort, and maximizing participating CRS 

communities’ credits for DMA planning under CRS Activities 510 and 450.  This plan update focused on 

natural hazards, focusing on flood and levee failure, and included an estimated 30+ participating 

jurisdictions.  Other plan update objectives included analysis of the flood hazard to include the new 

DFIRMS, localized/stormwater flood issues, incorporation of mapping and analyses from the ongoing 

Central Valley Flood Control project, and an enhanced analysis of the potential issues related to levee 

failures as well as the consideration of the impacts associated with recent levee de-certifications.  These 

plans was approved by Cal EMA/FEMA without issue.  As a result of this plan update which significantly 

earned more CRS credits, combined with other CRS activity credits, the County has increased their CRS 



   

Foster Morrison  4 
Jeanine Foster Resume 
November 2018 

classification to a Class 2, one of only a few Class 2 communities in the US.  The 2016 Plan Update is in 

process and in addition to development of a DMA and CRS plan, a focus will be placed on the Delta area 

with a separate Delta Annex being created which will include the City of Isleton and 18 reclamation 

districts.   

Placer County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Placer County Office of Emergency 

Services, Placer County, CA, (2005 Original Plan; 2010 and 2015 Plan Updates) 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of a DMA/FMA/CRS original LHMP 

and two LHMP Updates for Placer County and participating jurisdictions. Responsibilities included project 

management; planning team meeting facilitation; research and development of hazard and risk assessment 

data; identification and development of County-specific mitigation strategies; development and 

coordination of public outreach activities; and overall plan development.  This plan update addresses data 

gaps and identified improvements to the risk assessment from the 2005 plan and highlights the mitigation 

successes of participating jurisdictions through creation of a new section of the plan.  Also conducted as 

part of this planning effort, Jeanine assisted with the development and implementation of a benefit-cost 

analysis (BCA) course utilizing projects from the updated mitigation strategy.  Both plans were FEMA-

approved and adopted by participating communities.  The 2015 Update was a CRS focused plan to the 2013 

CRS Coordinator’s Manuel for Activity 510 and included an update of all hazards of concern, with an 

emphasis on flood, wildfire, and drought.  Climate change impacts and adaptation considerations will also 

be addressed to better inform future development in the County.   

Calaveras County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Calaveras County Office of 

Emergency Services, Calaveras County, CA (2010 Original Plan and 2015 Plan Update) 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of an LHMP Update for Calaveras 

County.  Tasks include client coordination, organizing resources, facilitating planning team meetings, 

developing risk and capability assessments, identifying mitigation strategies and overall plan development.  

The plan update is revising its old list of 11 hazards to better align with the State of California.  New or 

modified hazards include the addition of the water shortage component to the drought hazard and the 

breakout of the flood hazard to include the 100-year, 500-year and stormwater/localized flooding issues.  

The wildfire hazard will be modified to reflect data and analysis from the County’s most recent CWPP.  

The plan update will focus on mitigation successes since the last plan and a review and update of the 

mitigation strategy to focus on both existing and future land use and development.  The 2010 plan was 

approved by FEMA without comment; Foster Morrison developed the 2015 Plan Update without Cal OES 

or FEMA comment.  The delivery to Cal OES was expedited due to wildfires that were occurring in the 

County.  

Comprehensive Flood Management Plan (CFMP) Update, City of Sacramento, CA, 2014 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for an update to the City’s CFMP.  This unique plan serves 

as the City’s strategic plan to reduce flood risk to the City through a comprehensive approach to risk 

management.  The risk reduction tools implemented through this plan include:  Land Use Planning and 

Development Guidelines, Emergency Management, Levee and other Structural Improvements, Internal 

drainage Improvements, Risk Communication (Public Education and Awareness), and NFIP/CRS.  As part 

of this effort a review, update and rewrite of each chapter was required and with a focus on overhauling the 



   

Foster Morrison  5 
Jeanine Foster Resume 
November 2018 

Emergency Management, Risk Communication and NFIP/CRS chapters.  The updated CFMP also included 

development of a mitigation strategy for each risk reduction tool. 

Sutter County Hazard Mitigation Plan (Original 2009 Plan and 2014 Plan Update), Sutter 

County, CA 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of the original and update of a multi-

hazard and multi-jurisdictional plan that meets the requirements of DMA 2000, FMA, and CRS.   

Responsibilities included project management, research and development of hazard and risk assessment 

data, identification and development of plan goals and mitigations strategies, development and facilitation 

of both team and public meetings, and overall plan development.  Unique issues involved assessing 

potential risks and identifying mitigation strategies for a community surrounded and protected by an aging 

levee system.  Related challenges included updating the risk assessment for the County utilizing both new 

DFIRMs and older Q3 data as well as assessing future vulnerability of the community resulting from 

regional levee improvement projects in process.  This plan update is one of the first California plans to be 

developed to the 2013 CRS schedule for Activity 510 in order to maximize CRS credits, earning the County 

all of 15 of the available CRS credits for this activity.   

City of Vacaville Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Vacaville, CA (2015 Original Plan) 

As a subcontractor on this project, provided CRS and mitigation strategy expertise to the local hazard 

mitigation planning project for the City.  In this capacity, researched and evaluated the City’s current CRS 

program status and made recommendations for program improvements in order to achieve a lower CRS 

Class to further reduce the cost of flood insurance premiums to area residents.  This review included 

evaluating floodplain management improvements to address all CRS mitigation categories:  prevention, 

property protection, emergency services, structural projects, natural resource protection, and public 

information.  In addition, this effort helped the City achieve further credits under CRS Activity 510, 

Floodplain Management Planning.  This plan is FEMA-approved. 

Modoc County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Office of Emergency Services, Modoc County, 

CA (2015 Original Plan) 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of an original LHMP for Modoc County. 

Tasks include client coordination, organizing resources, facilitating planning team meetings, developing 

risk and capability assessments, identifying mitigation strategies and overall plan development.  Located in 

the far northern corner of California, wildfire, drought, and floods are primary hazards of concern in this 

rural county.   

Amador County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Amador County, CA (Original 2009 Plan 

and 2014 Plan Update) 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of the original DMA 2000 Multi-

jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan and plan update for the County, incorporated communities and 

participating special districts.  Responsibilities included project management; planning team meeting 

facilitation; research and development of hazard and risk assessment data; identification and development 

of County-specific mitigation strategies; development and coordination of public outreach activities; and 

overall plan development.  Unique issues in the development of this plan included the rural and historic 



   

Foster Morrison  6 
Jeanine Foster Resume 
November 2018 

nature of the County and communities as well as considering areas for future development relative to hazard 

overlays given the recent growth trends in the County.   

Butte County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Butte County, CA (2013 Plan Update) 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for development of DMA 2000 Multi-jurisdictional Hazard 

Mitigation Plan for the County, incorporated communities and participating special districts.  

Responsibilities included project management; planning team meeting facilitation; research and 

development of hazard and risk assessment data; identification and development of County-specific 

mitigation strategies; development and coordination of public outreach activities; and overall plan 

development.  Priority hazards included flood and wildfire and significant coordination was required with 

the Sutter Butte Flood Control Agency and the County Fire Safe Alliance to develop a comprehensive 

mitigation strategy for the County and participating jurisdictions. 

Calaveras County Water District Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Calaveras County, CA (2012 

Plan Update) 

Project Manager and Senior Planner responsible for the update to the 2006 plan in order to meet the new 

FEMA planning guidance.  The updated plan also included a revised list of hazards including incorporating 

the issue of water supply into the drought hazard, a significant concern to this Northern California Water 

District.  In addition, the risk assessment was significantly expanded to provide an enhanced analysis for 

all hazards.  As a result of this fast-tracked plan, the District was able to successfully apply for a FEMA 

grant to replace redwood water tanks within the wooded areas – a mitigation strategy highlighted in this 

plan update.   

Other Mitigation Planning Work  

➢ City of Fullerton Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan, City of Fullerton, CA (Original Plan 2011) 

➢ Hazard Mitigation Plan, Fresno County, CA (2009 Original Plan) 

➢ Floodplain Management/CRS Services, City of Boulder, Boulder, CO, 2009 

➢ DMA/CRS Plan, City of Boulder, Boulder, CO (2006 Original Plan) 

➢ DMA/Disaster Resistant University (DRU) Plan, University of Colorado, Boulder, CO (2006 Original 

Plan) 

➢ Mississippi Hazard Mitigation Services for Local Communities along Mississippi Gulf Coast, 2008-

2014 

➢ Hazard Mitigation/Climate Adaptation/CRS Plan, City of Waveland MS, (2013 Plan Update)  

➢ Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, City of Pascagoula, MS (2013 Plan Update) 



   

Foster Morrison  1 
Chris Morrison Resume 
November 2018 

Christopher Morrison, MPA, CFM 

Owner/Lead Mitigation Planner 

Professional Biography 

Chris is a co-owner of Foster Morrison Consulting and is the Lead Mitigation Planner/Technical Editor for 

Foster Morrison.  During the past 8 years, he has provided planning, research, writing, technical editing, 

and document production expertise to over 40 different DMA plans for jurisdictions in Arkansas, 

California, Colorado, Louisiana, Mississippi, Missouri, Montana, Nevada, New Mexico, South Dakota, 

Virginia, Wisconsin, and Wyoming.  Recently he has been a key mitigation planner on California Hazard 

Mitigation Plans for the cities of Azusa, Clearlake, Fullerton, Lakeport, Piedmont, San Rafael, and 

Vacaville, as well as Colusa County, Lake County, Madera County, Nevada County, Amador County, Butte 

County, Calaveras County, the Calaveras County Water District, Kern County, Modoc County, Placer 

County, Sacramento County, Sutter County, and the Los Angeles Unified School District.  In addition, he 

has provided technical editing and document production services to clients such as the EPA, BIA, and large 

mining clients in the US, Russia, and Mongolia.  He has also performed large scale technical editing on 

UFOC, SEC, U.S. Supreme Court, U.S. Appeals Court, State Supreme Court, and international court 

documents.  During the completion of his Masters of Public Administration, he was educated in policy 

analysis, grant writing and management, legal analysis, legal research, and financial management for 

government and non-profit entities.  Chris is also a Certified Floodplain Manager. 

Education 

➢ Masters of Public Administration, Minnesota State University Moorhead, 2012 

➢ B.S. in Political Science, Minnesota State University Moorhead, 1998 

Professional Qualifications/Registrations 

➢ Association of State Floodplain Managers 

➢ Certified Floodplain Manager 

Representative Projects 

Hazard Mitigation Plans 

City of Lakeport Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (2018/2019 Original Plan) 

Chris is the primary writer and technical editor for an original local hazard mitigation plan.  His 

responsibilities included review and revision of the plan and conducting research to create a hazard 

identification and risk assessment, demographic data, city profile, formatting, and layout of the plan.  He is 

also responsible for compiling, analyzing, and implementing materials to ensure compliance with FEMA 

guidelines. 

City of Clearlake Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (2018/2019 Original Plan) 

Chris is the primary writer and technical editor for an original local hazard mitigation plan.  His 

responsibilities included review and revision of the plan and conducting research to create a hazard 

identification and risk assessment, demographic data, city profile, formatting, and layout of the plan.  He is 



   

Foster Morrison  2 
Chris Morrison Resume 
November 2018 

also responsible for compiling, analyzing, and implementing materials to ensure compliance with FEMA 

guidelines.   

City of Piedmont Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (2018/2019 Original Plan) 

Chris is the primary writer and technical editor for an original local hazard mitigation plan.  His 

responsibilities included review and revision of the plan and conducting research to update hazard 

identification and risk assessment contents, demographic data, city profile, formatting, and layout of the 

plan.  He is also responsible for compiling, analyzing, and implementing materials to ensure compliance 

with FEMA guidelines.  This plan is being completed in a compressed timeframe. 

City of Azusa Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, City of Azusa, CA (2018 Original Plan) 

Chris served as the primary writer and technical editor for an original local hazard mitigation plan.  His 

responsibilities included review and revision of the plan and conducting research to update hazard 

identification and risk assessment contents, demographic data, city profile, formatting, and layout of the 

plan.  He was also responsible for compiling, analyzing, and implementing materials to ensure compliance 

with FEMA guidelines. 

Colusa County Mitigation Plan Update, Colusa County, CA (2018 Plan Update) 

Chris served as a writer and technical editor for a local hazard mitigation plan update for Colusa County, 

California. His responsibilities included review and revision of the plan and conducting research to create 

hazard analysis and risk assessment contents, demographic data, county profile, formatting and layout for 

the county and participating jurisdictions in the planning region.  He was also responsible for compiling, 

analyzing, and implementing materials to ensure compliance with FEMA guidelines.   

Los Angeles Unified School District, Los Angeles, CA (2018 Plan Update) 

Chris served as a writer and technical editor for a local hazard mitigation plan update for the Los Angeles 

Unified School District, which serves in excess of 500,000 students. His responsibilities included review 

and revision of the plan and conducting research to create hazard analysis and risk assessment contents, 

demographic data, county profile, formatting and layout for the county and participating jurisdictions in the 

planning region.  He was also responsible for compiling, analyzing, and implementing materials to ensure 

compliance with FEMA guidelines.  This plan was completed under a compressed schedule. 

Lake County Mitigation Plan Update, Lake County, CA (2018 Plan Update) 

Chris served as a writer and technical editor for a local hazard mitigation plan update for Lake County, 

California. His responsibilities included review and revision of the plan and conducting research to create 

hazard analysis and risk assessment contents, demographic data, county profile, formatting and layout for 

the county and participating jurisdictions in the planning region.  He was also responsible for compiling, 

analyzing, and implementing materials to ensure compliance with FEMA guidelines.  This plan was a CRS 

focused plan that is being completed under a compressed schedule. 

Madera County Mitigation Plan Update, Madera County, CA (2017 Plan Update) 

Chris served as a writer and technical editor for a local hazard mitigation plan in Madera County, California. 

His responsibilities included review and revision of the plan and conducting research to create hazard 

analysis and risk assessment contents, demographic data, county profile, formatting and layout for the 



   

Foster Morrison  3 
Chris Morrison Resume 
November 2018 

county and participating jurisdictions in the planning region.  He was also responsible for compiling, 

analyzing, and implementing materials to ensure compliance with FEMA guidelines.   

City of San Rafael Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, San Rafael CA (2017 Original) 

Chris served as the primary writer and technical editor for an original local hazard mitigation plan.  His 

responsibilities included review and revision of the plan and conducting research to update hazard 

identification and risk assessment contents, demographic data, city profile, formatting, and layout of the 

plan.  He was also responsible for compiling, analyzing, and implementing materials to ensure compliance 

with FEMA guidelines. 

Nevada County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Nevada County, CA (2017 Plan Update) 

Chris served as the primary writer and technical editor for an updated local hazard mitigation plan.  The 

plan was completed in a compressed time period.  His responsibilities included review and revision of the 

plan and conducting research to update hazard identification and risk assessment contents, demographic 

data, county and jurisdiction profiles, formatting, and layout of the plan.  He was also responsible for 

compiling, analyzing, and implementing materials to ensure compliance with FEMA guidelines.  This plan 

was completed under a compressed schedule. 

Sacramento County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Sacramento County, CA (2011 and 

2016 Plan Update) 

Chris served as the primary writer and technical editor for an updated local hazard mitigation plan in 

Sacramento County, California. His responsibilities included review and revision of the plan and 

conducting research to update hazard analysis and risk assessment contents, demographic data, county 

profile, formatting and layout for the county and participating jurisdictions in the planning region.  He was 

also responsible for compiling, analyzing, and implementing materials to ensure compliance with FEMA 

guidelines.  Chris also worked to ensure that the Plan Update was completed to maximize CRS credits for 

the County. 

Placer County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Placer County, CA (2010 and 2015 Plan 

Updates) 

Chris was the primary writer of two Plan Updates for Placer County (2010 and 2015).  In 2010, the County 

and 15 jurisdictions participated in the planning process.  Chris’s responsibilities included review and 

revision of the plan and conducting research to update hazard analysis and risk assessment contents, 

demographic data, county profile, formatting, and layout.  He was also responsible for compiling, 

analyzing, and implementing materials to ensure compliance with FEMA guidelines.  Foster Morrison is 

kicking off the second plan update for Placer County in spring of 2015.  The 2015 Update will be a CRS 

focused plan to the 2013 CRS Coordinator’s Manuel for Activity 510 and will include an update of all 

hazards of concern, with an emphasis of Flood, Wildfire, and drought.  Climate change impacts and 

adaptation considerations will also be addressed to better inform future development in the County. 

City of Vacaville Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, City of Vacaville, CA (2015 Plan Update) 

Chris was the primary researcher for a hazard mitigation plan update for the City of Vacaville.  His 

responsibilities for this project require researching, compiling, analyzing and presenting accurate hazard 



   

Foster Morrison  4 
Chris Morrison Resume 
November 2018 

profiling for the client.  He was also responsible for compiling, analyzing, and implementing materials to 

ensure compliance with FEMA guidelines. 

Calaveras County Local Mitigation Plan Update, Calaveras County, CA (2010 Original Plan 

and 2015 Update) 

In 2010, Chris served as the primary writer and technical editor for an updated local hazard mitigation plan 

in Calaveras County, California. His responsibilities for this project included review and revision of the 

plan to ensur e plan data accuracy, formatting and layout, and compliance with FEMA guidelines. He was 

also responsible for compiling, analyzing, and implementing materials to ensure compliance with FEMA 

guidelines.  Foster Morrison is developing the 2015 Plan Update due for submittal to Cal OES/FEMA in 

summer of 2015. 

Modoc County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Modoc County, CA (2015 Original Plan) 

Chris is the primary writer and technical editor for a new local hazard mitigation plan in Calaveras County, 

California. His responsibilities for this project include creation of new plan language, ensuring data 

accuracy, formatting and layout, and compliance with FEMA guidelines. He is also responsible for 

compiling, analyzing, and implementing materials to ensure compliance with FEMA guidelines.  The plan 

is on target for submittal to Cal OES and FEMA in early 2016. 

Comprehensive Flood Management Plan (CFMP) Update, City of Sacramento, CA (2014) 

Chris’s responsibilities included review and revision of the historical section of the plan, ensuring that it 

reflected the City of Sacramento’s annex to the Sacramento County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. He 

conducted research to update flood history and risk components since the LHMP had been adopted.  Chris 

was also charged with the technical edit of the entire document.  He was also responsible for compiling, 

analyzing, and implementing materials to ensure compliance with client guidelines. 

Amador County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Amador County, CA (Original 2009 Plan 

and 2014 Plan Update) 

Chris served as the primary writer and technical editor for an updated local hazard mitigation plan.  His 

responsibilities included review and revision of the plan and conducting research to update hazard 

identification and risk assessment contents, demographic data, county and jurisdiction profiles, formatting, 

and layout of the plan.  He was also responsible for compiling, analyzing, and implementing materials to 

ensure compliance with FEMA guidelines. 

Other Mitigation Plan Work 

➢ City of Fullerton Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, City of Fullerton, CA 

➢ Butte County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Butte County, CA 

➢ Sutter County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Sutter County, CA  

➢ Twin Rivers School District Hazard Mitigation Plan, Sacramento County, CA 

➢ Calaveras County Water District Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Calaveras County, CA 

➢ Fresno County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Fresno County, CA 

➢ Kern County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Kern County, CA 

➢ Los Alamos County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Los Alamos County, NM 

➢ Teton County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Teton County, MT 

➢ Liberty County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Liberty County, MT 



   

Foster Morrison  5 
Chris Morrison Resume 
November 2018 

➢ Toole County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Toole County, MT 

➢ Tribal Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, Ute Mountain Ute Tribe, CO 

➢ State of Arkansas Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Little Rock, AR 

➢ State of South Dakota Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan Update (2010 and 2013), Pierre, SD 

➢ City of Waveland Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Waveland, MS 

➢ City of Pascagoula Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Pascagoula, MS 

➢ City of Boulder Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Boulder, CO 

➢ Carbon County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Carbon County, MT 

➢ Big Horn County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Big Horn County, MT 

➢ Washakie County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan, Washakie County, WY 

➢ City of Moss Point Hazard Mitigation Plan, Moss Point, MS 

➢ City of Long Beach Hazard Mitigation Plan, Long Beach, MS 

➢ City of Aurora Energy Assurance Plan, Aurora, CO 

➢ Pearl River County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Pearl River County, MS 

➢ City of Bay St. Louis Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, City of Bay St. Louis, MS 

➢ Southeast Colorado Regional Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan, Southeast Colorado (Counties of Baca, 

Bent, Crowley, Kiowa, Otero, and Prowers) 

➢ State of Colorado Drought Mitigation and Response Plan, Denver, CO 

➢ City of Bossier City Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, City of Bossier City, LA 

➢ State of Missouri Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Jefferson City, MO 

➢ Jefferson County Multi-Jurisdictional Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Jefferson County, CO 

➢ Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Northeast Colorado (Counties of Cheyenne, Kit Carson, 

Lincoln, Logan, Morgan, Phillips, Sedgwick, Washington, Weld, and Yuma 

➢ Washoe County Multi Hazard Mitigation Plan, Washoe County, NV 

➢ Dane County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Dane County, WI 

➢ Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, City of Poquoson, VA 

Other Technical Editing Work 

➢ Oyu Tolgoi Gold and Copper Mine Detailed Integration Development and Operation Plan (DIDOP) 

➢ Resolution Copper Prefeasibility Study (PFS) 

➢ Tuba City Dumpsite Remedial Investigation Study 

➢ Colorado Energy Assurance Plan 

➢ Ak-Sug Prefeasibility Study (PFS) 



   

Foster Morrison  1 
Alejandro Gutierrez Resume 
November 2018 

Alejandro Gutierrez 

GIS Analyst 

Professional Biography 

Alejandro has 16 years of GIS data development, analysis, conversion, and manipulation within various 

GIS industries (floodplain mapping, E-911 data development, remote sensing, hydrogeology, and mining).  

For 6 years, Alejandro worked in a key capacity with FEMA on their Map Modernization (DFIRM) 

Program.  As a GIS Project Manager, Production Manager, and GIS Analyst for the development of 27 

county-wide vector- and ortho-based DFIRMs in FEMA Regions III, V, VII, and VIII, he developed a 

strong team/work environment, trained staff in production techniques, tracked budgets and schedules, and 

has traveled to study areas to coordinate public outreach meetings to discuss the new DFIRMs with the 

city/county officials, floodplain managers, emergency management officials, local engineers, FEMA 

representatives, NFIP coordinators, and the public.  Alejandro has also provided mitigation planning and 

GIS support for multiple California DMA plan updates: Calaveras, Fresno, Lake, Colusa, Modoc, Madera, 

Nevada, Placer, Sacramento, and Sutter counties, as well as for the cities of Lakeport, Clearlake, Piedmont, 

San Rafael and Azusa, and the Los Angeles Unified School District.   For the DMA plans, he generated 

thematic and illustrative facilities and hazards maps, both at the countywide and city scales, to represent 

FIRM data and to quantify risks to the county using parcel and assessor’s value data.  He also generated the 

standardized map template to present the wildfire risk analysis, also at the parcel level, using GIS data from 

the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection.  He has used the ESRI tools and Microsoft 

Access to perform flood analysis using FIRM data on parcels (land use type and valuation data) by city and 

performed the wildfire analysis using the same methodology.  Alejandro has also provided mitigation 

planning and GIS support for three state hazard mitigation plan updates: Wyoming, Missouri, and 

Mississippi. For the state plans, Alejandro supported the initial GIS data collection efforts by contacting 

the county and jurisdictional representatives; created state, county, and jurisdictional thematic maps 

utilizing local and national DFIRM and HAZUS generated data; and also created thematic maps depicting 

earthquake, soil, and loss ratios utilizing local, national and HAZUS generated data.  Alejandro has FEMA 

public assistance (PA) experience working directly with and within the County communities as a recovery 

specialist responsible for conducting flood-site assessments and developing mitigation improvement reports 

at sites in Larimer County, Colorado through coordination with several consulting firms, County, and 

FEMA. These efforts were focused on the Public Improvement Districts, private roads, and public roads to 

support bid packages necessary for FEMA to allocate disaster funds to the State and County. 

Education 

➢ University of TX, Austin, TX - BA Environmental Resource Management, 1999 

Professional Qualifications/Registrations 

➢ Rocky Mountain Hazus Users Group  



   

Foster Morrison  2 
Alejandro Gutierrez Resume 
November 2018 

Representative Projects 

Hazard Mitigation Plans 

City of Lakeport Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (2018/2019 Original Plan) 

Alejandro is the lead GIS analyst for the City of Lakeport LHMP.  He is performing GIS analysis on natural 

hazards such as earthquake, fire, dam failure, and flood to support the LHMP.  He is analyzing population, 

critical facilities, and improved parcels at risk to hazards, as well as generating thematic and illustrative 

facilities hazards maps to represent hazard data and to quantify risks to the City using parcel and assessor’s 

data.  

City of Clearlake Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (2018/2019 Original Plan) 

Alejandro is the lead GIS analyst for the City of Clearlake LHMP.  He is performing GIS analysis on natural 

hazards such as earthquake, dam failure, fire, and flood to support the LHMP.  He is analyzing population, 

critical facilities, and improved parcels at risk to hazards, as well as generating thematic and illustrative 

facilities hazards maps to represent hazard data and to quantify risks to the City using parcel and assessor’s 

data.  

City of Piedmont Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, City of Piedmont (2018/2019 Original Plan) 

Alejandro is the lead GIS analyst for the City of Piedmont LHMP.  He is performing GIS analysis on natural 

hazards such as earthquake, fire, dam failure, liquefaction, and flood to support the LHMP.  He is analyzing 

population, critical facilities, and improved parcels at risk to hazards, as well as generating thematic and 

illustrative facilities hazards maps to represent hazard data and to quantify risks to the City using parcel and 

assessor’s data.  

Los Angeles Unified School District Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Los Angeles Unified 

School District (2018 Plan Update) 

Alejandro was the lead GIS analyst for the Los Angeles Unified School District LHMP Update.  He is 

performed GIS analysis on natural hazards such as earthquake, fire, dam failure, landslide, tsunami, and 

flood to support the LHMP.  Analyzed population (using school data), critical facilities, and parcels at risk 

to hazards.  Generating thematic and illustrative facilities and hazards maps to represent hazard data and to 

quantify risks to the District using parcel and assessor’s value data. He is performing an analysis of future 

development areas. 

City of Azusa Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, City of Azusa (2018 Original Plan) 

Alejandro was the lead GIS analyst for the City of Azusa LHMP.  He performed GIS analysis on with 

natural hazards such as earthquake, fire, dam failure, landslide, and flood to support the LHMP.  Analyzed 

population, critical facilities, and improved parcels at risk to hazards.  Generated thematic and illustrative 

facilities and hazards maps to represent hazard data and to quantify risks to the City using parcel and 

assessor’s value data. He also performed analysis of future development areas. 

Lake County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Lake County, CA (2018 Plan Update) 

Alejandro is the lead GIS analyst for the Lake County LHMP update.  He will perform GIS analysis on 

with natural hazards such as earthquake, fire, dam failure, landslide, subsidence, and flood to support the 



   

Foster Morrison  3 
Alejandro Gutierrez Resume 
November 2018 

LHMP update.  He will analyze population, critical facilities, and improved parcels at risk to hazards.  He 

will generate thematic and illustrative facilities and hazards maps to represent hazard data and to quantify 

risks to the County using parcel and assessor’s value data.  He will perform analysis of future development 

areas, if available.   

Madera County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Madera County, CA (2017 Plan Update) 

Alejandro was the lead GIS analyst for the Madera County LHMP update.  He performed GIS analysis on 

with natural hazards such as earthquake, fire, dam failure, landslide, liquefaction and flood to support the 

LHMP.  Analyzed population, critical facilities, and improved parcels at risk to hazards.  Generated 

thematic and illustrative facilities and hazards maps to represent hazard data and to quantify risks to the 

County and participating jurisdictions using parcel and assessor’s value data. He also performed analysis 

of future development areas.   

Nevada County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Nevada County, CA (2017 Update) 

Alejandro was the lead GIS analyst for the Nevada County LHMP update.  He performed GIS analysis on 

with natural hazards such as earthquake, fire, and flood to support the Plan Update.  Analyzed population, 

critical facilities, and improved parcels at risk to hazards.  Generated thematic and illustrative facilities and 

hazards maps, both at the countywide and city scales, to represent hazard data and to quantify risks to the 

County and participating jurisdictions using parcel and assessor’s value data.  He also performed analysis 

of future development areas. 

City of San Rafael Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, City of San Rafael (2017 Original Plan) 

Alejandro was the lead GIS analyst for the City of San Rafael LHMP.  He performed GIS analysis on with 

natural hazards such as earthquake, fire, dam failure, tsunami, and flood to support the LHMP.  Analyzed 

population, critical facilities, and improved parcels at risk to hazards.  Generated thematic and illustrative 

facilities and hazards maps to represent hazard data and to quantify risks to the City using parcel and 

assessor’s value data. He also performed analysis of future development areas. 

Sacramento County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Sacramento County, CA (2011 and 

2016 Plan Update) 

Assisted in GIS analysis for the Sacramento County update.  Performed GIS analysis on with natural 

hazards such as earthquake, fire, and flood, and levee failure to support the Sacramento County Plan Update.  

Analyzed population, critical facilities, and improved parcels at risk to hazards.  Created maps to show 

relationships of hazards to earthquake shaking, wildfire, levee failure, and flooding (in FEMA flood zones) 

to the communities and the county.  In addition, Alejandro created bundled GIS data to individual special 

districts, allowing them to overlay their in-house data directly over Foster Morrison analysis and maps. 

Modoc County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Modoc County, CA (2015 Original Plan) 

Alejandro was the lead GIS analyst for the Modoc County update.  Performed GIS analysis on with natural 

hazards such as earthquake, fire, and flood to support the Plan Update.  Analyzed population, critical 

facilities, and improved parcels at risk to hazards.  Generated thematic and illustrative facilities and hazards 

maps, both at the countywide and city scales, to represent hazard data and to quantify risks to the county 

using parcel and assessor’s value data.   



   

Foster Morrison  4 
Alejandro Gutierrez Resume 
November 2018 

Sutter County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Sutter County, CA (2012 Plan Update) 

Assisted in GIS analysis for the Sutter County plan update.  Performed GIS analysis on with natural hazards 

such as earthquake, fire, and flood, and levee failure to support the Sutter County Plan Update.  Analyzed 

population, critical facilities, and improved parcels at risk to hazards.  Created maps to show relationships 

of hazards to earthquake shaking, wildfire, levee failure, and flooding (in FEMA flood zones) to the 

communities and the County. 

Calaveras County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Calaveras County, CA (2010 Original 

Plan and 2015 Plan Update) 

Alejandro assisted in GIS analysis for the Calaveras County Plan in 2010, and was the lead GIS analyst in 

the 2015 Plan Update.  Performed GIS analysis on with natural hazards such as earthquake, fire, and flood 

to support the Plan Update.  Analyzed population, critical facilities, and improved parcels at risk to hazards.  

Generated thematic and illustrative facilities and hazards maps, both at the countywide and city scales, to 

represent hazard data and to quantify risks to the county using parcel and assessor’s value data.   

Placer County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Placer County Office of Emergency 

Services, Placer County, CA (2010 and 2015 Plan Updates) 

Alejandro assisted in GIS analysis for the Placer County update in 2010.  He was the lead GIS analyst in 

the 2015 Plan Update.  Performed GIS analysis on with natural hazards such as earthquake, fire, landslide, 

and flood to support both the 2010 and 2015 Placer County Plan Update.  Analyzed population, critical 

facilities, and improved parcels at risk to hazards.  Generated thematic and illustrative facilities and hazards 

maps, both at the countywide and city scales, to represent hazard data and to quantify risks to the county 

using parcel and assessor’s value data.   

Fresno County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Fresno County, CA (2009 Original Plan) 

Performed GIS analysis on with natural hazards such as earthquake, fire, and flood to support the Fresno 

County Plan Update.  Analyzed population, critical facilities, and improved parcels at risk to hazards.  

Created maps to show relationships of hazards to earthquake shaking, wildfire, and FEMA flood zones to 

the communities and the County. 

Other Mitigation Planning Work 

➢ Wyoming Mitigation Plan Update - Wyoming Office of Homeland Security, State of Wyoming 

➢ Flood Decision Support System – Flood DSS, Riverside Technology, Inc., Colorado 

➢ Missouri Mitigation Plan Update and Mapping Needs Assessment – Missouri State of Emergency 

Management Agency (SEMA), State of Missouri 

➢ Mississippi Hazard Mitigation Plan – Earthquake Maps June 2007, Mississippi 

DFIRM Work  

➢ State of South Dakota - Brown, Davison, Sanborn, and Spink County DFIRMs. 

➢ Bowen Collins & Associates, State of Utah – Box Elder, Iron, Moab/Grand, Sevier, Wasatch, 

Washington County DFIRMs.   

➢ State of Missouri – State Emergency Management Agency (SEMA) – Boone, Franklin, Henry, Howell, 

Johnson, Lawrence, Perry, St. Louis, Wayne County DFIRMs  

➢ North Dakota State Water Commission – Stark County DFIRM.  

➢ State of Alabama – Colbert County DFIRM 



   

Foster Morrison  5 
Alejandro Gutierrez Resume 
November 2018 

➢ State of Arizona – Mohave County DFIRM 

➢ State of Kentucky DOW – Henderson County DFIRM 

➢ State of West Virginia – Greenbrier, Mineral, Webster Counties, WV DFIRM 

➢ State of Virginia – Prince George County DFIRM 

➢ State of Maryland – Alleghany County DFIRM 

Dam Inundation Mapping 

➢ Critical Infrastructure Protection and Resiliency (CIPR) – Dam Break Inundation Mapping: CONUS, 

USACE Nationwide, 2010 



   

Howell Consulting  1 
Brenna Howell Resume 
November 2018 

Brenna Howell 

QA/QC, Man-Made Hazards, and Capabilities Assessment 

Professional Biography 

Brenna Howell has more than 15 years of consulting experience with the last 10 years focused on 

development of local Emergency Operations Plans, local Hazard Mitigation Plans, and hazard-specific 

functional annexes (including Floods) specifically for California local government jurisdictions.  She has 

performed such work for Colusa, Kings, Merced, Nevada, Sacramento, Sutter, Yolo, and Yuba counties.  

Brenna has also completed work for multiple cities such as Lakeport, Clearlake, Piedmont, Winters, 

Woodland, West Sacramento, Davis, Sacramento, Chico, Piedmont, Los Banos, Avenal, and Hanford. 

Brenna has served as the Emergency Services Coordinator the cities of Stockton and West Sacramento, as 

well as the County of Yolo providing full emergency management program management responsibilities. 

Brenna is fully conversant with the concepts and protocols of the National Incident Management System 

(NIMS) and the California Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS). She has been managing 

projects for many years and has a proven track record in managing consultant teams to plan and implement 

large and small emergency planning projects. 

Education 

➢ Bachelor’s of Science – Emergency Management and Public Safety, Grand Canyon University, 2013. 

Representative Projects 

General Project Experience 

Brenna Howell has completed FEMA-approved Hazard Mitigation planning projects for the Kings, Sierra, 

Merced, Yolo, and Yuba Counties.  Brenna recently completed over 30 Flood Emergency Operations Plan 

for Reclamation Districts in San Joaquin County and has completed many Basic Emergency Operations 

Plans throughout California. Brenna has served as Project Manager for Sacramento County on several 

planning projects such as their Fall Functional Exercise Team and After Action Report, the Evacuation 

Standard Operating Procedures, and their Continuity of Operations Plan projects.  Brenna also serves other 

emergency management firms and companies as a sub-contractor to utilize her expertise in the area of 

Emergency Operations Center management and function, as well as an Emergency Operations Plan subject 

matter expertise as recent as January 2017. 

Sample Emergency Management and Hazard Mitigation Plans 

City of Lakeport 

Brenna is working with Foster Morrison on a single jurisdiction Local Hazard Mitigation Plan with the City 

of Lakeport.  She will work on specific hazards, the capability assessment, and will provide QA/QC.  She 

will assist with the risk assessment and mitigation strategy meetings.   

City of Clearlake 

Brenna is working with Foster Morrison on a single jurisdiction Local Hazard Mitigation Plan with the City 

of Clearlake.  She will work on specific hazards, the capability assessment, and will provide QA/QC.  She 

will assist with the risk assessment and mitigation strategy meetings.   



Howell Consulting  2 
Brenna Howell Resume 
November 2018 

City of Piedmont 

Brenna is working with Foster Morrison on a single jurisdiction Local Hazard Mitigation Plan with the City 

of Piedmont.  She will work on the capability assessment as well as providing QA/QC.  She will assist with 

the risk assessment and mitigation strategy meetings.   

Lake County 

Brenna worked on a single jurisdiction Local Hazard Mitigation Plan with Lake County.  She wrote the 

cyanobacterial and quagga mussel hazards, as well as the EOP annex to the Lake County Local Hazard 

Mitigation Plan Update.  She also assisted with the risk assessment and mitigation strategy meetings.   

Colusa County 

Brenna worked with the incorporated jurisdictions and special districts in Nevada County to create annexes 

to the Lake County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update.  She also assisted with the risk assessment and 

mitigation strategy meetings.   

Los Angeles Unified School District 

Brenna is working with the Los Angeles Unified School District to create the LAUSD Hazard Mitigation 

Plan Update.  She is working on man-made hazards profiles and vulnerability assessments.  She also 

assisted with the risk assessment and mitigation strategy meetings.   

Nevada County 

Brenna worked with the incorporated jurisdictions and special districts in Nevada County to create annexes 

to the Nevada County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update.  She also assisted with the risk assessment 

and mitigation strategy meetings.   

Merced County 

Brenna worked with Merced County on multiple planning processes:  Merced County Emergency 

Operations Plan update, Local Hazard Mitigation Plan development (FEMA approved), Access and 

Functional Needs Plan development, EOC Training for the County and Cities, Mass Care and Shelter 

planning, and Continuity of Operations Plan update for the County and the cities of Atwater, Dos Palos, 

Gustine, Livingston, Los Banos and Merced.  Consultant selected October 2010 to present. 

Yolo County 

Emergency Operations Plan development, Local multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan update and 

revision, development of their Emergency Support Function Annexes (1-15), back-up Emergency Services 

Coordinator to the County Emergency Manger, provide overall emergency management support on a 

contract basis. 

Yuba County 

Brenna worked with Yuba County on a Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan update and 

revision.  She also assisted the County with a Reclamation District Flood Response Plan was the Mapping 

Project Manager.   



Howell Consulting  3 
Brenna Howell Resume 
November 2018 

Kings County 

Kings County Local multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan update and revision, Emergency 

Operations Plan update and revision, several functional annexes (Mass Care, Access and Functional Needs, 

Emergency Operations Center). 

Other Local, State, and Federal Planning Involvement 

Brenna is currently a part-time Emergency Services Coordinator for the City of West Sacramento.  She 

developed their Emergency Management Team policies and procedures, revised their All-Hazards EOP and 

coordinated with the West Sacramento Police Department on the development of the city’s Evacuation 

plan. Other city responsibilities include, the oversite of day to day emergency management responsibilities 

and direct assistance in the areas of: planning, training, preparedness, response, recovery, and mitigation.  

While at the City of West Sacramento, Brenna served on the Yolo County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

revision planning team.  This was a critical planning effort for the City of West Sacramento.   

While working at the former Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (OES), Brenna provided direct 

support to Operational Areas (cities, counties, and special districts) as well as state agencies in coordinating 

all aspects of emergency preparedness, planning, training, exercise development, response, recovery and 

grant administration.  Brenna was also responsible for special projects such as:  West Nile Virus, 

agricultural rendering, regional evacuation planning, Delta flooding issues and multi-agency coordination.   

During Brenna’s tenure at OES she responded to numerous emergencies and disasters statewide, in both 

Liaison and Agency Representative roles to ensure compliance with the Standardized Emergency 

Management System (SEMS).  Brenna served many of the county governments in which she was assigned 

on their local hazard mitigation planning teams during the release of FEMA’s DMA 2000 program.  She 

provided technical expertise to the counties during the release of this new federal program.  Additionally, 

while in those response roles, Brenna worked to broker Mutual Aid resources and information. She has 

served in Emergency Operations Centers at all levels of government and has been assigned to several field 

level Incident Command Posts.  In 2004, Brenna was appointed to a team that responded out of state to the 

Florida Hurricanes. 



 
 

Foster Morrison Consulting 
5628 W Long Pl  

Litt l e ton, CO 80123 

303.717.7171 

www.fostermor rison.com 



Proposal to Develop Hidden Valley Lake 
Community Services District’s Local Hazard 
Mitigation Plan
Prepared for: 
Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District
Attn: Alyssa Gordon, Water Resources Specialist
19400 Hartmann Road
Hidden Valley Lake, California 95476
(707) 987-9201
agordon@hvlcsd.org 

Prepared by:
Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. 
Attn: Juliana Prosperi, AICP
10940 White Rock Road, Suite 190
Rancho Cordova, California 95670
(916) 853-8903
juliana.prosperi@woodplc.com 

November 5, 2018



 

 

 

 
Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. 

10940 White Rock Road, Suite 190 

Rancho Cordova, California 95670 

T: (916) 636-3200 

F: (916) 636-3208 

www.woodplc.com 

 

 
‘Wood’ is a trading name for John Wood Group PLC and its subsidiaries 

5 November 2018 

 

Attn: Alyssa Gordon, Water Resources Specialist 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

19400 Hartmann Road 

Hidden Valley Lake, CA 95467 

 

Subject: Proposal to Prepare a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

 

Dear Ms. Gordon: 

 

The Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. (Wood) team consists of expert and experienced planning 

professionals who are ready to develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) for the Hidden Valley Lake 

Community Services District (District) as described in the Request for Proposal dated 22 October 2018. We have 

brought together an outstanding team of uniquely qualified planning professionals to prepare the District’s 

LHMP. Our team has prepared numerous single and multi-jurisdictional plans throughout California, as well as 

LHMPs for special districts. We have in-depth knowledge of and experience with new requirements under the 

Disaster Mitigation Act, as well as the planning requirements for the Flood Mitigation Assistance Program, and 

the National Flood Insurance Program Community Rating System. Recently, our team has provided hazard 

mitigation planning services for Fresno, Placer, Kern, Sacramento, San Luis Obispo, Sutter, and Amador counties, 

the City of Tracy and for the Calaveras County Water District. 

Highlights of our team capabilities, strengths, and our approach include: 

• Hazard Mitigation Lead with over 23 years of professional experience and a demonstrated record of success 

working closely with local agencies to identify creative solutions to complex hazard planning issues, 

including preparation of over 40 LHMPs and updates and expertise with climate adaptation, flood 

management, and drought planning.  

• Project Manager located in Rancho Cordova, California with 17 years of professional experience preparing 

land use plans, specifically General Plans, Hazard Mitigation Plans, and environmental documentation.  

• A technical team with expertise in using Geographic Information Systems, FEMA’s HAZUS 4.2 software, 

RiskMap, and other spatial analysis tools to provide mapping updates and Level 2 vulnerability assessments. 

Wood understands that this effort will allow the District to become eligible for grants under the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency’s Hazard Mitigation Assistance program. Because our key staff have prepared 

approved plans for nearby jurisdictions and water districts in the Sierra Nevada region, we understand the 

environmental conditions, natural hazards, and development patterns within the region. We also plan to utilize 

local technical staff from our Petaluma, Oakland, and Rancho Cordova offices to ensure we provide a timely and 

cost-effective LHMP. For these reasons, we are confident we are the most qualified firm to develop the District’s 

LHMP.  

Mr. Walter Kim has the authority to negotiate and contractually bind Wood with the District and the terms of the 

proposal. We understand that following selection of the most qualified firm, a final professional services 

agreement will be negotiated. Should you have any questions, please contact Mr. Kim at (916) 853-8946 or our 



Ms. Alyssa Gordon 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

5 November 2018 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

Project Manager, Ms. Juliana Prosperi, AICP at (303) 503-7794. We look forward to the opportunity to work with 

you. 

Sincerely, 

Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. 

Juliana Prosperi, AICP 

Senior Environmental Planner 

Walter H. Kim, ENV SP 

Senior Associate Engineer 

Direct: (916) 853-3200 

Cell: (303) 503-7794 

juliana.prosperi@woodplc.com  

Direct: (916) 853-8946 

Cell: (916) 743-1533 

walter.kim@woodplc.com  

 

Attachments: [Firm Qualifications, Detailed Scope of Work, Cost Estimate, Schedule, Firm References, 

Resumes] 

mailto:juliana.prosperi@woodplc.com
mailto:walter.kim@woodplc.com


 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 1 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

Table of Contents 

1. Introduction ............................................................................................. 2 

Firm Qualifications ................................................................................................................. 3 

2. Project Personnel and Management ...................................................... 3 

3. Experience ................................................................................................ 7 

Calaveras County Water District Hazard Mitigation Plan – Original and Updates ...... 8 

Fresno County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan – Original Plan and Updates ................. 9 

Kern Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan – Original Plan and Updates .................................. 9 

4. Scope of Work ........................................................................................ 10 

Our Understanding .............................................................................................................. 10 

Our Approach ....................................................................................................................... 11 

Phase 1: Organize, Coordinate, and Initiate Outreach Development .......................... 12 

Planning Step 1: Develop the Planning Process ......................................................................................... 12 

Planning Step 2: Public Outreach and Contact Coordination ................................................................... 13 

Planning Step 3: Coordinate with Other Departments and Agencies ..................................................... 13 

Phase 2: Identify Hazards and Assess Risks...................................................................... 14 

Planning Step 4: Identify the Hazards .......................................................................................................... 14 

Planning Step 5: Assess the Risks .................................................................................................................. 15 

Phase 3: Prepare the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan ........................................................ 16 

Planning Step 6: Draft Goals .......................................................................................................................... 16 

Planning Step 7: Review Possible Activities ................................................................................................ 16 

Planning Step 8: Draft the Action Plan ......................................................................................................... 17 

Phase 4: Plan Submittal to Agencies and Board of Directors Adoption ...................... 17 

Planning Step 9: Plan Submittal and Adoption .......................................................................................... 17 

Planning Step 10: Implement, Evaluate, and Revise the Plan ................................................................... 18 

Phase 5: Meeting Attendance ............................................................................................ 18 

Schedule ................................................................................................................................ 19 

5. Cost Estimate ......................................................................................... 20 



Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 2 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

1. Introduction 

Wood Environment and Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. (Wood) is pleased to submit this proposal in 

response to your request to prepare a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) for the Hidden Valley Lake 

Community Services District (District). Wood is uniquely qualified to perform the work as we have 

successfully prepared Hazard Mitigation Plans for municipalities and special districts across California for 

the past 25 years, and for various state, regional, and local agencies across the western United States. 

Wood follows a proven approach that has been applied successfully in our California mitigation planning 

projects, including for various hazard mitigation planning projects for Fresno, Placer, Kern, Sacramento, 

Sutter, Amador, and Calaveras Counties and others across the United States. We carefully follow an 

integrated plan development process that meets the process and technical requirements of the Disaster 

Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA) as well as the planning requirements for the Flood Mitigation Assistance 

Program (FMA), and the National Flood Insurance Program Community Rating System (CRS). Our plans 

also follow the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 2013 Local Mitigation Planning 

Handbook and 2011 Local Mitigation Plan Review Guide, and we ensure that plans developed in California 

comply with Senate Bill (SB) 379, SB 1000, among other state legislation that applies to cities and counties 

(i.e., SB 2140). Wood’s plans have not only received approval by the California Office of Emergency 

Services (Cal OES) and FEMA, but much praise. Most importantly, our clients have been satisfied as well. In 

fact, we have completed several plan updates for our original planning clients, such as Fresno, Placer, 

Sacramento, and Kern counties, and for Calaveras County Water District. We also recently started 

preparing the City of Tracy LHMP and San Luis Obispo County’s Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan Update.  

This proposal is being submitted by Wood’s Rancho Cordova office. We are an international 

environmental and engineering services firm with more than 65,000 employees in 50 countries worldwide. 

We operate more than 100 offices in North America comprising more than 4,000 scientists, geologists, 

engineers, biologists, planners, and other specialists, including 500 professionals in California. Wood 

operates 12 California offices, including our Rancho Cordova, Petaluma, and Oakland offices, which will 

support the District’s LHMP project. Information on the main three offices that will be involved in this 

project are provided below: 

► Rancho Cordova Office 

10940 White Rock Road, Suite 190 

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 

(916) 853-8903 

 

► Petaluma Office 

1670 Corporate Circle, Suite 101 

Petaluma, CA 94954 

(707) 793-3800 

 

► Oakland Office 

180 Grand Avenue, Suite 1100 

Oakland, CA 94612 

(510) 663-4100 

 

► Boulder Office 

1002 Walnut Street, Suite 200 

Boulder, CO 80302 

(303) 443-7839 

Both Mr. Marc Lombardi and Mr. Walter Kim with the Rancho Cordova office are authorized to negotiate 

contracts with the District. Their name, title, and contact information are provided below. 

► Mr. Marc R. Lombardi, CEM, PG 

(916) 853-8903 

marc.lombardi@woodplc.com  

► Mr. Walter H. Kim, ENV SP 

(916) 853-8946 

walter.kim@woodplc.com  

mailto:marc.lombardi@woodplc.com
mailto:walter.kim@woodplc.com


 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 3 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

Firm Qualifications 

Hazard mitigation plan development is one of Wood’s (formerly Amec Foster Wheeler) core 

competencies. Wood has developed DMA compliant mitigation plans since 2003, but our mitigation 

planning staff brings a rich background of experience that is rooted in the development of FEMA’s 

original mitigation planning programs. Our comprehensive mitigation planning experience includes 

developing and teaching FEMA’s hazard mitigation planning courses, conducting detailed risk 

assessments, and coordinating multi-jurisdictional, multi-disciplinary planning teams and stakeholders. 

Additionally, Wood has demonstrated success in providing cost-benefit analysis, securing funding, and 

implementing mitigation projects for local and state governments. 

Wood has notable prior experience developing DMA, FMA, and CRS compliant plans. Our hazard 

mitigation planning experience includes 138 state and local hazard mitigation plans in 16 states within 

seven FEMA regions, including 17 in California, providing coverage for well over 1,200 jurisdictions. All 

planning efforts took place in the past 12 years and most were approved as submitted, with minimal 

requests for changes from FEMA. The scope of these mitigation plans ranges in size and complexity from 

a single jurisdiction plan for a small rural county or special district, to a disaster resistant university plan 

for a major state university, to an 11-county multi-jurisdictional plan covering 21,600 square miles with 

176 participating local governments. 

2. Project Personnel and Management 

Our team is well qualified to prepare the District’s LHMP. We have availability and can perform these 

services using our Rancho Cordova, Petaluma, and Oakland, California planning staff and Boulder, 

Colorado emergency management, planning, and GIS experts. Wood’s most qualified and experienced 

hazard mitigation planning staff are immediately available to begin work on this project. These core staff 

have been involved in the development of multiple local mitigation plans and plan updates that meet 

DMA, FMA, and CRS planning requirements and are uniquely knowledgeable of natural hazards and 

mitigation strategies. Our team will be managed by Ms. Juliana Prosperi, an American Institute of 

Professional Planners (AICP)-certified planner, supported by Mr. Jeff Brislawn, a Certified Floodplain 

Manager (CFM), and overseen by Kyle Karsjen, our Senior Emergency Management Specialist and QA/QC 

Manager. The table below summarizes key personnel education project experience; professional 

affiliations, licenses or certifications; and qualifications on relevant and recent California projects. The table 

also highlights key personnel’s primary responsibilities. Resumes are included at the end of the proposal. 

Staff Qualifications Summary 

Name Education Experience and Expertise 

Jeff Brislawn, CFM 

 

• MS/Geology, 

Engineering/Environmental 

Specialization/Colorado State 

University, 1992  

• BS/Geology/Ohio University/Athens, 

OH, 1987 

• Senior Hazard Mitigation Specialist 

and Project Manager with over 23 

years of experience working on 

hazard mitigation plans, including 

three recent County multi-hazard 

mitigation plans located in California 

• Certified Floodplain Manager 

Kyle Karsjen • Bachelor of Science, Community and 

Regional Planning/Iowa State 

University, 2004 

• Senior Emergency Management 

Specialist with 15 years of experience  

• Expertise reviewing and ensuring 

quality assurance/quality control 



Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 4 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

Name Education Experience and Expertise 

(QA/QC) on draft LHMPs and MHMPs 

Juliana Prosperi, AICP, 

LEED AP®, ENV SP 

• MA/Environmental Science and 

Energy Analysis/Boston University, 

2004 

• BA/Environmental Studies/University 

of Colorado – Boulder, 2001 

• BA/English/University of Colorado – 

Boulder, 2001 

• AICP-certified planner with versatile 

planning expertise in California 

• Over 17 years of experience providing 

planning, outreach, stakeholder 

engagement, and facilitation support 

• Applies climate change science to 

hazard assessments and develops 

climate adaptation strategies  

Marta Blanco Castano 

 

• MS/Geographic Information 

Science/University of Denver, 2017 

• BA/ Geography and Environmental 

Studies, University of Colorado, 2015 

Provides Geographic Information 

Systems (GIS) and planning for local 

and state hazard mitigation plans 

• Expertise in GIS geodatabase 

management and organization of 

spatial datasets 

Amy Carr • MURP/Urban and Regional 

Planning/University of Colorado 

Denver, 2017  

• BA/Urban Studies/College of 

Charleston, 2014 

• Experience working on hazard 

mitigation plans for state, regional, 

and local agencies 

• Expertise supporting community 

outreach engagement 

Annie Berlingheiri  • MS/Geology, West Virginia 

University, 2013 

• BA/Earth and Planetary Sciences, 

Ohio Wesleyan University, 2007 

 

• Five years of experience providing 

support with flooding and dam failure 

technical analysis and mapping 

• Excellent technical writing and 

analysis skills 

Our project organizational chart is provided below, followed by short biographies of key staff members 

that include a summary of experience on similar projects. Ms. Juliana Prosperi will be the main point-of-

contact with the District and will be responsible for overall management, and tracking the project 

deliverables, schedule, and budget. Mr. Jeff Brislawn, our Senior Hazard Mitigation Specialist, will provide 

oversight and direction on all planning phases, with support from the Hazard Mitigation and Emergency 

Management staff in Rancho Cordova, Petaluma, and Oakland, California; and Boulder, Colorado.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 5 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

Organizational Chart 

 

Jeff Brislawn, CFM – Senior Hazard Mitigation Specialist: Mr. Brislawn will serve as the Senior Hazard 

Mitigation Specialist for the District’s LHMP. Among other tasks, Mr. Brislawn will assist in scoping 

mitigation projects for the LHMP that will be likely candidates for successful FEMA mitigation funds. Mr. 

Brislawn is the Hazard Mitigation Lead/Sr. Associate in Wood’s Hazard Mitigation and Emergency 

Management Program and has over 23 years of experience in Emergency Management, GIS and 

mitigation planning work for state and federal governments, as well as technical assistance to local 

governments. Mr. Brislawn has been the project manager on several DMA compliant local and state 

hazard mitigation plans, including Fresno and Kern counties, as well as provided GIS-based risk analysis in 

support of many others. Mr. Brislawn also has specialized experience with dam failure evacuation planning 

efforts, drought planning, and climate adaptation planning. Mr. Brislawn is experienced with FEMA 

mitigation grant programs and has assisted local and state governments with the development of 

technically feasible, cost effective and environmentally sound mitigation project applications. Mr. Brislawn 

is an experienced user of FEMA’s cost-benefit analysis software modules and HAZUS, FEMA’s multi-hazard 

loss estimation software. Mr. Brislawn has provided GIS and natural hazards mitigation technical 

assistance to the FEMA Mitigation Division during times of disaster, travelled to disaster areas (1994 

Northridge earthquake and 1989 Loma Prieta earthquake), and assisted with community outreach. 

Kyle Karsjen – Senior Emergency Management Specialist/Quality Assurance/Quality Control: Mr. 

Karsjen is the Senior Emergency Management Specialist for Wood’s Hazard Mitigation and Emergency 

Management Program. Mr. Karsjen has over 15 years of experience in emergency management in both 

government and the private sector, including threat/hazard identification and risk assessment, capabilities 



Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 6 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

assessment, hazard mitigation, emergency response planning, 

infrastructure and asset protection, strategic planning, and 

program assessment. Mr. Karsjen has served as project manager 

on a variety of projects across the Midwest and Western regions 

of the United States, as well as providing support for projects 

across the country. Throughout his career, Mr. Karsjen has been 

responsible for the development of an assortment of plans and 

planning products, most of which have involved facilitating 

diverse groups of stakeholders toward the development and 

implementation of specific planning and project goals. 

Additionally, Mr. Karsjen has offered guidance and technical 

assistance on hazard mitigation and emergency response plan 

development to counties and communities.  

Juliana Prosperi, AICP, LEED AP®, ENV SP – Project Manager: Ms. Prosperi has over 17 years of 

experience and is an AICP-certified planner. She is also a regulatory compliance specialist with expertise in 

environmental, transportation, and land use planning with an emphasis on hazard mitigation, climate 

adaptation, and sustainability planning and policy. Ms. Prosperi has worked extensively as an 

environmental consultant on projects ranging from new schools, linear electric and water infrastructure 

development, renewable energy, mines, land use, hazard mitigation plans, and parks, trails, and recreation 

master plans. As a project manager, her skills span compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act, 

California Environmental Quality Act, and Tahoe Regional Planning Agency Regional Plan and Code of 

Ordinances. As a land use planner, Ms. Prosperi regularly conducts environmental review, successfully 

manages multi-disciplinary teams in the preparation of national and state environmental impact 

documents, prepares Local and Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plans, and provides regulatory permitting 

support. She provides technical planning services and community and stakeholder engagement strategy 

support, including organizing public participation plans; facilitating workshops, open houses, public 

meetings; and presenting in front of decision-makers. She is a versatile planner that is proficient in all 

aspects of current and long-range planning, outreach and engagement, and facilitation. 

Amy Carr – Hazard Mitigation Planner: Ms. Carr has educational and professional planning experience 

with a focus on land use and hazard mitigation. She will provide support to the project team in the 

development of the hazard profile/vulnerability assessment update as well as other chapters of the plan. 

She worked as a Planner for Arapahoe County, Colorado to review site plans by applying the County’s 

Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan to each plan. She worked with the City of Manitou 

Springs to research hazard mitigation strategies for flooding and wildfire that could be applied to historic 

properties without diminishing their historic integrity. She created educational handouts for the public 

based on her research. She received her BA in Urban Studies with a concentration in Urban Planning from 

the College of Charleston and her Master’s in Urban and Regional Planning with a focus on hazard 

mitigation from the University of Colorado, Denver.  

Marta Blanco Castano – Hazard Mitigation Planner and GIS Analyst: Ms. Marta Blanco Castano is a 

GIS Analyst for Wood and provides support on hazard mitigation, drought, emergency management, and 

other planning projects. She will be the lead planner and will provide support to the project team in the 

development of the Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment, including GIS and hazard 

profile/vulnerability assessment update. She has experience with GIS, which allow for the collection, 

analysis, management, storage, and representation of a variety of spatial and non-spatial datasets.  



Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 7 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

Annie Berlingheiri – Staff Geologist: Ms. Berlinghieri has five years of experience in environmental 

hydrology and geology, and hazard mitigation planning with a focus on supporting projects in rural and 

mountainous regions with impacted mountain streams. She has provided task management and technical 

support on both government and private sector projects. Ms. Berlinghieri has managed and supported 

the development of site characterization reports, technical studies, work plans, standard operating 

procedures, hazard/risk assessments, and environmental assessments. She has assisted in the 

development of watershed-scale and local-scale water budgets.  

Support Staff: Wood support staff, including water resource engineers from our Rancho Cordova office 

will be used, as needed to help the District scope projects and costs for HMGP grant applications.  

3. Experience 

Our Hazard Mitigation & Emergency Management 

staff brings extensive experience with plan 

development and plan updates approved by Cal 

OES and FEMA. The Wood project team has a 

long-standing relationship with FEMA Region IX. 

We have completed 17 local plans in California: 14 

multi-jurisdictional and three single jurisdictional 

LHMPs approved by the Region: Fresno (original 

plan and update in FEMA review phase), Sutter 

(original plan and plan update), Butte (plan 

update), Amador (original and update), Kern 

(original and update), Placer (original and update), 

Sacramento (original and update), Calaveras 

(original plan), and Kings (original plan) counties; 

the City of Fullerton (original plan); and the 

Calaveras County Water District (original and two 

updates). Many of our clients continue to use our 

services on update cycles, which we feel is a 

testament to the quality of our plans and planning 

processes. 

Wood has also completed and received FEMA 

approval of one plan in Nevada for Washoe 

County. Although each plan followed a similar 

planning process designed to identify strategies that help clients reduce future losses and become eligible 

for FEMA mitigation funding, they are each customized to reflect the unique aspects of their respective 

planning areas. We also have experience with state plan update cycles as well, including the update of 

nine state hazard mitigation plans (Arkansas, Colorado, Missouri, Mississippi, New Mexico, Kansas, North 

Dakota, South Dakota, and Wyoming). Our firm was also hired to “fix” locally developed plans that did not 

pass the FEMA requirements. FEMA and Cal OES are familiar with and respect the quality of Wood-

facilitated hazard mitigation plans. 

The development of the plans detailed below are similar in scope and performed by the staff identified in 

primary roles for the development of the LHMP. We have a proven ability to deliver high-quality plans in 

tight timeframes, as demonstrated in some of the past project examples below, thus we are confident of 

our ability to respond to District staff and project demands in a timely and competent manner. Many of 



Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 8 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

our clients return to us to complete the requisite five-year updates or utilize our grants skills to help them 

find funding and manage project implementation. Once we have a working relationship with the District, 

it is our goal to remain the District’s long-term partner in hazard mitigation planning and tracking, if we 

are awarded the hazard mitigation planning work. We also have availability to complete hazard mitigation 

planning through May 2019 and can perform these services through the support of our Rancho Cordova, 

Petaluma, and Oakland, California and Boulder, Colorado planning and GIS staff.  

Calaveras County Water District Hazard Mitigation Plan – Original and Updates 

Wood recently updated Calaveras County Water District’s (CCWD’s) LHMP 

within a streamlined 6-month timeframe to ensure the CCWD continues to 

remain eligible for FEMA grant funding. The planning process began in mid-

January 2018 and the Draft LHMP was submitted to Cal OES for review in early 

June 2018. This single jurisdictional plan covered all 657,920 acres of the 

Calaveras County planning area in the central Sierra Nevada foothills in the 

northeastern portion of California. The topographically diverse area spans the 

Sierra Nevada Mountains and San Joaquin Valley and includes small rural 

communities and rapidly urbanizing communities along the western border 

with San Joaquin County. 

The plan underwent a comprehensive update in early 2018 building upon the 

plan that was previously updated in 2012, and originally updated in 2006 – 

both times by Wood. The plan demonstrates CCWD’s and the community’s 

commitment to reducing risks from hazards and serves as a tool to help decision makers direct mitigation 

activities. The plan was also developed to ensure CCWD’s continued eligibility for certain federal disaster 

assistance: specifically, grant funds available through the FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), 

the Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program (PDM), and the FMA. By ensuring the LHMP remains current, the 

CCWD has been awarded multiple FEMA HMGP and PDM grants.  

For the public outreach component, Wood re-convened participants of the original HMPC, as well as 

several new members from Calaveras County, CalFIRE, and American Red Cross. Our team facilitated three 

planning workshops under a short timeframe to ensure CCWD completed the Public Review Draft by 

Spring 2018. The public participation plan included developing a LHMP Webpage, media press releases, 

radio advertisements, newspaper notices, and an online public survey that generated over 125 responses.  

The hazard identification and vulnerability assessment included a detailed critical facility inventory and 

analysis. The GIS database accounts for over 140 of CCWD’s water and wastewater facilities, including 

water treatment plants, wastewater treatment plants, lift stations, pump stations, spray fields, and 

diversion dams. The plan update also contains a qualitative discussion on the probable effects of climate 

change for the hazard of concern. The discussion relies on information from the 2009, 2014, and 2018 

California Climate Adaptation Strategy plan documents and uses information from Cal-Adapt. The LHMP 

was approved by Cal OES and FEMA in October 2018. The 2018 Final LHMP is available here: 

https://ccwd.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/12/Final-Draft-LHMP-Update-2018-compressed.pdf  

► Update Project Manager: Ms. Juliana Prosperi 

► Original Contract Amount: $35,874 

► Actual Fees Paid by Client: $33,215 

https://ccwd.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/12/Final-Draft-LHMP-Update-2018-compressed.pdf


Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 9 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

Fresno County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan – Original Plan and Updates 

Wood developed a LHMP for Fresno County (County), including both 

natural and man-made hazards, and is in the final stages of the 2017-18 

plan update. The multi-jurisdictional plan included the county, nine 

incorporated communities, and several districts and covers a large and 

topographically diverse geographic area. Due to its geographic diversity, 

the County was subdivided into western, central, and eastern planning 

regions to address unique issues with the coastal range, foothills, and 

mountainous areas.  

Another unique aspect of this plan was the level of multi-jurisdictional 

coordination and participation. Due to the size of the County and the 

importance of participation to the jurisdictions, stakeholders, and 

interested parties, Wood conducted three educational meetings, at 

different times and locations within the County, but all within a 48-hour 

period. This was followed up with Wood-facilitated municipal level planning subcommittee meetings. This 

process enabled the jurisdictions to complete their own annexes to the plan, using a template developed 

by Wood. The plan focuses on strategies to mitigate flood, wildfire, earthquake, drought and agricultural 

hazards which pose a significant concern to the Fresno County Planning Area. Man-made hazards focused 

on the release of hazardous materials from both fixed locations and transportation corridors. A critical 

facility inventory and analysis, using GIS methods, was completed during the process. The planning 

process included three sets of public meetings. The 2017-18 plan update also included a hazard risk 

analysis associated with development trends and an enhanced assessment of levee failure and drought 

hazards, including land subsidence and drought-related tree mortality. The County is currently soliciting 

public comment on the updated plan before it is finalized and submitted for Cal OES and FEMA review 

and approval. The Public Review Draft and Appendices is available here: 

http://www.co.fresno.ca.us/departments/public-health/office-of-emergency-services-oes.  

► Update Project Manager: Mr. Jeff Brislawn 

► Original Contract Amount:  $150,000 

► Actual Fees Paid by Client:  $144,000 (estimated)               

Kern Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan – Original Plan and Updates  

Kern County is California’s third-largest county in land area, and at 8,172 square miles, it is larger than the 

state of Massachusetts, New Jersey, or Hawaii. Due to its large size and geographic diversity the planning 

area was subdivided into valley, mountain, and desert regions to capture the unique hazard issues 

associated with them. The County is susceptible to catastrophic earthquakes, floods, and wildfires. The 

planning effort utilized GIS to analyze property and critical facilities at risk to wildfire, based on mapping 

from CAL FIRE Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones. The plan also captured post-fire erosion potential. 

The multi-jurisdictional plan includes 11 cities, 26 special districts, and 19 school districts, and involved 

coordination among jurisdictions and several public meetings. The planning team coordinated with 

community emergency response teams, fire safe councils, Kern Council of Governments, state and federal 

agencies, and neighboring counties. This plan includes over 200 mitigation projects. The 2012 plan update 

also included an analysis of hazard risk associated with development trends and an enhanced assessment 

of levee and dam failure hazards. The updated Plan is available at: 

http://kerncountyfire.org/operations/divisions/office-of-emergency-services/emergency-plans/hazard-

http://www.co.fresno.ca.us/departments/public-health/office-of-emergency-services-oes
http://kerncountyfire.org/operations/divisions/office-of-emergency-services/emergency-plans/hazard-mitigation-plan.html


Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 10 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

mitigation-plan.html.  

► Update Project Manager: Jeff Brislawn 

► Original Contract Amount: $57,000 

► Actual Fees Paid by Client:  $57,000  

 

References  

► Peter Martin, Water Resources Manager 

Calaveras County Water District  

120 Toma Ct. San Andreas, CA 95249 

(209) 754-3094 

peterm@ccwd.org   

► Christin Shepherd, P.E., CFM, Civil Engineer II    

City of Boulder, Public Works/Utilities 

1739 Broadway, Boulder, CO 80302 

(303) 441-1889                                                

shepherdc2@bouldercolorado.gov  

► Wendy J. Benson, Administrative Coordinator 

Kern County Fire Department, Office of Emergency Services 

2601 Panorama Drive, Building B, Bakersfield, CA 93306 

(661) 873-2603 

wbenson@co.kern.ca.us   

4. Scope of Work  

Our Understanding 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District is a small special district that has a service area comprised 

of 1,882 acres of residential, agricultural, and minor commercial land uses within the Hidden Valley Lake 

subdivision. The District’s service area is located 5 miles northeast of Middletown and approximately 12 

miles southeast of Clearlake in the southern portion of Lake County, California. The District’s service area 

is bounded by Highway 29 to the west, Putah Creek to the south, the Ranchos subdivision to the east, and 

undeveloped lands to the north. It provides potable water and wastewater collection and treatment 

services to approximately 7,000 residents. The District provides water to these residents through seven 

water storage tanks and four wells. The District also has an agricultural well that provides water along 

Putah Creek during the summer months to mimic the natural surface water flow, and a sewer reclamation 

plant is located along Grange Road, which provides reclaimed water to Hidden Valley Lake golf course.  

Over the past three years, some of the largest wildfires ever recorded within California occurred in 

portions of Lake County, including the Mendocino Complex (Ranch Fire) fire that burned 410,203 acres 

this fire season. This wildfire and numerous other wildfires that proceeded it have all burned large 

portions of Mendocino National Forest, residential homes, and some fires that impacted developed cities 

in Sonoma County. In 2017, the nearby Tubbs Fire burned 36,807 acres and in 2016 the nearby Clayton 

Fire burned 3,929 acres north of the Hidden Valley Lake subdivision near Clearlake. Wood understands the 

impact these natural hazard events have on communities. We know that the District, as a large water 

http://kerncountyfire.org/operations/divisions/office-of-emergency-services/emergency-plans/hazard-mitigation-plan.html
mailto:peterm@ccwd.org
mailto:shepherdc2@bouldercolorado.gov
mailto:wbenson@co.kern.ca.us


Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 11 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

supplier in the region, helped support the fire response teams in the region, specifically during the 

Mendocino Complex fire. We also know that the District recently applied for a Hazard Mitigation Grant 

Program (HMGP) grant not long after the FEMA Disaster Declaration was filed in October 2017 during the 

major wildfires that spread across California. The intent of the HMGP was to fund the preparation of a 

LHMP, which ensures the District is eligible for FEMA hazard mitigation funding.  

Our Approach 

Wood understands that the District needs to develop a LHMP that is accepted by the Cal OES and FEMA 

and with the goal of meeting the eligibility requirements for the HMGP under Section 404 of the federal 

Disaster Relief Act (The Stafford Act, as amended). We know several critical and time-sensitive District 

mitigation projects are pending based on development and approval of the LHMP. With this 

understanding, Wood will develop a single-jurisdiction LHMP consistent with the requirements of DMA 

2000, FMA and associated planning guidance that includes natural and climate-related hazards. We will 

also consider all hazards of concern evaluated in the 2018 Lake County LHMP Update, which included 

dam failure, drought and water storage, earthquake, flooding, landslide and debris flow, severe weather, 

and wildfire. New natural hazards considered in the 2018 Lake County LHMP will also be considered, such 

as agricultural hazards, aquatic biological hazards (e.g., cyanobacterial blooms, invasive quagga mussels), 

and severe extreme heat. We understand that this will be the first LHMP prepared for the District. 

Therefore, the District needs to prepare the hazard and risk assessment, develop a mitigation strategy, 

draft the plan itself, and facilitate planning workshops, Board of Directors hearings, and staff meetings.  

The following table summarizes FEMA’s original four-phase planning process, the detailed CRS flood 

mitigation planning steps, and the nine handbook planning tasks from FEMA’s March 2013 Local 

Mitigation Planning Handbook. It provides an overview of the four-phase approach (and detailed 10-step 

planning process) Wood will take to develop the District’s LHMP.  

Wood’s Hazard Mitigation Planning Process 

FEMA 4 Phase Guidance 

and Wood Work Plan 

Phases 

Community Rating System (CRS) 

Planning Steps 

2013 FEMA Local Mitigation Planning 

Handbook Steps (44 CFR Part 201) 

Phase 1: Organize Resources 

Step 1. Organize Resources 
1: Determine the Planning Area and Resources 

2: Build the Planning Team 44 CFR 201.6(c)(1) 

Step 2. Involve the public 3: Create an Outreach Strategy 44 CFR 201.6(b)(1) 

Step 3. Coordinate with Other Agencies 
4: Review Community Capabilities 44 CFR 

201.6(b)(2) & (3) 

Phase 2: Identify Hazards 

and Assess Risks 

Step 4. Assess the hazard 
5: Conduct a Risk Assessment 44 CFR 

201.6(c)(2)(i) 44 CFR 201.6(c)(2)(ii) & (iii) 
Step 5. Assess the problem 

Phase 3: Develop a 

Mitigation Strategy 

Step 6. Set goals 
6: Develop a Mitigation Strategy 44 CFR 

201.6(c)(3)(i); 44 CFR 201.6(c)(3)(ii); and 44 CFR 

201.6(c)(3)(iii) 

Step 7. Review possible activities 

Step 8. Draft an action plan 

Phase 4: Implement and 

Monitor the Plan 

Step 9. Adopt the plan 8: Review and Adopt the Plan 

Step 10. Implement, evaluate, and revise 7: Keep the Plan Current 



Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 12 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

FEMA 4 Phase Guidance 

and Wood Work Plan 

Phases 

Community Rating System (CRS) 

Planning Steps 

2013 FEMA Local Mitigation Planning 

Handbook Steps (44 CFR Part 201) 

9: Create a Safe and Resilient Community 44 CFR 

201.6(c)(4) 

 

Our approach also incorporates the eight tasks outlined in the District’s Request for Proposals (RFP) to 

develop the District’s LHMP. A description of these tasks/phases is detailed below. 

Phase 1: Organize, Coordinate, and Initiate Outreach Development 

Planning Step 1: Develop the Planning Process 

Critical to a successful mitigation planning process is building, coordinating, and facilitating a Hazard 

Mitigation Planning Committee (HMPC), or working group. The DMA planning criteria requires that a 

HMPC be created, as outlined in the table above. Wood will work with District staff to develop a list of 

HMPC members within both the District and among local and regional agencies and schedule a project 

kick-off meeting. As part of this phase, Wood will also prepare a schedule for the completion of the 

LHMP, and a Data and GIS Needs List to support timely gathering and analyzing of hazard data. The GIS 

Needs List for water and wastewater special districts typically consists of District assets by service area, 

such as critical lifeline utility, water, and wastewater facilities owned by the District (e.g., lift stations, pump 

stations, water tanks, water treatment plants, water reclamation plants). Additionally, we also request 

replacement values for the facilities that exclude the land value.  

Wood will prepare for and facilitate HMPC Meeting #1. Ms. Juliana Prosperi will attend this meeting and 

Mr. Jeff Brislawn will attend via teleconference. The meeting will be utilized to detail the DMA hazard 

mitigation planning requirements, present the overall scope of services, detail the work requirements of 

the HMPC, and establish a detailed project schedule. A plan for public involvement (Planning Step 2) and 

coordination with other agencies and departments (Planning Step 3) will be discussed at this meeting. 

Wood will summarize the risk assessment process and detail the data requirements for the LHMP.  

Wood will also provide a customized data collection guide to each of the HMPC members to assist the 

team in collection of required data. This unique Wood tool facilitates the collection of data, documents 

participation, and serves as a reference document during the planning process. Wood will then collect any 

additional relevant background documents, such as the District Sewer Master Plan, and available Water 

Management Plans, Emergency Operations Plans, Flood Mitigation Plans, and Stormwater Drainage Plans. 

To the extent possible we will make best use of the 2018 Lake County LHMP and any GIS information that 

can be provided by Lake County. These documents and spatial data sets will be used throughout the 

planning process to develop the Risk Assessment and to assess existing hazard mitigation capabilities. 

Deliverables 

• Preliminary Project Kick-Off meeting with District 

• Distribution of Draft Project Execution Plan and Schedule 

• Assistance with the formation of the HMPC 

• HMPC Contact List 

• HMPC Meeting #1 (Working Group Meeting) 

• Presentation on hazard mitigation planning process at HMPC Meeting #1 



Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 13 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

• Prepare and distribute the Data Collection Guide 

Planning Step 2: Public Outreach and Contact Coordination 

As part of HMPC Meeting #1, conducted in Planning Step 1, Wood will work with the HMPC on how to 

effectively meet the planning requirements for public involvement. This may include inviting public 

stakeholders to serve on the HMPC or publicizing the activities of the HMPC through the District website 

and through press releases to local media outlets (e.g., newspapers, radio, television, social media). Wood 

and the District Water Resources Specialist will work together to develop outreach materials and to set up 

meeting dates for workshops.  

Wood will also help the District plan one public workshop. In coordination with the District, Wood will 

assist in the preparation and facilitation of the public workshop. The public workshop can occur during 

the development of the LHMP or once the LHMP is circulated for public review (as outlined in the 

District’s RFP). Wood will also assist the District with its public education and involvement efforts by 

drafting proposed text for public notices, press releases, flyers, brochures, meeting advertisements, or 

website postings. We will take advantage of the District’s existing community involvement and public 

notification mechanisms. The District will be responsible for coordinating the release of all press releases, 

website postings, and other public outreach efforts (e.g., News and Updates Website). We will also 

prepare an Online Public Survey to encourage further participation by the public and other stakeholders. 

Deliverables 

• Assist in the identification of public involvement activities 

• Draft text for press releases and websites 

• Assist District in preparation for one (1) Public Workshop either during the LHMP development or 

during public review of the Draft LHMP 

• Attendance at one (1) Public Workshop 

• Assistance facilitating the Public Workshop and collecting public input and comment 

• Compile input from the incorporation of public comment and potential changes for the LHMP 

• Preparation and organization of an Online Public Survey 

Planning Step 3: Coordinate with Other Departments and Agencies 

DMA regulations require that the planning process is coordinated with other stakeholders and agencies. 

Representatives from District departments and local, state, and federal agencies may be asked to join the 

HMPC or to provide data and input during the planning process. Coordination with other local agencies 

may include the Lake County. Coordination with state and federal agencies may include: Cal OES, 

California Geological Survey, California Department of Water Resources, California Department of Forestry 

and Fire Protection (CalFIRE), California Department of Transportation, FEMA, National Oceanic and 

Atmospheric Administration, National Weather Service, US Forest Service, and other appropriate regional 

agencies to be identified early in the planning process.  

In addition, Wood will coordinate this effort with existing District plans and studies, which may include 

infrastructure plans and capital improvement projects.  

Deliverables: 

• Identify and invite agencies to participate on HMPC and/or to provide data as necessary 

• Update HMPC Contact List 



Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 14 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

Phase 2: Identify Hazards and Assess Risks 

Planning Step 4: Identify the Hazards 

The first task of the Risk Assessment is the Hazard Identification, which involves identifying and profiling 

hazard events that present a threat to the District. The planning effort will identify natural and climate-

related hazards and will prioritize them by significance.  Because the District’s service area falls within the 

jurisdictional boundary of Lake County and the District participated in the County’s plan update, we 

reviewed the recently prepared and approved 2018 Lake County LHMP to understand the hazards profiled 

and the mitigation actions developed for that plan. Based on our review of the 2018 Lake County LHMP, 

hazardous materials/transportation may be included as a man-made hazard to consider in the District’s 

LHMP, but most other man-made hazards would likely be dismissed from further consideration as they 

either do not occur in the County or due to lack of past occurrences.  

As part of the plan development process, the HMPC will then review the list of hazards during HMPC 

Meeting #2 (Planning Step 5). Hazards evaluated will include, but not be limited to, dam failure, drought 

and water storage, earthquake, flooding: 100/500 year and localized stormwater flooding, severe weather 

(extreme heat, heavy rains and storms, tornadoes, wind), soil hazards (erosion, expansive soils, landslides 

and debris flows, subsidence), wildfires, and others that may be considered significant by the District as 

previously mentioned (e.g., agricultural hazards, aquatic biologic hazards). A review and consideration of 

the hazards contained in the 2013 State of California Hazard Mitigation Plan, and in the 2018 Draft 

California State Enhanced Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan (SHMP) (under development after public review) 

will also be evaluated for inclusion in this LHMP. 

As part of the Hazard Identification, Wood will collect information about past hazard events. This will take 

place on- and off-site, and will include an Internet, newspaper and literature search for data related to 

historic events, and an inventory and review of the County’s (if needed) existing (Geographic Information 

System (GIS) data layers. This assessment will also include collecting detailed information on impacts from 

California’s multi-year drought on the District’s facilities, as well as wildfires, and erosion and 

sedimentation potential in the District’s watershed. The Project Team staff will collect data that describes: 

• Natural hazards posing a risk to District; 

• Geographic location and extent of hazards; 

• The history of these hazards;  

• Speed of onset/duration of the hazard;  

• Severity of the hazard; 

• The likelihood that these hazards will occur in the future; and 

• The frequency and recurrence interval that they occur. 

The hazards will be prioritized by the HMPC based on historical data, potential damage to critical 

infrastructure, potential loss estimates, occurrence data, and funding and mitigation abilities. Our data 

collection efforts will be focused on using existing data, as described in the DMA regulations. Data 

limitations and gaps will also be identified during this process. These limitations may be considered as 

recommendations in the mitigation strategy part of the plan. This step will also involve the development 

of a GIS geodatabase, if necessary. 

Deliverables 

• Collect the Hazard Identification Data 



Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 15 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

• Compile/analyze the data and draft the “Hazard Identification” portion of the Plan 

• Maps prepared in ArcGIS and related files 

Planning Step 5: Assess the Risks 

Following identification of hazards in Step 4, Wood will complete the Risk Assessment by preparing a 

Vulnerability Assessment and a Capability Assessment as described below. Wood will work with District 

staff to use the best available hazard and inventory data, including GIS data.  

Vulnerability Assessment. Wood will determine the likely impacts the hazards identified in Planning Step 

4 would have on the District. This assessment will include the following, as feasible: 

• Number and types of vulnerable District facilities; 

• Actual or assessed values of the vulnerable facilities; 

• Repetitive losses to facilities, if any; 

• Critical facilities at risk; 

• Natural and cultural resources at risk;  

• Growth and development trends; and 

• An estimate of losses per hazard, where feasible. 

Wood will utilize GIS to perform potential loss estimations for priority hazards, as appropriate. These tools 

have proven useful in DMA planning projects as a baseline inventory source and loss estimation tool.  

Capability Assessment. As part of the Risk Assessment and as required by Cal OES, Wood will evaluate 

the District’s existing capabilities to mitigate risk and vulnerabilities from hazards. By collecting 

information about existing programs, policies, regulations, and emergency plans, Wood can assess 

activities and measures already in place that contribute towards mitigating the vulnerabilities identified.  

Once complete, the Risk Assessment “paints a picture” of the potential disaster impacts. The information 

obtained during this process details the “net vulnerability” of the District planning area (i.e., vulnerability 

tempered by existing capabilities), and it provides a platform for developing mitigation goals. In addition, 

this information provides a baseline of what these likely impacts would cost, thus providing an estimate of 

the benefits of any resulting mitigation actions. This provides added value to the LHMP by ensuring 

integration of the plan with existing policies, procedures, and other plans and assists in the identification 

of additional mitigation strategies.  

Following the assimilation, compilation, and analysis of the Vulnerability and Capability Assessment data, 

Wood will then provide the compiled Risk Assessment to the HMPC for its review and input during HMPC 

Meeting #2. Both Ms. Juliana Prosperi and Mr. Jeff Brislawn will attend HMPC Meeting #2.  

Deliverables: 

• Vulnerability Assessment Inventories and Data  

• Prepare loss estimations, as appropriate 

• Compile/analyze the data and prepare Preliminary Draft of Risk Assessment  

• HMPC Meeting #2 (Working Group Meeting) 

• Presentation of Risk Assessment findings at HMPC Meeting #2 



Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 16 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

Phase 3: Prepare the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Planning Step 6: Draft Goals 

The mitigation strategy is ultimately the most important part of the plan. It details plan goals and 

objectives and identifies and prioritizes mitigation actions designed to minimize the effects of natural 

hazards on the District’s planning area. 

The HMPC will use the Risk Assessment as a platform for drafting mitigation goals and objectives for the 

LHMP. Goals provide a guide as to what should be done to improve the District’s disaster resilience. 

Objectives define strategies or implementation steps to attain the identified goals. The goals and 

objectives will reflect the District’s long-term vision to reduce the risk to people and property within the 

District’s planning area and will focus on enhancing overall mitigation capabilities. Goals and objectives 

from other District documents, as well as state plans, such as the 2013 California SHMP (and 2018 Draft), 

and the 2018 Lake County LHMP will be analyzed to ensure consistency with existing programs. This step 

will be accomplished during HMPC Meeting #2.  

Planning Step 7: Review Possible Activities 

Wood will work with the HMPC members to develop mitigation actions. The new actions will be 

developed from reviewing the validity and status of other planning actions (e.g., 2018 Lake County LHMP) 

and by utilizing the Risk Assessment. At HMPC Meeting #3, Wood will assist the HMPC in drafting 

potential mitigation actions to reduce the effects of priority hazards and to meet the new goals and 

objectives. In developing mitigation alternatives to address the priority hazards within the planning area, 

the team will adhere to the model of mitigation activities promoted by DMA, FEMA’s CRS, and the FMA 

program, which categorizes mitigation measures into the following six categories:  

• Preventative Measures;  

• Property Protection;  

• Emergency Services Measures;  

• Structural Projects;  

• Natural Resource Protection; and  

• Public Information Programs. 

Wood will then provide the HMPC with a set of criteria and review their potential for selecting and 

prioritizing mitigation measures. FEMA recommends the STAPLE/E approach detailed below: 

• Social acceptability;  

• Technical feasibility; 

• Administrative feasibility; 

• Political acceptability; 

• Legality; 

• Economic feasibility (Availability of funding and cost effectiveness); and 

• Environmentally sound. 

The criteria will be applied to select and prioritize mitigation activities that will 

reduce the vulnerability to the destructive consequences of hazards within the 

planning area and to promote efficient recovery and reconstruction when 

disasters do occur. In HMPC Meeting #3, each recommended action will have a 



Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 17 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

responsible party identified and will include a description of the risk reduction objectives addressed, the 

alternate measures considered but not selected, an approximate benefit/cost estimate, and a description 

of possible funding sources. As mitigation alternatives are finalized by the responsible parties, timelines 

for project completion, and descriptions of those entities responsible for project implementation will be 

specified. Wood will also rely on other planning documents and tools, such as FEMA’s 2013 Mitigation 

Ideas. Additionally, our staff will work with the HMPC to develop an implementation plan with priorities, 

that includes identification and analysis of possible grant and funding opportunities. A special emphasis 

will be placed on the identification and scoping of projects that will be likely candidates for FEMA HMGP 

funding. Both Ms. Juliana Prosperi and Mr. Jeff Brislawn will attend HMPC Meeting #3. 

Deliverables: 

• HMPC Meeting #3 (Working Group Meeting) 

• Incorporate research and public input 

• Prepare/Finalize Plan Goals and Objectives 

• Development of mitigation alternatives based upon the identified risks, vulnerabilities, existing 

capabilities and planning goals  

• Presentation of criteria sets to use in developing a final list of agreed upon selected, prioritized, 

mitigation alternatives for inclusion in the Plan  

• Completion of Mitigation Recommendation Forms by the HMPC 

Planning Step 8: Draft the Action Plan 

Based on information collected during each of the tasks above, Wood will prepare the first draft of the 

LHMP. This LHMP will be compliant with the DMA 2000 and Cal OES requirements. Once complete, the 

first draft will be provided to the District and the HMPC members for review and comment via a 

SharePoint, Google Drive, or Dropbox site. Wood will solicit comments from District staff and the HMPC 

members and incorporate the comments into a second draft LHMP. This second draft, also transferred via 

the preferred online file sharing platform, will be used by the District for the public workshop. Once the 

second draft LHMP is complete, the District will circulate the Draft LHMP for public review. As outlined in 

Phase 1, Planning Step 2, Ms. Prosperi will attend the Public Workshop at the end of the public review 

period (i.e. May 21, 2019).  

Deliverables: 

• Develop 1st Draft LHMP for HMPC review 

• Develop 2nd Draft LHMP for Public Review 

Phase 4: Plan Submittal to Agencies and Board of Directors Adoption 

Planning Step 9: Plan Submittal and Adoption 

Based on feedback from the public workshop, Wood will develop a final draft in digital and hard copy to 

submit to Cal OES and FEMA Region IX for preliminary review and approval. This submittal will include a 

completed FEMA Plan Review Crosswalk that details how the plan meets the requirements of DMA 2000. 

Wood’s proposed approach suggests that the District request this preliminary review and interim approval 

from the State and FEMA prior to formal board adoption. Wood has used the preliminary review approach 

with all its plans in the past, as recommended in the latest DMA planning guidance, which helps to save 

governing bodies from having to adopt the plan twice if changes are requested. Based on this review, 



Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 18 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

Wood will address all comments and requested changes and revisions to the plan by Cal OES and FEMA 

and will provide a master electronic and hard copy of the plan to the District to assist in adoption of the 

plan by the District’s Board of Directors. Wood will also use the FEMA Region IX Review Tool prior to plan 

submittal and adoption.  

This task assumes two color hard copies of the LHMP will be provided by Wood: one (1) hard copy to be 

submitted to Cal OES/FEMA and one (1) hard copy to be provided to District. Wood will also deliver the 

final plan document electronically to the District in both Word and PDF formats. 

Deliverables: 

• Incorporate public comments into Plan, and develop Final Draft LHMP 

• Complete FEMA Plan Review Crosswalk for submission with the LHMP 

• Complete FEMA Region IX Review Tool 

• Submit LHMP for review and approval by Cal OES and FEMA Region IX 

• Deliver Final LHMP in two (2) hard and one (1) electronic formats to District  

Planning Step 10: Implement, Evaluate, and Revise the Plan 

In accordance with the requirements for DMA plans, Wood will develop a method and schedule for 

monitoring and evaluating the LHMP. The plan maintenance requirements will include the following: 

• Method and schedule of monitoring and evaluating the plan, which includes criteria used, 

responsible office, and process for formal five-year update 

• Process by which the plan will be incorporated into existing planning mechanisms and requirements 

• Schedule with procedures for ensuring the plan’s implementation and update within five years 

• Discussion of how the District will continue to involve the public in the plan maintenance and update 

process 

These procedures, which include monitoring, evaluating, and updating the plan within a five-year cycle 

and incorporating continued public and stakeholder involvement throughout the plan maintenance 

process, will be modified as needed to improve the process for the next update cycle. The plan 

implementation section will identify ways to incorporate mitigation strategies into existing planning 

practices, policies, and programs to institutionalize hazard mitigation. This process will be developed and 

incorporated into the development of the draft and final LHMP documents. The District is ultimately 

responsible for plan implementation as well as for monitoring, evaluating, and updating the plan in 

accordance with the process outlined in the LHMP. 

Deliverable: 

• Draft of implementation, evaluation, and monitoring process 

Phase 5: Meeting Attendance 

Wood will attend internal meetings with District staff, including three Board of Director meetings. During 

Board of Director meetings, Ms. Juliana Prosperi will be available to make a presentation to the Board of 

Directors on the status of the plan (assumed during LHMP development, LHMP public review, and 

adoption of Final LHMP). We have also included time to participate in four teleconference calls to discuss 

deliverables and comments on the Draft LHMP. Our Project Manager, Ms. Juliana Prosperi will attend the 

three HMPC meetings and public workshop (included in previous tasks) in-person as part of this task. Mr. 

Jeff Brislawn will attend each meeting via teleconference, and two of the HMPC meetings in person. Each 



Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 19 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

on-site meeting will include preparation and attendance time, and completion of meeting minutes.  

Deliverables:  

• Project Kick-Off Meeting (via teleconference) 

• Four (4) Teleconference Calls  

• Three (3) Board of Director Meetings 

Schedule 

Wood is ready to begin work upon execution of a contract with the District. It is anticipated that the 

LHMP project will start in late November 2018 with a plan submittal to Cal OES/FEMA approximately six 

months later in May 2019. As outlined in the RFP, Wood recognizes the work deliverables will take at least 

six months to complete. Specific project milestones will be developed upon contract award (as part of 

Phase 1 and Planning Step 1) and the two additional planning tasks/phases to accommodate Board of 

Directors meeting attendance. This schedule is flexible and can be modified based on the needs of the 

District, and we recognize that minor adjustments may be possible, but that it is the District’s goal that the 

timelines are met, so that future mitigation projects are not delayed.  

Task Anticipated Date 

Notice to Proceed November 20, 2018 

Project Kick-off Meeting November 21, 2018 

Submit HMPC Invite List November 28, 2018 

HMPC Meeting #1 December 6, 2018 

Coordinate with District to Launch LHMP Website December 13, 2018 

Board of Directors Meeting January 15, 2019 

Utilize GIS to assess hazards January 17, 2019 

Draft Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment January 31, 2019 

HMPC Meeting #2 February 12, 2019 

Board of Directors Meeting February 12, 2019 

HMPC Meeting #3 March 7, 2019 

Finalize Goals and Objectives March 14, 2019 

Compile Mitigation Actions Worksheets March 14, 2019 

Submit 1st Administrative Draft LHMP March 26, 2019 

District provides Consolidated Staff Comments on 1st Administrative Draft LHMP April 9, 2019 

Submit 2nd Administrative Draft LHMP April 18, 2019 

Circulate Public Review Draft LHMP April 23, 2019 

Public Workshop May 21, 2019 

Public Review Ends May 22, 2019 

Complete FEMA Region IX Review Tool May 21, 2019 

Submit LHMP to Cal OES for Review May 22, 2019 

Submit to FEMA for Review TBD 

Board of Director’s Meeting October 15, 2019 

  *Board of Directors Meetings are held on the third Tuesday of each month at 7:00 p.m. 



Proposal to Develop a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District 

 

 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan | November 2018  Page 20 of 20 

 

 

 

 
 

 

5. Cost Estimate 

Wood will perform the proposed Scope of Services described above for a total fixed-fee of $54,278. This 

amount includes all professional services and related direct and overhead expenses.  

Wood’s proposed approach to project management and the preparation and production of the LHMP will 

ensure timely completion of tasks and delivery of high-quality work products. Our approach involves close 

coordination throughout the process with District staff to ensure the preparation of a thorough LHMP 

with an appropriately detailed hazard assessment and careful development of mitigation projects. We 

track project phases, budget, and deliverables on a weekly basis using hands-on participation and 

oversight by our project manager. We also practice strict management controls by staff assignments, task 

management, scheduling, cost control and tracking, and ongoing client communication. Our team 

employees Microsoft Project® and other schedule tools (i.e., Management Portal, Deltek) to ensure that 

complex tasks are completed according to expedited schedule.  

Our success tracking and maintaining a tight timeline, while also controlling costs was achieved during the 

recent CCWD LHMP Update. The LHMP was drafted and submitted to Cal OES for review in less than six 

months. The CCWD had several HMPG grant applications submitted for FEMA review, and eligibility was 

contingent upon the timely update of the CCWD LHMP. Our project manager was involved in the day-to-

day project activities of all analysis, review, and document production. She also ensured all tasks were 

assigned to staff qualified to carry them out effectively and efficiently. Our client references can attest to 

our ability to meet project deliverable deadlines and track and control costs.  

Assumptions 

Wood has included the following assumptions for this proposal:  

• Wood will attend seven on-site meetings at the District’s offices in Hidden Valley Lake that will 

include a total of nine trips by two Wood staff (seven trips by Ms. Juliana Prosperi from our Rancho 

Cordova office and two trips by Mr. Jeff Brislawn from our Boulder, CO office for two of the three 

HMPC meetings). In addition to the three (3) HMPC meetings, Ms. Prosperi will attend one (1) public 

workshop, and three (3) Board of Director’s meetings.  

• Wood assumes we will participate in the initial project kick-off meeting via teleconference. 

• Wood will help facilitate the public workshop in May (during public review of Draft LHMP). Our team 

will work with the District to provide outreach content throughout the LHMP development process, 

including reviewing content to post on the District’s website and social media platforms.  

• Wood will produce all GIS maps, figures, and graphs for the LHMP, but assumes the District will 

provide all GIS base layers and critical facility data layers (e.g., parcel layers, etc.), as well as any 

supporting Lake County data used in the development of the 2018 Lake County LHMP. 

• Wood will mail one (1) hard copy to Cal OES/FEMA and one (1) hard copy will be provided to the 

District. Wood will electronically deliver the Final LHMP to the District in Word and PDF formats. 

• Wood will prepare a meeting agenda, sign-in sheet, PowerPoint presentation and slideshow 

handouts, worksheets, and a meeting summary for the project kick-off meeting, HMPC meetings, and 

public workshop. Our staff will also provide flip-charts and other supplies, as needed.  

• Wood assumes the District will provide one consolidated set of comments from District departments 

and the HMPC on the 1st Draft LHMP.  



Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc.

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District LHMP: Cost Estimate 

Rate Unit

LABOR CATEGORIES PERSONNEL Hrs Cost Hrs Cost Hrs Cost Hrs Cost Hrs Cost Hrs Cost

Senior Associate II Jeff Brislawn, CFM 175.00$          HR 4 $700.00 16 $2,800.00 16 $2,800.00 6 $1,050.00 5 $875.00 47 $8,225.00

Senior 2 II Juliana Prosperi, AICP 132.00$          HR 24 $3,168.00 32 $4,224.00 32 $4,224.00 24 $3,168.00 24 $3,168.00 136 $17,952.00

Senior 1 III Kyle Karsjen 120.00$          HR 2 $240.00 8 $960.00 2 $240.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 12 $1,440.00

Technical Professional 3 III Annie Berlingheiri 100.00$          HR 12 $1,200.00 50 $5,000.00 4 $400.00 4 $400.00 0 $0.00 70 $7,000.00

Technical Professional 2 II Amy Carr 80.00$            HR 4 $320.00 50 $4,000.00 24 $1,920.00 16 $1,280.00 0 $0.00 94 $7,520.00

Technical Professional 2 II Marta Blanco Castano 80.00$            HR 12 $960.00 50 $4,000.00 12 $960.00 8 $640.00 4 $320.00 86 $6,880.00

Administrative II Ashley Shivley 70.00$            HR 2 $140.00 2 $140.00 4 $280.00 2 $140.00 2 $140.00 12 $840.00

.

Labor Subtotal 60 $6,728.00 208 $21,124.00 94 $10,824.00 60 $6,678.00 35 $4,503.00 457 $49,857.00

Misc Expenses 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

OTHER DIRECT COSTS Rate Unit Qty Cost Qty Cost Qty Cost Qty Cost Qty Cost Qty Cost

Local Mileage 0.55 mile 100 $54.50 400 $218.00 400 $218.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 900 $490.50

Vehicle Rental 60.00$            day 0 $0.00 1 $60.00 1 $60.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 2 $120.00

Airport Parking -$               day 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

Rental Car Gas 3.50$              gallon 0 $0.00 20 $70.00 20 $70.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 40 $140.00

Parking/Tolls 7.00$              day 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

Per Diem - Lodging (city) 140.00$          day 1 $140.00 3 $420.00 2 $280.00 1 $140.00 3 $420.00 10 $1,400.00

Per Diem - Meals (city) 70.00$            day 1 $70.00 3 $210.00 2 $140.00 1 $70.00 3 $210.00 10 $700.00

Airfare (from Denver to Sacramento) 400.00$          trip 0 $0.00 1 $400.00 1 $400.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 2 $800.00

Reproduction (black & white) 0.10$              page 50 $5.00 500 $50.00 500 $50.00 500 $50.00 50 $5.00 1,600 $160.00

Reproduction (color) 0.40$              page 50 $20.00 100 $40.00 100 $40.00 100 $40.00 50 $20.00 400 $160.00

Other Reproduction (e.g. color, binding, tabs etc) 10.00$            each 2 $20.00 2 $20.00 5 $50.00 5 $50.00 2 $20.00 16 $160.00

CD ROM copies 5.00$              each 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 2 $10.00 2 $10.00 0 $0.00 4 $20.00

Color Print Film/ Development or Digital Camera -$               each 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

Large Package Shipping -$               pkg 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

Overnight Shipping 15.00$            pkg 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 2 $30.00 2 $30.00 0 $0.00 4 $60.00

Other ODCs

Subcontractor job 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

ODC Subtotal $309.50 $1,488.00 $1,348.00 $390.00 $675.00 $4,210.50

ODC Markup @ 5% 5.00% $15.48 $74.40 $67.40 $19.50 $33.75 $210.53

ODC Total $324.98 $1,562.40 $1,415.40 $409.50 $708.75 $4,421.03

LABOR AND ODCs TOTAL $7,052.98 $22,686.40 $12,239.40 $7,087.50 $5,211.75 $54,278.03

Task 1: Organize, Coordinate, 

and Initiate Outreach 

Development  

Task 2: Identify Hazards and 

Assess Risks

Task 3: Prepare Local Hazard 

Mitigation Plan

Task 4: Plan Submittal to Agencies 

and Board of Directors Adoption

Task 5: Meeting 

Attendance

Summary

Wood Environment Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. Rate Schedule -  Proprietary Information 11/5/2018

juliana.prosperi
Rectangle



Resumes

Resum
es



Jeff Brislawn, CFM  

 Hazard Mitigation Lead / Senior Associate 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 1 of 9  

 

 

Professional Summary 

Mr. Brislawn is the Hazard Mitigation Lead / Sr. Associate in Wood’s 

Hazard Mitigation and Emergency Management Program and has 

over twenty five years of experience in Emergency Management, GIS 

and mitigation planning work for state and federal governments, as 

well as technical assistance to local governments. Mr. Brislawn has 

been the project manager on more than 20 Disaster Mitigation Act 

(DMA) compliant local and state hazard mitigation plans, as well as 

provided GIS-based risk analysis in support of many others. Mr. 

Brislawn is also experienced in leading drought, dam failure 

evacuation, climate adaptation, and energy assurance planning 

efforts. Mr. Brislawn is experienced with Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (FEMA) mitigation grant programs and has 

assisted local and state governments with the development of 

technically feasible, cost effective and environmentally sound 

mitigation project applications. Mr. Brislawn is an experienced user of 

FEMA’s benefit cost analysis software modules and Hazus, FEMA’s 

multi-hazard loss estimation software. Mr. Brislawn has provided GIS 

and natural hazards mitigation technical assistance to the FEMA 

Mitigation Division during times of disaster, travelled to disaster 

areas, written reports, trained staff, and been involved in community 

outreach. Mr. Brislawn’s academic experience in engineering and 

environmental geology provides a strong earth sciences background 

to his work in natural hazards risk assessments. Mr. Brislawn is a 

Certified Floodplain Manager and an Wood Certified Project Manager 

Representative Projects 

Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Fresno 

County, CA (7/2017 – 9/2018), Project Manager. 

Responsible for the five-year update of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster 

Mitigation Act (DMA) and Community Rating System (CRS) compliant 

mitigation plan in 2017-2018.  This included facilitating the planning 

team meetings, modeling multi-hazard risk with an emphasis on 

drought, wildfire, subsidence and tree mortality hazards, and writing the document. 

City of Tracy Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, CA (8/2018—present), QA/QC. 

Providing QA/QC review for the development of a new Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) for the City.  Providing  

assistance with meeting facilitation and oversight to ensure compliance with the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000. 

Calaveras County Water District Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, CA (12/2017—5/2018), 

QA/QC. 

Provided QA/QC review for an update to the Calaveras County Water District’s (CCWD) Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

(LHMP) which included plan review and assistance with meeting facilitation and project oversight to ensure 

compliance with the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000. 

Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Kern County, CA, 9/2011 – 7/2013, Project 

Manager.  

Responsible for the five-year update of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) and Community Rating 

System (CRS) compliant mitigation plan in 2012. This included facilitating the planning team meetings, using GIS for 

the plan’s risk assessment, modeling multi-hazard risk, and writing the document.  

Summary  

Years of Experience  

25 

Education 

MS/Geology, Engineering/Environmental 

Specialization/Colorado State 

University/1992  

BS/Geology/Ohio University/Athens, 

OH/1987 

Registrations / Certifications/ 

Licenses 

• Certified Floodplain Manager US-06-

02156/expires 1-31-19 

• Earthquake Engineering Research 

Institute 

• Association of State Floodplain 

Managers 

• Natural Hazards Mitigation 

Association 

• Colorado Association of Stormwater 

and Floodplain Managers 

• Colorado Emergency Management 

Association 

• Rocky Mountain Hazus User Group – 

Co chair 

• Geological Society of America 



Jeff Brislawn, CFM  

 Hazard Mitigation Lead / Senior Associate 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 2 of 9  

 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, Kern County, CA, 12/2004 – 12/2005, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the development of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) and Community Rating 

System (CRS) compliant mitigation plan. This included facilitating the planning team meetings, using GIS for the 

plan’s risk assessment, and writing the document.  

Comprehensive Flood Management Plan, City of Sacramento, California, 6/2014 – 6/2015, QA/QC.  

Provided project and plan review and document finalization of a Comprehensive Flood Management Plan for the City 

that incorporated National Flood Insurance Program’s (NFIP) CRS elements, emergency management, and flood 

mitigation.   

Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, Fresno County, CA, 2008 – 2009, QA/QC.  

QA/QC on GIS used to develop maps and model hazard impacts to support a multi-hazard mitigation planning effort 

in Fresno County.  

Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, City and County of Sacramento, CA, 6/2010 – 10/2012, 

GIS and CRS Lead.  

Used GIS to support the hazard identification and risk assessment portion of the Sacramento multi-hazard mitigation 

plan. Integrated the National Flood Insurance Program’s (NFIP) CRS requirements with the DMA for the City of 

Sacramento.  

Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, City of Westminster, CO (8/2017 – 8/2018), Project Manager 

Responsible for the 2017-2018 update of a multi-hazard Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) and CRS compliant hazard 

mitigation plan for the City.  Incorporated City-developed Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment with an 

emphasis on drought and dam failure hazards.  Facilitated project meetings.   

Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, Amador County, CA, 3/2005 – 3/2006.  

Used GIS to develop maps and model hazard impacts to support a multi-hazard mitigation planning effort in Amador 

County.  

Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, Placer County, CA (4/2009 – 5/2010) 

QA/QC Review and BCA Workshop Instructor.  QA/QC Review of document and lead facilitator of a workshop for 

planning team members on how to use FEMA’s Benefit Cost Analysis tool to leverage FEMA grants to fund priority 

projects in the plan. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, Placer County, CA, 4/2004 – 5/2004.  

Used GIS to develop maps and model hazard impacts to support multi-hazard mitigation planning efforts in these 

counties.  

Cherry Creek Dam Failure Evacuation Plan, Denver CO. 1/-11/2017 Project Manager.   

Lead the development of a comprehensive regional evacuation plan for a high consequence dam in the Denver 

Metropolitan Area.  Coordinated a steering committee of emergency managers from 3 counties and the City of 

Aurora, as well as a multi-agency Evacuation Planning Team/stakeholder group that included the Corps of Engineers 

and local response personnel.  Developed functional annexes for transportation, communications and warning, access 

and functional needs, animal protection, and reunification/re-entry using input from facilitated meetings with work 

groups.  Developed maps and appendices displaying evacuation zones, routes, and impacted critical facilities and 

populations.   

Lake Isabella Dam Failure Evacuation Plan, Bakersfield, CA, 2/2008 – 4/2012, GIS Lead.  

GIS lead on the analysis of dam failure impacts from Lake Isabella on the metropolitan Bakersfield, California area to 

support the creation of an evacuation plan.  Involved analyzing the outputs of multiple dam failure scenarios impacts 

on population, buildings and road infrastructure.  

Levee Repair Funding Assistance, Town of Greybull, WY, 5/2014 – 9/2015, Task Manager. 



Jeff Brislawn, CFM  

 Hazard Mitigation Lead / Senior Associate 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 3 of 9  

 

Provided assistance to the Town as part of team providing levee certification services.   Researched and 

recommended local, state, and federal funding sources for levee repair and improvements. Suggested options for 

meeting local match requirements that included in-kind services, cash, or other grants or loans depending on the 

funding source. 

Town of Greybull Benefit Cost Analysis (BCA) for Levee Grant Application, Big Horn, WY, Task 

Manager. 

Directed analysis of critical facilities at risk of flooding to the 10-year, 25-year, 50-year, 100-year, and 500-year events 

to support an application for levee improvements under the FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program. Used FEMA’s 

BCA Tool to produce results for the Town’s grant application within a three week timeframe. 

FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grants Technical Support, Colorado Division of Homeland Security and 

Emergency Management, CO, 6/2014 – 6/2015, Project Manager.   

Responsible for coordination of a large team during the development of 100 FEMA HMGP applications, primarily 

within a two month period.  Directed project leads to provide assistance to more than 40 communities in the 

development of successful acquisition, flood control, wildfire, and other mitigation projects, including scope of work, 

budget, and NEPA compliance aspects. Incorporated CDBG-DR funding as match where applicable. Also provided 

technical assistance with Benefit Cost Analysis, project scoping and eGrants for the FY 2015 PDM/FMA grant cycle. 

CRS Technical Assistance, City of Westminster, Colorado, 8/2015 – 8/2016, Project Manager.   

The project involved working with the city on the development of new documentation to support the 2013 CRS 

Coordinator Manual requirements, verifying the City’s floodplain management efforts to maintain and potentially 

enhance their CRS rating. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, City and County of Denver, CO, 1/ – 9/2016, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the 2016 update of a Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) and compliant mitigation plan update for Denver.  

The project built upon on the City’s initial planning and hazards analysis efforts. Including facilitating meetings with a 

city mitigation planning committee and linking mitigation actions in related planning documents such as stormwater 

master plans.  Also aligned with CRS floodplain management planning requirements.  

Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Jefferson County, CO, 7/2015 – 6/2016, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the 2015 update of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) and Community Rating 

System (CRS) compliant mitigation plan update for Colorado’s most populated County with a significant wildland 

urban interface and flood risk. Facilitated meetings, directed update to hazard risk assessment and coordinated with 

project team and County. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Development Santa Fe County, New Mexico, 10/2015 – 10/2016, Project 

Manager  

Responsible for the development of a county hazard mitigation plan. The County plan is a single jurisdictional plan 

analyzing risk and strategies to mitigate several hazards with an emphasis on dam failure, wildfire, flood, and drought. 

Integrated existing countywide Community Wildfire Protection Plan during the effort. Facilitated planning team 

meetings and regional public meetings. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Development Taos County, New Mexico, 9/2016 – ongoing, Project 

Manager.  

Responsible for the development of a county hazard mitigation plan in Northern New Mexico at risk to dam failure, 

wildfire, flood, drought and severe weather. Developed GIS-based risk assessment to differentiate risk across 5 

participating jurisdictions. Facilitated planning team meetings and a public meeting; included development of online 

public survey for additional public input. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Development Los Alamos County, NM, 8/2013 – 2/2016, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the update of a hazard mitigation plan in one of the most hazard prone regions of New Mexico. The 

County plan is a single jurisdictional plan that includes the unincorporated townsites of Los Alamos and White Rock. 



Jeff Brislawn, CFM  

 Hazard Mitigation Lead / Senior Associate 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 4 of 9  

 

The 2013-2015 plan update focused on analyzing risk and developing updated strategies to mitigate several hazards 

including wildfire, flood, drought, earthquake, volcano, dam failure, and severe weather. The update including a 

process of defining critical facilities and developing a comprehensive, GIS based inventory. Integrated existing 

countywide Community Wildfire Protection Plan during the effort. Assisted planning team with the update of hazard 

mitigation strategies and implementation process. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, Douglas County, CO, 6/2014 – 8/2015, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the development of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) and Community Rating 

System (CRS) compliant mitigation plan update. Included transitioning from a regional plan to a stand-alone plan for 

a high growth county in Colorado’s Front Range. Advised on the formation of a steering committee to maximize CRS 

credits. The project included an enhanced GIS-based risk analysis for flood hazards and the integration of information 

from community wildfire protection plans. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Grand County, Colorado, 2013, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the update of a hazard mitigation plan update for a mountainous community with a recreation based 

economy. The plan assessed impacts natural and manmade hazards, with particular emphasis on wildfire and 

landslide hazards. Integrated existing Community Wildfire Protection Plans and developed a flood vulnerability 

analysis based on DFIRM. Included involving municipalities, fire protection districts and water districts such as 

Northern Water and Denver Water in the planning effort. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Updates, City of Boulder, CO, 1/2012 – 1/2013 and  9/2017-6/2018, Project 

Manager 

Responsible for the 2012 and 2018 updates of a multi-hazard Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) and CRS plan for the City, 

with an emphasis on flood, wildfire and drought hazards. Facilitated project meetings and a public workshop 

following a process to maximize credits under updated CRS planning guidance. Included the development of a 

Program for Public Information consistent with the current CRS guidance. Directed use of GIS to enhance the flood 

hazard vulnerability assessment to detail potential loss by stream group. 

Boulder Climate Preparedness Plan 2011, Boulder County Planning Department, Colorado, 4/2011 – 

12/2012,  Project Manager.   

Served as the AMEC project manager on a consultant team responsible for analyzing the potential impacts of climate 

change on four sectors of interest to Boulder County and the City of Boulder.  Lead investigator on emergency 

management/floodplain management and public health sectors.  Reviewed existing adaptive capacity to climate 

related hazards including wildfires and floods and recommended potential adaptation strategies to the Climate 

Adaptation Planning Committee. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, Archuleta County, CO, 6/2010 – 2/2012, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the development of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) plan, with an emphasis on 

wildfire, winter storm and flood hazards. Integrated existing countywide Community Wildfire Protection Plan and 

flood hazard analysis using DFIRM.  

Tribal Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, Ute Mountain Ute Tribe, CO, 10/2010 – 2/2012, Project 

Manager.  

 Responsible for the development of a multi-hazard Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) compliant with tribal planning 

guidance, with an emphasis on wildfire, winter storm and flood hazards. Integrated existing countywide Community 

Wildfire Protection Plan and Hazus flood hazard analysis. Included an identification and analysis of risk to critical 

facilities and tribal cultural assets. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Gunnison County, CO, 2/2012 – 7/2013, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the update of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA), plan for this large county in 

Colorado’s Rocky Mountains. The plan assessed impacts from avalanche, wildfire, flood, and other hazards, with 

particular emphasis on flood and geologic hazards. Integrated existing countywide Community Wildfire Protection 



Jeff Brislawn, CFM  

 Hazard Mitigation Lead / Senior Associate 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 5 of 9  

 

Plan and preliminary DFIRM during the effort. Assisted planning team with the development of hazard mitigation 

strategies. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Summit County, CO, 1/2013 – 7/2014, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the update of a hazard mitigation plan update for a mountainous community with a recreation based 

economy. The plan assessed impacts from avalanche, wildfire, flood and other hazards, with particular emphasis on 

wildfire and landslide hazards. Integrated existing countywide Community Wildfire Protection Plan and performed a 

flood vulnerability analysis based on DFIRM. Included involving fire protection districts and water districts such as 

Denver Water in the planning effort. 

Community Wildfire Protection Plans – Ouray, Montrose, Delta and Gunnison Counties, Colorado, 

8/2010 – 11/2011, Project Manager.  Responsible for the development of four county-wide community wildfire 

protection plans on Colorado’s western slope in partnership with another consulting firm.  Responsible for 

stakeholder and public meeting facilitation, community and public outreach, GIS and mapping, and document 

development.  The four plans were prepared simultaneously through collaboration with the West Region Wildfire 

Council. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, Jefferson County, CO, 1/2009 – 8/2012, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the development of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) and Community Rating 

System (CRS) compliant mitigation plan update. Included transitioning from a regional plan to a stand-alone plan for 

the most populated county in Colorado. The project included a Hazus level II GIS-based risk analysis for flood hazards 

and the integration of information from local level community wildfire protection plans. 

Region 6: Big Horn County, Hot Springs County, Park County, Washakie County, WY Hazard 

Mitigation Plan, WY 2016, Project Manager.  

Project Manager. Responsible for the development of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) for a 4 

county region in northwestern Wyoming including nine municipalities, the first of its kind in the State. The project 

included a risk analysis for the region and counties and an online survey to gather public input. 

Region 4: Lincoln County, Sweetwater County, Uinta County, WY Hazard Mitigation Plan, WY, 2016, 

QA/QC. 

Responsible for QA/QC review of the development of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) for a 3 

county region in southwestern Wyoming.  

Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Laramie County, WY, 2/2012 – 2/2013, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the update of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) plan for Wyoming’s most populous 

County, including merging of the City of Cheyenne’s HMP. Planning emphasis on flood, wildfire, and severe weather 

hazards. Utilized effective DFIRM within GIS to enhance the flood hazard vulnerability assessment. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Washakie County, WY, 3/2011 – 2/2012, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the update of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) plan for a rural Wyoming County, 

with an emphasis on flood and wildfire hazards. Utilized effective DFIRM within GIS to enhance the flood hazard 

vulnerability assessment. 

Drought Management Plan 2018, Town of Castle Rock, CO 11/2017 – 6/2018, Project Manager.  

Led the development of a local drought management plan that will be used to assist Castle Rock, Colorado, a growing 

community of approximately 57,000, to mitigate and manage drought.  Led planning workshops and plan 

development. 

South Drought Mitigation Plan 2015, South Dakota Office of Emergency Management, 6/2014 – 

12/2015, Project Manager.  



Jeff Brislawn, CFM  

 Hazard Mitigation Lead / Senior Associate 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 6 of 9  

 

Responsible for the development of a Drought Mitigation Plan for the state. Facilitated multiple planning meetings 

with the state’s Drought Task Force. Included development of a sector-based drought vulnerability annex, which 

formed the basis for the development of drought mitigation strategies.  

Oklahoma Drought Challenge, Bureau of Reclamation and Oklahoma Water Resources 

Development Board, OK (7/2014 – 7/2015), Sr Advisor and Lead Facilitator. 

Senior advisor in the development and design of innovative gaming forum used to foster stakeholder engagement 

with drought resilience and response planning. Facilitated design of simulated drought scenarios, tournament delivery 

and after-action report development. 

Colorado Drought Mitigation and Response Plan Update 2013, Colorado Water Conservation 

Board, 1/2013 – 5/2014, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the update to Colorado’s Drought Mitigation and Response Plan, compliant with the Disaster 

Mitigation Act (DMA) of 2000 and aligned with modern emergency management standards. Facilitated multiple 

planning meetings and presentations and update of a drought vulnerability annex, including a survey of municipal 

and Industrial water users.  

Colorado Drought Mitigation and Response Plan, Colorado Water Conservation Board, 10/2009 – 

4/2012, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the development of a major update to Colorado’s Drought Mitigation and Response Plan, compliant 

with the Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) of 2000 and aligned with modern emergency management standards. 

Facilitated multiple planning meetings and presentations. Included the development of a Local Drought Management 

Plan guidance document and web-based toolbox of drought information. 

Colorado Drought Vulnerability Assessment, Colorado Water Conservation Board, CO, 12/2010 – 

6/2014, Technical Advisor.  

Provided technical guidance on a detailed multi-sector drought vulnerability assessment developed to comply with 

FEMA mitigation planning requirements. 

Colorado Flood Mitigation Update, Colorado Water Conservation Board, CO, 7/2013 – 5/2014, 

Project Manager.  

Responsible for the update to Colorado’s Flood Mitigation Plan, compliant with the Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) of 

2000. Facilitated multiple planning meetings and presentations and integrated an existing Hazus Level 1 flood analysis 

provided by FEMA. 

Climate Change Impact Analysis, City of Waveland, MS, 8/2011 – 8/2013, Technical Lead.  

Responsible for the development of a climate change impact analysis as part of a NOAA Sea Grant-funded study for 

this coastal community in conjunction with a hazard mitigation plan update. The project included a literature review 

and GIS-based risk analysis for exacerbated flood and hurricane hazards, as well as an analysis of the risks to the 

community from sea level rise resulting from climate change. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, KS, 7/2007 – 12/2007, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the 2007 update to the state of Kansas multi-hazard mitigation plan, in accordance with the 

requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA). Update included converting the plan from a Mitigation 2020 

format to a more consistent with other state plans. Updated risk modeling methods were used to quantify relative 

vulnerability to floods, tornadoes, windstorms, hail, and winter storms on a county by county basis across the state. 

Missouri Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 2010, State Emergency Management Agency, MO, 8/2009 

– 5/2012. QA/QC Review.  

Provided QA/QC review and technical guidance on the Wood’s project team during the 2010 update of Missouri’s 

enhanced Hazard Mitigation Plan. Provided technical guidance to the integration of DFIRM depth grids into the 

state’s Hazus based flood hazard risk assessment. 



Jeff Brislawn, CFM  

 Hazard Mitigation Lead / Senior Associate 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 7 of 9  

 

South Dakota Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 2013, South Dakota Emergency Management, SD, 

10/2012 – 3/2014, Project Manager/Technical Lead.  

Developed update to the state plan’s risk assessment during the 2013 three year update cycle as a sub consultant. 

Updated risk modeling methods were used to quantify relative vulnerability to floods, tornadoes, windstorms, 

wildfires and winter storms on a county by county basis across the state. Included integration of Hazus Average 

Annualized Loss flood risk information, new DFIRM, and levee hazards. Included the refinement of risk for Rural 

Electric Cooperatives statewide and incorporation of how climate change may change frequency and intensity of 

hazards. 

South Dakota Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 2010, South Dakota Emergency Management, SD, 

9/2009 – 6/2011, Project Manager/Technical Lead.  

Developed update to the state plan’s risk assessment during the 2010 update cycle as a sub consultant. Updated risk 

modeling methods were used to quantify relative vulnerability to floods, tornadoes, windstorms, wildfires and winter 

storms on a county by county basis across the state. Included integration of Hazus Level 1 flood risk information, and 

levee hazards. Included the identification of risk for Rural Electric Cooperatives statewide. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, City of Poquoson, VA, 11/2008 – 10/2009, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the development of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) and Community Rating 

System (CRS) compliant mitigation plan for this coastal community. The project included a Hazus level II GIS-based 

risk analysis for flood and hurricane hazards, as well as an analysis of the risks to the community from sea level rise 

resulting from climate change. 

County Mitigation Plans, Various in Kansas, 7/2007 – 12/2007, Technical Lead.  

Focus on risk assessment, including overseeing the use of Hazus for flood modeling, and QA/QC reviewer for various 

local hazard mitigation plans in Kansas, including Allen, Harper, Harvey, Labette, Montgomery, Neosho, Osage, Reno, 

and Sumner Counties. Facilitated the completion of the Kiowa County Hazard Mitigation Plan, which included the 

Town of Greensburg that had been devastated by a tornado in 2008. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Dane County, WI, 11/2008 – 10/2010, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the update of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) plan. The update included 

integrating a separate Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) plan with the DMA plan, and followed Community Rating 

System (CRS) planning steps. The update also included additional jurisdictional, stakeholder, and public involvement. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, Boulder County, CO, 1/2008 – 1/2009, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the development of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) and Community Rating 

System (CRS) compliant mitigation plan. Facilitated planning team meetings and document development. Parcel-

based GIS risk analysis conducted for wildfire and flood hazards. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, Teller County, CO, 11/2007 – 7/2008, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the development of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) plan, with an emphasis on 

wildfire, winter storm and flood hazards. Integrated existing countywide Community Wildfire Protection Plan during 

the effort. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, Ouray County, CO, 9/2007 – 2/2010, Project Manager.  

Responsible for the development of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA), plan. The plan assessed 

impacts from avalanche, wildfire, flood and other hazards, with particular emphasis on debris flow hazards. Integrated 

existing countywide Community Wildfire Protection Plan during the effort. Assisted planning team with the 

development of hazard mitigation strategies. 

 

 

 



Jeff Brislawn, CFM  

 Hazard Mitigation Lead / Senior Associate 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 8 of 9  

 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, City of Boulder, CO, 5/2005 – 4/2006, Technical Lead.  

Focus on risk assessment, including the use of GIS to model hazard impacts to support a multi-hazard mitigation 

planning effort in the city, with an emphasis on flood hazard risk. Assisted with the final coordination and drafting of 

the plan and conducted public meetings.  

Poquoson, Virginia, DMA Mitigation Plan, 2/2004 – 12/2004, Technical Lead.  

Focus on risk assessment, including the use of Hazus Level II to model coastal flood and hurricane hazard impacts to 

support the update and enhancement of the city’s multi-hazard mitigation plan. 

Publications and presentations 

“Dry Times: Learning from Drought and Hazards Early Warning Systems,”   Panel presenter on drought planning and 

preparedness in practice, 43rd Annual Natural Hazards Research and Applications Workshop July 2018,  

Broomfield, CO 

“Evacuation Planning for Extreme Events:  Failure of the Cherry Creek Dam”  Association of State Floodplain Managers 

2018 Annual Conference, Phoenix, AZ 

“A Practical Approach for an Effective Hazard Mitigation Planning Process” Co presenter for workshop for Association 

of State Floodplain Managers Annual Conference 2017 Annual Conference, Kansas City, MO 

“Sustainable Disaster Recovery Within a Dynamic Watershed; A Colorado Flooding Case Study” Association of State 

Floodplain Managers 2014 Annual Conference, Seattle, WA 

‘Surf’s Up in Waveland MS: Assessing Climate Change Impacts Through Enhanced Mitigation Planning’ Association of 

State Floodplain Managers 2013 Annual Conference, Hartford CT 

“Drought Planning in Practice“ American Planning Association Annual Conference 2013, Chicago, IL 

”Estimating Flood Damage Impacts on Existing and Future Development Within the Poudre River Flood Floodplain in 

Fort Collins, Colorado,” Jeff Brislawn, Colorado Association of Stormwater and Floodplain Manager’s Annual 

Conference, Snowmass, CO. September, 2011. 

“Community Level Drought Planning: Lessons Learned” National Integrated Drought Information System and National 

Drought Mitigation Center Engaging Preparedness Communities Workshop June 2011, Chicago, IL 

”Emergency Management for Floodplain Managers,” Jeff Brislawn, Colorado Association of Stormwater and Floodplain 

Manager’s Annual Conference, Snowmass, CO. September, 2010. 

“Hazard Mitigation Planning Workshop.” Co- Presenter, Floodplain Management Association’s (FMA) Fall Conference. 

San Jose, CA. September 8th, 2009. 

“Urban Drainage And Flood Control District Preparedness Exercise 2009 – Dealing With A Flood In Morrison.” Co 

presenter, Colorado Association of Stormwater and Floodplain Manager’s Annual Conference, Crested Butte, CO. 

September, 2009. 

“Methods to Conduct Statewide Flood Loss Vulnerability Assessments” Association of State Floodplain Managers 

Annual Conference. Reno, NV 2008. 

“Updating Multi-Hazard Mitigation and CRS Floodplain Management Plans: Everything You Need to Know” (4-hour 

Workshop). Association of State Floodplain Managers Annual Conference. Co presenter, Oklahoma City, OK. May 

2010. 

Western Governor's Association State Drought Planning Meeting, March 2000, Albuquerque, New Mexico. Speaker. 

 “Public Outreach Opportunities for Geoscience Education and Hazard Mitigation During Disaster Recovery 

Operations: Experiences from the Northridge Earthquake”; Geological Society of America Annual Meeting, 

October 1994, Seattle, Washington. 

FEMA Region VIII Other Assistance Conference, August 1994, Spearfish, South Dakota (Speaker). 

Fifth U.S. National Conference on Earthquake Engineering, July 1994, Earthquake Engineering Research Institute, 

Chicago, IL (Speaker).  



Jeff Brislawn, CFM  

 Hazard Mitigation Lead / Senior Associate 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 9 of 9  

 

“Planning and Drought“ American Planning Association Planning Advisory Service Report No 574 2013, Schwab; 

Contributing author. 

“The Colorado Drought Mitigation and Response Plan”; Boulas, L., Truby, J., 1981. Rev 1986 and 1990 by Truby, Boulas, 

Kistner, R. Revised 2001 by Brislawn, J.P., Gally, M., Boulas, L., Truby, J., Grier, T., White, P., Koleis, M.. Colorado 

Office of Emergency Management, Golden, CO. 

 “Direct Measurement of Liquefaction Potential in Soils of Monterey County, California”; Charlie, W.A., Doehring, D.O., 

Brislawn, J.P., and Hassen, 1998. US Geological Survey Professional Paper 1551-B: "The Loma Prieta, California, 

Earthquake of October 17, 1989-Liquefaction." US Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 

“Mapping Colorado's Earthquake Hazard with Geographic Information Systems”; Brislawn, J.P., Mejia-Navarro, M., 

Oaks, S.D., and Koleis, M.J., 1993. Proceedings of the Fifth U.S. National Conference on Earthquake Engineering, 

Vol. II, Earthquake Engineering Research Institute, Oakland, CA. 

“Earthquakes and Related Hazards in Colorado”; Oaks, S.D., Brislawn, J.P., Mejia-Navarro, M., and Koleis, M.J., 1993. 

Map scale 1:1,000,000. Colorado Earthquake Hazard Reduction Program, Colorado State University, Fort Collins, 

CO. 

“Geographic Information Systems: A Workbook for Local Governments”; Brislawn, J.P., 1993. Colorado Earthquake 

Hazard Reduction Program, Colorado State University, Fort Collins, CO. 

 “Loma Prieta Earthquake: Piezovane, SPT and CPT Evaluations of Liquefaction in Monterey County, California”; Charlie, 

W.A., Doehring, D.O., Brislawn, J.P., Hassen, H., Siller, T., 1993. Proceedings of the XIII International Conference on 

Soil Mechanics and Foundation Engineering, Special Volume on Earthquakes, New Delhi, India. 

“Liquefaction Evaluation with the CSU Piezovane”; Charlie, W.A., Doehring, D.O., Brislawn, J.P., Scott, C.E., Butler, L.W., 

1993. Proceedings of the XIII International Conference on Soil Mechanics and Foundation Engineering, New 

Delhi, India. 

*Emergency Operations Plan Guidance Manual; Brislawn, J.P., 1993. Colorado Office of Emergency Management, 

Golden, CO. 



Kyle Karsjen  

 Senior Emergency Management Specialist 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 1 of 3  

 

 

Professional Summary 

Mr. Karsjen is a Senior Emergency Management Specialist for Wood’s 

Hazard Mitigation and Emergency Management Program.  Kyle has 

over 15 years’ experience in emergency management in both 

government and the private sector, including threat/hazard 

identification and risk assessment, capabilities assessment, hazard 

mitigation, emergency response planning, infrastructure and asset 

protection, strategic planning and program assessment.  Mr. Karsjen 

has served as project manager on a variety of projects across the 

Midwest and Western regions of the United States, as well as 

providing support for projects across the country.    

Throughout his career, Kyle has been responsible for the 

development of an assortment of plans and planning products, most 

of which have involved facilitating diverse groups of stakeholders 

toward the development and implementation of specific planning and 

project goals.  Additionally, Kyle has offered guidance and technical 

assistance on hazard mitigation and emergency response plan 

development to counties and communities.   

In addition to his planning and program experience, Kyle has held a 

variety of response and recovery roles in Iowa’s State Emergency 

Operations Center for a number of federally declared disasters, 

including floods, blizzards, and the state’s activities during the 

national Hurricane Katrina response.  Kyle has local emergency 

response experience as a firefighter and emergency medical 

technician.   

Representative Projects 

State of Iowa, 11 County Hazard Mitigation Plan Updates, 

2017, Project Manager. 

Coordinating the development of 11 multi-jurisdictional hazard mitigation plans in Iowa, including Dallas, Davis, 

Dubuque, Emmet, Howard, Jackson, Kossuth, Story, Union, Wright, and Worth counties. Coordinated plan 

development, facilitated county planning processes, and developed hazard analyses and risk assessments on a variety 

of hazards. 

Fresno County, CA Hazard Mitigation Plan 2018, Planner. 

Assisted in the development of the hazard analysis and risk assessment, specifically assessing risks associated with 

hazardous materials in the County. 

State of Wyoming, Region 2 Hazard Mitigation Plan 2018, Project Manager.   

Working with three counties (Converse County, Natrona County, Niobrara County) in eastern Wyoming to develop a 

regional FEMA-approved hazard mitigation plan.  Leading planning meetings, coordinating jurisdictional and regional 

planning activities, facilitating the development of regional and jurisdiction-specific mitigation plans, and finalizing 

the plan for FEMA review. 

City and County of Denver, CO Cherry Creek Evacuation Plan, 2017, Planner.   

Assisted in the development of an evacuation plan for the Cherry Creek Dam, working with City of Denver, Adams 

County, Arapahoe County and the City of Aurora.  Facilitated workgroups to assess specific evacuation parameters for 

access and functional needs and pets and animals.  

Summary  

Years of Experience  

15 

Education 

Bachelor of Science, Community and 

Regional Planning/Iowa State 

University/2004 

Technical / Trade Apprenticeship, 

Emergency Medical Technician/Des 

Moines Area Community College/2008 

Core Skills 

• Hazard Mitigation Planning 

• Emergency Response Planning 

• Strategic Planning 

• Public/Private Sector Collaboration 

• Infrastructure Protection Planning 

• Asset Protection Planning 

• Grant Writing and Management 

• Project Management 

• Program Management 

• Planning Facilitation 



Kyle Karsjen  

 Senior Emergency Management Specialist 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 2 of 3  

 

City of Boulder, CO Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, 2017, Planner.   

Supported the development of the plan’s hazard analysis and risk assessment.  

State of Wyoming, Region 5 Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2017, Planner.   

Supported the development of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) for a county region with two 

counties (Fremont County, Sublette County) and one tribe (Wind River Reservation) in west central Wyoming 

including twenty incorporated jurisdictions.  Developed input for risk assessment related to wind, winter storm, 

extreme cold and other hazards. 

State of Missouri Hazard Analysis and Risk Assessment, Missouri State Emergency Management 

Agency, MO 2017, Planner.  

Responsible for developing specific chapters for hazards identified by the Planning Committee, including wildfire, civil 

disorder, terrorism, transportation incidents and special events. Each chapter included hazard analysis, historical 

analysis, impact identification and analysis of future vulnerability, and an EMAP-compliant consequence analysis.  

State of Wyoming, Region 4 Hazard Mitigation Plan 2016, Project Manager.   

Worked with the three counties in Region 4 (Lincoln County, Sweetwater County, Uinta County) to develop a regional 

FEMA-approved hazard mitigation plan.  Lead planning meetings, coordinated planning activities, conducted risk 

assessment, facilitated the development of county-specific mitigation projects and developed the final plan.  Hazards 

assessed included dam failure, other man-made incidents and natural hazards. 

State of Wyoming, Region 6 Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2016, Planner.   

Supported the development of a multi-jurisdictional Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) for a four-county region (Big Horn 

County, Hot Springs County, Park County, Washakie County) in northwestern Wyoming including nine municipalities.  

Developed input for risk assessment related to wind, winter storm, extreme cold and other hazards. 

Taos County, NM Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2016, Planner.   

Worked with the county and jurisdictions to facilitate successful planning process and plan development, culminating 

in a compliant mitigation plan.  Developed the hazard analysis for the county, including assessments and historical 

analysis of risk from tornadoes and high winds. 

State of South Dakota, Hazard Analysis and Risk Assessment, South Dakota Office of Emergency 

Management, SD, 2016, Planner.  

Responsible for developing specific chapters for natural and man-made hazards identified by the Planning 

Committee. Each chapter included hazard analysis, historical analysis, impact identification and analysis of future 

vulnerability.  

State of Colorado, Colorado Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) Assistance, 2015. 

Provided technical assistance with Benefit Cost Analysis, project scoping and eGrants for the FY 2015 PDM/FMA grant 

cycle. 

City and County of Denver, CO Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, 2016, Planner.   

Working with the City/County to facilitate successful planning process and plan development, culminating in a 

compliant mitigation plan.  Developing the hazard analysis for the City/County, including assessments and historical 

analysis of risk from drought, extreme temperatures and wildfires, along with assessment of man-made hazards 

including active shooter, energy disruption, and civil disturbance. 

Santa Fe County, NM Hazard Mitigation Plan Development, 2015, Planner.   

Working with the county to facilitate successful planning process and plan development, culminating in a compliant 

mitigation plan.  Developed the hazard analysis for the county, including assessments and historical analysis of risk 

from drought, extreme temperatures and wildfires. 

 



Kyle Karsjen  

 Senior Emergency Management Specialist 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 3 of 3  

 

Jefferson County, CO Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, 2015, Planner.   

Working with the county to facilitate successful planning process and plan development, culminating in a Disaster 

Mitigation Act (DMA) and Community Rating System (CRS) compliant mitigation plan update.  Responsible for 

developing the hazard analysis for the county, including assessments and historical analysis of risk from drought, 

erosion and deposition, extreme temperatures and wildfires. 

South Dakota Drought Mitigation Plan, South Dakota Office of Emergency Management, SD, 2015, 

Planner.   

Assisted in the development of a Drought Mitigation Plan for the State of South Dakota.  Tasks included assessment 

of agency capabilities, development of an agency capability matrix, identification of potential funding sources for 

drought mitigation, response and recovery, and development of a mitigation actions matrix. 

Big Horn County, WY Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2015, Planner.  

Responsible for developing specific chapters for hazards identified by the Planning Committee. Each chapter included 

hazard analysis, historical analysis, impact identification and analysis of possible future impacts for each hazard. 

Hazards assessed included hail, tornadoes, wildland fire and dam failure.  

Campbell County, WY Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2015, Planner.  

Responsible for developing hazard specific annexes for hazards identified by the Planning Committee.  Annexes 

included hazard analysis, historical analysis, impact identification and analysis of possible future impacts.  Hazards 

assessed include flooding, severe weather, hazardous materials and methane seeps, along with identification and 

assessment of vulnerable populations. 

Niobrara County, WY Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2015, Planner.  

Responsible for developing hazard specific annexes for hazards identified by the Planning Committee.  Annexes 

included hazard analysis, historical analysis, impact identification and analysis of possible future impacts.  Hazards 

assessed include drought, extreme temperatures, wildland fires, landslides and terrorism. 

Teton County, WY Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2015, Planner.  

Responsible for developing hazard specific annexes for hazards identified by the Planning Committee. Annexes 

included hazard analysis, historical analysis, impact identification and analysis of possible future impacts.  Unique 

hazards assessed included earthquakes, winter storms and avalanche. 

Los Alamos County, NM Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2015, Planner.  

Supported the development of the plan, including finalization of the HIRA, development of meeting materials, and 

incorporation of updated hazard mitigation strategies provided by the Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee into 

the final plan. 

Core Capabilities Assessment, State of Iowa, 2013, Project Manager.  

Responsible for facilitating discipline partners and subject matter experts to set targets for each of the 31 core 

capabilities identified in the National Preparedness Goal, and assessing Iowa’s current capability levels against those 

targets.  This information then provided the framework for the development of the state’s strategic plan for homeland 

security and emergency management. 

Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment (THIRA), Iowa Homeland Security and 

Emergency Management, 2013, Project Manager.  

Facilitated discipline partners and subject matter experts to identify and flesh out worst-case scenarios for each 

hazard listed in Iowa’s Hazard Analysis and Risk Assessment, including potential impacts on National Preparedness 

Goal core capabilities in order to identify the maximum requirements for each core capability in the State of Iowa.  

Also co-coordinated the 2014 update. 

 



Juliana Prosperi, AICP, LEED AP®, ENV SP 

 Senior Environmental Planner 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 1 of 4  

 

 

Professional Summary 

Ms. Prosperi has over 17 years of experience as an AICP-certified 

planner and regulatory compliance specialist with expertise in 

environmental, transportation, and land use planning with an 

emphasis on hazard mitigation, climate adaptation, and sustainability 

planning and policy. Ms. Prosperi has worked extensively as an 

environmental consultant on projects ranging from new schools, 

linear electric and water infrastructure development, renewable 

energy, mines, land use, hazard mitigation plans, and parks, trails, and 

recreation master plans. As a project manager, her skills span 

compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and Tahoe Regional 

Planning Agency (TRPA) Regional Plan and Code of Ordinances. As a 

land use planner, Ms. Prosperi regularly conducts environmental 

review, successfully manages multi-disciplinary teams in the 

preparation of national and state environmental impact documents, 

prepares Local and Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plans, and provides 

regulatory permitting support. She supports projects in northern 

Nevada, northern California, as well as Colorado, Oregon, and Utah.  

She provides technical planning services and extensive community 

and stakeholder engagement strategy development and support, 

including organizing community involvement plans; facilitating 

workshops, open houses, public meetings; and presenting in front of 

decision-makers. Ms. Prosperi also oversees regulatory permitting 

and has prepared and obtained a range of plans and permit types, 

including Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plans (SWPPPs); Section 

1602 Lake or Streambed Alteration Agreements, Section 404 

Nationwide Permits under the Clean Water Act (CWA), and Fugitive Dust Control Plans (FDCPs). She also specializes in 

Geographic Information System (GIS) analysis, biological reconnaissance and Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 

surveys; and provides senior technical, QA/QC, and editorial review. She is a versatile planner that is proficient in all 

aspects of current and long-range planning, public outreach and engagement, and facilitation.  

Representative Projects 

City of Tracy Hazard Mitigation Plan, Tracy, CA (2018 – Present), Project Manager. 

Ms. Prosperi is preparing the City of Tracy’s Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP). The City is preparing the LHMP to 

meet the eligibility requirements for the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program under Section 404 of the federal Disaster 

Relief Act. Ms. Prosperi is in the process of developing a single-jurisdiction LHMP. The effort involves public outreach 

and facilitation of three Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee (HMPC) meetings, a Stakeholder Workshop, and a 

public workshop. She recently prepared a Community Engagement Strategy for the City to help guide the public 

outreach and planning process. Ms. Prosperi also oversees a team preparing the Hazard Identification and Risk 

Assessment, which will cover both natural and man-made hazards.  

Calaveras County Water District Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Calaveras County, CA (2017 – 

Present), Project Manager. 

Ms. Prosperi updated the Calaveras County Water District’s (CCWD) Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP). CCWD 

updated their LHMP to meet the eligibility requirements for the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program under Section 404 

of the federal Disaster Relief Act (The Stafford Act, as amended). In coordination with our Hazard Mitigation planning 

team, Ms. Prosperi developed a single-jurisdiction LHMP Update consistent with the requirements of DMA 2000, FMA 

Summary  

Years of Experience  

17 

Education 

MA/Environmental Science and Energy 

Analysis/Boston University/2004 

BA/Environmental Studies/University of 

Colorado – Boulder/2001 

BA/English/University of Colorado – 

Boulder/2001 

Registrations / Certifications/ 

Licenses 

• American Institute of Certified 

Planners (AICP), No. 0231888 

• Leadership in Energy and 

Environmental Design Accredited 

Professional (LEED AP®) 

• Building Design + Construction (BD + 

C) GBCI, No. 10057058 

• Wood E&Is Project Management 

Training, May 2015 



Juliana Prosperi, AICP, LEED AP®, ENV SP 

 Senior Environmental Planner 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 2 of 4  

 

and associated planning guidance and limited to natural hazards. The effort involved public outreach and facilitation 

of three Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee (HMPC) meetings and a public workshop. The project involved a 

robust planning process, participation from over 20 jurisdictions and state and local agencies, the circulation of an 

online public survey, informational booths at community events, and a streamlined six-month schedule. Ms. Prosperi 

ensured the LHMP update was completed on-time and within budget; both Cal OES and FEMA recently approved the 

project in October, and the LHMP goes before the CCWD Board this November.  

Stillwater National Wildlife Refuge – Carson River Ranch Parcels Land Transfer to State of Nevada, 

Lyon County, NV (2018), Deputy Project Manager.  

Ms. Prosperi supported and oversaw the completion of a Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment consistent with 

ASTM Standard Practice E1517-05 and Environmental Protection Agency Standards and Practices for All Appropriate 

Inquires (40 CFR Part 312) for an approximate 1,700-acre project site along the Carson River near Silver Springs, 

Nevada. The project documentation is being prepared on behalf of the US Fish and Wildlife Service as part of a 

property transfer to the State of Nevada. The project involved conducting a Phase I ESA on a subject site that 

overlapped with a large portion of the Carson River Superfund Site Operable Unit 2 study area, which spans from 

Virginia City to the terminal wetlands in the Stillwater National Wildlife Refuge.  

Big Bend National Park, Land Protection Plan, National Park Service, Brewster County, TX (2017 – 

Present), Deputy Project Manager.  

Ms. Prosperi is assisting in the preparation of a draft Land Protection Plan for Big Bend National Park, with a focus on 

non-park owned parcels inside and adjacent to the Park boundaries. The Land Protection Plan will be used in 

understanding parcel ownership and to prioritize non-park owned parcels for various actions (e.g. easements, 

acquisition, etc.) in order to reduce future conflicts. Ms. Prosperi is coordinating BIBE and NPS review of the plan.  

West Wash Dam Rehabilitation Supplemental Watershed Plan and Environmental Assessment, 

Natural Resources Conservation Service – Nevada State Office, Reno, NV (2015-2017), Project 

Manager. 

Ms. Prosperi prepared a Supplemental Watershed Plan and Preliminary Environmental Assessment (PLAN-EA) for the 

Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) that evaluated alternatives for the rehabilitation of West Wash Dam 

located within northwest Reno, Nevada. Ms. Prosperi was responsible for the preparation of a Public Participation 

Plan, Scoping Notices, the facilitation of the Scoping Meeting, two Public Workshops, the preparation of a Scoping 

Report, and the completion of numerous sections of the Public Review EA. This project involved the completion on an 

economic cost-benefit analysis, a robust planning process and a diverse stakeholder group that include the City of 

Reno, Washoe County, University of Nevada – Reno, and several community groups. 

634 Line Rebuild EA and Construction Monitoring, NV Energy, Douglas County, NV (2015 – 2017), 

Project Manager. 

Ms. Prosperi managed the preparation of an Public Review and Final EA and Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) 

document for the reconstruction of a 2.67-mile portion of the existing 634 Transmission Line from Foothill Road in the 

Carson Valley to Tramway Drive near the Heavenly Valley Ski Resort in Douglas County, Nevada. The project was 

constructed at 120 kV standards to meet current avian protection construction guidelines.  A 1.65-mile portion of the 

634 Line is located on private land and a 1.02-mile portion is located on federal public lands managed by the US 

Forest Service. Ms. Prosperi recently oversaw the restoration and environmental monitoring for the transmission line.  

Pinewild Condominium Distribution Line Rebuild, Zephyr Cove, NV (2018 – Present), Deputy 

Project Manager. 

Ms. Prosperi is currently working on behalf of NV Energy to obtain project permits for a distribution line rebuild 

project in the Pinewild subdivision located along the eastern shore of Lake Tahoe in Zephyr Cove. Ms. Prosperi 

conducted a tree survey, including documentation of diameter breast height (dbh) of all protected trees within 15 feet 

of a proposed distribution line rebuild and specific transformer site replacement. She the prepared a Tree Protection 

Plan, Temporary BMP Plan, and coordinated site plan review with NV Energy and Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 

(TRPA) staff.  



Juliana Prosperi, AICP, LEED AP®, ENV SP 

 Senior Environmental Planner 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 3 of 4  

 

Lake Village Subdivision Distribution Line Rebuild, Stateline, NV (2018 – Present), Deputy Project 

Manager. 
Ms. Prosperi is currently working on behalf of NV Energy to obtain Tahoe Regional Planning Agency permits for a 

distribution line rebuild project. Ms. Prosperi conducted a tree survey, including documentation of diameter breast 

height (dbh) of all protected trees within 15 feet of a proposed distribution line rebuild and specific transformer site 

replacement. She prepared a Tree Protection Plan for the project. She also supported the preparation of a Temporary 

BMP Plan, and coordinated site plan review with NV Energy and TRPA staff.  

Incline Village Tyner Way Distribution Line Rebuild, Incline Village, NV (2018 – Present), Deputy 

Project Manager. 

Ms. Prosperi conducted a tree survey, including documentation of diameter breast height (dbh) of all protected trees 

within 15 feet of a proposed distribution line rebuild and specific transformer site replacement/retaining wall areas. 

She prepared a Tree Protection Plan for the project, and coordinated site plan review with NV Energy and Tahoe 

Regional Planning Agency (TRPA) staff.  

Samsung Solar Fatal Flaw Feasibility Analyses, Kern County, Tulare County, San Bernardino County, 

and Kings County, CA (2018 – Present), Senior Environmental Planner. 

Ms. Prosperi prepared regulatory framework, land use, aesthetics/visual resources, and noise environmental 

constraints analysis for over seven (7) potential solar generation facilities and generation-tie projects in Southern 

California. As part of the effort, she conducted land use mapping and consulted with the planning and natural 

resource agency departments in each County to determine the feasibility of siting a solar generation array on parcels 

ranging from 400 to 800 acres and located within a ½ mile of an existing transmission line or substation.  

New Pass Peak Distribution Line EA, NV Energy, Pershing and Lansing County, NV (2015 – 2016) 

Ms. Prosperi managed the preparation of a Public Review EA for the construction of a new 24.9 kilovolt (kV) 

distribution line from an existing distribution line located within the Edwards Creek Valley, located approximately 25 

miles northwest of the unincorporated community of Austin, Nevada to an existing communications site located on 

New Pass Peak. The project would traverse approximately 5.77 miles of lands managed by the BLM within the 

Stillwater Field Office planning area. Ms. Prosperi worked with the Stillwater Field Office to review technical studies, 

develop the Proposed Action, support the scoping process, circulate the Public Review EA, and secure permits. 

Mason and Smith Valley Transmission Line Right-of-Way EA, NV Energy, Yerington, NV (2015 – 

Present), Project Manager.  

Ms. Prosperi prepared several sections of an EA that evaluated impacts associated with the rebuild of a 24-mile 

transmission line right-of-way permit renewal. Specifically, Ms. Prosperi prepared the summary of the Proposed 

Action, the mineral resources and cumulative effects section, and noticing materials. She also queried the Legacy 

Rehost database (LR2000), conducted a cursory review of aerial photography within the project vicinity, and 

coordinated with BLM specialists and Lyon County planning staff.  

Santa Barbara County Cannabis Land Use Ordinance and Licensing Program EIR, Santa Barbara 

County, CA (2017 – Present), Senior Environmental Planner. 

The County of Santa Barbara is proposing a Cannabis Land Use Ordinance and Licensing Program. Consistent with 

state law, the proposed Project would regulate commercial cannabis activities within unincorporated areas of the 

County. The Project would involve: amendments to the Santa Barbara County Code (County Code) to establish a new 

licensing program for cannabis activities; amendments to the County Land Use and Development Code (LUDC), the 

Montecito Land Use and Development Code (MLUDC), and the County Coastal Zoning Ordinance (CZO) to address 

cannabis activities; and amendments to County documents and regulations to address specific aspects of cannabis 

activities. Ms. Prosperi prepared the Land Use and Noise sections and drafted responses to public comments. 

Donner Pass Roadway Improvements, Federal Highway Administration – Central Federal Lands 

Division (FHWA – CFLHD), Truckee, CA (2015 – Present), Senior Environmental Planner. 

Ms. Prosperi is providing environmental permitting and project management services towards delivery of a final set of 

plans, specifications and cost estimates for the Federal Highway Administration, Central Federal Lands Highway 



Juliana Prosperi, AICP, LEED AP®, ENV SP 

 Senior Environmental Planner 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 4 of 4  

 

Division (CFLHD) for proposed improvements to Donner Pass Road located in Truckee, California. This project consists 

of a 6.54-mile segment of Donner Pass Road (Old US 40) beginning at the Interchange 80 / Donner Pass Road bridge 

in Soda Springs extending over Donner Pass, and ending at the town limits of Truckee, California.  Key elements of the 

project include road rehabilitation, road widening to provide Class II bicycle lanes, and paving existing pullouts to 

improve parking for trailhead, rock climbing, and historical sightseeing access. Ms. Prosperi is supporting the CFLHD, 

Nevada and Placer counties, the Town of Truckee, and the USFS with the NEPA, CEQA, and regulatory approvals. 

Highland Canal Stormwater Improvement, Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA), Reno, NV 

(2013 – 2014) 

Ms. Prosperi evaluated impacts, constraints, and potential alternatives for the implementation of a stormwater 

improvement project in northwest Reno, Nevada. The process was guided by routine feedback from a Technical 

Advisory Committee (TAC), which consisted of members from Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP), 

Nevada Division of Transportation (NDOT), Nevada Division of State Lands (NDSL), Army Corps of Engineers (Corps), 

City of Reno, Washoe County, and the Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR). Ms. Prosperi also oversaw the completion of the 

final plan set and permits. 

Santa Monica Downtown Specific Plan, City of Santa Monica Planning Department, Santa Monica, 

CA (2017 – Present), Senior Environmental Planner. 

The City of Santa Monica is proposing a Specific Plan for the Downtown District – known as the Downtown Specific 

Plan. The proposed Downtown Specific Plan would implement the community’s vision for the Downtown as guided by 

the City’s Land Use and Circulation Element (LUCE). The LUCE outlines a broad range of goals and objectives for the 

Downtown and requires the adoption of a specific plan that includes refined policies and standards tailored to the 

Downtown. Ms. Prosperi assisted the project team in the preparing responses to over 30 individual comments 

received during the public review period on the Draft and Recirculated Draft EIR.  

Ruth Zenia and Van Duzen Roadway Improvement Project, Federal Highway Administration – 

Central Federal Lands Highway Division (FHWA – CFLHD), Trinity County, CA (2016 – Present), 

Senior Technical Advisor. 

The Federal Highway Administration, Central Federal Lands Highway Division (FHWA-CFLHD), in cooperation with the 

US Forest Service (USFS) and Trinity County, is proposing to road improvements on Van Duzen Road (County Road 

511) and Ruth-Zenia Road (County Road 502). Both roads function as primary access routes to the Six Rivers National 

Forest (SRNF) south of State Route 36 and provide the main transportation routes for the rural communities of Mad 

River, Ruth, Zenia, and Kettenpom in Trinity County, California. Ms. Prosperi is supporting the preparation of baseline 

biological surveys, a Categorical Exclusion (CE) under NEPA and an Initial Study/Negative Declaration (IS/ND) under 

CEQA, and environmental permits. She also provided senior and QA/QC review for project deliverables.  

Additional Qualifications  

• “It Takes Everyone – Sustainability Planning in Lake Tahoe” Presenter/Panelist, American Planning Association – 

Western Planner Conference, October 2013, Stateline, Nevada 

• “Career Planning for Young Urban Planners” Panelist/Organizer, American Planning Association – California 

Planning Conference (CalAPA), November 2009, Squaw Valley, California 

 



Amy Carr 

 Hazard Mitigation Planner 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 1 of 2  

 

 

Professional Summary 

Ms. Carr has educational and professional planning experience with a 

focus on land use and hazard mitigation. She worked as a Planner for 

Arapahoe County, Colorado to review site plans by applying the 

County’s Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan to each 

plan. As a County Planner, she revised the Wireless 

Telecommunication Systems section of the Land Development Code 

to be up to date with modern technology and state statues. She 

worked with the City of Manitou Springs to research hazard 

mitigation strategies for flooding and wildfire that could be applied to 

historic properties without diminishing their historic integrity. She 

created educational handouts for the public based on her research. 

She received her BA in Urban Studies with a concentration in Urban 

Planning from the College of Charleston and her Master’s in Urban 

and Regional Planning with a focus on hazard mitigation from the 

University of Colorado, Denver. At Wood, she has worked as a Hazard 

Mitigation Planner to help communities write and update their 

Hazard Mitigation Plans as well as help in determining potential 

mitigation actions for their community.  

Representative Projects 

City of Tracy Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, City of Tracy, 

California, 2018. Planner. Ms. Carr is providing support for the 

preparation of a new LHMP for the City of Tracy located in San 

Joaquin County, California. Ms. Carr drafted the Online Public Survey 

for the City to increase participation, and is supporting the 

preparation of community engagement and outreach materials, 

including flyers, brochures, website postings, and other materials. Ms. 

Carr is also in the process of preparing the Hazard Identification and 

Risk Assessment.  

City of Westminster Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, 2018, City of Westminster Emergency 

Management, Planner.  

Responsible for updating the City of Westminster’s Hazard Mitigation Plan, compliant with the Disaster Mitigation Act 

(DMA) of 2000. Responsible for updating and editing the plan document and completing a mitigation capabilities 

tracker based on the City’s available resources. Participated in the facilitation of HMPC meetings.  

Wyoming Regional Hazard Mitigation Plans, Region 1 and Region II, 2018 Wyoming Office of 

Emergency Management, Planner. 

Responsible for writing the base document of Region I’s Hazard Mitigation Plan based on information collected from 

HMPC meetings, public meetings, public surveys, and local hazard mitigations plans.  

Responsible for completing the Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment for the Region II and writing the base 

document of Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan. Participated in facilitating HMPC and public meetings.  

Archuleta County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, 2018, Archuleta County Office of Emergency 

Management, CO, Planner.  

Updated the County’s mitigation actions plan through information given from the Office of Emergency Management 

and other County stakeholders.  

Summary  

Years of Experience  

1 

Education 

MURP/Urban and Regional 

Planning/University of Colorado 

Denver/2017  

BA/Urban Studies/College of 

Charleston/2014 

Professional Associations 

• American Planning Association 

• APA Colorado  

Areas of Expertise 

• ICS-100 Introduction to Incident 

Command/12/31/2050 

• IS-700 National Incident Management 

System (NIMS)/12/31/2015 

• ICS-200 ICS for Single Resources and 

Initial Action Incident/12/31/2050 

• IS-800 National Response 

Framework/12/31/2050 

• ICS-300 Intermediate ICS for 

Expanding Incidents/12/31/2050 



Amy Carr 

 Hazard Mitigation Planner 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 2 of 2  

 

Story County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, 2018, Story County, IA, Planner. 

Researched and completed portions of the Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment for the County’s plan update. 

The sections included: human disease, animal, plan and crop disease, hazardous materials, infrastructure failure, and 

transportation incident. 

Colorado State Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 2018, Colorado Department of Homeland Security, 

Planner. 

Responsible for data collection from local hazard mitigation that was integrated into the State of Colorado Hazard 

Mitigation Plan. Participated in the facilitation of HMPC meetings.  

Colorado Drought Mitigation and Response Plan Update 2018, Colorado Water Conservation 

Board, Planner.  

Responsible for data collection form local hazard mitigation action plans that was integrated into the Drought Plan. 

Updated the base document with new information that has happened since the last plan update and integrated 

information from the State Hazard Mitigation and Flood Plans that were simultaneously being updated. Participated 

in facilitating planning meetings including, creating handouts and updating mitigation action tables.  

Colorado Flood Plan Update 2018, Colorado Water Conservation Board, Planner. 

Participated in the update to Colorado’s Flood Plan, compliant with the Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) of 2000 and 

aligned with modern emergency management standards. Responsible for data collection form local hazard mitigation 

action plans that was integrated into the Flood Plan. Updated the base document with new information that has 

happened since the last plan update and integrated information from the State Hazard Mitigation and Drought Plans 

that were simultaneously being updated.  

Ute Mountain Ute Tribal Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, 2018, Ute Mountain Ute Tribe, Ute 

Mountain Ute Reservation, CO, Planner.  

(32790096) Researched and completed portions of the Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment for the Tribe’s plan 

update. Responsible for the updating and editing the plan document including the integration of new data on natural 

hazards and the results from public surveys.  

South Dakota Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, 2018, State of South Dakota Office of Emergency 

Management, SD, Planner. 

Responsible for the collection of information from local hazard mitigation plans that is used to inform the plan 

update. Updated and edited the base document including the integration of new information that was collected from 

local hazard mitigation plans.  

Publications / Presentations  

“Hazard Mitigation Strategies for Historic Properties”, City of Manitou Springs Historic Preservation Commission, May, 

2017 



Marta Blanco Castano 

 GIS Planner 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 1 of 3  

 

 

Professional Summary 

Marta is a GIS Analyst and Planner for Wood, primarily involved with 

Water Resources and Hazard Mitigation projects. She has experience 

with Geographic Information Systems and Technology, which allow 

for the collection, analysis, management, storage, and representation 

of a variety of complex spatial and non-spatial datasets. For planning 

projects, she enjoys researching, analyzing data, collaborating with 

government entities, and devising creative ways to implement 

solutions to regions vulnerable to various hazards (e.g., drought, 

flooding, wildfire). Previous to joining the Wood Environment and 

Infrastructure team, she worked as a GIS Intern at Quantum Water 

and Environment, manipulating and analyzing geospatial information 

and datasets related to groundwater studies and environmental 

compliance projects. She concurrently worked at the University of Denver (DU), as a Graduate Teaching and Research 

Assistant to her department’s academic instructors.  

During her time at DU, Marta gained experience teaching and conducting research within the fields of GIS and 

geography, particularly by employing statistical analyses and the development of geospatial visualization systems. 

She has been involved with projects related to natural resource management, transportation networks, real estate, 

cyber infrastructure, and urban geography, where she often dealt with project management and community 

development-focused tasks. She is passionate about applying spatial analysis, data management, visualization 

methods, and planning and regulation processes to aid with decision making within different industries and economy 

sectors. 

Representative Projects 

Town of Greybull Benefit Cost Analysis (BCA) for Levee Certification, Big Horn, WY, Planner / GIS 

Analyst. 

Planner and GIS Analyst, performed parcel analysis of critical facilities at risk of flooding to the 10-year, 25-year, 50-

year, 100-year, and 500-year events. Collected, manipulated, analyzed, and created summaries and maps. Developed 

a project summary document to state the process to arrive at the building loss estimates, and what analysis/methods 

were used to calculate depth damage functions from parcels, local information, flood depth grids, survey elevation 

points, and construction replacement values. Finally submitted the results into FEMA’s BCA Tool. 

Tribal Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Ute Mountain Ute Tribe, CO, Planner / GIS Analyst. 

Worked to manipulate and make a presentation of GIS and relevant tribal data and information, to present during the 

Mitigation Plan meetings with the community. Also helped researching for and writing the hazard mitigation plan. 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, 11 County Plans, IA, Planner / GIS Analyst. 

Performed GIS analysis using ArcGIS 10.4.1 to complete hazard risk assessments to provide loss estimates as well as 

mapping products. Other GIS analysis was performed for geographic hazards such as Dam Failure and Levee Failure 

as well as Wildland/Grass Fire and Hazardous Materials Incidents. Additionally, researched and wrote several hazard 

sections for many of the community plans (e.g., riverine flooding, wildfire). 

Colorado State Drought Mitigation and Response Plan Update, CO, Planner / GIS Analyst. 

Planner and GIS Analyst, researching and incorporating updates to the environmental, energy, state assets, and social 

vulnerability sections within the previous plan, to represent recent changes in state regulation, past and future 

potential effects from drought, and other aspects tied to this hazard. GIS analyses as well as a vulnerability calculation 

tool are part of the update, and Marta assisted with implementation and interpretation of how these results may 

affect how the state will monitor, mitigate, and respond to drought across its many sectors. Also attended meetings 

Summary  

Years of Experience  

1 

Education 

MS/Geographic Information 

Science/University of Denver/2017 

BA/ Geography and Environmental 

Studies/University of Colorado2015 

 



Marta Blanco Castano 

 GIS Planner 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 2 of 3  

 

with local agencies and governments (e.g., CWCB, Colorado Parks and Wildlife) to coordinate and develop mitigation 

action and response strategies. 

Colorado Enhanced State Multi-Hazard Mitigation and Response Plan Update, CO, Planner / GIS 

Analyst. 

Processed Level 1 Hazus Flood Analysis for counties across the state. Assisted with QA-QC for GIS and planning tasks. 

Wrote the drought hazard chapter. Made maps and figures for various hazards, to display vulnerabilities as well as 

statuses of current local plans and municipal and tribal mitigation efforts. Performed analysis on state assets/facilities 

and potential losses across the state for landslide hazards.  

Wyoming Regions 1 and 2 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plans, WY, Planner / GIS Analyst. 

Planner and GIS Analyst, creating blueprints to guide mitigation and response actions related to various hazards (e.g., 

wildfire, flood, drought, dam failure), by collecting information about local vulnerabilities, regulations, knowledge, 

populations, and properties/structures to create a regional plan. The planning process requires GIS analyses of local, 

state, and federal datasets (e.g., FEMA’s Digital Flood Insurance Rate Maps), map generation, data management, 

parcel analysis, and other spatial and non-spatial tool and information synthesizing to enable local governments to 

make informed decisions, reduce losses, and increase resilience from these and other complex hazards. Wrote several 

of the hazards’ Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment (HIRA) chapters. 

Castle Rock Drought Plan, Castle Rock, CO, Planner. 

Assisting with conducting background research then developing a drought plan, by implementing information 

collected from various sources, local master plans, and community-held workshops. The project involves formulating 

the town’s first-ever drought management plan, with the objectives to provide a comprehensive framework to guide 

Castle Rock’s staff on drought mitigation and response actions, preserve essential public services and water resources 

during droughts, minimize adverse drought-related impacts (e.g., on public health and safety, economic activity, the 

environment), enable effective community of drought awareness, and provide an effective means to monitor and 

improve the plan itself over time. 

Converse County Hazard Mitigation Plan, WY, Planner / GIS Analyst. 

Reviewed and quality checked GIS analysis on critical facilities and plan documents, to ensure consistency in 

discussions, text, charts, graphs, tables, maps, and other related data and content. 

Hazards U.S. (HAZUS) Analyses for FEMA and RiskMAP Studies, Colorado State-Wide, GIS Analyst.  

Performing riverine-based flooding and hazard studies on various counties across Colorado, to identify areas of 

particular risk by utilizing specialized GIS software and tools. The loss estimation analyses take into account different 

complex variables including Digital Elevation Models (DEMs), hydrological features, population and other census-

derived data, and local utilities and infrastructure. Results are then further analyzed to arrive at how the financial, 

social, and infrastructure losses may affect people and jurisdictions, and put into map form for presentation at hazard 

mitigation meetings and events. 

Arkansas River Hydrologic Evaluation, CO, GIS Analyst. 

Generated maps after analyzing river gauge, dam, and other related hydrology data to portray the river basin and all 

its features. Carried out research as well to corroborate information from USGS records and other online databases. 

Also created a historic geographic visualization and document access interface containing water studies and features 

related to the basin (published on ArcGIS Online). 

Colorado Water Conservation Board’s (CWCB) Colorado Hazard Mapping and RiskMAP (CHAMP) 

Phase III, Colorado State-Wide, GIS Analyst. 

Performing various GIS and data management tasks including spatial analyses, digitizing, geo-rectification, 

development of stream centerlines, image analysis and construction, data collection and metadata creation/revision, 

assessments of existing datasets (e.g., QA/QC), and generating visual outputs related to floodplain delineation and 

mapping of different riverine risks across Colorado. The tasks performed assist engineering and science-based work 



Marta Blanco Castano 

 GIS Planner 
 

  

November 2018 
 

 Page 3 of 3  

 

that will ultimately empower communities with long-term planning and resiliency tools to combat flooding and other 

natural hazards. 

BP Wood River Environmental Site Cleanup, IL, GIS Analyst.  

Assisting with geospatial mapping, analysis, and data management work related to an environmental compliance and 

cleanup project from an old BP oil refinery near the Wood River. Specific tasks include finding and documenting data 

sources (e.g., generation of metadata), conducting project research, editing features, creating datasets, and quality 

checking work.  

Fluvial Hazard Migration, CO, GIS Analyst. 

Performing GIS tasks including research of historical imagery, geo-rectification of raster datasets, general data 

analysis, digitization to obtain vectorized datasets, and performing QA/QC. This project seeks to study and 

understand how streams and their features change over time, and concurrently affect or may be affected by natural 

and man-made structures, so that conclusions may be made about the hazards posed by and imposed onto riverine 

features (e.g., river banks).  

Middle South Platte River First Order Approximate (FOA), CO, GIS Analyst. 

Analyzed and processed the Middle South Platte River area streams, to re-arrange their location, shape, size, and 

connectivity with other streams based on their features and surrounding landscape (natural environment). This 

allowed for future hydrological and hydraulic analysis and modeling to take place, as the raw line features were not in 

a clean enough format to enable further analysis/modeling.  

Mina Cata, Coloso Mine, Guanacevi Mine, El Cubo Mine, and Terronera Mine Projects, Mexico, GIS 

Analyst. 

Analyzed and processed historical images to superimpose imagery from various years, and create mosaics and raster 

dataset collages. These images show the changes in the areas in and around the mines in question, over time. 

Processing involved mosaicking methods, geo-rectification, clipping, resizing, re-structuring, conversion, and other 

such manipulation.  

Rio Grande Levee Work, CO, GIS Analyst. 

Generated maps after analyzing levee, dam, and other related data to portray the Rio Grande Levee and all its 

features. Carried out research as well to corroborate information from historic records, imagery, and geospatial 

datasets. 

 

 



Annie Berlinghieri 

 Staff Geologist 
 

  

October 2018 
 

 Page 1 of 2  

 

 

Professional Summary 

Ms. Berlinghieri has five years of environmental consulting experience 

in environmental hydrology and geology. She has provided task 

management and technical support on both government and private 

sector projects. She has managed and supported the development of 

site characterization reports, technical memoranda, work plans, 

standard operating procedures, risk assessments, hazard mitigation 

plans, and emergency action plans. She has assisted in the 

development of HEC-RAS dam inundation models and watershed-

scale and local-scale water budgets. Her field experience includes 

stream gauging, geomorphic stream assessment, aquifer testing, 

collection of field-based water quality parameters, and operations 

and maintenance of automatic samplers, pressure transducers, and 

meteorological stations. Her environmental sampling experience 

includes surface water, groundwater, stormwater, mine waste, stream 

sediment, and aquatic macroinvertebrates. Ms. Berlinghieri also 

performed independent research quantifying surface water-

groundwater exchange in a restored stream channel using a one-

dimensional heat transport model.  

Representative Projects 

Calaveras County Water District Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Calaveras County, CA (2018), 

Staff Geologist.  

Prepared materials for planning meetings and workshops with stakeholders and multiple agencies to support the 

development of an update to the Calaveras County Water District Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

West Wash Dam Rehabilitation Environmental Assessment, Dougherty Sprague Environmental, 

Reno, NV (2015), Staff Geologist. 

Assisted in preparation of Environmental Assessment for West Wash Dam Rehabilitation. Researched and prepared 

Geological Resources and Soil Resources text. Evaluated potential consequences of four alternatives and proposed 

mitigation measures to minimize construction impacts. 

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District Dam Inundation Mapping and Emergency Action Plan, 

Georgetown, CA (2018-present), Modeler and Emergency Action Planner. 

Assisted in preparation of HEC-RAS dam inundation model consistent with the approach required by Division of 

Safety of Dams (sunny day breach for specific dam storage).  Performed field reconnaissance of hydraulic structures.  

Coordinated with client to gather data and other information necessary to develop the inundation model.  Assisted in 

preparation of the Emergency Action Plan based on dam inundation modeling results. 

Remedial Investigation at Confidential Mine Superfund Site, Alpine County, CA (2013-present), 

Staff Geologist/Hydrologist.  

Worked as member of multidisciplinary project team to perform remedial investigation activities at a remote site. 

Managed field implementation of stormwater, surface water, water balance, and surface water-groundwater 

interaction investigations. Responsible for equipment inventory and maintenance, training field staff, managing 

sampling crews, and providing support in site logistics and staffing. Performed environmental sampling of surface 

water, groundwater, stormwater, mine waste, stream sediment, and aquatic macroinvertebrates. Performed stream 

discharge measurements, water level measurements, pressure transducer operations and maintenance, maintenance 

and troubleshooting on automatic water samplers, conventional and pneumatic aquifer testing, hydrometeorological 

data collection, and meteorological station maintenance. Installed and monitored drive-point piezometers and 

Summary  

Years of Experience  

5 

Education 

MS/Geology/West Virginia University/2013 

BA/Earth and Planetary Sciences/Ohio 

Wesleyan University/2007 

Core Skills 

Hydrologist/Hydrogeologist 

Technical Writer 

Risk Assessor 

Environmental Scientist 

Administrative 

Geologist 

GIS Specialist 



Annie Berlinghieri 

 Staff Geologist 
 

  

October 2018 
 

 Page 2 of 2  

 

seepage meters to assess surface water-groundwater interaction. Provided oversight of subcontractors during 

construction of two in-channel v-notch weirs. Performed compilation, validation, quality control checks, and 

evaluation of field data and geochemical data. Managed and assisted in preparation of standard operating 

procedures, risk assessments, data evaluation, reports, tables, and figures.  

Walker Mine Site, Confidential Client, Plumas County, CA (2014), Staff Geologist. 

Prepared client for litigation through document review and report preparation. Reviewed historical and technical 

documents and correspondence to decipher site history, responsible parties, site investigations, and remedial actions. 

Prepared timeline including site history, mining activities, property ownership, and remedial activities. Contributed to 

preparation of expert report. 

Statewide Geotechnical TO 07 SBRRRP, California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), 

Sacramento, CA (2018), Staff Geologist. 

Provided quality control review of geotechnical borehole investigations to identify permanent installations and 

prepare for field verification of borehole locations. Reviewed boring backfill data sheets and well completion reports 

for compliance with Caltrans requirements. Analyzed Geotechnical Design Reports, Foundation Reports and Log of 

Test Borings for geotechnical borehole specifications and potential impacts on groundwater basins.  

Caltrans Injection Well Inventory, California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), Sacramento, 

CA (2015), Staff Geologist. 

Supported client in effort to update and validate inventory of Class-V injection wells on its properties. Visited Caltrans 

maintenance stations and rest areas to validate existence of wells listed on historic inventory. Obtained data for well 

registration through site reconnaissance and conversations with Caltrans personnel. 

CDM/Caltrans-TMDL Monitoring D2, 3, 10, CDM Smith Inc., Various, CA (2013-2016), Field 

Scientist. 

Conducted stormwater monitoring to characterize storm runoff from highways. Collected flow-weighted composite 

and one-time grab samples using automatic stormwater samplers for a variety of analytes. Maintained 

communication with management and other field personnel. 

Additional Qualifications  

• Berlinghieri, AL, 2013, Assessment of Hyporheic Exchange at In-stream Restoration Structures on Savage River, 

Garrett County, Maryland [MS Thesis]: West Virginia University, 78 p. 

• Schneider, AL, Mittlefehldt, DW, 2007, Compositional Constraints on Hematite-rich Spherule (Blueberry) 

Formation at Meridiani Planum Mars: Lunar and Planetary Science XXXVIII, Abstract #1941, Lunar and Planetary 

Institute, Houston, TX. 

• Software: Microsoft Office, HEC-RAS, ArcGIS, Hach Insight, Trimble TerraSync and Pathfinder, Solinst Levelogger, 

AQTESOLV, and MATLAB. 

 



Agenda Item # 12 

ACTION OF  

HIDDEN VALLEY LAKE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

DATE:  November 20, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM:  Discussion and Possible Approval:  Discuss and enter into a Memorandum of Agreement 

(MOA) Between Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District and the County of Lake Pertaining to 

Assistance Provided Under the Emergency Management Mutual Aid (EMMA) Plan 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) Between Hidden Valley 

Lake Community Services District and the County of Lake Pertaining to Assistance Provided Under the 

Emergency Management Mutual Aid (EMMA) Plan 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: If approved by the Board this will offset future financial obligations to the District when 

providing mutual aid. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
BACKGROUND: On August 4, 2018 a Presidential Declaration of Emergency was declared to include Lake 

County. The California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) approved assistance through the 

California Disaster Assistance Act (CDAA)2018‐06. 
 

The Director of Emergency Services of the County of Lake requested the mutual aid assistance of Hidden 

Valley Lake Community Services District pursuant to the Emergency management Mutual Aid Plan to provide 

emergency management support in connections with the Mendocino Complex Fire. 
 

Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District provided emergency management mutual aid consisting of 

emergency management personnel from July 218, 2018 through August 9, 2018 to assist with emergency 

management services in connection with the Mendocino Complex Fire. 
 

In accordance with CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION – CONS ARTICLE XX MISCELLANEOUS SUBJECTS [SEC. 1 ‐ SEC. 

23]  ( Article 20 adopted 1879. ) “Public officer and employee” includes every officer and employee of the State, 

including the University of California, every county, city, city and county, district, and authority, including any 

department, division, bureau, board, commission, agency, or instrumentality of any of the foregoing. 

(Sec. 3 amended Nov. 4, 1952, by Prop. 6. Res.Ch. 69, 1951.) 
 

    APPROVED          OTHER 

    AS RECOMMENDED        (SEE BELOW) 

 

Modification to recommendation and/or other actions: 

 

I, Kirk Cloyd, Secretary to the Board, do hereby certify that the foregoing action was regularly introduced, 

passed, and adopted by said Board of Directors at a regular board meeting thereof held on November 20, 

2018 by the following vote: 

 

Ayes: 

Noes:  __________________________ 

Abstain:  Secretary to the Board 

Absent 

 

   



Agenda Item # 14 

ACTION OF  

HIDDEN VALLEY LAKE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

DATE:  November 20, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM:  Discuss AMI options and provide the Board with additional information; requesting direction 

to proceed. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Select the option most beneficial to the District and its ratepayers. 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Schneider Electric : $977,342. (20 year SRF loan) 

Suez : $2,085,000. (15 year maintenance/lease) 

Suez : $1,901,210 (10 year maintenance/lease) 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND:  

 

    APPROVED          OTHER 

    AS RECOMMENDED        (SEE BELOW) 

 

Modification to recommendation and/or other actions: 

 

I, Kirk Cloyd, Secretary to the Board, do hereby certify that the foregoing action was regularly introduced, 

passed, and adopted by said Board of Directors at a regular board meeting thereof held on November 20, 

2018 by the following vote: 

 

Ayes: 

Noes: 

Abstain: 

Absent 

 

__________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

   



Financial Summary
Hidden Valley Lake CSD

Projected Savings Guarantee Savings

Projected Savings: 42,732$               Measured Non-Measured Escalation

Escalation: 0.00% Annual Utility Savings:

Savings Guarantee Term (yrs): 20 Operations & Maintenance:

Projected Construction Savings: Capital Cost Avoidance:

Construction Utility Savings:

Cost Finance Terms Performance Assurance

Total Project Pricing: 1,637,341$          Annual Interest Rate (%): 1.70% Measurement & Verification: -$                         

Capital Contribution: # of Payment Periods per Yr: 1 Support Services: 25,632$               

Grant: 818,670.50$        Lease Term (yrs): 20 Escalation: 1.00%

Finance Amount: 818,671$             Payment Factor: 0.000000

Utility Rebate: Payment per Period: 48,629$               

Savings Cost Performance Assurance Net Savings

Projected Measured Non-Measured O&M / Guarantee Project Guaranteed Projected M&V Support Net Projected

Year Utility Utility Capital CA Total Payment Surplus Surplus Costs Services Savings Cumulative

(B+C+D) (E+F) (A+F+Reb) Costs (H+I+J) Savings

A B C D E F G H I J K L

Construction -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

1 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         -$                         (5,897)$                (5,897)$                

2 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (25,888)$              (31,786)$              (37,683)$              

3 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (26,409)$              (32,306)$              (69,989)$              

4 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (26,939)$              (32,837)$              (102,826)$            

5 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (27,481)$              (33,378)$              (136,205)$            

6 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (28,033)$              (33,931)$              (170,136)$            

7 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (28,597)$              (34,494)$              (204,630)$            

8 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (29,172)$              (35,069)$              (239,699)$            

9 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (29,758)$              (35,655)$              (275,354)$            

10 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (30,356)$              (36,254)$              (311,608)$            

11 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (30,966)$              (36,864)$              (348,472)$            

12 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (31,589)$              (37,486)$              (385,958)$            

13 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (32,224)$              (38,121)$              (424,079)$            

14 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (32,871)$              (38,769)$              (462,847)$            

15 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (33,532)$              (39,429)$              (502,277)$            

16 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (34,206)$              (40,103)$              (542,380)$            

17 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (34,894)$              (40,791)$              (583,171)$            

18 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (35,595)$              (41,492)$              (624,664)$            

19 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (36,310)$              (42,208)$              (666,872)$            

20 42,732$               -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (48,629)$              (48,629)$              (5,897)$                -$                         (37,040)$              (42,938)$              (709,809)$            

Total 854,640$             -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (972,589)$            (972,589)$            (117,949)$            -$                         (591,860)$            (709,809)$            

Comments:

Schneider Electric Proprietary and Confidential



AMI Metering Asset Management
& Maintenance Program: 
Cost Comparison – Cash Flow Analysis 

Hidden Valley Lake CSD - AMI Financing Options

Pricing - Option 1 - 5 year Spread , you own it after 6 years Option 2 - 10 year Lease Option 3 - 15 year Lease

Annual Fee: Years 1-5 $267,202 $1,336,010 $149,000 $1,490,000 $139,000 $2,085,000

Maintenance Fee: Years 1-15 $27,414 $411,210 $27,414 $411,210 $0 $0

Total Cost 15 year Project $1,747,220 $1,901,210 $2,085,000

y2-y6 y7-y15

Amount Due for infastructure/capex $267,202 $0 $149,000 $139,000

Cash In/additional billing/year* $126,840 $126,840 $126,840 $126,840

Suggested Meter/Infastructure Fee** $27,414 $27,414 $27,414 $27,414

Cash Out $112,948 -$154,254 -$5,254 -$15,254

Total Cash Out $564,740 -$1,542,540

-$977,800

*: revenue enhancement of $10,570/mo x 12 = $126,840/yr

**: $27,414/2477 = $11.07/meter/yr = $.92/meter/mo infastructure charge = 100% offset of system, rest of savings go to your bottom line



Agenda Item # 15 

ACTION OF  

HIDDEN VALLEY LAKE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

DATE:  November 20, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM:  Discussion and Possible Approval:  Discuss and approve payment for emergency power 

generator (October 14‐16, 2018) to United Rental in the amount of $16,447.69 and Coastal Mountain 

Electrical in the amount of $2,562.50,  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve payment for emergency power generator (October 14‐16, 2018) to United 

Rental in the amount of $16,447.69 and Coastal Mountain Electrical in the amount of $2,562.50,  

Staff recommend funds come from Operational Reserves (Fund 325 $20K available as of Nov. 2018) 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: United Rental     $16,447.69  

               Coastal Mountain  $2,562.50  

                Total        $19,010.19 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND: On October 14, the District was affected by a power outage due to a fire at Hwy 29 and Tubbs 

Lane.  Staff requested (3) generators from United Rental; Coastal Mountain Electric was on site for the 

connection and wiring of the generators. Generators were demobilized on October 16th.  

 

 

    APPROVED          OTHER 

    AS RECOMMENDED        (SEE BELOW) 

 

Modification to recommendation and/or other actions: 

 

I, Kirk Cloyd, Secretary to the Board, do hereby certify that the foregoing action was regularly introduced, 

passed, and adopted by said Board of Directors at a regular board meeting thereof held on November 20th, 

2018 by the following vote: 

 

Ayes: 

Noes: 

Abstain: 

Absent 

 

__________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

   



Invoice

Date

11/13/2018

7546

Hidden Valley Lake Comm. Service District
19400 Hartman Road
Hidden Valley Lake, CA 95467-8371

Job Site Address:

P.O. Number

Trouble Call

Terms

Net 30

Vender#

Project: 7167 Hook up Generators

Total

Balance Due
Payments/Credits

Bill To:

Ph 707-987-9201 Fx 707-987-3237accting

Commercial - Industrial - Agriculture
Electrical Systems, Design / Build

License #507105  C10
DIR PWCR #1000008522

SAM * CA DGS #1153880 SB Cert.

James Day Construction, Inc.
dba Coastal Mountain Electric
14832 Lakeshore Drive
Clearlake, CA  95422
Ph: 707-994-0437 * Fx: 707-994-8504

DescriptionService Date Qty Cost Total

Hook up generators at Hartman Plant, Greenridge,
Station 9 and Well site for power outage.

10/14/18 17 125.00 2,125.00

Disconnect office building from genset.  Other genset
locations disconnected by others.  Generator rental to be
billed direct to HVLCSD.

10/15/18 3.5 125.00 437.50

Please pay by this invoice.  Statements only issued to past due accounts.  Coastal Mountain
Electric reserves the right to charge interest on all past due invoices at a rate of 1 1/2%
interest monthly (18% annually).

$2,562.50

$2,562.50

$0.00







Agenda Item #16  

ACTION OF  

HIDDEN VALLEY LAKE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

DATE:  November 20, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM:  Discussion and Possible Approval:  Discuss and approve the transfer of funds from Capital 

Improvement Reserves (Fund 320) to Operational Reserves (Fund 325) to pay for power generation during the 

purposed November power shut down. Recommendation to transfer $25K 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve the transfer of funds from Capital Improvement Reserves (Fund 320) to 

Operational Reserves (Fund 325) to pay for power generation during the purposed November power shut 

down. Recommendation to transfer $25K 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $25K 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND: District Staff were notified the morning of November 8th by PG&E that power was scheduled 

to be shut down between 4 and 8 am.  The District mobilized the generators to have on standby should the 

power go out. PG&E chose not to shut power down. The District will be billed for 1 day for each generator (3) 

on site by United Rental. 

 

 

    APPROVED          OTHER 

    AS RECOMMENDED        (SEE BELOW) 

 

Modification to recommendation and/or other actions: 

 

I, Kirk Cloyd, Secretary to the Board, do hereby certify that the foregoing action was regularly introduced, 

passed, and adopted by said Board of Directors at a regular board meeting thereof held on November 20, 

2018 by the following vote: 

 

Ayes: 

Noes: 

Abstain: 

Absent 

 

__________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

   


	November 20, 2018  Board of Directors Meeting Agenda
	October 8, 2018 Special Meeting
	October 9, 2018 Finance Committtee Meeting MInutes
	October 16, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	October 18, 2018 Valley Oaks Committee Minutes 
	October 19, 2018 Finance Committe Minutes
	#1 Disbursement Report
	#2 REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT
	#3 Pooled Cash Report Oct
	#4 Check Reconciliation Register
	#5 Capital Budget 18-19
	#6 O.T. Template
	BOD November 2018
	Field Report - November 2018 Field Report
	Field Report attachment #1 - CVRQCB November 1 Report
	Field Report attachment #2 - ACWA letter
	Field Report attachment #3 - Westside IRWM II PIF
	Field Report attachment #4 - Westside IRWM Tank PIF
	General Managers Report 11-20-18
	Agenda Item #11a
	Agenda Item #11b - Review
	Agenda Item #11c - FosterMorrisson
	Hidden Valley Lake CSD Cover
	HVLCSD Proposal
	Table of Contents
	1.  Introduction:  The Foster Morrison Team
	Foster Morrison Consulting, Ltd.
	Hazard Mitigation
	Hazard Mitigation Planning
	Floodplain Management/NFIP’s Community Rating System (CRS)
	Risk Assessment and DFIRM Experience
	Other FEMA Programs
	Foster Morrison Team Contact and Locations

	Sub-consultant: Howell Consulting, Inc.
	Howell Consulting:  The Company


	2.  Project Team and Management
	Jeanine Foster, JD - Principal/Project Manager/Senior Mitigation Planner
	Project Role
	Summary of Qualifications

	Chris Morrison, MPA, CFM – Lead Planner and Technical Editor
	Project Role
	Summary of Qualifications

	Alejandro Gutierrez – GIS Analyst
	Project Role
	Summary of Qualifications

	Brenna Howell – Planning Process, Risk Assessment, and Mitigation Strategy Support, QA/QC
	Project Role
	Summary of Qualifications

	Foster Morrison Team Strengths
	Team Capacity, Availability, and Ability to Perform
	Project Management

	3.  Foster Morrison Team’s Experience
	Project Description for Table 2 Projects
	Client References

	4.  Project Understanding, Approach, and Scope of Work
	Project Understanding
	Project Approach
	Senate Bill 379
	Project Goals and Benefits

	Scope of Work
	Phase I: LHMP Planning/Development Process
	Task 1: Organize Resources
	Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee
	Jurisdictional (HVLCSD) Participation and Work Assistance Requirements
	Kickoff Meeting

	Task 2: Public Involvement
	Task 3: Coordinate with Other Agencies
	Data Collection and Review
	Coordination with Other Planning Efforts


	Phase II: Risk Assessment
	Task 4: Assess the Hazard – Hazard Identification and Profiles
	Task 5: Assess the Problem: Vulnerability Assessment
	Identify and Inventory Assets
	Estimate Potential Losses
	Analyze Development Trends
	Capability Assessment
	Hazard Prioritization


	Phase III: Develop Mitigation Strategy (Plan)
	Task 6: Set Goals
	Task 7:  Review Possible Activities
	Task 8: Draft an Action Plan: Mitigation Implementation Strategy
	Task 8a: Draft Plan
	Document the Mitigation Planning Process
	Plan Review and Finalization Process


	Phase IV: Plan Maintenance Process
	Task 9: Final Plan Submittal and Adoption
	Task 10: Develop Procedures to Implement, Monitor, and Update the Plan


	Project Schedule

	5.  Project Cost
	LHMP Fee Proposal Assumptions
	Cost and Schedule Controls
	Appendix A. Resumes



	Jeanine Foster Resume
	Jeanine Foster, JD
	Principal/Project Manager/Senior Mitigation Planner
	Professional Biography
	Education
	Professional Qualifications/Registrations
	Representative Projects
	Hazard Mitigation Plans
	City of Lakeport Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Lakeport, CA (2018/2019 Original Plan)
	City of Clearlake Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Clearlake, CA (2018/2019 Original Plan)
	City of Piedmont Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Piedmont, CA (2018 Original Plan)
	City of Azusa Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, City of Azusa, CA (2018 Original Plan)
	Colusa County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Colusa County, CA (2018 Plan Update)
	Los Angeles Unified School District Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (2018 Plan Update)
	Lake County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Lake County, CA (2018 Plan Update)
	Madera County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Madera County CA (2017 Plan Update)
	City of San Rafael Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, City of San Rafael, CA (2017 Original Plan)
	Nevada County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Nevada County, CA (2017 Plan Update
	Sacramento County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (2005 Original Plan; 2011 and 2016 Plan Updates), Sacramento County, CA
	Placer County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Placer County Office of Emergency Services, Placer County, CA, (2005 Original Plan; 2010 and 2015 Plan Updates)
	Calaveras County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Calaveras County Office of Emergency Services, Calaveras County, CA (2010 Original Plan and 2015 Plan Update)
	Comprehensive Flood Management Plan (CFMP) Update, City of Sacramento, CA, 2014
	Sutter County Hazard Mitigation Plan (Original 2009 Plan and 2014 Plan Update), Sutter County, CA
	City of Vacaville Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Vacaville, CA (2015 Original Plan)
	Modoc County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Office of Emergency Services, Modoc County, CA (2015 Original Plan)
	Amador County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Amador County, CA (Original 2009 Plan and 2014 Plan Update)
	Butte County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Butte County, CA (2013 Plan Update)
	Calaveras County Water District Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Calaveras County, CA (2012 Plan Update)

	Other Mitigation Planning Work




	Chris Morrison Resume
	Christopher Morrison, MPA, CFM
	Owner/Lead Mitigation Planner
	Professional Biography
	Education
	Professional Qualifications/Registrations
	Representative Projects
	Hazard Mitigation Plans
	City of Lakeport Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (2018/2019 Original Plan)
	City of Clearlake Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (2018/2019 Original Plan)
	City of Piedmont Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (2018/2019 Original Plan)
	City of Azusa Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, City of Azusa, CA (2018 Original Plan)
	Colusa County Mitigation Plan Update, Colusa County, CA (2018 Plan Update)
	Los Angeles Unified School District, Los Angeles, CA (2018 Plan Update)
	Lake County Mitigation Plan Update, Lake County, CA (2018 Plan Update)
	Madera County Mitigation Plan Update, Madera County, CA (2017 Plan Update)
	City of San Rafael Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, San Rafael CA (2017 Original)
	Nevada County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Nevada County, CA (2017 Plan Update)
	Sacramento County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Sacramento County, CA (2011 and 2016 Plan Update)
	Placer County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Placer County, CA (2010 and 2015 Plan Updates)
	City of Vacaville Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, City of Vacaville, CA (2015 Plan Update)
	Calaveras County Local Mitigation Plan Update, Calaveras County, CA (2010 Original Plan and 2015 Update)
	Modoc County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Modoc County, CA (2015 Original Plan)
	Comprehensive Flood Management Plan (CFMP) Update, City of Sacramento, CA (2014)
	Amador County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, Amador County, CA (Original 2009 Plan and 2014 Plan Update)

	Other Mitigation Plan Work
	Other Technical Editing Work




	Alejandro Gutierrez Resume
	Brenna Howell Resume
	Back Cover

	Agenda Item #11d - Wood
	Agenda Item #12 MOA
	Agenda Item #14a 
	Agenda Item #14b - Schneider spreadsheet
	Agenda Item #14c Suez
	Agenda Item #15
	Agenda Item #15b Coastal Mountain Invoice
	Agenda Item #15c United Rental
	Agenda Item #16

	undefined: Yes
	Lead Agency Organization: Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District
	Name of Primary Contact: Alyssa Gordon
	Mailing Address: 19400 Hartmann Rd, Hidden Valley Lake, CA 95467
	Email: agordon@hvlcsd.org
	Phone: 707-987-9201
	Other Cooperating AgenciesOrganizations: Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board, The Americorps Civispark Fellowship program, as administered by the Local Government Commission
	Is your agency committed to the project through completion If not please explain: Yes
	Project Title: Infiltration & Inflow Mitigation Plan
	Project Description Briefly describe the project in 300 words or less: As a corrective action to Sewer System Overflows (SSO)that occurred during excessive rains in early 2017, Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District (HVLCSD) is working with the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board (CVRWQCB) and CiviSpark Fellows to repair/replace the community's wastewater collection system infrastructure contributing to infiltration and inflow (I & I). This project would take place throughout the collection system over the course of 5 years.
	Project Location: Throughout the HVLCSD wastwater collection system
	Latitude: 38.79
	Longitude: -122.55
	NA: Off
	Yes NA NoProject Location Description: 
	Yes NA NoCounty: Lake
	Yes NA NoCityCommunity: Hidden Valley Lake
	Yes NA NoWatershed: Upper Putah Creek
	Yes NA NoGroundwater Basin: Coyote Valley
	Yes NA NoPlanning Area: 
	Yes NA NoAdditional Comments: 
	Conceptual: Off
	Planning: Off
	CEQANEPA: Off
	Permitting: Off
	Design: Off
	ConstructionImplementation: On
	StudyOther: Off
	MaintenanceMonitoring: Off
	Conceptual Planning CEQANEPA Permitting Design ConstructionImplementation StudyOther MaintenanceMonitoringEarliest expected start date mmddyr: 7/1/18
	Goals that the Project will contribute to: Goal # 7 - Improve and manage water quality.Goal # 8 - Promote reasonable use of water and watershed resources. Goal # 11 - Reduce the risks of flooding disturbances which in turn affect the Region's water resources.Goal # 13 - Support sustainable economic activities.
	Objectives that the Project will help accomplish: Objective # 14 - Provide adequate flood protection.Objective # 20 - Minimize accidental wastewater spillage/discharges.Objective # 22 - Meet all  drinking water and wastewater discharge standards.
	Explanation of Project linkage to goals and objectives: This project will identify, document, plan, and repair leakages in the wastewater collection system. Leak sources such as manhole lids, and sewer line joints and fittings will be replaced or re-lined to ensure proper conveyance of wastewater to the treatment plant. Water quality is improved by the reduction in the risk of SSO into natural waterways within the Sacramento Delta. The potential elimination of SSO will also reduce the danger and complexity of flood disturbances, and reduce the management burden of resources management services. A robust and resilient infrastructure will support a stable and growing economy in the area.  
	How will: 1. Waste Discharge Requirement (WDR) order 5-00-19 was adopted in 2000, and amended under order WQ-2013-0058. The codes and standards listed therein specifically define compliance measurements and methods.2. Correspondance with the CVRWQCB has identified specific tools and frequency of status updates for meeting the goals and objectives of this project.3. A Water Balance Report, and I & I Workplan, and I & I Assessment also identify tools and methodologies for reducing I & I.
	Text3: 
	Text4: 
	Text5: Aids in the continuity of flow down the Putah Creek watershed to the Delta.
	Text6: Ensures local conveyance of rain water to the local aquifer while reducing the introduction of contaminates.
	Text7: 
	Text8: 
	Text9: Rainfall reaching groundwater and waterways instead of infiltrating wastewater lines increases water supply for the local aquifer as well as downstream neighbors
	Text10: 
	Text11: Enhances the benificial use of rainfall ensuring it is not contamionated with wastewater.
	Text12: 
	Text13: 
	Text14: 
	Text15: 
	Text16: Diluation of natural contaminants occurring in serpentine rock formations attributes to improved water quality in the Coyote Valley Groundwater basin
	Text17: 
	Text18: Prevention of accidental sewer system overflows.
	Text19: 
	Text20: 
	Text21: 
	Text22: 
	Text23: Ensures the naturhydraulic flow is not interupted or short circited by manmade systems.
	Text24: Provides a natural flow to down stream forest and environmental resources.
	Text25: 
	Text26: 
	Text27: 
	Text28: Provides natural watershed management and removes the influance of manmade piping systems.
	Text29: Reducing the risk of SSO's thus reducing the danger to public health and safety of flooding situations. The complexity is also reduced which will also assist resources
	Text30: Groundwater will be recharged during storms, not treated as wastewater. Groundwater wells supply water to the community.
	Text31: Tracking of wastewater influent to the treatment facility against average wet weather flows.
	Text32: If rain and ground water enter the sewer system during wet weather, it can exit the sewer during dry weather.
	Text33: Reduce the risk of  negatively influencing the aquifer.
	Text34: Groundwater will be recharged during storms, not treated as wastewater. Groundwater wells supply water to the community
	Text35: Tracking of wastewater influent to the treatment facility against average wet weather flows.
	Check Box38: Off
	Text36: Indirect potable reuse through groundwater augmentation
	Text37: As much as 50% of wastewater collected, is actually stormwater that was unable to reach the aquifer.
	Check Box39: Off
	Text40: 
	Text41: 
	Text42: 
	Text43: 
	Text44: Reduced risk of SSO reduces danger and complexity of flooded environments.
	Text45: The number of potential SSOs should be greatly reduced.
	Text46: 
	Text47: Reduced accidental sanitary sewer overflows into the stormwater conveyance system due to an aging infrastructure.
	Text48: 
	Text49: 
	Text50: 
	Text51: HVLCSD's recent study indicates that during and immediately following a rain event, 50% of the water treated at its wastewater treatment facility is ground and rain water.  By keeping this water out of the wastewater system, it remains in the ecosystem and available for use by trees, shrubs and plants.  This has a dramatic effect on the regrowth of these trees etc. after the devastating Valley and recent Mendocino complex fire and aids in slowing climate change for Lake County.  Additionally, a reduction in the amount of water treated would also reduce the amount of energy needed to be generated thus reducing HVLCSD's carbon footprint.
	Text52: 
	Check Box53: Off
	Check Box54: Off
	Check Box55: Off
	Check Box56: Yes
	Check Box57: Off
	Check Box58: Off
	Check Box59: Yes
	Check Box60: Yes
	Check Box61: Off
	Check Box62: Yes
	Check Box63: Yes
	Check Box64: Off
	Check Box65: Off
	Check Box66: Yes
	Check Box67: Off
	Check Box68: Off
	Check Box69: Yes
	Check Box70: Off
	Check Box71: Off
	Check Box72: Off
	Check Box73: Off
	Check Box74: Yes
	Check Box75: Off
	Check Box76: Yes
	Check Box77: Yes
	Check Box78: Yes
	Check Box79: Yes
	Check Box80: Off
	Check Box81: Off
	Check Box82: Off
	Check Box83: Yes
	Check Box84: Off
	Check Box85: Off
	Check Box86: Off
	Check Box87: Off
	Check Box88: Off
	Check Box89: Off
	Text90: 
	Text91: $700,000
	Text92: Annual operations and maintenance costs are covered by current staffing levels.
	Text93: HVLCSD CIP
	Text94: $350,000
	Text95: IRWM Prop 1 funds
	Text96: $350,000
	Text97: Annual operations and maintenance costs are covered by current staffing levels in the annual budget.
	Text98: Pricing from prior repairs
	Check Box99: Yes
	Check Box100: Off
	Text101: Water Balance Rpt, I&I Workplan
	Text102: 
	Text103: 6/2018
	Text104: I&I Assessment, CCTV
	Text105: 11/2018
	Text106: 6/2023
	Text107: 
	Text108: 
	Text109: 
	Text110: 
	Text111: 
	Text112: 
	Text113: 
	Text114: 
	Text115: 
	Text116: 
	Text117: 
	Text118: 
	Text119: Manhole lid, sewer line repair/replacement
	Text120: 3/2018
	Text121: 6/2023
	Text122: Water Balance Report, I&I Workplan, I&I Assessment, HVLCSD CIP
	Text123: 
	Text124: Water Balance Report, I&I Workplan, I&I Assessment, HVLCSD CIP
	Text125: 
	Check Box126: Off
	Check Box127: Off
	Check Box128: Off
	Check Box129: Off
	Check Box130: Off
	Check Box131: Off
	Check Box132: Off
	Check Box133: Off
	Check Box134: Off
	Check Box135: Off
	Check Box136: Off
	Check Box137: Off
	Check Box138: Off
	Check Box140: Off
	Check Box139: Off
	Check Box141: Off
	Check Box142: Off
	Check Box143: Off
	Check Box144: Off
	Check Box145: Off
	Check Box146: Off
	Check Box147: Off
	Check Box148: Off
	Check Box149: Off


